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THE INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

The Inter-American Development Bank, the oldest and largest regional multilateral development insti
tution, was established in December of 1959 to help accelerate economic and social development in Latin 
America and the Caribbean. 

The Bank was created in response to a longstanding desire on the part of the Latin American 
nations for a development institution that would focus on the pressing problems of the region. A 
resolution calling for the creation of such a bank was adopted at the First International American 
Conference, held in Washington, D.C. in 1890. While this initiative, and subsequent ones, failed to bear 
immediate fruit, in 1958 President Juscelino Kubitschek of Brazil proposed that the countries of the 
Hemisphere embark upon a bold cooperative effort to promote the economic and social development of 
the region. His proposal received support from throughout the Hemisphere and shortly thereafter a 
special committee of the Organization of American States drafted the Articles of Agreement Establishing 
the Inter-American Development Bank. 

The Bank's original membership included 19 Latin American and Caribbean countries and the 
United States. Subsequently, seven other Western Hemisphere nations, including Canada, joined the 
Bank. From the beginning, the Bank developed links with many industrialized countries on other 
continents and in 1974 the Declaration of Madrid was signed to formalize their entry into the Bank. 
Thirteen European countries, as well as Japan and Israel became nonregional members of the Bank in 
1976 and 1977, to be joined by Portugal in 1980 and Norway in 1986. Today Bank membership totals 44 
nations. 

In its 30 years of operations, the Bank has become a major catalyst in mobilizing resources for 
the region. The Bank's Charter states that its principal functions are to utilize its own capital, funds raised 
by it in financial markets, and other available resources, for financing the development of the member 
countries; to encourage private investment in projects and to supplement private investment when 
private capital is not available on reasonable terms and conditions; and to provide technical assistance for 
the preparation, financing, and implementation of development plans and projects. 

In carrying out its mission, the Bank has mobilized financing for projects that represent a total 
investment of more than $136 billion. The Bank's annual lending grew dramatically from the $294 million 
in loans approved in 1961 to $3.8 billion in 1990. 

The Bank's operations cover the entire spectrum of economic development, with particular 
emphasis on the productive sectors of agriculture and industry, the physical infrastructure sectors of 
energy and transportation and the social sectors of environmental and public health, education and urban 
development. 

During the 1960s and 1970s, the Bank was a pioneer in financing social projects such as health 
and education. In fact, the Bank's first loan, approved in February of 1961, was for improving the water 
and sewage system of Arequipa, Peru. Its innovative Small Projects Program seeks to provide small 
financings to microentrepreneurs and small-scale fanners and in 1990 the Bank broadened its support to 
the informal sector. The Bank has made an effort to see to it that its lending operations directly benefit 
low-income populations. Finally, 1990 marked the introduction of sector lending into the Bank's program 
of activities. 

The financial resources of the Bank consist of ordinary capital resources—comprised of 
subscribed capital, reserves and funds raised through borrowings—and Funds in Administration, 
comprised of contributions made by member countries. It should be noted that member countries' 
subscriptions to the Bank's capital fund consist of paid-in and callable capital. A paid-in subscription is in 
the form of a cash payment and represents a minor portion of a member's subscription (under the Seventh 
General Increase in the Resources of the Bank, the paid-in portion represents only 2.5 percent of a 
member's subscription). The major part of a member's subscription is in the form of callable capital—or 
guarantees of the Bank's borrowings in the world's financial markets. The Bank also has a Fund for 
Special Operations for lending on concessional terms for projects in countries classified as economically 
less developed. 

The Bank has borrowed funds for its ordinary operations from the capital markets of Europe, 
Japan, Latin America, the Caribbean and the United States. The Bank's debt is AAA rated by the three 
major rating services in the United States, and is accorded equivalent status in the other major capital 
markets. 

The Bank's highest authority is its Board of Governors, on which each member country is 
represented. Governors are usually Ministers of Finance, Presidents of Central Banks or officers of 
comparable rank. The Board of Governors has delegated many of its operational powers to the Board of 
Executive Directors, which is responsible for the conduct of the Bank's operations. 

The Bank has Country Offices in each of its regional member countries, as well as in Paris and 
London. The Bank's headquarters are in Washington, D.C. 
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COVER: EL CAJÓN, HONDURAS. The 292,000-kilowatt 
hydroelectric project, financed with IDB loans total
ing $185 million, was begun in 1981 and completed in 
1985 ahead of schedule. The arc dam is 236 meters 
high. In 1988, the Bank financed feasibility studies for 
El Cajon, which will lead to an IDB supported water
shed management program. 
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THREE DECADES OF ACTIVITIES 

Loans, Technical Cooperation, and Small Projects 

The Bank has approved 1,846 loans totaling $46.9 billion in 30 years 
of operation. The total investment in the projects financed with the 
help of the Bank is estimated at $136 billion. 

• The Bank has committed a total of $1,582 million for technical 
cooperation. Of this, $781 million was extended on a grant and 
contingent recovery basis. Another $800 million in technical coopera
tion was extended for preinvestment purposes or as part of specific 
loans to ensure the optimum execution of projects. 

• A total of $95.3 million has been approved for the financing of 
Small Projects. 

Resource Mobilization 

• The subscribed capital of the Bank totaled $41 billion, as of 
December 31,1990. The Seventh General Increase in the Resources of 
the Bank, which went into effect January 17, 1990, increased the 
Bank's authorized capital to $61 billion. 

• Contributions to the Fund for Special Operations have totaled 
$8.7 billion. 

• 10 nations and entities have entrusted the Bank with special 
funds totaling over $1 billion. 

• A total of S23.7 billion has been borrowed in international capital 
markets for lending purposes. 

Sectoral Activities 

• Agriculture and Fisheries: 465 loans amounting to S9.9 billion 
have helped to finance agricultural and fisheries projects costing a total 
of $22.2 billion. 

• Energy: 243 loans for $12.7 billion have helped to finance $48.8 
billion in projects in the energy sector. 

• Industry and Mining: 257 loans amounting to $6.2 billion have 
been approved for industrial and mining projects costing $28.1 billion. 

• Transportation and Communications: 236 loans totaling $6.3 
billion have financed transportation and communications projects 
with a combined cost of $13.6 billion. 

• Environmental and Public Health: 240 loans amounting to $4.7 
billion have helped finance projects costing $9.8 billion. 

• Education, Science and Technology: 149 loans amounting to $1.9 
billion have financed education projects costing $3.7 billion. 

• Urban Development: 99 loans amounting to $2.1 billion have 
helped finance $3.9 billion in urban development projects. 

• Export Financing: 42 loans totaling $1 billion have financed 
projects costing SI.3 billion. 

• Tourism and Microenterprise: 22 loans amounting to $660 
million financed tourism projects whose total cost is $1.5 billion. 

• Preinvestment: 73 global preinvestment loans amounting to $400 
million have been made to finance projects costing $740 million. 

• Other: 20 loans, including sector adjustment lending, exceeding 
$1 billion. 

Member Countries 

Argentina 
Austria 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belgium 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

Canada 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Denmark 
Dominican 

Republic 

Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Finland 
France 
Germany 
Guatemala 
Guyana 

Haiti 
Honduras 
Israel 
Italy 
famaica 
fapan 
Mexico 

Netherlands 
Nicaragua 
Norway 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Portugal 

Spain 
Suriname 
Sweden 
Switzerland 
Trinidad and 

Tobago 
United Kingdom 

United States 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Yugoslavia 
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PRESIDENTS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL 

inter-American Development Bank 
Washington, D.C. 

February 20, 1991 

Mr. Chairman: 

Pursuant to Section 2 of the By-Laws of the Inter-American Development Bank, I transmit to you the Annual 
Report of the Bank for 1990, which the Board of Executive Directors submits to the Board of Governors. 

The Report contains a brief summary of the economic situation of Latin America and a review of the Bank's 
activities in 1990. 

In addition, the Report contains a description on a country-by-country basis and a regional basis of the 
Bank's various operations—loans, financings for small projects and technical cooperation—on behalf of Latin 
America's development, as well as progress highlights on project execution; a summary statement of the loans 
approved in 1990; a series of tables of selected data on the region; the financial statements of the Bank, and its 
general appendices. 

Complying with Article III, Section 3(a), of the Agreement Establishing the Bank, the Report contains 
separate audited financial statements for its various sources of funds. For the ordinary capital resources, these 
are presented pursuant to the provisions of Article VIII, Section 6(a), of the Agreement; for the Fund for Special 
Operations, in accordance with the provisions of Article IV, Section 8(d), of the Agreement; for the Intermediate 
Financing Facility Account, complying with Section 5(d) of Resolution AG-12/83 of the Board of Governors; for 
the Social Progress Trust Fund, pursuant to Section 5.04 of the Agreement signed between the Government of 
the United States and the Bank, and for the Venezuelan Trust Fund, in accordance with Article VI, Section 24, 
of the Agreement signed between the Government of Venezuela and the Bank. 

Sincerely yours, 

Enrique V. Iglesias 

Chairman, Board of Governors 
Inter-American Development Bank 

ir 
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TABLE I. TEN YEARS OF OPERATIONS, 1981-90 
(In millions of U.S. dollars) 

1981 1982 1983 1984 1985 1986 1987 1988 1989 1990 
TOTAL RESOURCES 

Subscriptions (End of Year) 
Ordinarv-Capital1 15,178 19,230 21,427 24,537 26,714 34,073 34,083 3-1,083 34.455 40,994 
Fund for Special Operations 7,671 7,673 8,211 8,305 8,362 8,420 8,476 8,458 8,458 8,702 
Other Funds 1,173 1,173 1,176 1.180 1,182 1.188 1.12' 1.192 1.130 1,172 

Total 24.022 28,076 30,814 34.022 36,258 43,681 43.686 43733 44.043 50.868 

BORROWINGS 
Outstanding Debt (End of Year)2 

Ordinary Capital' 3,477 4,252 5,180 6,132 9.366 12,115 15,225 14,266 14.630 17,273 
Gross Annual Borrowings 

Ordinarv-Capital1 787 1,296 1,408 1,763 2,333 1,911 1.115 902 1,984 1,830 

OPERATIONS 
Loans Authorized (Cumulative)2-3 

Ordinary Capital1 11,119 12,770 14,930 17.511 21,056 24,772 28.658 28,466 30,113 35,021 
Fund for Special Operations 7,736 8,479 8,809 8,984 9,150 9.354 9,664 9,733 10,038 10,475 
Other Funds 1,222 U^ó 1.296 1,2~~ 1.31 -i 1,312 1.369 1,426 1,448 1.499 

Total 20,077 22,525 25.035 2 T ^ 2 31.520 35.4.38 39.691 39.625 41,599 46,995 

Loans Authorized (Annual) 
Ordinary Capital1 1,867 1,892 2,589 3,215 2,766 2,706 1,957 1,474 2,235 3,315 
Fund for Special Operations 569 786 412 307 251 292 346 154 342 517 
Other Funds s~ 66 44 45 44 39 58 54 41 49 

Total 2,493 2,744 3,045 3,567 3,061 3.037 2,361 1.682 2,618 3,881 

Loan Disbursement ( Annual) 
Ordinary Capital1 845 1,081 1,170 1,759 1,781 1,742 1,574 1,942 2,193 2,129 
Fund for Special Operations 556 485 493 568 504 478 290 321 311 329 
Other Funds 141 97 67 50 58 45 55 (ñ 45 49 

Total 1,542 1,663 1,730 2,377 2.343 2.265 1,919 2.328 2.549 2.50' 

Loan Repayments (Annual) 
Ordinary Capital 248 248 268 335 382 519 646 850 935 1,069 
Fund for Special Operations 142 153 163 177 187 202 205 232 219 229 
Other Funds 69 80 82 Tl y 60 T3 TJ 68 77 

Total 459 481 513 590 643 781 929 1.160 1,222 1,375 

Nonreimbursable Technical 
Cooperation (Annual) 

Fund for Special Operations 20 33 31 40 35 10 35 40 44 48 
Other Funds 21 16 23 8 6 10 12 16 \J_ 9 

Total 41 49 54 48 41 20 47 56 61 57 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
Income 

Loans 
Ordinary Capital1 331 386 453 543 695 945 1.145 1,221 1,165 1,418 
Fund for Special Operations 93 99 102 107 110 114 120 111 103 126 

Investments 
Ordinary Capital1 199 231 233 271 311 367 344 329 370 449 
Fund for Special Operations 51 52 46 39 29 40 48 62 73 74 

Net Income 
Ordinary Capital1 239 243 219 252 271 286 282 238 221 341 
Fund for Special Operations4 70 72 75 71 64 79 94 50 48 47 

Reserves (End of Period) 
Ordinary Capital' 1,267 1,493 1,692 1,923 2,207 2,537 2,882 3,070 3.296 3,711 
Fund for Special Operations 501 552 536 458 471 528 56^ 559 546 539 

Total 1,768 2,045 2,228 2,381 2,678 3,065 3,449 3,629 3,842 4.250 

ADMINISTRATION 
Administrative Expenses ̂  

Total—All Funds 133 140 142 145 155 165 170 171 184 202 

1 Pursuant to the merger effective Dec. 31, 1987. prior years' operations of the inter-regional capital are included with those of the ordinarv' capital for comparative purposes. 
2 After adjusting U.S. dollar equivalents of borrowed currencies to year-end exchange rates. 
3 Net of cancellations. 
4 Income before Technical Cooperation expense. 
5 Includes depreciation and amortization expenses relating to buildings. For consistency in comparison, administrative expenses prior to 1989 exclude reimbursements from 
funds under administration and IIC. 
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LATIN AMERICA AND 
THE CARIBBEAN IN 1990 

Regional Overview 

Latin America and the Caribbean completed the first 
year of the 1990s with reasons for both hope in the 
medium and long term but concern in the short term. 
Despite the short-run costs associated with stabilization 
and staictural adjustment policies adopted by the 
countries of the region, the outlook for the decade is 
positive, provided that governments maintain their 
resolve to reform the public sector, restructure the 
productive sector, and search for innovative and 
efficient ways to position their countries within the 
international economic framework. 

After several years of moderate growth, general 
economic activity declined in 1990 with the combined 
gross domestic product (GDP) of Latin American and 
Caribbean countries falling in real terms by around 
0.8 percent. Per capita GDP fell for the third year in 
a row. Export revenues, however, rose by 7.2 percent 
in relation to the previous year's earnings, despite 
renewed deterioration in the region's terms of trade. 
The inflationary situation of the previous year con-

CAMPANA, ARGENTINA. A $40 million IDB loan 
in 1985 enabled the SIDERCA seamless steel tube 
and pipe plant to increase production by 30 
percent. The plant exports to 60 countries and is 
one oft he world's leading exporters of petroleum 
pipe. The plant purchased state-of-the-art 
machinery andtechnology from Brazil, Germany, 
Italy, Norway, and the United States. 

tinued, even though countries plagued by the highest 
rates intensified their efforts to control inflation, while 
others took steps to contain any resurgence. Price 
increases in most countries exceeded those of 1989. 
Only in the last months of 1990 did hyperinflation 
abate in some countries. 

The external debt of Latin American countries is 
estimated to have grown by $3-5 billion during the 
year, owing mainly to interest arrears (S10 billion). At 
the end of 1990, accumulated arrears amounted to 
S27 billion, which represents 6 percent of the debt 
balance. Another major factor driving the increase in 
debt obligations was the decline of the dollar against 
other currencies in which the debt is denominated, a 
phenomenon that accounted for approximately $3 
billion of the total increase. Four countries of the 
region entered into public debt restructuring agree
ments with commercial banks under the terms of the 
Brady Plan. This plan represents an important change 
in the developed world's official perception of the 
external debt problem in that it seeks to solve the 
problem through measures aimed at actually reduc
ing the size of the debt. 

The year 1990 may be characterized as one of 
continuing comprehensive economic reforms 
throughout Latin America. Initiated sporadically dur
ing the 1980s, such reforms gradually became es
tablished in most of the countries of the region. In the 
most dramatic examples, sweeping reforms were 
instituted by new political administrations, while 
other countries persevered with their existing re
forms. Increasingly, medium- and long-term structural 
adjustment programs were implemented alongside 
short-term macroeconomic stabilization plans. In 
several instances, the adjustments were immediate 
and drastic; in others, implementation continued at a 
gradual pace. 
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TABLE II. GROSS DOMESTIC PRODUCT 
(In percent) 

Proportion of Regional GDP 

Averages 

Real Growth Rates 

Averages Annual 

Country 196069 197079 198089 196170 197180 198186 1987 1988 1989 1990 

Argentina 191 15.9 11.7 4.4 
Bahamas 0.4 0.2 0.2 36 
Barbados 0.3 0.2 0.2 6.6 
Bolivia 1.0 1.0 0.8 4.7 
Brazil 28.0 333 38.1 5.4 

Chile 5.2 3.8 3.5 4.2 
Colombia 4.5 4.4 4.8 5.2 
Costa Rica 0.5 0.5 0.5 6.0 
Dominican Republic 0.5 0.5 0.6 5.1 
Ecuador 1.1 1.3 1.5 5.2 

El Salvador 1.0 0.9 0.6 5.8 
Guatemala 1.0 1.0 0.9 5.5 
Guyana 0.1 0.1 0.1 30 
Haiti 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.8 
Honduras 0.5 0.5 0.5 5.3 

Jamaica 0.8 0.6 0.4 5.1 
Mexico 17.0 18.5 20.5 7.1 
Nicaragua 0.7 0.6 0.4 6.9 
Panama 0.6 0.6 0.6 8.1 
Paraguay 0.5 0.5 0.7 4.6 

Peru 5.3 4.2 3.6 4.4 
Suriname 0.2 0.2 0.2 5.6 
Trinidad and Tobago 1.0 0.9 0.8 4.3 
Uruguay 1.8 1.3 11 1.6 
Venezuela 8.6 8.6 7.4 6.3 

2.5 
2.8 
0.1 
4.0 
8.7 

2.6 
5.5 
5.4 
6.9 
9.1 

2.6 
5.7 
1.2 
4.7 
5.7 

1.6 
6.7 

0.1 
5.1 
8.7 

3.6 
4.4 
5.6 
3.0 

1.7 
3.2 

0.0 
1.5 
2.5 

0.3 
3.1 
1.1 
1.7 
1.9 

2.1 
0.9 
3.3 
0.8 

1.4 

0.1 
0.8 

0.2 
2.8 
1.9 

1.0 
1.2 
3.1 
1.2 
0.2 

2.3 
3.8 
2.8 
2.5 
2.0 

5.8 
5.3 
4.6 
8.7 

4 .3 

2.4 
3.5 
0.7 
0.6 
5.3 

7.2 
1.8 

0 .9 
2.1 
4.4 

10.3 
■10.8 
5 .3 

6.0 
4.5 

3 .6 
2.3 
3.5 
2.8 

0 .7 

7.4 
4.3 
3.2 
0.5 
9.3 

1.5 
3.9 

3 .6 
1 .5 

5.4 

1.5 
1.6 

10.7 
15.7 

6.6 

8 .2 
3.3 

-3.8 
0.5 
6.2 

5 .8 
2.0 
3.5 
2.4 
3.1 

10.1 
3.2 
5.6 
4.2 
0.1 

1.6 
4.0 

6 .9 
1 .5 

2.3 

7.9 
3.5 

22 
0 .6 

5.9 

13.6 
1.4 

0 .4 
1.4 

8 .3 

2.0 
2.0 

30 
2.9 

4.0 

2.0 
37 
3.5 

5.0 
1.8 

2.5 
3.8 
0.0 

2.0 
-3.8 

3.3 
2.5 

5.5 
2.9 
3.5 

6.0 
1.0 
0.1 
0.5 
4.5 

Latin America 100 100 100 5.4 5.9 1.1 2.8 0.4 0.9 0.8 

Source: IDB, based on official statistics of member countries and estimates. 

Almost all the countries of the region are 
implementing economic reform programs with similar 
objectives: the control of inflation, reduction of the 
public sector deficit, selective privatization of state 
enterprises, real exchange rate correction, trade lib

eralization, and emphasis on the private sector as 
the driving force of the economy. Programs that 
coordinated their stabilization and structural adjust

ment measures are showing remarkable progress in 
achieving their objectives. Recently adopted programs, 
which focus on rapidly correcting macroeconomic 
distortions, are showing signs of weakness insofar as 
they have not been undertaken in the context of 
longerterm adjustments that would consolidate 
progress and lay a sound foundation for sustained 
development. 

The success of these programs in the medium 
and long term will depend essentially upon the 
political sustainability of the effort. The durability of 
domestic effort, in many cases, will likely be closely 
related to the willingness of the international financial 
community to provide an appropriate amount of 
funding needed to complement and sustain these 
national efforts. After several years of decline in the 
standard of living for all people of the region but 
particularly the very poor, of uncontrolled growth of 
the informal sector, of deteriorating social indicators, 
and of a burdensome external debt, it is now more 
urgent than ever that the region and the international 
community coordinate their efforts to place Latin 
America and the Caribbean once again on the road to 
economic development. 
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High inflation, capital outflows, decreased re
gional output, and adjustment policies implemented 
by many of the countries have exacerbated the social 
problems of a growing population, particularly of 
vulnerable groups. One indicator, albeit imperfect, of 
this situation was the further decline of per capita 
consumption in the region in 1990. 

Economic Growth in the Region 

The decline in total regional GDP during 1990 was 
due in large part to the recessions in the economies 
of Argentina, Brazil, and Peru, caused by the impact 
of economic adjustment measures adopted in 1990, 
and further aggravated since August by dramatically 
higher oil prices triggered by conflict in the Persian 
Gulf. These three countries together represent nearly 
55 percent of the region's GDP. In Argentina, GDP 
declined by 2 percent; in Brazil, by 4 percent; and in 
Peru by 6 percent. Argentina's GDP registered a three-
year cumulative decline of 11 percent; in Peru the 
three-year cumulative decline was around 25 percent. 

Mexico and Venezuela, oil-exporting countries 
that account for 28 percent of the region's GDP, 
experienced growth rates of 2.5 percent and 4 per
cent, respectively. Mexico maintained its moderate 
growth trend of the last few years, while Venezuela 
significantly recovered from the sharp drop in output 
of 8.4 percent experienced in 1989. 

Several countries, such as the Bahamas, Bolivia, 
Costa Rica, and El Salvador, continued to show 
moderate, but stable growth rates. After two years of 
deep recession, Panama grew by 2.9 percent; Para
guay experienced a growth rate of around 3-5 per
cent; and Colombia grew at a rate of 3 7 percent. 
These positive signs notwithstanding, the economies 
of most countries of the region contracted in 1990. In 
Barbados and the Dominican Republic, the economy 
contracted after three years of moderate growth. In 
Guyana, Haiti, and Trinidad and Tobago, 1990 meant 
a continuation of economic and social problems that 
began several years ago. In Nicaragua, which 
implemented stabilization programs to contain 
hyperinflation, the GDP contracted for the seventh 
straight year, registering a cumulative decline of 
around 25.8 percent. Chile registered a growth rate of 
2 percent. 

Inflation 

Despite drastic stabilization programs applied during 
the course of the year, the average increase in prices 
in most countries was still higher than that of 1989-
The only countries with inflation rates equal to or 
lower than 5 percent a year continued to be the 
Bahamas, Barbados, and Panama. 

Elsewhere in the Caribbean, price trends varied 
widely. In Trinidad and Tobago, inflation remained at 
its 1989 level, while in Guyana it was reduced, and in 
Jamaica it increased slightly. Inflation doubled in the 
Dominican Republic, Haiti, and Suriname, in com
parison with 1989 levels. 

All Central American countries, especially Gua
temala and Honduras, registered inflation rates greater 
than those of 1989- In Costa Rica and El Salvador, 
inflation increased slightly. In Nicaragua, after a 
period of hyperinflation and adoption of a severe 
adjustment program, inflation was significantly reduced 
in the latter part of the year. 

In the rest of the region, 1990 inflation rates 
differed considerably among the various countries. In 
Chile, Colombia, and Mexico, which had registered 
relatively moderate rates in 1989, inflation accelerated 
in 1990. Venezuela, which initiated a drastic stabili
zation program in 1989, virtually cut its inflation rate 
in half. Ecuador, which has continued gradual ad
justments, also succeeded in lowering inflation. In 
Paraguay and Uruguay, despite successful imple
mentation in 1990 of an adjustment program, inflation 
resurfaced. In both countries, inflation was partly due 
to spillover effects from Argentina and Brazil, com
bined with such domestic factors as price and wage 
adjustments. Nevertheless, inflation was substantially 
reduced in the final months of the year. In Brazil, 
where the new government initiated a drastic ad
justment program, monthly rates of inflation fell from 
a level of more than 80 percent in March to a little less 
than 15 percent toward the end of the year. In 
Argentina, following the resurgence of hyperinflation 
in late 1989 and early 1990, inflation was reduced 
toward the end of 1990 to less than 10 percent per 
month. Similarly, in Peru, a new administration ini
tiated a stringent adjustment program, which by year-
end had drastically reduced the stubborn hyperinflation 
registered since the end of 1988 and greatly accen
tuated during 1989 and the beginning of 1990. 

Despite enormous efforts by some countries to 
control inflation, the very rapid pace of price increases 



INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

could not be eliminated in the short term. Many of the 
underlying factors causing inflation persist and may 
become more pronounced. For several small coun
tries higher oil prices occurred at the worst possible 
time, seriously aggravating inflationary tendencies 
and making adjustment even more difficult. Most 
governments attempted to avoid the immediate im
pact of higher oil prices on their economies by 
drawing down their international reserves to pay the 
higher cost of imported oil. Such a policy will be 
difficult to sustain since a prolonged upward shift in 
oil prices will necessitate an adjustment in relative 
prices throughout the economy combined with other 
corrective macroeconomic measures. 

External Debt of Latin America 

The external debt continued in 1990 to pose a major 
obstacle to economic growth and stability in Latin 
America and the Caribbean, even though some 
countries made remarkable progress toward resolv
ing the problem. The increase in outstanding debt in 
1990 was due mainly to an additional accumulation of 
interest payment arrears of around $10 billion, prin
cipally on account of increases attributable to Brazil 
and Argentina. By the end of 1990, accumulated 
arrears amounted to a total of $27 billion, which 
represents 6 percent of the outstanding debt balance, 
compared with 3 percent in 1989 and 2 percent in 
1988. Another important factor which contributed 
about $3 billion to an increase in the region's debt in 
I99O was the depreciation of the dollar against other 
currencies in which the debt is denominated. 

So far, three countries concluded final restruc
turing agreements on public external debt with 
commercial banks under the Brady Plan (Mexico in 
1989, and Venezuela and Costa Rica in 1990), with 
another country, Uruguay, signing an initial agreement 
at the end of 1990. These agreements seek to reduce 
the value of a portion of the debt by allowing its 
repurchase at reduced prices, converting it to long-
term bonds issued by the country or by providing 
below-market interest rates on a portion of the debt. 

The restructuring agreement concluded by 
Venezuela in December 1990 covered virtually all of 
that country's public debt with commercial banks. 
The agreement permanently reduced interest on $7 
billion of the debt and reduced interest for five years 
on $2.9 billion. In addition, the agreement allocated 
$1.5 billion of the debt for repurchase at 45 percent 

of its nominal value, and $1.8 billion at a 70 percent 
value. The amount of new loans was $1.2 billion. The 
terms of the final agreement with Costa Rica, signed 
in May 1990, are somewhat more complicated than 
the terms negotiated by Venezuela. In short, the Costa 
Rican agreement allocated $1 billion for debt repur
chase at 16 percent of nominal value and $0.6 billion 
for interest reduction. The restructuring included not 
only debt but also interest arrears. Costa Rica received 
a bridge loan from Mexico and Venezuela to facilitate 
its debt-restructuring agreement. 

Uruguay's success in achieving its economic 
policy goals qualified it to carry out a Brady-type 
restructuring, with financial support from the IDB and 
other multilateral organizations. At the end of Octo
ber I99O, the Government of Uruguay and the 
Committee of Advisory Banks agreed to propose to 71 
commercial creditor banks of Uruguay the following 
alternatives concerning $1.6 billion of Uruguay's $2.2 
billion public debt: repurchase of the debt at 56 
percent of its nominal value; issuance of bonds at the 
reduced interest rate of 6.75 percent; and fresh loans 
up to a maximum of $320 million. The final agreement 
is expected to be signed in February 1991, 

Problems with accumulating interest arrears 
have caused Brazil and Argentina not to initiate in 
I99O a program aimed at easing the external debt 
burden under the Brady Plan. Brazil began negotia
tions with commercial banks in October 1990. In 
I99I, if Argentina continues with its plan to privatize 
public enterprises and reduces interest arrears, it may 
sign an initial debt reduction agreement with com
mercial banks. Other countries with arrears to mul
tilateral institutions, such as Nicaragua, Panama, and 
Peru, re-initiated payments in 1990. 

For many of the smaller countries of the region, 
bilateral debt constitutes a major portion of their 
external debt. The Paris Club, which is the mechanism 
used for restructuring bilateral debt, has preferred to 
capitalize interest payments rather than reduce debt 
and interest charges. The Enterprise for the Americas 
Initiative, announced by the U. S. Government in June 
1990, will offer some relief because it includes a 
proposal to reduce official bilateral debt of the region 
with the U. S. Government. 

Chile, Mexico, and Venezuela have made sig
nificant progress in managing their external debt, 
thereby easing their access to the world's capital 
markets. Chile, for example, restructured a portion of 
its commercial bank debt and was able to place $320 
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million in Eurobonds as part of that debt-restructuring 
agreement signed in December 1990. 

Colombia negotiated in 1990 terms for a new 
and integrated credit of approximately $1.8 billion, 
with the voluntary participation of banks, in order to 
cover financing needs for a period of four years. The 
amount subscribed to date has fully satisfied the 
expectations of the Government, and confirmed the 
support of the international community for the strategy 
the Government has followed. 

The balance of the public external debt of 
Paraguay as of December 31, 1990 was $1.7 billion, 
which represented a decrease of 19 percent from the 
1989 level of $2 billion. The principal reason for the 
significant reduction in the debt was the cancellation 
of commitments with another country in the amount 
of $436 million, which was carried out with a 75 
percent discount. 

The International Economic Context 

International trade remained buoyant in 1990, despite 
the worldwide slowdown of economic growth. The 
volume of world trade expanded by around 5.5 
percent, only moderately below the previous year's 
growth rate, while global real GDP grew by only 1 
percent, down from around 3 percent in 1989 and 
more than 4 percent in 1988. The continued tendency 
of world trade to grow at a faster rate than production 
underscores the increasing significance of trade in the 
international economy. As trade becomes more im
portant, it provides increasing opportunities for growth 
in Latin America. 

Notwithstanding this trend, the Uruguay Round 
of multilateral trade negotiations has not yet suc
ceeded in smoothing the way for a strong worldwide 
trade expansion in the 1990s. At the end of 1990, the 
ambitious four-year trade talks had not reached 
agreement on agriculture, services, and foreign in
vestment. Disagreement over the extent to which 
domestic agricultural subsidies should be reduced 
proved to be the stumbling block. At stake in the 
negotiations was a major restructuring of the current 
international trade system that would have included 
dramatic reductions in non-tariff barriers to trade in 
agricultural goods, the establishment of rules for trade 
in services and intellectual property, liberalization of 
the Multi-Fiber Agreement on textile trade, and the 
establishment of an international framework for trade-
related investment. 

For Latin America, the largest potential gains 
from restructuring the international trade system 
would come about through reduced protection and 
subsidies in the region's major markets, particularly 
for the agricultural products exported by the region, 
the opening up of trade in textiles through the 
elimination of quotas under the Multi-Fiber Agree
ment, and the application of free trade principles to 
services. 

The realization that the economic development 
of Latin America cannot take place in an atmosphere 
of protectionism and inward-looking policies has 
prompted several initiatives to promote trade liber
alization and greater integration in the region. At the 
level of interaction between the region and the United 
States, there were three developments, including the 
Enterprise for the Americas initiative. 

The Enterprise for the Americas laid the ground
work for future U.S.-Latin America economic relations 
in three areas: investment, trade, and debt restructur
ing/reduction. The initiative, which continues to be 
defined in greater detail, deals with the Western 
Hemisphere as an integrated whole, provides a forum 
in which groups of countries can negotiate trade 
matters, and signals a specific mandate to the IDB as 
one of the key facilitators for its implementation. 

The timing for such an initiative is opportune for 
Latin America and the Caribbean, because it coincides 
with reforms already under way in many countries to 
increase economic growth and international competi
tiveness. It also comes at a time when countries are 
re-evaluating their international relations by focusing 
on bilateral and subregional integration schemes. 
Throughout Latin America there is growing consen
sus that a development model based on political 
democracy and on a restmcturing of both the public 
and private sectors is vital for reallocating national 
and regional resources (human, technological, fi
nancial, and environmental) to facilitate a greater 
integration into the global economy. The Caribbean 
Basin Initiative (CBI), approved in 1983 and expanded 
in 1990, extends trade preferences and investment 
incentives to Caribbean nations. In 1990, a special 
Generalized System of Preferences (GSP) review 
under the Andean Trade Initiative provided addi
tional GSP coverage of Andean exports. In 1991, 
legislation was submitted to the U.S. Congress to 
provide tariff preferences for Andean countries based 
on the CBI model. 

In I99O, a memorandum of understanding was 
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signed by Mexico and the United States that will 
liberalize textile and apparel trade between the two 
countries. In 1991, negotiations are expected to begin 
between Canada, Mexico, and the United States to 
create a North American Free Trade Area. Such an 
agreement may well become a model for other 
countries of the region. 

The year 1990 also witnessed renewed interest 
in cooperation among Central American countries, 
with the ultimate goal being a Central American 
Common Market; proposed reductions of trade bar
riers among the Andean Pact countries; and talks 
among Argentina, Brazil, Paraguay, and Uruguay 
regarding the possible establishment of a free trade 
zone. The trade dimension of the Enterprise for the 
Americas initiative is intended to strengthen these 
regional and subregional programs and use them as 
building blocks in a progressive, flexible, and prag
matic approach toward a hemispheric free trade 
zone. 

In 1990 divergent economic growth levels and 
patterns among the industrialized countries were 
mirrored in their different levels of demand for 
foreign goods. For example, the pronounced slow
down of real GDP growth in the United States from 
2.5 percent in 1989 to a little over 1 percent in 1990 
translated to a much lower increase in U.S. import 
volumes than the increase reported in the previous 
two years. The volume of that country's imports 
increased by only 3-5 percent in 1990, whereas it had 
expanded by an average annual rate of 6.2 percent 
during 1988-89. In Europe, the 3 percent expansion 
in the European Economic Community's real GDP 
was accompanied by a 6.7 percent expansion in that 
region's import volume. In contrast, although Japan 
achieved a 6 percent growth rate in real GDP, the 
volume of its imports rose only by somewhat more 
than 4 percent. 

Conflict in the Middle East and the resulting oil 
price increases since August 1990 reinforced these 
divergent growth rates, greatly increasing the risk of 
recession in the industrialized countries, especially 
the United States. The immediate impact of the 
conflict was to raise the import bill of oil-importing 
countries, with the resulting effect on trade flows. The 
average spot price of Organization of Petroleum 
Exporting Countries crude oil rose from $16 a barrel 
in the first half of 1990 to $32 a barrel by October of 
that year as a consequence of the loss of about 4 
million barrels a day in combined Iraqi-Kuwaiti oil 

production. Higher world oil prices translated into 
higher prices of oil traded among the Latin American 
countries. Reduced Persian Gulf oil supplies were 
reflected in increased oil export earnings by Colombia, 
Ecuador, Mexico, Trinidad and Tobago, and Ven
ezuela. For the oil-importing countries of the region, 
annual oil imports from Iraq and Kuwait, which had 
represented nearly $2 billion, or about 10 percent of 
the region's total annual petroleum imports before 
the crisis, were suspended as a result of the United 
Nations trade embargo. The lessons of the last two oil 
shocks (1973-74 and 1979-80) prompted many 
economies to reduce their dependence on imported 
oil. Nevertheless, prolonged high oil prices would 
significantly affect the international economic situa
tion in the coming year. 

The continued growth in world trade, in the face 
of the general slowdown of economic growth was 
primarily a consequence of persistent strong trade in 
manufactured goods. The volume of world trade in 
these goods expanded by more than 7 percent in 
I99O, and their unit trade value rose by about 10 
percent in U.S. dollar terms. 

In contrast, the 1990 volume of primary com
modity trade increased by only slightly more than 4 
percent, and the dollar-denominated unit value of 
trade of these products also rose by only 4 percent. 
The sharp drop in coffee prices following the collapse 
of the International Coffee Agreement in July 1989 
had an important effect on developing countries' 
general export price level in 1990. Coffee contributes 
about 10 percent of Latin America's total merchandise 
export earnings, and its average price fell by more 
than one-third between 1988 and 1990. Wheat and 
soybean prices also dropped in 1990, while little or no 
change in average price movements for the year 
occurred in sugar, copper, cocoa, maize, and beef. 
Among the other major exports of the Latin American 
region, only cotton, iron ore, and bananas registered 
significant advances in market prices during the year. 
As a result of these price movements, Latin America's 
terms of trade deteriorated by around 3-5 percent in 
1990. 

Although the 5 percent export volume growth of 
all the world's developing countries nearly matched 
the 5.5 percent growth in the amount imported by the 
industrialized countries, Latin American exports grew 
by only 4 percent. In comparison, developing Asia 
registered more than 8 percent growth in the volume 
of exports. As a consequence of the lower growth rate 
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of exports and the modest rise in export prices, Latin 
America's foreign exchange earnings increased by 
only 7.2 percent, which was about half the rate of 
growth in the total value of world trade. These 
developments point to the need for further efforts 
toward multilateral trade cooperation that would 
contribute to the liberalization of international trade, 
ensure sustained growth in the world economy, and 
provide Latin America with an opportunity to achieve 
strong growth in trade. 

Social Sectors 

Although no official figures are available on the 
impact of economic policies on the low-income 
sectors, drastic fiscal adjustment, inflation, and sta
bilization programs have unquestionably exacer
bated the problems of poverty existing at the beginning 
of 1990. In this regard, per capita consumption in the 
region declined, and fiscal adjustments limited available 
government resources, which has impacted assistance 
in such social areas as health, nutrition, education, 
and housing. The situation of low-income stratum of 
the Latin American population highlights the urgent 
need to introduce—in conjunction with economic 
adjustment programs aimed at restoring growth to the 
region—social adjustment programs to ensure that 
economic growth will result in an improvement in the 
production and living conditions of the low-income 
sectors of the population. In light of the need to 
implement social adjustment programs, the countries 
of the region, international development organizations, 
and several Organization for Economic Co-operation 
and Development countries continued in 1990 to 
provide additional support both to social emergency 
funds and also to long-term programs to combat 
poverty and to ensure a more cost-effective coverage 
of the social sector. These efforts have helped to ease 
social tensions in the region and have facilitated the 
application of needed economic adjustment programs. 

Outlook for the New Decade 

economy, the restructuring of the public sector, and 
the revitalization of the private sector will be critical 
factors in the favorable outcome of this expected 
development. 

A recent IDB study suggests that under a sce
nario of continued policy reform, growth may gradually 
accelerate to approximately 5 percent per year by the 
end of this decade. More importantly, this growth 
could occur with only moderate increases in the 
volume of external debt, while the ratio of interest 
payments to exports may drop from the present 25 
percent to only half as much by the year 2000. As a 
result, not only would the external debt situation 
become manageable but a much greater share of 
public savings could go to capital formation, including 
that in the social sectors. 

In addition, an improved business climate and 
the removal of restrictive regulations can be expected 
to attract significant flows of foreign direct investment, 
as well as the return of a share of the accumulated 
flight capital. This would strengthen private sector 
investment and help finance the economic restruc
turing process that will necessarily accompany the 
policy reforms, if the region is to become a fully 
competitive partner in a multilateral trading system. 

Under a less optimistic scenario, economic 
policy reforms would be reversed in a majority of 
countries and the region's growth rate could drop to 
2.3 percent during the decade of the nineties. Although 
such a growth rate would still be better than the 1.1 
percent recorded for Latin America in the 1980s, it 
would not allow any increase in average per capita 
income levels. Thus, the extent of the economic 
expansion will ultimately be determined by each 
country's resolve to pursue the difficult path of policy 
reform. 

Despite the short-run costs associated with attempts 
to stabilize inflation, and the downward risks posed 
by technical failure or a possible lack of domestic 
support for the reform process, the outlook for the 
1990s is positive. The political determination of the 
governments in the region to maintain their com
mitment towards an outward orientation of the 
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PARTI 

THE BANK IN 1990 

OPERATIONS 

OVERVIEW: PRINCIPAL ACCOMPLISHMENTS AND 
INITIATIVES 

The Inter-American Development Bank recorded the 
highest lending level in its history in 1990, while 
working closely with its member countries to solve 
the critical economic and social problems in Latin 
America and the Caribbean. The year was character
ized by the approval of the first IDB policy-based 
loans, which will have a major impact on sector 
development in certain countries. A dialogue with the 
borrowing countries on macroeconomic and sector 
issues and lending strategies was reflected in the 
record lending and in a strong pipeline of projects 
poised to address the serious development issues of 
the 1990s. 

The Bank's strong performance was a direct 
result of the agreement among IDB member countries 

PUERTO AMARO, URUGUAY. Water gushes out at 
5,000 liters a second to irrigate 2,500 hectares of 
rice land in eastern Uruguay. A $27.3 million IDB 
loan in 1986financed construction of 500 kilome
ters of electric lines in the huge Cuenca Arrocera 
rice-growing area to convert 100 irrigation 
pumping stations from diesel to electricity, 
reducing irrigation costs by 50 percent. 

in 1989 to almost double the Bank's resources. On 
January 17, 1990, the Seventh General Increase in the 
Resources of the Bank went into effect, raising the 
Bank's authorized capital by $26.5 billion, enabling 
the Bank to lend $22.5 billion during the 1990-93 
period. The new resources included a $200 million 
infusion to the Fund for Special Operations, the 
Bank's concessional window. 

In addition to supplying resources, the Seventh 
Replenishment Agreement directed the Bank to take 
a far more active role in the economic recovery and 
development of the region. During 1990, the Bank 
began fulfilling this mandate, by providing strong 
support for the efforts of several countries to restruc
ture their economies. The Bank encouraged economic, 
financial, and policy reform, a rethinking of the role 
of the public sector including the selective privatization 
of public enterprises, and the reinvigoration and 
participation of the private sector in the development 
process. The Bank provided significant support— 
almost 20 percent of the year's lending—to the social 
sectors. The Bank's activities in 1990 served to bolster 
the region's continued commitment to economic 
growth and social development. 

The Bank's emphasis on economic recovery 
and fundamental reform coincided with the an
nouncement by President Bush of the Enterprise for 
the Americas initiative on June 27, 1990. The U.S. 
initiative focuses on the areas of trade, debt reduction, 
and investment promotion and outlines a program in 
which the United States is prepared to collaborate 
closely with the countries of Latin America and the 
Caribbean. The initiative, some of which requires U.S. 
legislative approval, calls specifically for the IDB to 
take a leading role in implementing the investment 
and debt reduction components of the program. The 
Bank welcomed the opportunity to be a linchpin in 



SÃO PAULO, BRAZIL Laborers ¡ay a main sewage line 
beside a completed concrete storm drainage canal in 
South America's biggest city. A $163 million 1986 IDB 
loan is financing construction of nearly 4,000 kilometers 
of sewage lines to provide service for 1.6 million city 
residents. A $77.5 million 1986 IDB loan is financing 
construction of 43.5 kilometers of storm drainage ca
nals to alleviate flooding that affects the city's traffic. 

this effort to improve prospects in the Hemisphere. 
A major step was taken in mid-October 1990 

when the Bank's Board of Governors, echoing an 
earlier endorsement by the Bank's Board of Executive 
Directors, approved the creation of a debt reduction 
and debt service reduction facility as an integral 
component of the Bank's sector lending program to 

help the borrowing countries reduce their public 
external debt and debt service with the commercial 
banks. The Board of Executive Directors will establish 
the operational guidelines required for the Bank's 
activities in this crucial area. 

The year was also significant because the Bank, 
within its reorganization, began to adjust the way that 
it conducts business in order to be more responsive 
to the needs of its member countries. Procedures 
aimed at making the Bank more efficient by decen
tralizing decision-making processes began to be 
implemented. 

Highlights of the year included the following: 

Loans and Technical Cooperation Approvals: 

• The Bank approved 45 loans totaling $ 3,881.4 
million (including increases in previously approved 
export financing credits) in support of Latin America's 
economic and social development. The year's lend-
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ing represents the highest level of commitments in the 
Bank's history and a 48 percent increase over the 
previous year. Two-thirds of the year's lending was 
for specific investment projects and one-third was for 
sector adjustment loans. Cumulative lending totaled 
$46.9 billion. 

• On a sectoral basis, the Bank authorized 
loans totaling $688 million for transportation and 
communications projects, $673 million for social 
infrastructure, $665 million for energy, $319 million 
for agriculture, $280 million for industry and mining, 
$112 million for tourism and microenterprise, $76 
million for export financing, and $19 million for 
preinvestment. 

• $56.8 million was approved in grant and 
contingent repayment technical cooperation. The 
year's approvals brought the cumulative total to 
$781.4 million. In addition, $11 million in loans or 
portions of loans was extended for technical coop
eration bringing the cumulative total to $800.6 million. 

Areas of Emphasis 

• Sector lending permitted the Bank to help 
countries rationalize and improve the public sector, 
carry out needed financial and economic reforms, 
support the countries' efforts to selectively privatize 
previously state-owned enterprises, and promote the 
participation of the private sector in the economy. 
The Bank approved six sector loans to five countries 
totaling $1.3 billion. 

• The Bank provided strong support for the 
social sectors, approving a number of loans for urban 
development, water supply and sanitation improve
ments, education, and science and technology. 

• Each loan was examined for potential impact 
on the environment. The Bank approved several 
operations designed specifically to address environ
mental problem areas. The Bank also, in conjunction 
with the United Nations Development Programme, 
financed an important study of the region's environ
mental and developmental challenges that was 
published under the title Our Own Agenda. The re
port called for a "new pact" with the industrial 
countries to preserve the world's natural resources 
and emphasized that eradicating poverty and improv
ing the quality of life should be the priority objectives 
of the region. 

• The Bank approved $37.2 million in global 

loans for microenterprises—providing greater sup
port than ever to the microproducers of the region. In 
addition, $6.3 million was approved for Small Projects 
financings, raising the cumulative total to $95.3 mil
lion. 

• Technical cooperation was utilized to assist 
several countries in their efforts to, among others, 
improve tax administration and tax information sys
tems; customs bureau services; and public finance 
management. On a regional basis, technical coop
eration approvals included, among others, training 
for government auditors; applied macroeconomic 
training for senior civil servants and bankers; and 
support for the development of trading companies. 

• In several cases, loans were designed to 
encourage decentralization, delegating decision
making to the local level. Global lending operations 
were in some cases designed to be channeled through 
several intermediary institutions as opposed to one 
single intermediary, thus serving the purpose of 
strengthening local financial institutions. 

• The Bank took on a greater advocacy role for 
women in development by, among other initiatives, 
publishing studies under the title "Working Women 
In Latin America" in its 1990 report, Economic and 
Social Progress in Latin America. 

Procurement 

• $301.1 million was awarded in contracts for 
goods and services for IDB-financed projects. 

• $945.6 million was disbursed to non-bor
rowing member countries to purchase goods and 
services for Bank contracts; $1,102.6 million was 
disbursed to borrowing member countries for pur
chases of goods and services for projects in-country 
and in other borrowing countries. 

Resources 

• The Spanish Parliament authorized the 
establishment of the $500 million (ECU 377) 
Quincentennial Fund, a new fund of resources to be 
contributed by Spain and administered by the Bank, 
accompanied by a $150 million (ECU 113) Special 
Account to be used to subsidize the interest rates on 
loans made from the Quincentennial Fund. 

• Bank borrowings totaled $1,830.3 million in 
the world's capital markets. 

/ / 
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TABLE III. THE BANK'S YEARLY (1990) AND CUMULATIVE LOANS ( 1 9 6 1 - 9 0 ) ' 
(In millions of U.S. dollars) 

Detail by Funds 

Total Amount Ordinary Capital 
Fund for 

Special Operations 
Funds in 

Administration 

Country 1990 1 9 6 1 - 9 0 1990 1 9 6 1 - 9 0 1990 1 9 6 1 - 9 0 1990 1 9 6 1 - 9 0 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Regional 

135 

0.1 
197.0 
392.9 
246.0 
444.0 

57.5 
2.3 

170.2 
133.4 
33.6 
27.0 
56.1 

109.5 
147.0 
958.3 

30.0 

2.0 
35.0 

746.0 
80.0 

$4,40"" 
122.1 
157.7 

1,752.6 
7,439.8 
4,018.1 
4,474.2 
1,435.6 
1,081.9 
2,467.0 
1,093." 
1,157.6 

338.5 
344.1 

1,100.9 
873.8 

6,440.9 
468.8 
872.4 
654.3 

1,643.4 
22.1 

180.2 
798.1 

2,195.2 
1,453-9 

13.5 

120.0 
392.9 
246.0 
410.0 

45.5 

78.0 
40.0 
0.1 

14.0 
136.0 
958.3 

35.0 
"46.0 

80.0 

$3,8-4".-! 
120.1 
95.9 

834.6 
6,078.0 
3,770.8 
3,714.2 

972.9 
414.4 

1,457.1 
334.8 
552.2 
109.8 

336.1 
592.5 

5,842.6 
99.^ 

555.0 
174.6 

1,035.8 
19.1 

1-15.6 
651.6 

2,020.9 
1,245.6 

70.9 

34.0 

92.2 
78.4 
32.8 
27.0 
56.1 
95.5 

30.0 

15111 

43.0 
846.6 

1,228.6 
203.3 

353" 
590.1 
919.5 
6 2 " " 
544.8 
220.7 
33"7.3 
"12.0 
175.2 
5633 
317.5 
282.9 
466.8 
404.1 

30 
2^.3 

104.7 
101.4 
194.2 

0.1 
6.1 

12.0 
2.3 

15.0 
0." 

11.0 

2.0 

$49.2 
2.0 

18.8 
71.4 

133.2 
44.0 
64.3 

109.0 
77.4 
90.4 

131.2 
60.6 
8.0 
6.8 

52.8 
106.1 
35.0 
51.6 
34.5 
12.9 

203.5 

7.3 
41.8 
"2.9 
l i . l 

Total S 3,881.4 $46,994.6 3.315.3 $35,021.3 $516.9 S 10,474.5 S49.2 S 1,498.8 

1 After cancellations and exchange adjustments. 

THE YEAR'S LENDING 

The following symbols have been used in the tables of 
this report: 

... to indicate that data are not available. 

— to indicate that the figure is zero or less than half the 
final digit shown, or that the item does not exist. 

"Billion" means a thousand million. 

The loans authorized by the Bank in 1990 came from 
the following sources: 

Ordinary Capital Resources: 28 loans (plus in
creases in previously approved export financing 
credits) for $3,315 million, brought the cumulative 
total of loans, less cancellations, to 812 for $35,021 
million as of December 31, 1990. 

Fund for Special Operations: 17 loans totaling 
$517 million, brought the cumulative total to 835 
loans, less cancellations, for $10,475 million as of 
December 31, 1990. 
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TABLE IV. DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 
(In mi/lions of U.S. dollars and percent) 

Sector 1990 1961-90 

Physical Infrastructure 
Energy-
Transportation and 

Communications 

Social Infrastructure 
Environmental and 

Public Health 
Education, Science 

and Technology 
Urban Development 

Other 
Export Financing 
Preinvestment 
Other 

TOTAL 

665 17.1 

688 17.7 

468 12.1 

61 
144 

1.6 
5.-* 

1,876 
2.092 

o/ 
To 

Productive Sectors 
Agriculture and Fisheries $ 319 8.2 $9,892 21.0 
Industry and Mining 280 ".2 6,164 13.1 
Tourism and 

Microenterprise 112 2.9 661 1.4 

12,671 2"0 

6,265 13.3 

4,725 10.1 

4.0 
4.5 

76 2.0 l.OO"7 2.1 
19 0.5 402 0.9 

1,049 27.0 1,240 2.6 

$3,881 100.0 $46,995 100.0 

the total cost of the projects being carried out by the 
Latin American and Caribbean countries. The balance 
over and above the Bank's contribution comes from 
the Latin American countries themselves and, in some 
cases, other sources of financing. A country-by-
country breakdown of this relationship is shown in 
Table V. 

Disbursements 

The Bank's disbursements on previously authorized 
loans amounted to $2,507 million in 1990, compared 
with $2,549 million in 1989. 

As of December 31, 1990, cumulative dis
bursements, including exchange adjustments, totaled 
$35,943 million, or 76 percent of the loans authorized 
by the Bank. The 1990 disbursements and cumulative 
totals by funds include: 

Ordinary Capital Resources: $2,129 million, 
bringing the cumulative total to $25,742 million as of 
December 31, 1990. 

Fund for Special Operations: $329 million, 
bringing the cumulative total to $8,713 million as of 
December 31, 1990. 

Other Funds: $49 million, bringing the cumu
lative total from funds administered by the Bank to 
$1,487 million as of December 31, 1990. 

The distribution of 1990 and cumulative dis
bursements by country appears in Table VI. 

Other funds: Increases in previously approved 
export financing credits for $49 million from the 
Venezuelan Trust Fund, brought the cumulative total 
to 199 loans, less cancellations, for $1,499 million as 
of December 31, 1990. 

The Bank agreed to partially defray up to 5 
percent of the interest on 4 loans for $69 million 
approved in 1990 from the ordinary capital resources 
with funds from the Intermediate Financing Facility 
created under the Sixth General Increase of Re
sources. 

(Tables III and IV show the Bank's cumulative 
lending and sectoral breakdown) 

Total Cost of Projects 

The $3,881 million in Bank-financed loans help to 
finance projects involving a total investment of about 
$13,829 million. The Bank's loans cover only a part of 

Repayments 

Loan repayments amounted to $1,375 million in 1990. 
Cumulative repayments as of December 31, 1990, 
were $10,977 million. 

Repayments received by the Bank during the 
year, identified by sources of loan funds, were: 

Ordinary Capital Resources: $1,069 million, 
bringing the cumulative total, before repayments to 
participants, to $7,156 million as of December 31, 
1990; 

Fund for Special Operations: $229 million for a 
cumulative total, before repayments to participants, 
of $2,692 million as of December 31, 1990. 

Other Funds: $77 million, bringing the cumu
lative total to $1,129 million as of December 31,1990. 
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TABLE V. HOW BANK PROJECTS ARE FINANCED YEARLY ( 1 9 9 0 ) AND CUMULATIVE ( 1 9 6 1 - 9 0 ) 1 

(In millions of U.S. dollars) 

Count ry 

Total Cost Bank's Loans Latin America 's Cont r ibut ions 2 

1990 1 9 6 1 - 9 0 1990 1 9 6 1 - 9 0 1990 1 9 6 1 - 9 0 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Juca 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Regional 

135 

0.1 
334.1 

1,245.1 
785-8 
9595 

65.0 
2.3 

374.6 
139.9 
36.5 
30.1 
63.6 

205.0 
227.0 

7,210.0 

38.0 

2.0 
45.0 

1,537.0 
515.0 

13.144.0 
198.9 
272.0 

2,802.2 
37,787.3 

8,782.3 
11,2391 
2,348.0 
1,607.6 
4,782.4 
1,629.6 
2,207.2 

447.6 
486.0 

2,380.1 
1,327.0 

20,338.8 
934.9 

1,638.7 
1,023.9 
4,011.5 

29.7 
291.4 

1,434.2 
6,707.6 
8.362.8 

13.5 

0.1 
197.0 
392.9 
246.0 
444.0 

57.5 
2.3 

170.2 
1334 
336 
27.0 
56.1 

109.5 
147.0 
958.3 

30.0 

2.0 
35.0 

746.0 
80.0 

4,407.7 
122.1 
157.7 

1,752.6 
7,439.8 
4,018.1 
4,474.2 
1,435.6 
1,081.9 
2,467.0 
1,093.7 
1,157.6 

338.5 
344.1 

1,100.9 
873.8 

6,440.9 
468.8 
872.4 
654.3 

1,643.4 
22.1 

180.2 
798.1 

2,195.2 
1,453.9 

137.1 
852.2 
539.8 
515-5 

7.5 

204.4 
6.5 
2.9 
3.1 
7.5 

95.5 
80.0 

6,251.7 

10.0 
"91.0 
435.0 

8,736.3 
76.8 

114.3 
1,049.6 

30,347.5 
4,764.2 
6,764.9 

912.4 
525.7 

2,315.4 
535.9 

1,049.6 
109.1 
141.9 

1,279-2 
453.2 

13,897.9 
466.1 
766.3 
3696 

2,368.1 
7.6 

111.2 
636.1 

4,512.4 
6,908.9 

TOTAL $13,829.1 8136,214.8 S3,881.4 $46,994.6 $9,947.7 $89,220.2 

1 Cumulative loans after cancellations and exchange adjustments. 
2 Amounts include cofinancing and other resources mobilized by the Latin American and Caribbean countries. 

TABLE VI. THE BANK'S YEARLY ( 1 9 9 0 ) AJVD CUMULATIVE DISBURSEMENTS ( 1 9 6 1 - 1 9 9 0 ) 
(In millions of U.S. dollars) 

Count ry 

Detail by Funds 

Total Amount Ordinary Capital 
Fund for 

Special Opera t ions 
Funds in 

Administration1 

1990 1 9 6 1 - 1 9 9 0 1990 1 9 6 1 - 1 9 9 0 1990 1 9 6 1 - 1 9 9 0 1990 1 9 6 1 - 1 9 9 0 

Argentina 224.0 3,677.3 212.8 3,151.0 
Bahamas 23.0 30.6 230 28.6 
Barbados 14.8 131.4 13.2 72.5 
Bolivia 132.9 1,166.9 52.9 453.3 
Brazil 244.1 6,144.6 222.6 4,871.1 
Chile 319.0 3,083.6 319.0 2,836.3 
Colombia 252.5 3,192.5 239.7 2,495.5 
Costa Rica 74.7 885.9 47.6 430.5 
Dominican Republic 44.3 808.3 23.7 213.6 
Ecuador 147.9 1,630.2 123.3 978.6 
EI Salvador 46.7 871.3 2.0 288.3 
Guatemala 37.1 911.0 14.9 432.5 
Guyana 18.9 212.1 13.3 98.4 
Haiti 15.1 212.8 
Honduras 75.3 885.9 20.6 296.8 
Jamaica 70.4 623.2 55.7 355.5 
Mexico 321.4 5,423.0 318.2 4,840.8 
Nicaragua (0.1) 468.8 (0.1) 99.7 
Panama 0.2 723.3 0.2 425.0 
Paraguay 8.6 514.3 1.5 155.7 
Peru 4.3 1,558.8 4.3 953.1 
Suriname 4.2 8.7 4.0 8.3 
Trinidad and Tobago 11.9 54.0 8.7 25.6 
Uruguay 42.2 525.9 352 3958 
Venezuela 193-8 950.2 1938 775.9 
Regional 180.7 1,249.0 179.2 1,060.2 

11.2 

1.5 
74.1 
21.5 
0.0 

12.8 
15.1 
19.7 
24.6 
29.7 
21.5 

5.6 
15.1 
533 
3-7 
3-1 

7.0 

0.1 
1.0 
7.0 

1.5 

477.1 

42.1 
644.4 

1,140.3 
203.3 
632.7 
346.4 
519.6 
561.2 
451.8 
418.8 
107.7 
206.0 
537.0 
161.6 
547.2 
317.5 
264.8 
345.7 
402.2 

0.4 
21.1 
88.3 

101.4 
174.3 

0.1 
5.9 

12.0 
0.9 

15.0 
0.7 

1.3 
11.0 

2.2 

49.2 
2.0 

16.8 
69.2 

1332 
44.0 
64.3 

109.0 
75.0 
90.4 

131.2 
59.7 

6.0 
6.8 

52.1 
106.1 
35.0 
51.6 
33.5 
12.9 

2035 
0.0 
7.3 

41.8 
72.9 
14.1 

TOTAL 2,507.6 35,943.6 2,129.2 25,742.6 329.2 8,713.4 49.2 1,487.6 

1 Social Progress Trust Fund $537.9 million; Venezuelan Trust Fund $837.2 million: Argentine Fund $23 1 million; Canadian Fund $63 0 million: Norwegian Fund 
$2.5 million; Swedish Fund $4.9 million; Swiss Fund $4.2 million, and United Kingdom Funds $14.8 million. 
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SECTOR LENDING 

The approval of the IDB's first sector loans permitted 
the institution to join its borrowing member countries 
in addressing some of the fundamental obstacles to 
the development process in the region. It was the first 
time in the Bank's history that it approved loans that 
were not project-specific. The Seventh Replenishment 
Agreement stipulated that the Bank introduce sector 
lending into its program, providing the resources to 
improve economic efficiency in various sectors. To 
begin fulfilling that mandate in 1990, the Bank 
approved six sector loans totaling $1.3 billion to five 
countries. The year's sector lending accounted for 35 
percent of the Bank's total lending during the year. 

This lending modality helps borrowers focus on 
major institutional, sector, and macroeconomic dis
tortions which inhibit the efficient use of resources at 
the micro or project level. Sector loans enable the 
Bank to effectively engage the borrower in a dialogue 
aimed at addressing the principal economic, financial, 
and institutional bottlenecks to development. Sector 
lending also permits the Bank to help cushion the 
negative impact of adjustment that often accompa
nies policy reform by providing quick-disbursing 
loans that may be used to finance general imports. 

The nature and focus of the policy reforms to be 
carried out under a sector loan vary according to the 
level of development of the borrowing country and 
the stage of adjustment the borrower is in prior to the 
Bank's involvement in the process. Sector loans are 
ordinarily disbursed in two or three parts—the first 
after the loan is signed and the second and third after 
a series of specified policy reform goals have been 
met. The sector loans approved by the Bank supported 
policy reforms in countries of all sizes and in a variety 
of sectors, including agriculture, transportation and 
communications, and the financial and public sec
tors. 

The first sector adjustment loan approved by the 
Bank is helping Mexico finance policy reforms in 
transportation and telecommunications. The opera
tion is an important part of the Government's general 
economic modernization program. One of the goals 
of the loan is to assist in the privatization of the 
country's principal telecommunications company, 
TELMEX, and to establish a new regulatory frame
work to promote and administer these services. In 
transportation, the trucking industry — particularly 
long-haul trucking, which is the major way goods 

move in the country — is to be made more competi
tive and responsive to the demand of freight hauling. 
The Bank's loan totaled $300 million. 

Two sector adjustment loans were approved for 
Venezuela—one to modernize the financial sector 
and the other for public enterprise reforms. The 
financial sector loan included policy actions such as 
improving credit allocation, reducing the public sector's 
role in financial institutions and establishing a stronger 
regulatory framework to supervise private banks. The 
public enterprise loan establishes an innovative pro
gram that privatizes many public corporations and 
sets stricter operating rules for those institutions that 
remain within the public sector. The two sector loans 
for Venezuela in 1990 were for $300 million each. 

The sector adjustment loan to Colombia will 
help finance structural changes in the public sector 
and promote greater competition and participation of 
the private sector in areas formerly reserved for the 
government. The general objective of the program is 
to assure that those services purveyed by government 
are provided efficiently and cost-effectively and that 
activities in which the government does not have a 
comparative advantage are turned over to the private 
sector. The public sector reform loan was for $300 
million. 

Two sector adjustment loans were approved to 
help carry out agriculture sector reform in Honduras 
and Jamaica. The Honduras loan supports major 
reform in the general policy environment, particularly 
relating to international trade. The operation is part of 
an economic modernization package implemented 
by the government with financial assistance from the 
multilateral financial institutions. The Jamaica loan 
focuses on key issues such as agricultural pricing 
policies, agricultural credit (including interest rate 
policy), domestic marketing of important commodi
ties such as cocoa and citrus, divestiture of publicly-
owned lands and control of chemical pesticides. The 
Honduras loan was for $60 million and the Jamaica 
loan was for $50 million. 

Under the Seventh Replenishment Agreement, 
sector lending will account for approximately 25 
percent of all lending in the 1990-93 period. During 
the first two years of this period, sector loans are 
cofinanced with the World Bank. The approval of 
these sector loans marks an important change for the 
IDB, allowing it to become more directly involved in 
the economic recovery process of the region. 
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BANK GROWTH INDICATORS 

Authorized capital of the Inter-American 
Development Bank amounts to $61 billion, 
as of January 17,1990. 

Bank's loans amounted to $3.8 billion 
in 1990, reaching a cumulative total of 
nearly $47 billion. 

Disbursements of more than $2.5 billion 
in 1990 raised cumulative total to $35.9 
billion. 

Technical cooperation approvals, both 
grant and contingent recovery, which 
amounted to $57 million in 1990 brought 
the cumulative amount to more than 
$781 million. 

Bank's cumulative lending of nearly 
$47 billion supports matching funds of 
about $89 billion in carrying out projects 
whose total cost amounts to $136 billion. 

RESOURCES (CUMULATIVE) 1981-90 
(IN MILLIONS OF DOLLARS) 

60000 

40000 

20000 -

81 82 83 84 85 86 87 88 89 90 

YEARLY LOANS 1981-90 
(IN MILLIONS OF DOLLARS) 

4000 

3000 

2000 

1000 

3000 

YEARLY DISBURSEMENTS 1981-90 
(IN MILLIONS OF DOLLARS) 

I Ordinary Capital Resources 

] Fund for Special Operations 

I Other Resources 

2000 

woo 

81 82 83 84 85 86 87 88 89 90 

16 



INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

DISTRLBUTION OF LOANS 1961-90 
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TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

In 1990, the Bank approved 188 technical coopera
tion operations for $56.8 million. These approvals will 
help borrowing member countries and regional en
tities strengthen institutions and acquire the technical 
skills needed to prepare, finance, and implement 
national and regional development programs and 
projects. The 1990 approvals also include short-term, 
intra-regional, small project technical cooperation, 
and project preparation studies. These technical co
operation operations were extended on a grant or 
contingent recovery basis, in many cases comple
menting the Bank's lending program. 

Technical cooperation is increasingly requested 
by governments to assist in the effort to improve 
public sector activities. For example, the Bank ap
proved a $3.5 million financing that Paraguay's Fi
nance Ministry will use to improve the country's 
taxation, public finance, investment programming, 
and economic policy activities. The Government, like 
most governments in the region, is committed to 
rationalizing its financial system to increase revenue 
and establish more effective control over its budgetary 
expenditures. 

Several technical cooperation operations were 
approved specifically to help countries improve tax 
administration. For example, a financing will help El 
Salvador include other taxes of fiscal importance into 
the master file/current account system already es
tablished for the income and property tax; and 
improve tax information systems. Suriname will use 
a financing to strengthen its tax administration system, 
particularly in the area of direct tax organization and 
management, administrative policies and procedures, 
and information systems. And another financing will 
help strengthen Uruguay's General Tax Directorate 
by expanding the taxpayer master file and current 
account systems. 

The Special Project Preparation Facility (SPPF), 
established in 1989, was used to finance 33 operations 
totaling $3,492,200. The SPPF was created to accel
erate the preparation of high-priority development 
projects and was funded with $6 million for a two-
year period. It covers the costs of additional studies 
that are needed during the project preparation phase 
and complements the capabilities of borrowers to 
prepare investment proposals for consideration by 
the Bank. 

During 199O, $2.3 million was approved to carry 

TABLE VII. 
DISTRIBUTION OF TECHNICAL COOPERATION 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Country 1990 1961-90 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay-
Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay-
Venezuela 
Regional1 

$228 
141 

2,438 
4,557 

43 
110 

1,322 
2,961 
293 

5,562 
2,291 
194 
196 
520 
681 
555 
604 

4,060 

3,915 
218 

3,169 
1,822 
5,518 
327 

15.125 

S19.5~6 
13,903 
8,137 

30,802 
63,968 
1,624 

20,953 
18,509 
26,335 
30,342 
21,645 
18,765 
17,655 
27,239 
23,735 
19,096 
1,910 
18,443 
16,398 
21,514 
30,409 
9,982 
9,442 
13,408 
2,272 

295,383 
TOTAL «56,847 «781,445 
1 In 1990. includes $30,000 for Andean Subregión. Í1 .-430.000 for Caribbean 
Subregión, $100,000 for Centrai American Subregión, and $13.565.000 for 
General Regional. 

out 81 short-term technical cooperation missions. 
These missions provide advice to borrowers and help 
them prepare projects. In 1989, $2.9 million was 
approved for 108 short-term missions. 

The Bank also approved 27 intra-regional tech
nical cooperation operations totaling $409,000. These 
operations finance the transfer of technical expertise 
among borrowing member countries. 

In addition to regular country technical coop
eration approvals, the Bank continued to support 
regional technical cooperation activities. It provided 
backing, for example, to improve public finance 
administration and control in the countries of the 
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region through a training program to upgrade the 
technical and administrative capabilities of senior 
auditing bodies. The Bank also provided support for 
the Caribbean Project Development Facility (CPDF) 
which builds a pipeline of viable investment projects 
in the Caribbean countries for possible financing by 
lenders and investors. The Bank's financing will allow 
CPDF to broaden its scope to include the Central 
American countries and Panama. 

New regional technical cooperation initiatives 
included the training of professionals to define and 
analyze macroeconomic policies in key economic 
institutions; support for regional research centers 
focusing on the principal challenges of economic 
reform; and support for the development of trading 
companies in the region. Financing was also pro
vided for training of officials from the national geo
logical institutes of Bolivia, Chile, and Peru for 
studying mineral deposits of precious metals in 
volcanic areas in the Central Andes. 

The year's grant and contingent repayment 

LA PAZ, BOLIVIA. Daniel Céspedes pays monthly taxes 
for a large textile plant at the government's tax collec
tion office in La Paz. Two IDB technical assistance 
grants totaling $2.5 million are helping Bolivia simplify 
and computerize its tax collection system. Tax collec
tions have nearly tripled since the project began in 1986. 

technical cooperation brought the cumulative total as 
of December 31, 1990 to $781.4 million. Contingent 
recovery technical cooperation is subject to repay
ment only if, as a result of the cooperation, a loan is 
subsequently extended by the Bank or another exter
nal financial institution for the execution of the 
project or program. 

In addition to its grant and contingent repay
ment cooperation, the Bank extends loans for tech-
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PUEBLA, MEXICO. The 179-year-old Fabrica La 
Concepción still produces hand-glazed ceramics in the 
Spanish colonial style for which Puebla is famous. A 
$500,000 IDB Small Project loan in 1985 to Promotora de 
Pueblo, a non-profit foundation, provided funds for the 
five-generation-old family business to buy an electric 
grinder to pulverize clay into a fine paste. 

nical cooperation purposes, primarily for pre
investment funds or studies and allocates portions 
of other loans to technical cooperation designed to 
insure the optimum execution of the project. During 

1990, $11 million in loans or portions of loans was 
extended for technical cooperation bringing the cu
mulative total to $800.6 million. 

SUPPORT FOR MICROENTERPRISES 

Within the context of the Seventh Replenishment 
Agreement, the Bank's Board of Governors directed 
the Bank to increase its support for microenterprises. 
Accordingly, in 1990 the Bank began to make a far 
larger financial contribution to microenterprises by 
approving three microenterprise global credit pro
grams for Colombia, Ecuador, and Uruguay for a total 
of $37.2 million. These programs were accompanied 
by $6.5 million in grant technical cooperation assis
tance. 

A microenterprise is generally defined as an 
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economic unit, usually family-based, that is engaged 
in production, service, or trade activities in either an 
urban or rural setting. The microenterprise owner 
relies primarily on immediate family members for 
labor-intensive activities and usually employs be
tween one and ten persons. Microentrepreneurs 
generally do not have access to conventional sources 
of credit and are considered low-income people. 

There are three groups of microenterprises. The 
largest, accounting for approximately 60 percent of 
microenterprises, markets goods. Many are women 
working in markets or as street vendors. The second 
group provides services, including automobile repair, 
household goods repair, food preparation, barbers 
and beauticians. The third group manufactures pro
ducts such as clothing, furniture, leather goods, and 
metal products. Small-scale farmers, while not con
sidered microentrepreneurs, nevertheless share many 
of the characteristics and problems of the microen
terprise sector. 

Microenterprises, which ordinarily operate in 
the informal sector of Latin America and the Carib
bean, have mushroomed in recent years partly be
cause of the formal sector's inability to absorb the 
region's growing labor force. In 20 major urban areas 
of the region 24 percent to 60 percent of the urban 
labor force is employed in the informal sector. 

Since 1978, the Bank has supported microentre
preneurs and small-scale agricultural activities through 
its Small Projects Program by lending small financings— 
up to $500,000—to various intermediaries such as 
non-profit producers associations, cooperatives or 
foundations who, in turn, make the credits available 
to low-income entrepreneurs. Approximately 35,000 
microenterprises and small farmers have received 
credits and technical assistance for training through 
this program. The average subloans amount to $1,000. 
In 1990, the Bank approved 13 of these operations for 
$6.3 million, bringing the cumulative total of approvals 
to 220 for $95.3 million. 

In 1990, the Bank developed the microenter
prise global credit program in order to begin fulfilling 
its mandate of reaching a much wider universe of 
microproducers in the region. The new program, 
supported by a recently created Microenterprise 
Division in the Operations Department, aims to 
develop countrywide credit programs with broadened 
eligibility requirements in order to provide maximum 
access to credit and training. 

The global credit program is designed to en

compass entire countries instead of focusing on 
neighborhoods or limited areas. Due to the size of 
these operations, the programs will involve far larger 
numbers of microentrepreneurs. A typical Small Project 
financing would provide credits to an average of 350 
microentrepreneurs. The global credit program now 
enables the Bank to reach thousands of microen
terprises. One of the global credit programs approved 
in 1990 will benefit approximately 50,000 sub-
borrowers. 

The microenterprise global credit program does 
not limit itself to urban manufacturing and agricultural 
activities, but reaches out to include all productive, 
trade and service activities in urban and rural areas. 
This is a departure from the criteria followed under 
the traditional Small Projects program and a pilot 
global credit program approved in 1986 to Colombia. 
The financing of trade activities will have a particu
larly important impact on the participation of women 
microproducers in the commercial sector. Credits can 
be used to finance the working capital requirements 
of microproducers, a crucial element for reaching the 
very low-income groups. 

These global programs will also be admini
stered differently. In the traditional methodologies 
employed, financial intermediaries made the loan's 
resources available to the microproducers and pro
ducer associations, and non-governmental orga
nizations provided technical assistance. While this 
method will continue to be used, non-governmental 
organizations will now be able to borrow resources 
from the financial intermediaries and make packages 
of credit and technical assistance available to mi
croentrepreneurs. 

The Bank's commitment to microenterprises 
has been enhanced by the global credit programs and 
in the future it can support these activities while 
providing special assistance to targeted population 
groups such as women, youth, and indigenous 
communities through the Small Projects Program. 

SUPPORT FOR LOW-INCOME BENEFICIARIES 

In the context of the Seventh Replenishment of 
Resources, the Board of Governors agreed that it was 
desirable to maintain the objective established in the 
Fifth and Sixth Replenishments whereby the Bank 
would do its utmost to ensure that 50 percent of its 
lending program should be allocated to benefit the 
lower income groups. 
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In 1990, 44 percent of the new loans approved 
by the Bank were analyzed for their distributive 
impact on low-income persons. Of these loans, low-
income persons obtained 43 percent of the benefits. 
This estimate of the distributive impact of Bank 
lending in 1990 does not reflect the distributive 
impact of certain types of projects where it is either 
difficult or impossible to define low-income benefi
ciaries as a proportion of all the beneficiaries of the 
project . These areas include global loans , 
preinvestment and sector lending. 

ECONOMIC INTEGRATION AND 
TRADE DEVELOPMENT 

Economic integration and trade development strate
gies have become increasingly important to a region 
in search of ways to reignite economic growth and 
adjust to shifting world trade patterns. The opening 
up of economies and the adjustment policies and 
reforms that are being pursued also provide oppor
tunities for greater regional economic integration. At 
the same time, the formation of economic blocs in 
Europe and North America, the advent of the Enter
prise for the Americas initiative, and the necessity of 
participating actively in the Uruguay Round of the 
GATT negotiations have led the region's countries to 
rework the integration model in order to adapt it to 
these changes and pursue new schemes for insuring 
Latin America's continued partnership with the world 
community. 

The liberalization processes in the region, in
volving major changes in tariff policies including the 
elimination of non-tariff restrictions and substantial 
reductions in protectionist levels, and the adjustments 
in exchange policies have created a much more 
favorable environment for the establishment of cus
toms unions and free trade zones in the region. 

Several initiatives have been taken recently by 
the region's countries to promote the regional inte
gration process. Highlights of these initiatives follow: 

• The presidents of Argentina and Brazil agreed 
at mid-year to establish a common market by December 
31, 1994. The countries agreed to place special 
emphasis on the coordination of macroeconomic 
policies, tariff reductions and the elimination of non-
tariff restrictions. Subsequently, Uruguay and Paraguay 
were invited to and agreed to join this economic bloc. 

• The presidents of the five member countries 
of the Andean Group (Bolivia, Colombia, Ecuador, 

Peru, and Venezuela) agreed in December of 1989 to 
establish a single subregional market through the 
creation of a customs union by 1995. The single 
market will have a new common external tariff. To 
guarantee this result, the presidents agreed in No
vember of 1990 to transform the subregión into a free 
trade zone effective January 1, 1992. 

• The presidents of Costa Rica, El Salvador, 
Guatemala, Honduras, and Nicaragua approved at 
mid-year the Economic Action Plan for Central America 
(PAECA), which seeks to establish the basis for the 
reactivation of their economies. They also agreed to 
restructure the Secretariat of the Subregional Integration 
Treaty to enable it to provide assistance to the plan. 

• The presidents of the member countries of 
the Caribbean Community (CARICOM) signed 
agreements in August 1990 aimed at establishing a 
common market in the area and decided to establish, 
effective 1991, a common tariff on imports from other 
countries as well as a regional stock exchange. 

• The presidents of the five River Plate Basin 
countries agreed in March 1990 to expand the inte
gration process through the Paraná-Paraguay Water
way project. It was announced that in a year's time 
navigation on the waterway will be possible 24 hours 
a day throughout the year. 

• The ministers of public works and transport 
of the Southern Cone countries met in September 
1990 and in conjunction with the Spanish National 
Railways approved the "Proyecto Libertadores," a 
program aimed at creating an integrated railway 
network utilizing the subregion's existing infrastruc
ture. 

For its part, the Bank has encouraged and 
promoted these integration and trade-oriented ini
tiatives. It is helping countries adjust their economies 
to trends in world and regional trade, encouraging the 
development of intra-regional trade and cooperation, 
promoting physical and border integration and 
strengthening subregional development financial in
stitutions. Through these efforts, the Bank is helping 
to identify and remove obstacles to integration and 
trade development by providing technical coopera
tion to promote improvement of economic policies, 
help the private sector select foreign trade investment 
projects, and identify border integration and devel
opment projects in the countries of the region. 
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TABLE VIII. SUPPORT FOR ECONOMIC INTEGRATION, 1960-90 
(In millions of U.S. dollars) 

1990 

Bank 
Resources 

Total Cost 
of Projects 

1960-90 

Bank 
Resources 

Total Cost 
of Projects 

Loans 
Agriculture 
Industry 
Energy 
Transportation 
Telecommunications 
Education 
Tourism 
Housing 
Export Financing 
Multisectoral 
Others 

Technical Cooperation 
Agriculture 
Industry 
Energy 
Transportation 
Health 
Urban Development 
Education and Research 
Tourism 
Planning 
Multisectoral 
Development Banks 
Export Financing 
Business Development 

$82.0 

2.0 
80.0 

$13.4 
0.1 
2.1 

0.1 

7.7 

1.8 

1.6 

$517.0 

2.0 
515.0 

S 26.2 
0.1 
2.9 

0.1 

10.3 

10.9 

1.9 

$2,620.0 
110.7 
247.2 

1,052.9 
603-7 

83-7 
9.9 

29.2 
15.0 

320.2 
80.0 
67.5 

$ 317.4 
1652 

6.8 
5.0 
2.8 

11.9 
3-9 

19.0 
1.3 
7.5 

65.0 
9.8 

17.6 
1.6 

$15,327.9 
271.5 
425.1 

12,336.5 
1,088.1 

158.3 
25.4 
507 
30.0 

33^.6 
515.0 
92.7 

$ 1,163.5 
851.4 

9.3 
7.4 
8.5 

59.1 
7.9 

33.2 
1.3 

23-0 
119.3 
14.4 
26.8 

1.9 
TOTAL $95.4 $543.2 $2,937.4 $16,491.4 

INSTITUTE FOR LATIN AMERICAN INTEGRATION 

The Institute for Latin American Integration (INTAL), 
created by the Bank in 1964 to p r o m o t e the region's 
economic integration, carried out a n u m b e r of inte
gration suppor t projects in 1990. It sponso red several 
meet ings, seminars, and courses on a variety of 
subjects, including the impact of Europe 1992 on Latin 
America; expor t t rade oppor tun i t i es a m o n g the 
Southern Cone countries; n e w aspects of integration 
and the role of INTAL; and private sector oppor tun i 
ties in relation to the Paraná-Paraguay Waterway 
program. INTAL p r o d u c e d studies o n subjects such as 
free t rade zones , t ransportat ion in the Southern Cone 

and Central America, and the institutional and legis
lative aspects of the Paraná-Paraguay Waterway. 
INTAL also published several publications such as 
Report on National Policies and Projects in the Area of 
Biotechnology, The Parliamentary Dimension of Inte
gration Processes, and Successful Exporters in Latin 
America. 
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ENVIRONMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

The environmental pace picked up considerably at 
the Bank during 1990 with a host of initiatives 
designed to improve the Bank's environmental prac
tices and support its borrowing countries' efforts to 
manage their natural resources in a sustainable fash
ion. A systematic procedure currently in place permits 
an environmental review of projects prior to approval 
by the Board of Executive Directors. The Environmental 
Protection Division (ENV), created in 1990 under the 
reorganization of the Bank, worked closely with 
other operational and technical divisions in the Bank 
to formulate, when necessary, components to miti
gate the environmental effect of investment projects 
and to prepare environmentally beneficial projects. 
The highlights of the year included the following: 

• Project Classification System: The Envi
ronment Committee (CMA) adopted a system de
signed by ENV entitled "Procedures for Classifying 

and Assessing Environmental Impact of Bank Opera
tions" through which all operations (loans, small 
projects, and technical cooperation operations) are 
measured and classified according to a set of criteria 
that determine the operation's environmental impact. 
The classifications are: Category I: Operations that 
are specifically designed to improve environmental 
quality and do not have any negative environmental 
impact. Category II: Operations that do not have any 
direct or indirect effect on the environment. Category 
BLT: Operations that may have some moderate impact 
on the environment but have recognized and well-
defined solutions for avoiding or controlling the 
impact of the operation. These operations require an 
environmental impact assessment. Category IV: 
Operations that may have significant and complex 
negative impact on the environment and require a 
very detailed environmental impact assessment. This 
classification does not mean that an operation is 
environmentally "good" or "bad." The category iden-
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tifies the level of attention required to avoid damaging 
the natural and human environment. These catego
ries help ensure that all operations, at the time of 
approval by the Board of Executive Directors, are 
environmentally sound. Staff training on these proce
dures was conducted. 

In I99O, the CMA reviewed 75 loan operations 
and 180 technical cooperation operations and small 
projects, of which 31 were classified in Category 1,165 
in Category II, 54 in Category III, and five in Cat
egory IV. These designations remain throughout the 
life of the project and are monitored appropriately. 

• Envi ronmenta l ly -Or ien ted Projects: In 
I99O, 10 of the 45 loans approved by the Bank had 
significant environmental components or were de
signed specifically to improve an area that has been 
environmentally damaged. Of these 10, from 10 
percent up to 70 percent of the Bank's resources for 
investment in the projects are earmarked for environ
mental improvement activities. An estimated $400 

ROCKLEY BEACH, BARBADOS. Studies financed by the 
IDB are helping Barbados design a coastal management 
project to control beach erosion. 

LAMBERTS, BARBADOS. A 250-kilowatt wind turbine, 
financed by a $1.5 million IDB grant, is helping to 
determine the feasibility of utilizing "wind farms" to 
generate electricity for Barbados and other Caribbean 
islands. 
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PARAGUARÍ, PARAGUAY. Third graders learn about 
vertebrate animals in one of several schools built or 
refurbished as part of an integrated rural development 
project in central Paraguay financed by a 1981 IDB loan 
of $27.5 million. The project also included 752 kilome
ters of farm roads, 10 health centers, electrification, 
land titling, agricultural credits, and technical assis
tance for 9,000farm families. 

million will be invested in environmental improve
ments as a result of Bank lending during the year. 

• E n v i r o n m e n t Commiss ion: In September 
1990, the report by the Latin American and Caribbean 
Commission on Development and the Environment, 
entitled Our Own Agenda was issued. This Commis
sion, established by the President of the Bank and the 

Director of the Latin America and Caribbean Office of 
the United Nations Development Programme, was 
composed of high-level political leaders and scien
tists from Latin America and the Caribbean. The report 
called for a "new pact" with the industrial countries to 
preserve the world's natural resources and concluded 
that eradicating poverty and improving the quality of 
life should be the priority objectives of the region. The 
study emphasized that success in balancing devel
opment needs and environmental protection would 
require a strong commitment from both the industrial 
and developing countries. The region-wide report, 
marking the first geographic region in the world to 
have an agenda on the environment and develop
ment, culminated a year-long effort by its members to 
make a political and technical contribution to the 
World Environment and Development Conference 
scheduled for 1992 in Brazil. 

• Local Groups a n d Non-Governmen ta l 
Organizat ions: Local community participation is an 
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important factor in the successful design and execu
tion of development projects. The Bank is making 
greater efforts to be responsive to the social and 
cultural impact of its lending activities. Non-govern
mental organizations have worked with the Bank in 
the past, providing useful liaison with local benefi
ciary groups. To continue strengthening its activities 
in these areas, the CMA approved two documents in 
1990 entitled Interaction between the Bank and Non-
Governmental Organizations and Strategies and 
Procedures for Sociocultural Issues Relating to the 
Environment. 

SUPPORT FOR WOMEN IN DEVELOPMENT 

The Women in Development Policy seeks to improve 
the impact of Bank-funded projects on economic 
growth and the alleviation of poverty for women. In 
I99O progress was made in helping women gain 
access to credit, strengthening institutions that address 
their needs, and expanding the Bank's understanding 
of the role of women in development. The latter is an 
essential prerequisite to designing projects responsive 
to the particular circumstances of women in the 
region. 

A series of studies on the role of women in key 
sectors was commissioned in 1990. These were 
published in the Bank's 1990 Economic a n d Social 
Progress in Latin America report, and were the focus 
of a special seminar for Bank staff and experts on 
women in development from outside the Bank. 
According to these studies official figures undercount 
the region's rapidly growing work force of over 40 
million women. The studies also highlighted the 
increasingly important role of women in the urban 
informal sector and in food production, and the 
limited benefits women receive from their contribu
tion to the economy. The report concluded that in 
order to increase the benefits women receive, efforts 
must be made to facilitate their entry into more 
dynamic and productive sectors of the economy by 
providing them with greater access to land, capital, 
credit, technology, and training. This is the primary 
focus of the Bank's Women in Development program. 

The majority of Bank projects directly benefiting 
women has been funded through the Small Projects 
Program and microenterprise global loans. Since its 
inception in 1978, the Small Projects Program is 
estimated to have helped over 23,000 women, many 
of them informal sector microenterprise owners. 

These women represent 20 percent of all small project 
beneficiaries. Of the 222 small projects that have been 
approved since the program began, 22 were designed 
specifically for women. In 70 other small projects, 
women account for 25 to 50 percent of the direct 
participants. In 1990, the Bank's microenterprise 
loans and small projects approvals are expected to 
include significant numbers of women among their 
beneficiaries. One of the small projects approved was 
targeted exclusively to women. 

Also in 1990, at the request of Jamaica and 
Barbados, the Bank provided short-term technical 
cooperation to strengthen the women's bureaus of 
both governments. Such assistance equips institu
tions to assume the role of catalyst for program and 
policy change in the government or of coordinator 
between women's organizations and the government. 

Special efforts were taken to support women's 
contributions in other areas that are not exclusively 
targeted to women, with particular attention given to 
the role of women in poverty reduction through the 
Social Emergency Funds and in health care. The Bank 
is also working to enhance the quality of benefits to 
women in education projects and science and tech
nology development, where women's participation is 
already high. 

The Bank's Women in Development initiatives 
will be increasingly directed to larger-scale operations, 
and to including women as participants in a broader 
project framework. As noted in the 1990 Economic 
a n d Social Progress in Latin America report: "It is not 
enough to design special projects for small groups of 
women, no matter how efficient some of these 
projects may be; such a fragmented approach serves 
only to improve the living conditions of a relatively 
minuscule portion of the total population." The small 
project experiences, however, have given the Bank 
valuable lessons on how to enhance women's con
tributions to larger productive projects. These lessons 
were applied in the design of three global microen
terprise projects in 1990, and will be incorporated in 
other sectors in the future. 

PRIVATE SECTOR DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM 

The difficult economic environment in the region 
during the 1980s prompted policymakers in the 
Bank's borrowing countries to re-evaluate how they 
approach increasingly complex problems. Many 
recognized that the private sector offers great poten-
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SANTIAGO, CHILE. Credit from a $130 million 1985 IDB 
loan, channeled through Chile's Banco del Estado to 
finance a national industrial credit program, was used 
by the ELECMETAL iron and steel foundry to purchase 
machinery from Brazil, Europe and the United States to 
modernize its production line. ELECMETAL produces 
parts for heavy machinery from scrap metal and ex
ports to other South American countries, the United 
States, and Canada. 

tial to lead economic growth and began to look for 
ways to unleash its full productive capacity. Overall, 
the emerging policy consensus in the region is more 
outward-oriented with an attendant emphasis on 
competing effectively in the world market. At the 
same time, governments have started to rely more on 
market forces to determine prices and allocate scarce 
capital resources. The role of the state is generally 
being reassessed, with particular attention to its size, 

overall efficiency, and relationship with the private 
sector. Because of these considerations, deregulation 
and privatization are being assigned new prominence 
on policy agendas. Many governments are also look
ing for ways to modernize their private sectors and 
have started to recast the public-private sector rela
tionship so that the public sector is directly supportive 
of private sector production. 

Accordingly, Bank Management in 1990 took 
steps to respond and support these new policy 
directions in its borrowing member countries by 
preparing its Private Sector Development Program, 
which substantially expands its previous efforts to 
strengthen the private sector. Although Bank funding 
and technical assistance have been principally ori
ented to support public sector investments, the Bank 
through the years has also provided funding for 
projects that benefited the private sector, notably 
loans for economic infrastructure, global credit pro
grams, and the industrial recovery program of the 
mid-1980s that provided credit to private companies 
to purchase imported inputs. The Bank also has made 
loans to private companies, such as a $40 million loan 
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in 1985 to SIDERCA SAIC, in Argentina to help mod
ernize one of its seamless steel tube and pipe plants. 

The objectives of the Bank's Private Sector 
Development Program are to promote a competitive 
investment climate in borrowing member countries, 
encourage development of capital markets, and spur 
both domestic and foreign private investment. The 
Bank's sector lending program also complements the 
private sector initiative, since these loans support 
policy changes aimed at attracting domestic and 
foreign capital. So, too, does the $ 1.5 billion Multilateral 
Investment Fund provided for under the Enterprise 
for the Americas initiative. The Bank is being asked 
to administer the Fund. 

With the naming of a senior-level private sector 
support group in September 1990, the President of the 
Bank established an organizational mechanism within 
the Bank to develop the Private Sector Development 
Program's conceptual framework and build its insti
tutional foundation. The conceptual framework strives 
to reflect the interests and needs of the Bank's 
borrowing countries while at the same time being 
compatible with the work program of the Bank and 
its affiliate, the Inter-American Investment Corpora
tion (IIC). The IIC works with private sector companies 
through equity investments and direct lending with
out government guarantees. A preliminary document 
containing a general framework of the possible scope 
of the program was presented to the Committee of the 
Board of Governors on September 22, 1990. This 
docLiment charted the following four activities for the 
Bank's priority attention: 1) fostering a competitive 
investment environment; 2) developing capital mar
kets; 3) expanding global loans; and 4) assisting in 
privatization. 

The Bank began a review of its programs to 
determine how best to support financing of the 
private sector, including privatization, formation of 
capital markets, and small business. In October, 
business leaders from 13 Latin American and Carib
bean countries met in Washington, D.C, under the 
Bank's auspices to discuss their need to play an active 
role in the region's economic development. On the 
basis of the aforesaid events, the support group is 
preparing an Action Plan for implementing the first 
stage of the Private Sector Development Program. 
This Action Plan is expected to recommend that the 
Bank intensify its work with interested governments 
to establish an integrated development strategy incor
porating public and private sector components. 

BARRANQUILLA, COLOMBIA. Craftsman carves the back 
for a chair at a small furniture business that received a 
$1,850 credit from the Mario Santo Domingo Foundation 
to purchase electric tools. The credit was extended 
from the IDB's first national microenterprise global 
credit program, a $7 million IDB loan to Colombia in 
1986. IDB resources are expanding microenterprise 
programs to national levels in several countries of the 
region. 
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TABLE EX. DISBURSEMENTS FOR PURCHASE OF GOODS AND SERVICES BY ORIGIN OF SUPPLIER 
(In millions of U.S. dollars and percent) 

1961-89 1990 

Local 
Purchases Exports Total 

Local 
Purchases Exports Total 

Amount % Amount Amount % Amount Amount Amount 

BORROWING 
Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay-
Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Total, Borrowers 

COUNTRIES 
$ 

Í7. 

629-0 
0.0 

17.9 
164.8 

,435.1 
935.2 
484.4 
152.8 
155.8 
334.2 

74.5 
105.3 

4.2 
28.9 

123.5 
89.0 

,715.6 
69.6 

170.3 
128.8 
339.6 

0.2 
9.9 

136.9 
140.0 

445.4 

NON-BORROWING COUNTRIES 
Austria 
Belgium 
Canada 
Denmark 
Finland 
France 
Germany 
Israel 
Italy 
Japan 
Netherlands 
Norway 
Portugal 
Spain 
Sweden 
Switzerland 
United Kingdom 
United States 
Yugoslavia 
Total, Non-Borrowers 
Other Countries 

8.4 
0.0 
0.2 
2.2 

19-3 
12.6 
6.5 
2.1 
2.1 
4.5 
1.0 
1.4 
0.1 
0.4 
1.7 
1.2 

23.0 
0.9 
2.3 
1.7 
4.6 
0.0 
0.1 
1.8 
1.9 

100.0 

$ 307.6 
2.6 
1.5 
1.0 

719.3 
34.5 
44.8 
87.0 

6.0 
0.4 

15.6 
22.1 
0.2 
0.5 

16.2 
27.4 

424.2 
13-8 
25.9 
30.1 
42.3 

0.0 
6.5 

20.8 
4-.9 

$ 1,898.4 

$ 49.6 
58.1 

208.1 
45.8 
20.5 

921.5 
879.1 

19.4 
1,115.5 

917.1 
139.8 

10.6 
4.4 

426.9 
222.0 
354.9 
299.2 

4,703.7 
8.3 

$10,404.6 
5.Ü 

0.0 
0.0 
0.0 
5.8 
0.3 
0.4 
0.7 
0.0 
0.0 
0.1 
0.2 
0.0 
0.0 
0.1 
0.2 
3.4 
0.1 
0.2 
0.2 
0.3 
0.0 
0.1 
0.2 
0.4 

15.4 

0.4 
0.5 
1.7 
0.4 
0.2 
7.5 
7.1 
0.2 
9.1 
7.5 
1.1 
0.1 
0.0 
3-5 
1.8 
2.9 
2.4 

38.2 
0.1 

84.6 
0.0 

$ 936.6 
2.6 

19.4 
165.8 

2,154.4 
969.7 
529.3 
239.7 
161.8 
334.7 

90.1 
127.4 

4.4 
29.4 

139-7 
116.4 

2,139-8 
83.4 

196.2 
158.9 
381.9 

0.2 
16.4 

157.7 
187.9 

$ 9,343.8 

î 49.6 
58.1 

208.1 
45.8 
20.5 

921.5 
879.1 

19.4 
1,115.5 

917.1 
139.8 

10.6 
4.4 

426.9 
222.0 
354.9 
2992 

4.703.7 
8.3 

$10,404.6 
5.0 

4.7 
0.0 
0.1 
0.8 

10.9 
4.9 
2.7 
1.2 
0.8 
1.7 
0.5 
0.6 
0.0 
0.1 
0.7 
0.6 

10.8 
0.4 
1.0 
0.8 
1.9 
0.0 
0.1 
0.8 
1.0 

47.3 

0.3 
0.3 
1.1 
0.2 
0.1 
4.7 
4.5 
0.1 
5.6 
4.6 
0.7 
0.1 
0.0 
2.2 
1.1 
1.8 
1.5 

23.8 
0.0 

52.7 
0.0 

S 96.0 
0.3 
2.8 

497 
126.2 
17770 
102.6 
24.1 
16.5 
52.-1 
5.6 

16.3 
0.6 
8.0 

15.0 
26.5 

152.8 
0.8 
0.5 
4.6 
0.0 
0.1 
8.2 

22.3 
43.6 

$952.5 

10.1 
0.0 
0.3 
5.2 

13-2 
18.6 
10.8 
2.5 
17 
5.5 
0.6 
1.7 
0.1 
0.8 
1.6 
2.8 

16.0 
0.1 
0.1 
0.5 
0.0 
0.0 
0.9 
2.3 
-1.6 

100.0 

36.5 
0.1 
0.2 
0.0 

43.3 
8.1 
5.4 
6.2 
0.0 
0.1 
0.1 
0.9 
0.0 
0.1 
0.3 
4.6 

20.-
4.1 
2.2 
4.1 
2 7 
0.0 
0.6 
0.1 
9.7 

150.1 

1.7 
4.7 

25.5 
8.3 
1.5 

141.8 
-6.0 
11.3 

1163 
-5.0 

6.4 
1.0 
0.2 

24.8 
18.0 
24.8 
42.6 

365.1 
0.6 

945.6 
0.1 

3.3 
0.0 
0.0 
0.0 
4.0 
0.7 
0.5 
0.6 
0.0 
0.0 
0.0 
0.1 
0.0 
0.0 
0.0 
0.4 
1.9 
0.4 
0.2 
0.4 
0.2 
0.0 
0.1 
0.0 
0.9 

137 

0.2 
0.4 
2.4 
0.8 
0.1 

13.2 
-.1 
1.0 

10.8 
7.0 
0.6 
0.1 
0.0 
2.3 
1.7 
2.3 
4.0 

33.9 
0.1 

86.3 
0.0 

5 132.5 
0.4 
3.0 

4 9 _ 

169.5 
1851 
108.0 
30-3 
16.5 
52.5 

5.7 
1^2 
0.6 
8.1 

15.3 
31.1 

173.5 
4.9 
2.7 
8.7 
2.7 
0.1 
8.8 

22.4 
53.3 

$1,102.6 

î 1.7 
4.7 

25.5 
8.3 
1.5 

141.8 
-6.0 
113 

116.3 
75.0 

6.4 
1.0 
0.2 

24.8 
18.0 
24.8 
42.6 

365-1 
0.6 

$ 945.6 
0.1 

6.5 
0.0 
0.1 
2.4 
8.3 
9.0 
5.3 
1.5 
0.8 
2.6 
0.3 
0.8 
0.0 
0.4 
0.77 

1.5 
8.5 
0.2 
0.1 
0.4 
0.1 
0.0 
0.4 
1.1 
2.6 

53-8 

0.1 
0.2 
1.2 
0.4 
0.1 
6.9 
3.7 
0.6 
57 
37 
03 
0.0 
0.0 
1.2 
0.9 
1.2 
2.1 

17.8 
0.0 

46.2 
0.0 

TOTAL $7,445.4 100.0 $12,303-0 100.0 $19.748.4 100.0 $952.5 100.0 $1.095.7 100.0 $2,048.2 100.0 
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RECIPROCAL BENEFITS 

Bank-loan contracts require the Bank's public sector 
borrowers to procure goods and construction services 
through open international competitive bidding when 
the value of the procurement exceeds $200,000. The 
services of consulting firms also must be acquired 
through an open and competitive selection process. 

Only IDB member countries are eligible to 
participate in procurement financed with resources 
from the Bank's ordinary capital, the Fund for Special 
Operations and Venezuelan Trust Fund and certain 
other funds under Bank administration.* 

The value of goods and services procured with 
Bank resources from individual member countries 
exceeds, in most cases at least, the total of cash 
payments, in convertible currencies, paid-in or con
tributed by the member country. 

In 1990, a total of 900 contracts amounting to 
$301.1 million were awarded to firms in 32 member 
countries. 

Disbursements of convertible currencies for 
purchases of goods and services totaled $2,048.2 
million in 1990. Borrowing member countries re
ceived $1,102.6 million or 53-8 percent of this value. 
Local purchases of goods and services for projects in 
the borrowing countries totaled $952.5 million and 
exports of borrowing countries to other borrowing 
countries amounted to $150.1 million. Non-borrow
ing member countries provided goods and services 
totaling $945.6 million in 1990. Table IX, Disburse
ments for Purchase of Goods and Services by Origin 
of Supplier, gives a detailed breakdown of local 
purchases and exports of goods and services by Bank 
member countries. These disbursement figures re
flect only the initial round of procurement traced by 
actual disbursements and do not measure amounts 
received by subcontractors or the substantial secondary 
and tertiary impact of Bank lending. 

A review of disbursements in convertible cur
rencies reveals that during the first two decades of 
Bank operations, the non-borrowing member coun
tries provided the majority of goods and services for 
Bank-financed projects. In recent years, that trend has 
shifted somewhat, and since 1984 the borrowing 
member countries have supplied the majority share of 
goods and services purchased with Bank resources. 

/ 

CHARALLAVE, VENEZUELA. Credit from an industrial 
credit program financed by a $100 million 1985 IDB loan 
channeled through Venezuela's Industrial Credit Fund 
enabled the Grafiplast plastic bag factory to purchase 
new machinery from Italy. The plant produces 600 
million specialty bags a year for stores and shops. 

* Special eligibility restrictions apply to certain Funds. 
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TABLE X. CAPITAL OF THE BANK 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Subscriptions as of December 31 , 1990 Future Commitments 

Country Paid-in Callable Sub-Total Paid-in Callable Total Grand Total 

Argentina 
Austria 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belgium 

326,581 
2,220 

10,411 
4,946 
5,416 

$ 4,438,366 
30,315 
81,669 
52,042 
71,693 

$ 4,764,947 
32,535 
92,080 
56,988 
-7109 

57,470 
398 

1,122 
687 
942 

2,241,084 
15,309 
43,320 
26,817 
36,262 

2.298,554 
15,707 
44,442 
27,504 
37,204 

$ 7,063,501 
48,242 

136,522 
84,492 

114,313 

Bolivia 
Brazil 
Canada 
Chile 
Colombia 

Finland 
France 
Germany 
Guatemala 
Guvana 

26,214 
326,581 
127,655 
89,607 
89,583 

356,294 
4,438,366 
1,672,101 
1,218,757 
1,217,828 

382,508 
4,764,947 
1,799756 
1,308,364 
1,307,411 

4,596 
57,470 
21,714 
15,779 
15,779 

179,901 
2,241,084 

846,454 
615,343 
614,909 

184,49-
2,298,554 

868,168 
631,122 
630.688 

2,220 
27,239 
27,866 
17,480 
6,924 

30,316 
368,912 
377,875 
237,782 
63,973 

32,536 
396,151 
405,741 
255,262 
70.89"7 

398 
4. 
4,886 
3,077 
868 

15,308 
186.30"7 
190,831 
120,044 
33,331 

15,706 
191,084 
195,717 
123,121 
34,199 

567,005 
7,063,501 
2,667,924 
1,939,486 
1,938,099 

Costa Rica 13,101 178,092 191,193 2,316 89,934 92,250 283,443 
Denmark 2,388 32,270 34,658 435 16,285 16,720 51,3-8 
Dominican Republic 17,480 237,782 255,262 3,077 120,044 123,121 378,383 
Ecuador 17,480 23"7782 255,262 3,077 120,044 123.121 378,383 
El Salvador 13,101 178,092 191,193 2,316 89,934 92,250 283,443 

48,242 
587,235 
601,458 
378,383 
105,096 

Haiti 
Honduras 
Israel 
Italy 
Jamaica 

12,329 
13,101 
2,208 

27,239 
17,480 

148.115 
178,092 
29,857 

368,912 
237,782 

160,444 
191,193 
32,065 

396,151 
255,262 

3,088 
2,316 

398 
4,777 
3,077 

119,911 
89,934 
15,091 

186,307 
120,044 

122,999 
92,250 
15,489 

191,084 
123,121 

283,443 
283,443 

47,554 
587,235 
378,383 

Japan 
Mexico 
Netherlands 
Nicaragua 
Norway 

30,340 
209,964 

4,102 
13,101 
2,388 

411,580 
2,853,014 

56,119 
1^8,092 
32,270 

441,920 
3,062,978 

60,221 
191,193 
34,658 

5,319 
36,950 

723 
2,316 

435 

207,841 
1,440,591 

28,33"' 
89,934 
16,285 

213,160 
1,477,541 

29,060 
92,250 
16,720 

655,080 
4,540,519 

89,281 
283,443 

51,378 

Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Portugal 
Spain 

United States 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Yugoslavia 

13,101 
12,329 
43,802 

688 
27,239 

178,092 
148,115 
594,703 

9,747 
368,912 

191,193 
160,444 
638,505 

10,435 
396,151 

2,316 
3,088 
"709 

108 
4,777 

89,934 
119,911 
300,3o"7 

4,923 
186307 

92,250 
122,999 
308,016 

5,031 
191,084 

976,318 
35,056 

182,387 
2,220 

13.242,138 
475,818 

2,370,477 
30,315 

14,218,456 
510,874 

2,552,864 
32,535 

173,037 
6,152 

30,798 
398 

6742,252 
240,268 

1,200,685 
15,309 

6,915,289 
246,420 

1,231.483 
15,707 

283,443 
283,443 
946,521 

15,466 
587,235 

Suriname 5,248 33,621 38,869 470 18.2-6 18746 5"7,615 
Sweden 4,729 62,742 67,471 796 31739 32,535 100,006 
Switzerland 6,044 82,417 88,461 1,049 41,619 42,668 131,129 
Trinidad and Tobago 13.101 1-8.092 191,193 2,316 89,934 92,250 283,443 
United Kingdom 27,239 368,912 396,151 4,-— 186,30- 191,084 587235 

21,133,745 
757,294 

3,784,347 
48,242 

TOTAL $2,836,246 $38,158,241 $40,994,487 $498,374 $19,424,591 $19,922,965 $60,917,452 
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RESOURCES 

SEVENTH GENERAL INCREASE OF RESOURCES 

The Seventh General Increase in the Resources of the 
Bank went into effect on January 17, 1990. The 
agreement among the Bank's member countries in
creases the authorized capital of the Bank by $26.5 
billion to a total of $6l billion. The increase in 
resources permits a $22.5 billion lending program in 
convertible currencies over the 1990-93 period. 

The paid-in portion of each member country's 
subscription is 2.5 percent subscribed in convertible 
currencies and the remaining 97.5 percent in the form 
of callable capital subscriptions. The paid-in share 
requires paid-in subscriptions of the members total
ing approximately $66l million. 

The Fund for Special Operations is being aug
mented with new contributions in convertible curren
cies totaling $200 million. 

BORROWINGS 

During 1990, the Bank completed 10 individual 
borrowings in the world's capital markets for a total 
of $1,830.3 million equivalent, expressed at exchange 
rates prevailing on the date of the receipt of the 
proceeds of the transactions. These borrowings rep
resent the fourth largest amount borrowed by the 
Bank in any single year. Previously, the largest annual 
borrowing level —$2,333-3 million—occurred in 1985 
when the Bank concluded 24 individual transactions. 
At the end of 1990, the Bank's outstanding borrow
ings amounted to $17,273-4 million. 

A total of $1,759-8 million of the borrowings 
represented medium- or long-term issues and $70.5 
million were short-term borrowings from Central 
Banks of member countries. 

In 1990, approximately 37 percent of the Bank's 
borrowings was denominated in U.S. dollars, 36 
percent in Japanese yen, 11 percent in Deutsche 
marks, 9 percent in Swiss francs, and 7 percent in 
Netherlands guilders. In U.S. dollars or equivalent, 
the U.S. dollar accounted for S670.5 million of the 
borrowings, Japanese yen for $653-5 million, Deutsche 
marks for $199.3 million, Swiss francs for $174.1 
million, and Netherlands guilders for $132.9 million. 

Of the short-term borrowings, $22 million were 
raised in the Latin American and Caribbean member 

countries and $48.5 million in the non-regional mem
ber countries. The Bank's 1990 borrowings are shown 
on page 36, and the Bank's outstanding borrowings 
by currency as of December 31, 1990 are shown on 
page 37. 

COFINANCING 

The Bank concluded a number of agreements in 1990 
that will generate additional resources to cofinance 
projects in the region. 

The Overseas Economic Cooperation Fund of 
Japan (OECF) agreed in 1990 to contribute to a new 
cofinancing mechanism entitled the Small-Scale 
Projects Fund established by the Bank. Projects in 
various sectors, primarily in the limited market and 
lesser developed countries of the region, will be 
eligible for cofinancing from this mechanism. The 
Bank's analyses of each proposed project will be used 
by OECF in its internal review and approval process. 

Cofinancing arrangements were concluded for 
several of the projects approved by the Bank in 1990 
involving agencies and entities such as the World 
Bank, Special Fund of the Organization of Petroleum 
Exporting Countries (OPEC), OECF, Kreditanstalt fur 
Wiederaufbau (KfW), German Technical Assistance 
Agency (GTZ), Andean Development Corporation, 
and Government of the Netherlands. In addition, 
cofinancing arrangements involving nearly S700 
million are being worked out with several agencies 
for at least five projects approved in 1990. Table XII 
highlights the Bank's cofinancing activities in 1990. 

FUNDS IN ADMINISTRATION 

Many of the Bank's non-borrowing and borrowing 
member countries have entrusted the Bank with 
funds to finance projects according to specific regu
lations. These trust funds have become increasingly 
important over time, both because they augment the 
Bank's regular resources and because, for the most 
part, they are used to finance on concessional terms 
and conditions projects benefiting low-income people. 
The funds represent a special contribution on the part 
of donors to help low-income segments of the 
region's population. 

In 1990, the Bank accepted administration of a 
major new fund from the Spanish Government. 
Established by Spain with the equivalent of $500 
million, the Quincentennial Fund commemorates 500 
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TABLE XL CONTRIBUTION QUOTAS TO THE FUND FOR SPECIAL OPERATIONS 
In Thousands of I \S. Dollars 

Seventh Increase of Resources ' 

Country 
As of 

December 31 , 1990a Received 
To be 

Received 
Grand 
Total 

Argentina 
Austria 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belgium 

S-i-1754 
12,950 
9,708 
1,569 

31.830 336 

SI 1,352 
566 
258 

35 
1,007 

483,106 
13,516 
9,966 
1,604 

33,1-3 

Bolivia 
Brazil 
Canada 
Chile 
Colombia 

44,856 
502,890 
248,353 
144,386 
141,952 

232 

2,767 
-98 
-98 

694 
11,352 
8,302 
2.392 
2,392 

514,242 
259,422 
147,576 
145,142 

Costa Rica 
Denmark 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 

21.531 
13,818 
30,466 
27,861 
19,584 

114 343 
604 
621 
621 
457 

21,988 
14,422 
31,087 
28,482 
20,041 

Finland 
France 
Germany 
Guatemala 
Guyana 

12,938 
157,710 
161,593 
29.635 

7.680 

142 
1,725 
1,767 

424 
5,176 
5,300 

621 
199 

13,504 
164,611 
168,660 
30,256 

7,879 

Haiti 
Honduras 
Israel 
Italy-
Jamaica 

20,126 
23,791 
12,763 

157,710 
26,478 

140 
1,725 

457 
419 

5,176 
621 

20.583 
24,248 
13,322 

164,611 
2-.099 

Japan 
Mexico 
Netherlands 
Nicaragua 
Norway 

175,948 
302,290 

23,959 
22,239 
13,818 

1,98-

151 

-.698 
5.960 
1,050 

457 
453 

183,646 
310.23-

25,009 
22,696 
14,422 

Panama 
Paraguay-
Peru 
Portugal 
Spain 

23,669 
26,331 
73,260 

5,636 
15-710 

114 343 
457 

1,571 
182 

6,901 

24,126 
26,788 
74,831 
5,818 

164,611 

Suriname 
Sweden 
Switzerland 
Trinidad and Tobago 
United Kingdom 

5,816 
27,868 
35,181 
19,230 

157710 

385 

152 
1.1-5 
1,156 

457 
6.901 

5,968 
29,043 
36,722 
19,687 

164,611 

United States 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Yugoslavia 
Unallocated 

4,633,553 
51,556 

290,169 
12,950 
12,602 

20.180 
311 

62,124 
932 

7 9 4 -
566 

0 

4,715,857 
52799 

298,116 
13,516 
12,602 

TOTAL $8,405,427 $33,672 $166,328 $8,605.427 
a Includes Sixth Increase of Resources at amounts stipulated in Resolution AG-11/83-
b Includes $56 not yet received from Suriname. Includes %11 restricted by Germany under the trigger mechanism 
c Amounts Stipulated in Resolution AG-2'90. 
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TABLE XII. COFINANCING AND OTHER ARRANGEMENTS, 1990 
(In millions of U.S. dollars) 

Country and Project 

Financiers 

IDB 
World 
Bank Japan 

Other 
Sources 

Local 
Funds Total 

Bahamas Marine Cargo 
Terminal at Clifton Point 

Bolivia Electric 
Generation, Transmission 
& Distribution 

Colombia Rural 
Development Program 

Ecuador Municipal 
Development Program 

Haiti Rural Roads 
Jamaica Agriculture 

Sector Program 
Mexico Power Sector 

Investment Program 
Mexico Environment Study 

of Forest Development 
Venezuela 

Preinvestment Program 
Regional Development of 

Trading Firms in 
Latin America 

80 

75 

104 

44.5 

50 

330 

19 

75 

104 

25 

450 

13 

255 

0.5' 

15 ' 

50.62 

43 

44 

106 

0.4 

32.6 

100 

88 
0.5 

4,96"' 

2.4 

163.2 

250 

300 
49 

110 

5,747 

0.5 

38 

1.5 

TOTAL 702.5 667 29 68.6 5,194.5 6,661.6 
1 The Japan Special Fund. 
2 Corporación Ayidina de Fomento. 
3 German technical cooperation funds through the German Technical Assistance Agency as agent. 
4 Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries. 
^ Japan's Overseas Economic Cooperation Fund. 
6 This sum represents $5 million from the Netherlands and $5 million from K¡-editartstaltfue,- Wiedemiijlxiu under German financial cooperation. 

years of ties between Spain and Latin America and the 
Caribbean. In addition, Spain will provide the 
equivalent of $150 million to fund a Special Account 
that would subsidize interest rates charged on loans 
from the Quincentennial Fund. The resources will be 
used to finance a broad range of projects in Latin 
America and the Caribbean. It is the third largest fund 
ever created by a member country for IDB adminis
tration. 

Since I96I, the Bank has administered 14 spe
cial funds. In 1961, the IDB accepted administration 
of the first—the United States Social Progress Trust 
Fund. Other special funds followed, several of which 
were established by donor countries prior to their 
becoming members of the Bank, including the Ca
nadian Fund in 1964 and the Swedish Development 
Fund and the United Kingdom Fund in 1966. During 
the 1970s several additional funds were established, 

including the Norwegian Development Fund in 1971 
and the Technical Cooperation and Small Projects 
Swiss Fund in 1973. 

Latin American countries have also asked the 
Bank to administer funds on their behalf. In 1970, the 
Argentine Fund was established to help provide 
counterpart funds for projects located in Argentina's 
neighboring countries—Bolivia, Paraguay, and Uru
guay. In 1975, Venezuela established the Venezuelan 
Trust Fund with a contribution equivalent to $500 
million. Resources from this fund have been used for 
projects in integration, natural resources, industry, 
and exports. 

During the 1980s Japan contributed ¥8,000 
million to the Japan Special Fund to be used for 
technical cooperation, small projects and emergency 
assistance arising from natural disasters. A fund was 
also established on behalf of the European Economic 
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TABLE XIII. IDB BORROWINGS, FISCAL 1990 
(In millions of currency) 

Currency Issue Manager/Lenders Units 

USS 
Equiva

lent 

MEDIUM- AND LONG-TERM BORROWINGS 

Japanese yen 7.5% fifteen-year loan, due 2005 

7.25% ten-year Eurobonds, due 
2000 
7.0% ten-year bonds, due 2000 

Swiss francs 7.375% twelve-year bonds, due 2002 

7.5% ten-year bonds, due 2000 

United States 
dollars 

Germany 
marks 

9.5% ten-year Eurobonds, due 2000 

8.375% five-year Eurobonds, due 
1995 

9.0% ten-year bonds, due 2000 

Netherlands 9-25% ten-year bonds, due 2000 
guilders 

Total Medium- and Long-Term Borrowings 

The long-term Credit Bank of Japan, Ltd. Yen 30,000 202.1 
Dai-ichi Mutual Life Insurance Company 
Nomura International pic Yen 30,000 188.9 
Daiwa Europe Limited 
Daiwa Securities Company Limited Yen 35,000 262.5 
Union Bank of Switzerland SwF 125 86.2 
Swiss Bank Corporation 
Credit Suisse 
Swiss Bank Corporation SwF 125 87.9 
Credit Suisse 
Union Bank of Switzerland 
Credit Suisse First Boston Ltd. USÎ 300 300.0 
Deutsche Bank Capital Markets Ltd. 
J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd. 
J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd. US$ 300 300.0 
Deutsche Bank Capital Markets Ltd. 
Credit Suisse First Boston Ltd. 
Deutsche Bank AG, Commerzbank AG, DM 300 1993 
Dresdner Bank AG, Bayerische 
Vereinsbank AG, and 
Westdeutsche Landesbank 
Girozentrale 
Algemene Bank Nederland, N.V. Dfl 250 132.9 

1,759.8 

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS 

United States 8.66% one-year bonds, due 1991 
dollars 

8.90% two-vear bonds, due 1992 

Total Short-Term Borrowings 

GRAND TOTAL 

Chile, France, The Netherlands US$ 26.0 
Paraguay, Venezuela, and Yugoslavia 
Belgium, Colombia, Finland, Germany USI 44.5 
Italy. Japan, Mexico, Portugal, Spain, 
and The Netherlands 

26.0 

70.5 

1,830.3 
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TABLE XIV. OUTSTANDING BORROWING BY 
CURRENCY AS OF DECEMBER 31, 1990 
(In millions of U.S. dollars) 

Currency Amount 
Austrian schillings 
Deutsche marks 
European currency units (ECUs) 
Japanese yen 
Netherlands guilders 
Pounds sterling1 

Swiss francs 
Trinidad and Tobago dollars 
United States dollars2 

23.4 
3,016.1 

136.3 
4,684.6 
1,235.0 

764.9 
3,010.4 

2.2 
4,400.5 

TOTAL $17,273.4 
1 $102.8 million (at the then existing exchange rate) were swapped against 
Swiss francs. 

2 $128.6 million (at the then-existing exchange rate) were swapped against 
Swiss francs. 

Community for small projects and technical coopera
tion. 

The funds under Bank administration permit the 
financing of different types of projects under 
concessional conditions. Resources from some of 
these funds are used to cofinance projects that the 
Bank is also financing. Several funds are earmarked 
for small projects, while others benefit low-income 
groups. One fund finances the preparation of projects, 
including basic studies, feasibility and engineering 
designs. Many of the funds have been replenished by 
the donors over the years. Table XV lists these 
important sources of additional development re
sources. 

Ordinary Capital Resources: Total income: $ 1,870 
million compared with $1,527 million in 1989. Net 
income: $341.2 million compared with $220.6 million 
in 1989- Total reserves: $3,711 million as of December 
31, 1990, compared with $3,296 million at the end of 
1989. The net income amounts indicated above are 
after charges of $107.4 million in 1990 and $90.5 
million in 1989 corresponding to provisions for the 
possibility of losses on loans; and after providing 
$81.1 million for post-retirement benefits in accor
dance with recently issued financial accounting 
standards. 

Fund for Special Operations: Total income: $201 
million compared with $176 million in 1989- Net 
income: $5.7 million compared with $2.1 million in 
1989- Total reserves: $539 million as of December 31, 
1990, compared with $546 million at the end of 1989-
The net income amounts indicated above are after 
charges of $14.8 million in 1990 and $50.3 million in 
1989 corresponding to provisions for the possibility 
of losses on loans; and after providing $59-4 million 
for post-retirement benefits in accordance with re
cently issued financial accounting standards. 

The audited financial statements of the ordinary 
capital, the Intermediate Financing Facility Account 
and the Fund for Special Operations, as well as those 
of the Social Progress Trust Fund and the Venezuelan 
Trust Fund, appear on pages 137 through 177. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

During 1990, the Bank's gross income from its own 
resources—the ordinary capital and the Fund for 
Special Operations—amounted to $2,071 million 
compared with $1,704 million the previous year. The 
combined net earnings from the two funds amounted 
to $347 million, compared with $223 million in 1989-

These earnings contributed to an increase in the 
Bank's total reserves as of December 31, 1990 to 
$4,250 million, compared with $3,842 million in 1989. 
Highlights of earnings from the Bank's own resources 
are shown below: 
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TABLE XV. FUNDS IN ADMINISTRATION AS OF DECEMBER 31 , 1990 

Name 
Date 

Established 
Entrusted 

By 
Currency or 

Denomination 

Amount 
Contributed 

(million) 
Sector Concentration 

or Purpose 

Social Progress Trust 1961 U.S.A. 
Fund 

Venezuelan Trust Fund 1975 Venezuela 

Canadian Fund 1964 Canada 

Canadian Project 1974 Canada 
Preparation Fund 

Japan Special Fund 

US$ 

USÎ 
Bolívares 
Canî 

Can$ 

1988 & 1989 Japan Yen 

1973 & 1980 Switzerland SwF Technical Cooperation 
and Small Projects 
Swiss Fund 

Norwegian 1970 Norway 
Development Fund 

United Kingdom 1971 U.K. 
Development Fund 

United Kingdom Fund 1966 U.K. 
Argentine Fund 1970 Argentina 

Swedish Development 1966 Sweden 
Fund 

European Economic 1981 EEC 
Community Grant 

Spanish Quincentennial 1990 Spain 
Funds 

Spanish Special 1990 Spain 
Account 

US$ 

& 
Australes 

equiv. to US$ 

US$ 

ECU 

ECU 

ECU 

525 Agriculture, sanitation. 
education, social 

400 Integration, natural resources, 
430 industry, exports 

73 Physical infrastructure and 
other sectors on 
concessional terms 

6 Project preparation—basic-
studies, feasibility and 
engineering designs 

8,000 Technical assistance, small 
projects, emergency 
assistance 

45 Projects that benefit low-
income groups 

2 Loans and small projects, low-
income groups, health, 
education, agriculture, and 
small-scale industry' 

4 Concessional loans 

4 Concessional loans 
23 Local counterpart financing for 

IDB projects 
5 Concessional loans 

2 Small projects and technical 
assistance 

377 Technical education, 
agriculture, health, 
communications, urban 
development 

113 Interest rate subsidies on 
loans from the 
Quincentennial Fund 
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INSTITUTIONAL MATTERS 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

In January of 1990, the Board of Governors approved 
resolutions that put into effect the Seventh General 
Increase in the Resources of the Bank. In October of 
1990, the Board of Governors approved the creation 
of a debt reduction and debt service reduction facility 
as an integral component of the Bank's sector lending 
program to help the borrowing countries reduce their 
public external debt and debt service with the com
mercial banks. The Board of Governors directed the 
Board of Executive Directors to establish the opera
tional guidelines required to carry out these opera
tions. 

In other actions taken in 1990, the Board: 
• Approved the 1989 financial statements of 

the ordinary capital, the Fund for Special Operations 
and the Intermediate Financing Facility. 

• Designated an external auditing firm to verify 
the Bank's general balance and gain and loss state
ments for 1990. 

The Committee of the Board of Governors, a 
permanent working group made up of 12 members of 
the Board, held two meetings in 1990. The first was 
held during the 31st Annual Meeting of the Board of 
Governors in Montreal; the second at the Bank's 
Headquarters during the Annual Meetings of the 
Bretton Woods institutions. At the second meeting, 
the Committee modified its procedures so that the 
position of Committee President will be held by the 
Governor elected President of the Bank's Board of 
Governors. This modification will make it possible in 
the future for the presidency of the Committee to be 
held by a Governor from one of the Bank's non-
regional member countries. 

BOARD OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 

The Board of Executive Directors is responsible for 
the conduct of the operations of the Bank. It estab
lishes the institution's operational policies, approves 
loan and technical cooperation proposals submitted 
by the President of the Bank, authorizes Bank bor
rowings on the capital markets, and approves the 
institution's administrative budget. 

The Board performs its duties on a full-time 
basis at the Bank's Headquarters, and its 12 principal 

members are elected or appointed for three-year 
terms by the Governors of the Bank. Each Executive 
Director may appoint an Alternate, who has full 
power to act when the principal is absent. A roster of 
the Executive Directors and Alternate Executive Di
rectors appears on page 179. 

In addition to the duties described above, the 
Board of Executive Directors in 1990 considered and 
in several cases adopted important policies affecting 
the operations and procedures of the institution. 
Highlights included the following: 

• Financial Policies: The revision of the Bank's 
principal financial policies is of great importance 
given the economic changes that occurred during the 
1980s and the changes in the financial world in which 
the Bank operates. The objective of the revision 
initiated by the Board is to assure that the Bank 
provides its borrowing member countries the maxi
mum amount of resources at the minimum cost, while 
at the same time maintaining the financial soundness 
of the institution and its excellent credit rating in the 
world's capital markets. The financial policies under 
review include: liquidity policy, borrowing policy, 
currency selection, and investment policy. 

• Genera l Policy Applicable to Loan Opera
t ions for Sector Adjustment Programs: The Board 
of Executive Directors established general policy 
guidelines to govern and facilitate sector adjustment 
loans. The guidelines included grace periods, amor
tization periods, and procurement policies. 

• Genera l Guidelines for Loan Contracts 
for Sector Adjustment Loans: The Board approved 
general contract arrangements for sector loans con
sistent with the newly approved policy guidelines 
and the applicable general policies of the institution. 

• Revision of t he Genera l Studies for Bank 
Loan Contracts : The Board of Executive Directors 
updated the general procedures that are the basis of 
its loan contracts for operations using ordinary capital 
resources and resources from the Fund for Special 
Operations. 

• Technical Coopera t ion Agreement w i th 
t he United Nations Deve lopment P rog ramme: 
To facilitate the coordination of programs and tech
nical cooperation between the Bank and the United 
Nations Development Programme, the Board of Ex
ecutive Directors approved an agreement on joint 
operations and for cooperation between individual 
programs of the two institutions that benefit the Latin 
American and Caribbean countries. 
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CARTAGENA, COLOMBIA. Welder works on the installa
tion of a new oven for the Colclinkercement plant. About 
half of the $355 million plant expansion is being fi
nanced with funds from a $100 million 1988 IDB loan for 
an industrial credit program and by a complementary 
financing from fapan's ExportImport Bank adminis
tered by the IDB The new oven has electrostatic pre
cipitators to prevent cement dust from polluting the air. 

The Board of Executive Directors also approved 
important decisions aimed at making the Board's 
activities effective and responsive. In September of 
1990, the Board established an ad hoc committee to 
review its functions and procedures. In November of 
1990, the Board, acting on the recommendations of 
the ad hoc committee, voted to form two permanent 
committees, one to consider matters related to financial 
policies and auditing, and the other for the budget. 

EXTERNAL REVIEW AND EVALUATION OFFICE 

The External Review and Evaluation Office (ORE) is 
independent of the management of the Bank and 
performs evaluations at the direction of the Board of 
Executive Directors. The evaluations cover broad 
areas of lending activities and specific institutional 
issues. The recommendations resulting from these 
evaluations are presented for approval to the Board 
of Executive Directors and then to the management 
of the Bank for implementation. 

During 1990, four ORE evaluations were re

viewed by the Board of Executive Directors: 1) IDB 
Support of International Agricultural Research Cen

ters; 2) Monitoring of Projects During Execution; 3) 
Project Identification and Promotion in the IDB; and 
4) IDB's Planning and Programming System. Many of 
ORE's recommendations in these evaluations were 
endorsed by the Board of Executive Directors. 

In the report on agricultural research centers, 
ORE made a series of recommendations which would 
change the nature of Bank support for these centers. 
Previously, the Bank's contribution to the research 
centers was used exclusively to provide budgetary 
support for the centers. In the future, Bank support 
will also fund special programs that address particular 
needs of the Bank's borrowing member countries. 

In the report on monitoring of projects in 
execution, ORE recommended greater delegation of 
authority within the Bank, improved staff training, 
simplified reporting requirements and an improved 
computerized project execution information system. 
It was also suggested that more realistic timetables for 
project execution be developed during the design 
stage of project preparation. 

The report on project identification and promo

tion concluded that while there was no shortage of 
projects that could be financed there was a bottleneck 
in project preparation. The related report on planning 
and programming suggested the development of an 
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action plan detailing specific resource allocations and 
changes in programming and organization to achieve 
the Bank's goals. 

REORGANIZATION 

The reorganization of the Bank, which resulted from 
a thorough review of the Bank's role in the devel
opment process of Latin America and the Caribbean, 
gained significant impetus in 1990. The overall goals 
of the reorganization are to make the Bank more 
responsive to the critical issues confronting the re
gion. The efforts to implement effective programming 
and dialogue with member countries, the initiation of 
sector lending, the delegation of authority, the team 
approach to the project cycle, the greater use of the 
Country Offices, and the revitalization of the staff 
itself are part of a strategy to make the Bank more 
dynamic, efficient and involved in the development 
process in Latin America and the Caribbean, during 
the Seventh Replenishment period and beyond. 

The reorganization involves activities at several 
different levels and focuses more on how the Bank 
conducts business than on large-scale structural 
change. The underlying theses of the reorganization 
are to foster greater teamwork and to streamline and 
strengthen the procedures and processes affecting 
the project cycle and formulate more effective per
sonnel and staff development practices. While this 
cannot be completed in a single year, 1990 saw the 
beginnings of institutional change. An essential ele
ment concerns pipeline development by strengthen
ing the Bank's activity in project identification and 
development. The following summary highlights the 
new method. 

this strategy and country priorities are then identified 
for incorporation into the Bank's pipeline. A Count ry 
Team is responsible for the project throughout the 
identification stage. After conceptualization of the 
project idea, a Project Team is assigned responsi
bility for the development, negotiation, and execu
tion of the project. The Project Team is permanent 
and its members are responsible for the project 
throughout the remaining phase of development, 
negotiation, and execution. 

The Count ry and Project Teams pool the 
Bank's human resources at Headquarters and in the 
Country Offices in an intense way and on a perma
nent basis. The team concept is at the heart of the 
effort to make the Bank less bureaucratic and is a key 
element in the reorganization's goal of delegating 
authority. 

Structure 

In the context of structural change and strengthening, 
the Bank concentrated its efforts in implementing the 
structural reorganization approved toward the end of 
1989, which redefined and emphasized the role and 
functions of the various departments and strengthened 
or created new units to better carry out the mandates 
of the Seventh Replenishment, particularly country 
and regional programming, sector lending, the en
vironment, and microenterprise assistance. Important 
institutional and operational advances occurred in all 
of these areas. 

In this context, the role of the Country Offices 
was analyzed, their work fully incorporated into the 
project cycle, and an initial delegation of authority 
implemented. 

Project Cycle ROLE OF THE COUNTRY OFFICES 

The Bank in 1990 began changing the way it identifies, 
develops, and processes projects by establishing 
interdepartmental Count ry a n d Project Teams and 
charging them with the basic responsibility for the 
development of a pipeline of projects and the 
preparation, analysis, processing, and execution of 
individual operations. 

The initial phase of project identification is 
based on a programming exercise which includes a 
socioeconomic country analysis, policy dialogue, and 
culminates in agreement on a strategy and investment 
priorities with each country. Projects consistent with 

The Country Offices in each of the Bank's borrowing 
member countries support Bank efforts in the areas of 
project development and execution. Under the su
pervision of a Representative and a Deputy Repre
sentative, each Office is staffed with professionals 
who possess the technical skills needed to administer 
the portfolio of Bank-financed projects in each country. 

Under the Bank's reorganization, a working 
group was established to conduct a review of the 
Country Offices with the aim of strengthening the role 
of those offices in the Bank's activities. During 1990, 
the report of the working group was approved by the 
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Management of the Bank and submitted to the Board 
of Executive Directors for its information and com
ments. Management has begun implementing a 
number of the report's recommendations. 

One of the underlying theses of the report is that 
the Country Offices should have a more active role in 
defining the strategy and program of activities of the 
Bank in the borrowing member countries. Accord
ingly, the Country Offices are now contributing to the 
preparation of Country Programming Papers (CPPs) 
and Programming Mission Papers (PMPs), and are 
more active in the project identification and prepara
tion stages of the project cycle. Country Offices are 
now members of both Country and Project Teams. 

The most significant change, however, in the 
role of the Country Offices lies in the area of project 
administration. Much of the authority to grant modi
fications in project implementation, which formerly 
had to be approved by the Operations Manager at 
Headquarters, has now been decentralized and del
egated to the Country Offices. The authority to select 
and contract local consultants has also been delegated 
to the Country Offices, as have some activities related 
to the selection and hiring of international consultants. 
Administrative procedures and reporting requirements 
have also been simplified. 

PROGRAMMING AND POLICIES 

The Seventh Replenishment Agreement mandated 
that the Bank alter its programming of loan and 
technical cooperation activities. The Governors in
structed the Bank to strengthen its dialogue with its 
borrowing member countries in macro and sector 
analysis, identifying the constraints (social, structural, 
and economic) of the development process, and 
formulate more defined lending strategies for the 
countries. 

In 1990, the Bank began fulfilling that mandate. 
The Department of Plans and Programs (DPL) prepared 
five CPPs which set out strategy for the Bank's lending 
activities in five countries. The CPPs serve as the basis 
for dialogue in future programming missions to the 
countries. The strategies are based on the investment 
goals and priorities of the country and include an 
assessment of macroeconomic, sectoral, and institu
tional issues. 

A key element in the Bank's strategy dialogue 
with borrowing countries is the programming mis
sion. Policy dialogue is an integral ingredient of these 

missions because they help to identify sector policy 
issues that can be dealt with within the context of 
future sector adjustment loans. The missions are 
contributing to strengthening the Bank's pipeline of 
potential projects. In 1990, ten programming missions 
were carried out. An additional four missions were 
carried out to review the inventory of prospective 
projects. These missions, together with those that 
took place in 1989, have visited 18 of the Bank's 25 
borrowing countries. 

A series of internal IDB policy papers were 
produced to focus on the following issues: 1) Appli
cation of IDB's Interest Rate Policy on Sub-borrowers; 
2) Special Financing Modality for the Environment; 3) 
Forestry Policy; and 4) Natural Disasters. These 
papers, the product of inter-departmental working 
groups coordinated by DPL, are in various stages of 
review. 

OPERATIONS EVALUATION 
AND INTERNAL AUDIT 

The ex-post evaluation of completed projects pro
vides the benefit of experience in the formulation and 
design of new projects. These evaluations also pro
vide the basis for developing requirements for the 
borrower's own ex-post evaluation reports. 

The Operations Evaluation Office (OEO) of the 
Controller's Office coordinates the internal evaluation 
work. Projects under consideration for financing by 
the Bank are reviewed by OEO. This review is largely 
based on OEO's summaries of evaluations in a 
particular sector or subject. The summaries distill the 
results of a number of ex-post evaluation studies of 
individual projects and contain recommendations 
that either suggest new methods for accomplishing 
goals or reinforce existing Bank procedures. Summa
ries are subject to Bank-wide review before adoption. 
During I99O, OEO completed two summaries. 

• Rural Potable Water Supply Projects: The 
summary concluded that Bank activities in this sector 
have been largely positive but emphasized the im
portance of local participation in project preparation 
and execution to insure the successful operation and 
maintenance of potable water systems. It recom
mended encouraging women to serve on local water 
boards. In addition, projects should adopt an inte
grated approach to water supply, sanitation, and 
health issues; and an attempt should be made to 
recover investment costs through household connec-
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tion fees. The summary also suggested that the Bank 
should assist borrowers to develop low-cost tech
nologies in order to expand rural water system 
coverage to smaller villages. 

• Env i ronmen ta l P lann ing a n d Manage
m e n t for Water I m p o u n d m e n t Projects: The 
summary recommended that the Bank should con
tinue to require full-scale environmental impact as
sessments of large-scale water impoundment projects 
prior to project execution and that executing agencies 
should make the institutional arrangements necessary 
to monitor the project's environmental performance. 
The summary also suggested that integrated river 
basin planning be a part of project design when 
needed, and that measures be adopted to protect 
watershed areas surrounding reservoirs. It should be 
noted, as did the summary, that most of the projects 
that were reviewed were executed many years ago 
before environmental issues became a focal point for 
the Bank. Several of the recommendations within the 
summary serve to reinforce existing Bank practices. 

OEO produces two types of individual project 
evaluation studies. One of these, the Project Perfor
mance Review (PPR), measures the achievement of a 
project's physical objectives and the administrative, 
financial, and technical factors that influenced the 
outcome. The second type is the Operations Evalu
ation Report (OER), which covers the same points but 
also assesses the project's socioeconomic impact. 
During 1990, OEO completed five PPRs (three on the 
environmental impact of water impoundment projects 
and two on agricultural research and extension). Five 
completed OERs dealt with the results of industrial 
reactivation projects. 

Internal Audit 

The Office of the Auditor General is responsible for 
internal auditing and, as a service to Management, 
performs independent audit reviews of the financial, 
accounting, electronic data processing, operational, 
and administrative activities of the Bank. 

During 1990, major assignments included re
views in selected Country Offices, including review of 
the Bank's system of surveillance of ongoing loans as 
well as reviews of: the control aspects of several 
organizational and procedural changes being devel
oped and implemented with regard to delegating 
additional authority to the Country Offices; modifi
cations in delegating authority in the contracting of 

consultants and consulting firms; and several major 
computer applications under development. These 
reviews are designed to give an appropriate level of 
audit assurance and provide assistance to Management 
in effective discharge of its responsibilities for the 
control systems of the Bank and efficient resource 
utilization. 

ROLE OF THE SPECIAL OFFICE IN EUROPE 

The Bank's Special Office in Europe (SEO), located in 
Paris, fosters cooperation between the Bank and its 
non-regional member countries. In 1990, in order to 
enhance regular contact with non-regional govern
ments, informal consultations between the President 
of the Bank and representatives of governments were 
initiated. These meetings, which offered an important 
opportunity to discuss relevant issues, will be held 
annually prior to the Bank's Annual Meeting. 

SEO's responsibilities are divided into resource 
mobilization and outreach activities. It assists Head
quarters in three resource mobilization activities— 
official bilateral resources, official multilateral re
sources, and commercial bank resources. In the first 
area, SEO works with other Bank units to negotiate 
trust fund agreements with individual European 
member countries and project cofinancing arrange
ments with bilateral aid agencies. Efforts are under 
way to consult European governments regarding the 
creation of trust funds for financing short-term tech
nical cooperation operations. 

In the second area, SEO facilitated consultations 
between the Bank and the European Economic 
Community (EEC) during 1990 on a number of 
potential joint activities, including two proposed trust 
funds for small projects and EEC consultants. In the 
third area of resource mobilization, consultations 
were held in 1990 with European commercial banks 
on different modalities for possible joint activities. 

Outreach activities —including work with trade 
and business associations, academic and public policy 
institutions, and non-governmental organizations— 
constitutes the other primary function of SEO. In 
I99O, two major international conferences were held— 
the third IDB</'International Herald Tribune Confer
ence in London and the first IDB/OECD Development 
Centre Forum on Latin American Perspectives in 
Paris. Some 500 participants from banking, industry, 
diplomatic, and academic circles attended the con
ferences. 
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TABLE XVI. CONSOLIDATED ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Category 
1989 

Actual1 
1990 

Actual2 
1991 

Budget 

Board of Governors 
Annual Meeting 
Other Expenses 

Board of Executive Directors 
Personnel Costs 
Other Expenses 
External Review and 

Evaluation Office 

Headquarters 
Personnel Costs 
Other Expenses 
General Administrative Costs 

Field Offices 
Personnel Costs 
Other Expenses 
Institute for Latin American 

Integration (Net Expenses) 

Reimbursement from Funds 
under Administration and IIC 

839.1 
120.4 

5,095.5 
877.4 

1,159.8 

105,127.3 
13,380.0 
21,432.2 

30,229.7 
6,555.7 

793.6 

(4,353.9) 

661.1 
63.5 

6,250.1 
937.3 

1,238.5 

102,061.0 
21,773.8 
23,245.4 

30,8915 
7,351.9 

908.0 

(6,448.0) 

1,784.9 
220.3 

7,019.9 
895.0 

1,499.7 

120,135.6 
21,332.0 
25,616.1 

32,503.6 
9,814.6 

1,078.3 

(7,250.0) 

TOTAL «181,256.8 $188,934.1 8214,650.0 

Includes approximately $17.5 million in 1989 of expenses relating to the Special Employment Termination Program approved in December 1988. 
Excludes approximately $10.7 million in 1990 due to recognition of non-pension retirement benefits as an extraordinary expense and budgetary requirement. 

ADMINISTRATION 

Several steps were taken in 1990 to consolidate the 
process initiated in 1989 to reorganize and modernize 
the Bank. One of the most significant was in the area 
of budget preparation and administration. A Program 
Budgeting System, establishing a linkage between the 
operational activities of the Bank and the administrative 
budget required to carry them out, was introduced. 
This system involves the formulation of an annual 
three-year operational plan, which, once reviewed by 
the Board of Executive Directors, is used as the 
framework to develop departmental and inter-de
partmental programs, specifying the resources re
quired to produce the outputs necessary to accom
plish the established objectives. This approach results 
in the preparation of an administrative budget that 
reflects resource requirements by departments and 
programs, creates a decision-making and strategic 

planning instrument reflected by its multi-year plan
ning horizon, and provides the basis for greater inter
departmental coordination. 

The Bank's Administrative Budget for 1991 was 
authorized at $214.7 million in current dollars, an 
increase of $22.2 million or 11.5 percent, compared 
with the $192.5 million approved for 1990. This 
increase in real terms of 4.6 percent is required in 
order to muster the confluence of resources needed 
to fulfill the increased operational requirements set 
forth in the Seventh Replenishment. Total expendi
tures in 1990 ($188.9 million) represented 98 percent 
of the approved budget. In order to recognize ap
proximately $10.7 million of non-pension retirement 
benefits as an extraordinary expense, the 1990 budget 
was increased to a total of $199.7 million. Table XVI 
shows the consolidated administrative expenses for 
1989 and 1990, as well as the 1991 Administrative 
Budget. 
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Other highlights of the year included: 
• Implementation of Personnel Policies that 

had been revised in 1989-
• Introduction of a new merit pay system. 
• Development of new information systems 

supporting critical functions were continued within 
the framework of a comprehensive plan. Electronic 
mail interconnecting Headquarters and Country Of
fices was installed. 

At the end of 1990, the staff of the Bank 
(excluding the Board of Executive Directors, their 
staff, and the External Review and Evaluation Office, 
but including contractual services) totaled 1,742, of 
which 1,064 were professionals and 678 were ad
ministrative. These figures compare with a total of 
1,629—957 professionals and 672 administrative—at 
the end of 1989. 

At the end of 1990, women occupied 271 
professional positions, an increase of 10.6 percent 
over 1989 figures, reflecting continued progress in 
efforts to recruit and promote women professionals. 

HAINA, DOMINICAN REPUBLIC A $35.5 million 1985 
IDB loan helped to modernize and double the capacity 
of the Dominican Republic's main port of Haina near 
Santo Domingo. Increased efficiency has speeded up 
cargo handling, keeping shipping costs down. 
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LA LUfOSA, HONDURAS. Agronomists examine a new 
hybrid variety of sorghum being grown for seed at a 
government agricultural research station in southern 
Honduras. The center was one of four built with funds 
from a 1985 IDB loan that is financing a program to 
develop better seed and farm production methods and 
to get this technology to farmers through agricultural 
extension agents and demonstration plots. 

INTER-AMERICAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION 

In I99O, the Inter-American Investment Corporation 
(IIC) concluded its first full year of operations by 
approving 19 equity investments and loans totaling 
$66.1 million for 12 of its 24 borrowing member 
countries. A total of $11.8 million was approved for 
equity investments and $54.3 million in loans was 
approved. Ten of the 19 approvals were for the 
Corporation's A and B countries (more developed) 
and the balance for the C and D countries (less 
developed). The operations were approved for a 
variety of sectors and activities, including aquacul
ture, agribusiness, pulp and paper mills, mining, free 

trade zones, manufacturing, telecommunications, 
hotels, and microenterprise banking. The 1990 ap
provals compare with three operations totaling $6.3 
million approved in 1989-

The IIC was created to promote the economic 
development of its member countries in Latin America 
and the Caribbean by encouraging the establishment, 
expansion, and modernization of private enterprises, 
especially medium- and small-sized enterprises. It 
works directly with the private sector and neither 
seeks or requires government guarantees. Enterprises 
with partial share participation by government or 
other public entities whose activities strengthen the 
private sector of the economy are eligible for financ
ing by the Corporation. 

A more detailed review of the Corporation's 
activities in 1990 appears in its Fifth Annual Report, 
which is published separately. 

COOPERATION WITH OTHER ORGANIZATIONS 

The Bank in 1990 worked closely with other orga
nizations in several areas including cofinancing of 
investment programs and on more clearly defining its 
relationship to other development assistance agen
cies. 

Under the Seventh Replenishment Agreement, 
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the Bank was directed by the Board of Governors to 
cofinance its sector loans with the World Bank during 
the first two years of the 1990-93 Replenishment 
period. Accordingly, IDB and World Bank staff col
laborated closely on the six sector loans jointly 
financed by the institutions in 1990. 

During the year, the Bank hosted a number of 
meetings with the heads of regional integration 
entities on issues affecting the implementation of the 
Enterprise for the Americas initiative. These consulta
tions and conferences held with representatives of 
U.S. agencies responsible for the eventual implemen
tation of the program, focused on clarifying the 
feasibility of alternative approaches to the trade, debt, 
and private sector components of the program, and 
in updating participants on its policy implications. 

A new umbrella accord was signed in 1990 with 
the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP), 
complementing a 1978 IDB agreement to execute 
projects financed by the UNDP. Now, arrangements 
developed in recent years between the two organi
zations have been formalized, allowing for more 
complete utilization of UNDP expertise in the iden
tification, preparation, and execution of national and 
regional projects financed by the Bank. The agreement 
defines the priority areas of cooperation and estab
lishes operating procedures for implementation. 

PORT-AU-PRINCE, HAITI. The Continental Sewing fac
tory in the Port-au-Prince industrial park employs 300 
people and produces about 15,000 pieces of clothing a 
week for export to the United States. A $15 million IDB 
loan is financing construction of 25 factory shells and 
site services to double the size of the industrial park. 
The park has created about 10,000 jobs to date. 

As is customary on the occasion of the annual 
meetings of the International Monetary Fund and the 
World Bank held in Washington, the Bank hosted a 
meeting of the leaders of international and regional 
financial institutions and entities. The 1990 meeting 
focused on the respective policies, lending strategies 
and operational experiences of the organizations 
with respect to population, environment, women in 
development, and microenterprises. 
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PARTII 

PROJECTS 

Description of Projects 

This section contains for each borrowing member 
country a brief history of Bank activities in the 
country, a description of the loans, small projects, and 
technical cooperation authorized by the Bank in 1990 
from its various sources of funds and selected high
lights on progress made on projects financed in prior 
years. 

In December 1989, the Board of Executive 
Directors adopted a new methodology to calculate 
the Bank's lending rate on its ordinary capital loans. 
The new Pool Based Variable Lending Methodology 
permits the Bank to adjust quickly, efficiently, and in 
an equitable manner to rapidly changing market 
conditions. 

The new methodology will assist the Bank in 
strengthening its financial situation while providing 
resources to borrowers at the lowest possible cost. 

ORURO, BOLIVIA. More than 1,000 people were 
employed during 1990 on street paving and sew
age line construction projects in Oruro, a mining 
center hard hit by Bolivia's economic recession. 
IDB loans totaling $38.7 million have supported 
Bolivia's Emergency Social Fund, a public works 
program begun in 1987 to alleviate the impact of 
economic reforms on the country's low-income 
groups. 

Under this methodology, the lending rate is adjusted 
semi-annually, on January 1 and July 1, by adding a 
spread to the average cost of a pool of borrowings 
needed to finance new lending operations. 

The new methodology uniformly adjusts inter
est rate charges applicable to outstanding balances on 
all loans made under it, not solely to future dis
bursements as was the case under the previous 
methodology. Thus, consistent with the cooperative 
nature of the institution, all borrowers share equally 
the costs and benefits of changes in the lending rate. 

The lending rate derived under the previous 
methodology will continue to be applied to new 
disbursements of loans approved prior to January 1, 
1990. The rate, however, will be applied with a spread 
equivalent to that of the new methodology added to 
the borrowing cost of the prior year. The interest rate 
on all ordinary capital loans for the first six months of 
1990 was 8 percent. From July 1, 1990 through 
December 31,1990, the interest rate based on the new 
methodology was 8.05 percent on outstanding bal
ances and 8.31 percent on those loans whose lending 
rate was established under the previous methodology. 

Four loans approved in 1990 from the ordinary 
capital received a partial offset of interest from the 
Intermediate Financing Facility Account. Loans made 
from the ordinary capital in a member country's own 
currency carried an interest rate of 3 or 4 percent, 
depending on the nature of the project. Loans extended 
from the ordinary capital during 1990 were made for 
terms ranging from 15 to 25 years. 

The rates of interest charged on loans extended 
from the Fund for Special Operations varied from 1 to 
4 percent, depending on the stage of development of 
the country and the nature of the project, with grace 
periods ranging from 5 to 10 years. For the less 
developed member countries, the rate of interest was 
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1 percent during the first 10 years and 2 percent 
subsequently. Maturities varied from 30 to 40 years. 

Loans not extended directly to the governments 
of the member countries carried guarantees of the 
government or governmental agency. 

The financings for small projects described in 
this section were extended in local currency for up to 
40 years, with grace periods of up to 10 years. A 
commission of 1 percent was charged on the financings, 
which need not be guaranteed. 

Technical cooperation is extended on a grant or 
contingent recovery basis. Contingent repayment 
cooperation, which represents a small amount of the 
total, is subject to repayment only if, as a result of the 
cooperation, a loan is made subsequently by the 
Bank or another external financial institution for the 
execution of a project or program. 

Table XVII shows export financing approvals 
for 1990. 

TABLE XVII. EXPORT FINANCING PROGRAM, 1990 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Country Loans Approved Recoveries Total 

Argentina 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Jamaica 
Mexico 
Trinidad and Tobago 

£2,000 $11,590 
6,091 
8,200 

12,000 
2,177 

15,000 
772 

7,500 
3,100 
2,128 

$13,590 
6,091 
8,200 

12,000 
2,177 

15,000 
772 

7,500 
3,100 
2,128 

TOTAL S2.000 S68.558 S70.558 

All figures, including the number of loans, total lending and 
disbursements in the introductory paragraphs in each country, are 
as of December 31, 1990. Cumulative loan totals are net of 
cancellations and after exchange adjustments. 

KEY TO ABBREVIATIONS USED 
IN PROfECT DESCRIPTIONS 

The following abbreviations are used in the country-by-
country descriptions of loans, Small Project financings, 
and technical cooperation operations. 

OC Ordinary Capital 
FSO Fund for Special Operations 
SPTF Social Progress Trust Fund 
IFF Intermediate Financing Facility 
VTF Venezuelan Trust Fund 
JSF Japan Special Fund 
CF Canadian Project Preparation Fund 
SWF Technical Cooperation 

and Small Projects Swiss Fund 
JVF Norwegian Development Fund 
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ARGENTINA 

The Bank has made 129 loans totaling $ 4,407.6 
mill ion to Argentina. Sector emphasis has been 
o n energy, agriculture and fisheries, environ
mental and public health, industry and mining, 
and transportation and communications. Cu
mulative disbursements total $3,677.3 million. 
In 1990, the Bank approved one Small Project 
financing and an increase of $2 million in a 
revolving line of credit from the ordinary capital 
for export credits. In addition, the use of a 
previous line of credit for export financing was 
extended. 

FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Support for Microentrepreneurs in Córdoba 

A $500,000 loan from the FSO will be used by the 
private non-profit entity, Fundación Banco de la 
Provincia de Córdoba (FUNDA), to provide credit and 
training to microproducers in eight urban areas of the 
Province of Córdoba. FUNDA received an earlier 
Bank financing in 1982 that provided assistance for its 
Rural Youth Promotion Program. The current financ
ing will help create a new program aimed at microen
trepreneurs of all ages engaged in producing goods 
or providing services. Approximately 400 microentre
preneurs are expected to participate in the program 
and are engaged in activities such as cabinet making, 
tailoring, auto mechanics, silversmiths, carpentry, 
and small agrofood businesses. FUNDA is particularly 
eager to increase the participation of women in the 
program and expects to assign a staff member to work 
on promotional efforts aimed at women. Technical 
cooperation funds totaling $85,000 will be used to 
strengthen FUNDA s program and provide support for 
national and regional promotional activities aimed at 
sharing FUNDA's experience with other organiza
tions. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Urugua-i Hydroelectr ic Plant: The hydroelectric 
project in Misiones Province on the Urugua-i River, 

YEARL Y LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 
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which was financed by $66 million in Bank loans was 
completed in 1990. The 120,000-kilowatt installation 
was supported by a $54 million loan from the OC and 
a $12 million loan from the FSO, both approved in 
1982. In addition to the rolled compacted concrete 
dam, the loans financed the project's transmission 
lines and expanded the substation at El Dorado. The 
hydroelectric center is located 36 kilometers south of 
the Iguazú Falls and 6 kilometers north of the 
confluence of the Urugua-i and Paraná Rivers. The 
project has been put through its test phase and work 
is proceeding on its control and communications 
system. The Argentine Government continues to 
monitor the environmental aspects of the project, 
particularly those relating to wildlife. 

One of the least developed provinces, Misiones 
is wedged between Paraguay and Brazil in the 
northeast. Agriculture and forestry are its economic 
mainstays. The project will increase low-cost power 
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NEUQUEN PROVINCE, ARGEN
TINA. Water committee mem
bers in Plottier check construc
tion of their town's new potable 
water system. A 1981 IDB loan 
financed the construction of 
water systems for 150 rural 
towns in Argentina. All are op
erated by locally elected water 
committees. 

supplies to people who live in Misiones, and who, 
owing to their remote location from centers of pro
duction, pay the highest electric rates in the country. 

Rural Potable Water Supply Systems: The fourth 
stage of Argentina's program to install potable water 
systems in rural areas was completed in 1990 with the 
help of two Bank loans totaling $53-2 million ap
proved in 1981. As a result, about 500,000 people in 
rural and semi-urban areas now have access to clean 
water, mainly through household connections. 

The $35.7 million loan from the OC and the 
$17.5 million loan from the FSO were used to build 
catchment works, treatment facilities, pipelines, storage 
systems, and household connections, as well as for 
institutional strengthening activities mainly devoted 
to training. Although about S4 million of the two Bank 
loans were cancelled, 150 water systems were installed, 
which is within the range planned. 

Although more than half of Argentina's popula
tion had access to potable water systems in the early 

1980s, only 7 percent of the people living in rural or 
semi-urban communities enjoyed such services. The 
Bank supported the previous three stages of Argentina's 
rural water program with loans totaling $69 million. 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-90 
(in Thousands of I '.S. Dollars) 
Sector Amount 

Total Cost of 
the Projects 

Energy $1,824355 S 4.634.093 
Agriculture and Fisheries 708,045 3,140,401 
Environmental and Public Health 467,711 1,176,187 
Industry and Mining 464388 2,011,538 
Transportation and Communications 369,565 941,904 
Education. Science and Technology 271,233 673,641 
Urban Development 165.049 401,000 
Expon Financing 133.846 155,764 
Preinvestment 3.360 9,473 

Total S4.40",.552 S13.144,001 
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BAHAMAS 

The Bank has made four loans totaling $122.1 
mill ion to The Bahamas. Sector emphasis has 
been o n energy. Cumulative disbursements total 
$30.6 million. In 1990, the Bank approved one 
technical cooperation from the Japan Special 
Fund. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Studies for Marine Cargo Terminal 

A $2 million nonreimbursable financing from the 
Japan Special Fund will be used to carry out feasibility, 
environmental, and engineering studies for a marine 
cargo terminal at Clifton Point on New Providence 
Island. The project will be carried out by the Ministry 
of Transport and Local Government. New Providence 
is the most populated island of the archipelago of The 
Bahamas. The country's capital, Nassau, is on the 
north coast of the island. A little over half of the 
tourists that vacation in The Bahamas visit Nassau and 
half of those arrive by ship. Nassau Harbor handles 
both cruise and cargo ships. A major extension of the 
existing dock works is under way to facilitate in
creased cruise ship capacity. In order to help alleviate 
the congested dock areas and adjacent streets, the 
Government has decided to construct a new marine 
cargo terminal outside of Nassau Harbor. Clifton 
Point, on the western tip of the island, has been 
identified as the best site for a new terminal. 

foreign exchange earner and employs about 40 
percent of the labor force. Agriculture and fishing 
offer great untapped potential. Consisting mainly of 
small-scale producers, together they account for 
about 5 percent of GDP and more than 5 percent of 
total employment. Still, The Bahamas imports about 
80 percent of its food. Manufacturing represents 
about 10 percent of the GDP. Under the program 
supported by the Bank's loan, BhDB has extended 36 
loans valued at $2.5 million. BhDB has finalized a 
contract with a consultant to strengthen BhDB's 
management information systems and project ap
praisal techniques. BhDB was established in 1978 to 
channel credit and technical assistance to small-scale 
investors in the country. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHT 

Multisector Credit P rogram: The Bank in 1988 
approved a $6 million loan from the OC for a credit 
program to support the development of three sectors 
of particular importance to the Bahamian economy. 
The loan supports a program carried out by the 
Bahamas Development Bank (BhDB) to provide 
credits to private enterprises in tourism, agriculture 
and fishing, and manufacturing. Of these, tourism is 
the most important, because it is the country's leading 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1977-90 
(In Thousands of U.S. Dollars) 
Sector Amount 

Energy 
Agriculture and Fisheries 
Industry and Mining 
Tourism 
Other 

Total 

$109,904 
8,612 
1,535 

510 
1.535 

S122.096 

Total Cost of 
the Projects 

$181.666 
11,365 
2,500 

830 
2,500 

S198.861 
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BARBADOS 

The Bank has made 27 loans totaling $157.7 
mill ion to Barbados. Sector emphasis has been 
o n transportation, education, public health, 
export financing, and agriculture. Cumulative 
disbursements total $131.4 million. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Educat ion a n d Tra in ing System: In 1986, the Bank 
approved a $19 million loan from the OC to expand 
and improve primary, secondary, and vocational 
education and training in Barbados. The project is 
consolidating 21 small primary schools into 10 larger 
schools, building a 1,200-student secondary school, 
equipping and upgrading three other secondary 
schools, and upgrading a polytechnic school. Although 
the project encountered early delays, the pace of 
work has picked up considerably this year, with 
overall progress on the order of 55 percent. Four 
primary schools are finished, two of which have been 
inaugurated; and Queen's College, a secondary school, 
was inaugurated in 1990. Another secondary school 
at Wooton-Kingsland is more than 50 percent com
plete. Construction at various stages continues on the 
remaining schools. 

Hospi ta l Expans ion : Construction and equipping 
of the Glebe polyclinic in St. George and the improve
ment and expansion of the Queen Elizabeth Hospital 
in Bridgetown are finished, except for the hospital's 
obstetrics and gynecology (OB-GYN) wards. The 
need to complete and commission five operating 
theaters delayed the OB-GYN wards, but refurbishing 
has started. The late arrival of equipment and a 
shortage of medical staff earlier in the year delayed 
opening the main extension building and the new 
accident and emergency building. Two new five-
story blocks of the 541-bed health care facility were 
partially financed by Bank loans totaling $11.7 mil
lion—$7 million from the FSO and $4.7 million from 
the OC. Once fully operational, the additions will 
increase surgical capacity by 20 percent, in-patient 
capacity of the children's intensive care ward by 70 
percent, orthopedic ward capacity by 60 percent, and 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 
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the capacity of the OB-GYN ward by 50 percent. The 
polyclinic in St. George can handle 100 consultations 
per day. 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1969-
(In Tljonsands of U.S. Dollars) 

90 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 
the Projects 

Transportation and Communications $ 40,451 $ Ó9.69"7 

Education, Science and Technology 36.035 71,762 
Environmental and Public Health 27,608 44,637 
Agriculture and Fisheries 17,134 26,975 
Export Financing 17,077 24,224 
Tourism 7,944 14,813 
Industry and Mining 6,671 12.613 
Preinvestment 4,700 7300 
Total 5157,620 S2^2.021 
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BOLIVIA 

The Bank has made 95 loans totaling $1,752.6 
mill ion to Bolivia. Sector emphasis has been o n 
energy, transportation and communications, 
agriculture, and industry and mining. Cumula
tive disbursements total $ 1,166.9 million. In 1990, 
the Bank approved four loans for three projects, 
one major technical cooperation and extended 
the use of a line of credit for export financing. 

LOANS 

Electric Energy Generation, Transmission, and 
Distribution 

Financing: 
Executing 
Agencies: 

$80 million from the OC 

Empresa Nacional de Electricidad 
(ENDE), Empresa de Luz y Fuerza 
Eléctrica de Cochabamba (ELFEC), 
Cooperativa Rural de Electrificación 
(CRE), and Yacimientos Petrolíferos 
Fiscales Bolivianos 

YEARL Y LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 

300 

250 

200 

150 

100 

50 

81 82 83 84 85 86 87 88 89 90 

Yearly Lending 

Yearly Disbursements 

This loan will help finance an electric energy gen
eration, transmission, and distribution program. The 
program will meet the increased demand for electric
ity, reduce electric-energy losses, improve the reliability 
and quality of electric-power service, and strengthen 
the executing agencies. The program includes: 

• Generat ion. This component involves pro
curement, installation, and start-up of gas turbines in 
Cochabamba, Santa Cruz, and Sucre, cities that form 
points of a triangle across central and eastern Bolivia, 
southeast of La Paz, and in Tarija, located in the south 
near the border with Argentina; and one diesel engine 
in Trinidad, in the northern part of the country, not far 
from the border with Brazil. This component also 
covers the civil works required for the various gen
erating plants and expansion of natural gas supply 
facilities for the new plants at Sucre and Cochabamba. 

• Transmiss ion . This component provides 
equipment and materials, as well as construction and 
installation services, for the 230-kilovolt transmission 
lines linking three substations (Corani, Valle Hermoso, 

and Vinto) separated by 192 kilometers, and expan
sion of the corresponding terminal substations. In 
addition, a substation will be constructed at Senkata, 
the operating voltage of the transmission line linking 
Senkata and Vinto will be upgraded, and banks of 69-
and 115-kilovolt capacitors will be installed at the 
Catavi, Vinto, Potosi, and Kenko substations. 

• Distr ibut ion. Power distribution stations at 
Cochabamba and Santa Cruz will be expanded, 
remodeled, and re-equipped under this part of the 
program. Included is the remodeling and expansion 
of 11 substations, together with the installation of 22 
kilometers of 69- and 115-kilovolt subtransmission 
lines, 278 kilometers of primary lines, and 755 kilome
ters of secondary distribution lines. 

• General Facilities a n d Inst i tut ional Sup
por t . Equipment and systems to monitor and control 
the overall communications and computer network 
will be installed. Steps will be taken to provide 
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institutional support to strengthen and increase the 
planning capacities of two of the program's executing 
agencies, ELFEC and CRE. 

Credit for Urban Development and Sanitation 

Financing: $40 million from the OC and $20 million 
from the FSO; $33 million technical 
cooperation grant from the FSO 

Executing 
Agency: Fondo Nacional de Desarrollo Regional 

(FNDR) 

These loans will improve physical infrastructure and 
coverage of basic public services at the local and 
municipal levels, while strengthening institutions at 
all levels of government responsible for administer
ing these services. FNDRv/iW lend the resources through 
regional development corporations to municipalities 
and local governments. The program consists of the 
following components: 

• Resources in the credit component will finance 
infrastructure works for city governments, autono
mous municipal services, public utility cooperatives, 
and private and semi-private utilities. Projects consid
ered for financing will include water supply, sewer
age, solid waste disposal, drainage, urban and inter-
urban roads, bridges, markets, energy, and bus 
terminals. The program will also establish property 
record systems primarily for tax purposes. 

• The institutional strengthening component 
will focus on organizations carrying out the program. 
Besides FNDR, it is estimated that nine regional 
development corporations, nine municipal adminis
trations in departmental capitals and El Alto, and 12 
public utilities will be strengthened. Funds are ear
marked for technical assistance, training, equipment 
and materials, and payment for consultant services. 
Beneficiary organizations will receive nonreimbursable 
transfers to pay for strengthening services. The trans
fers must be used before the local organization would 
be eligible for credit to finance infrastructure works. 

The technical cooperation grant paralleling the 
loan will strengthen central government agencies 
with regulatory responsibilities as well as institutions 
connected with regional and urban development. 
These include the National Tariffs Council, National 
Property Records Directorate, the Water and Sewer
age Service Company, and the Ministry of Planning 

and Coordination's unit responsible for privatization 
of regional utilities. 

Although they are significantly different, the 
municipalities of the departmental capitals and of El 
Alto share a number of deficiencies that this program 
will address. Besides inadequate infrastructure, they 
range from outdated or nonexistent property records 
and municipal planning systems to deficient financial 
and administrative information systems and person
nel management. The project is designed to improve 
the quality of life at the local level and prepare the 
way to decentralize public services. 

The Patacamaya-Tambo Quemado Road 

Financing: $50.9 million from the FSO 
Executing 
Agency: Servicio Nacional de Caminos 

This loan will finance construction of a major east-
west highway providing a secure, rapid, and eco
nomic route for goods to and from the Pacific coast. 
A paved road, the project's major component, will 
stretch 193 kilometers westward from Patacamaya, on 
the Pan American Highway, to Tambo Quemado at 
the Chilean border. There, it will join an existing all-
weather road leading to the Pacific port of Arica. 
Besides reducing the cost of doing business abroad, 
the road represents one leg of a larger program to 
provide a well functioning foreign trade corridor to 
the Atlantic and Pacific oceans by 1992-93-

Other project components include the building 
and repair of road maintenance facilities, purchase of 
spare parts for equipment and machinery used to 
maintain Bolivia's highway system, and implementa
tion of an environmental program. Because the road 
passes through the southern side of the Sajama 
National Park, the loan will also finance a long-term 
environmental management plan for the park. In 
addition, programs will be put into effect to guard the 
environmental integrity of the park's flora and fauna 
and protect the archaeological and cultural property 
located in areas affected by the project. 

Bolivia, a land-locked country, is separated 
from ports on the Pacific and Atlantic oceans by long 
distances and difficult terrain. The country's ability to 
maintain and increase its competitiveness in world 
markets is critical, especially for its mineral and 
agricultural exports. And it must be able to import 
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essential goods and services at reasonable cost. 
Hence, secure and efficient routes and transportation 
services accessing seaports are essential. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Support for Customs Bureau 

A $950,000 nonreimbursable financing from the FSO 
will be used by the Customs Bureau to install systems 
for more effective control over the entry of merchan
dise, increasing collections from customs duties. The 
program calls for the design and implementation of 
an import control data system. A set of legal, norma
tive, administrative, operational, procedural, and staff 
recommendations will help the Customs Bureau 
monitor, control, and collect duties. 

which the recent loan complements. The Govern
ment created the ESF during the severe economic 
crisis of the mid-1980s to provide financing for small-
scale projects throughout the country, which could be 
carried out quickly. The loan activities include public-
works, such as street improvements, bridge building, 
community facilities, dikes, schools, and primary 
health care facilities. Environmental work such as 
forestation and erosion control measures was also 
included. By the beginning of 1990, 27,000 people 
were working on projects financed by the ESF. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Agricultural and Agroindustrial Credit Program: 
A Bank loan approved in 1986 from the OC for $100 
million to support a credit program is helping farmers 
increase production. Under the program 3,095 subloans 
have financed fixed and working capital investments 
to establish, expand, diversify, and modernize agri
cultural and agroindustrial enterprises. The loan, 
which is 99 percent disbursed, was directed through 
the central bank and was channeled to producers 
through the national banking system. Part of the loan 
strengthened the central bank in accounting and 
financial control; credit supervision, follow-up, and 
control; project evaluation; and in the use of a data 
processing system. The program is consistent with 
Bolivia's development plan for 1986-89 that called for 
a rapid expansion of farm productivity to increase 
food production both for the domestic market and for 
export. In 1989, the Bank approved additional financ
ing of $51.2 million from the FSO to continue the 
successful program. 

Emergency Social Fund II: Thirteen months after its 
approval by the Bank, a $34.7 million loan from the 
FSO to Bolivia's Emergency Social Fund (ESF) is 
almost entirely committed to a wide range of small, 
labor-intensive projects designed to blunt the effect of 
the economic crisis on low-income groups. The Bank 
has financed the ESF since 1987 when it approved a 
$4 million loan from the Social Progress Trust Fund, 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-90 
(In fljottsands of I '.S. Dollars) 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 
the Projects 

Energy J 534.111 í 839.208 
Transportation and Communications 478,799 802."92 
Agriculture and Fisheries 2 0 " 3 9 365.450 
industry and Mining 200.186 402.243 
Environmental and Public Health 124.252 181.968 
Export Financing 22.658 10.584 
Tourism 19,045 30.134 
Preinvestment 17,751 23.604 
Education. Science and Technology 11.928 23,533 
Urban Development 11,428 19,164 
Other 58.680 103,540 

Total S 1 .^52 .5" S2.802.220 
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BRAZIL 

The Bank has made 198 loans totaling $7 ,4399 
million to Brazil. Sector emphasis has been o n 
energy, transportation and communications, 
industry and mining, agriculture and fisheries, 
and public health. Cumulative disbursements 
total $6,144.6 million. In 1990, the Bank approved 
two loans for two projects and extended the use 
of a l ine of credit for export financing. 

LOANS 

Multisector Lending Program 

Financing: $250 million from the OC 
Executing 
Agency: Banco Nacional de Desenvolvimento 

Económico e Social (BNDES) 

This loan will support development of the Brazilian 
productive sector by providing resources for subloans 
to private enterprises for fixed assets in all sectors and 
working capital in the agricultural sector. Individual 
enterprises as well as producers' associations in all 
sectors and cooperatives will be eligible for the 
resources, 55 percent of which BNDES will channel 
through financial institutions, including commercial 
and investment banks, all of which must meet rigorous 
eligibility criteria to participate. The banking sector's 
involvement in the program will promote its role as 
an agent of economic development. 

The program will expand, modernize, and di

versify private sector activities in industry, transport, 
storage, telecommunications, energy, social infra

structure, agriculture, technological development, 
and the environment. As such, it dovetails with 
Brazil's Economic Stabilization Plan, or Collor Plan, 
adopted early in 1990, which relies on the private 
sector as the principal agent of economic develop

ment and, which seeks to increase exports. 
Individual subloans are capped at $20 million, 

and program resources may be used to purchase 
machinery, equipment, and services. Loans supporting 
fixed investments will be made for a period of 12 
years including a grace period of two years. Working 
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capital is supported by loans repayable in three years, 
including a oneyear grace period. 

Segredo Hydroelectric Project 

Financing: $135 million from the OC 
Executing 
Agency: Companhia Paranaense de Energia 

Elétrica (COPEL) 

This loan will help build the first phase of the 945,000

kilowatt Segredo hydroelectric power plant on the 
Iguazú River in southern Brazil. The project will boost 
the generating capacity of COPEL, so that it can ac

commodate the anticipated increase in demand for 
electric power in the State of Paraná and in the 
southern, southeastern, and midwestern parts of the 
country, with which Parana's electricity system is 
interconnected. 
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IGARASSU, BRAZIL Motogear 
Norte gear factory near Recife 
in northeast Brazil purchased 
machinery from fapan and 
Germany in 1981 and 1985 with 
loans totaling $L 7 million from 
two IDBfinanced credit pro
grams for industry in north
east Brazil Thefactory employs 
525 people and produces 36 
million sets of tractor and mo
torcycle gears ayear. Motogear 
is a Brazilianf apáñese joint 
venture private enterprise. 

The hydroelectric power plant includes a dam, 
spillway, powerhouse, and associated structures. The 
powerhouse's final capacity will be four 315,000

kilowatt generating units, with three installed in this 
phase. The project also includes river diversion and 
intake works as well as a 500kilovolt transmission 
line almost 2 kilometers in length, running from the 
power plant to the existing transmission system. The 
dam will be a compacted rockfill structure about 720 
meters wide at the crest and 145 meters high, forming 
a reservoir of about 84 square kilometers. 

Energy has been one of Brazil's most important 
sectors for economic progress since the 1950s when 
industrialization accelerated rapidly. Brazil has abun

dant energy resources and one of the highest hydro

electric energy potentials in the world. This project 
will tap into that potential helping to meet demand for 
electric power, which has grown rapidly, particularly 
in the southern part of the country. In the State of 

Paraná, which COPEL supplies, the number of con

sumers more than doubled during 197888 from 
about 850,000 to about 1.8 million. 

The project's environmental impact is expected 
to be limited. However, the project includes a pro

gram for monitoring the effect on the environment 
and area inhabitants as work progresses. 

The Bank has financed three previous COPEL 
projects with four loans totaling $118 million. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Itaipti Transmiss ion System: A $122 million loan 
approved by the Bank in 1986 from the OC has 
supported construction of three sections of single

circuit, 750kilovolt lines at the Itaipú hydroelectric 
plant, effectively expanding the transmission capacity 
oí the alternating current system. Now 97 percent 
complete, the Bankfunded portion of the project 
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comprises 900 kilometers of lines running between 
substations at Itaipú, Ivaiporá, Itaberá, and Tijuco 
Preto. The only unfinished part, the 345-kilovolt lines 
leading from the substation at Tijuco Preto, is ex
pected to be completed by early 1991- The plant is 
located on the Paraná River between Brazil and 
Paraguay, and is a joint undertaking of the two 
countries. Under the terms of a management treaty, 
the two countries will share equally the anticipated 
capacity output of 12.6 million kilowatts, and each 
has the right to purchase the energy not used by the 
other. The project is increasing reliable transmission 
capacity to the southern-southeastern-central and 
western interconnected systems of Brazil. 

meters to the campuses, is almost half finished. Loan 
funds are also being used to upgrade the university's 
libraries and laboratories through the purchase of 
some $10 million in new equipment, books, and 
furniture. Another program component involves the 
training of 145 professors abroad at the postgraduate 
level, arranging for visiting professors, and training 
administrative staff. 

Indust r ia l Credit Program: More than half of a $100 
million loan from the Bank's OC has been committed 
to medium- and long-term credits to finance priority 
industrial development projects in Brazil's Northeast. 
Approved in 1987, the loan supports the fifth stage of 
a long-term Government effort to boost investments 
in the nine-state Northeast by offering credit and tax 
incentives to industries moving to the area. This latest 
loan brings to $306 million the amount that the Bank 
has lent over the past 30 years to help spur economic 
growth in the area. Total credit commitments to sub-
borrowers in the program have reached $254.7 mil
lion, of which $56.2 million comes from the Bank 
loan. Textile enterprises have received the largest 
percentage of loans (54 percent), followed by plastics 
at 17 percent, and metals at 16.9 percent. Efforts to 
reverse the Northeast's economic decline have started 
paying dividends. Not only has the industrial sector 
there grown faster than Brazil's national average, but 
the per capita income of its residents has quadrupled 
in the past 30 years. 

Universi ty of São Paulo Development : In 1987 the 
Bank approved a loan of $63-2 million from the OC 
to help improve and expand the University of São 
Paulo, which educates a large number of the profes
sionals responsible for Brazil's economic, technical, 
and scientific progress. The program aims to develop 
and advance basic and applied research; improve the 
skills of teachers, particularly at the postgraduate 
level; and more closely match faculty training to the 
needs of scientific and technological development. 

The construction component of the program, 
which involves remodeling and adding 181,000 square 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-90 
(In Tljonsands of U.S. Dollars) 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 
the Projects 

Energy $2,210.802 $12,933,601 
industry and Mining 1.530.651 15"80.O3O 
Transportation and Communications 1,317,628 3.4Ó3.005 
Agriculture and Fisheries 892,053 1.989.042 
Environmental and Public Health 618,392 1,781,232 
Education, Science and Technology 402,299 967,469 
Export Financing 252,922 340,885 
Urban Development 139,022 381,619 
Preinvestment 76,103 150,377 

Total 87,439,872 S37.787.260 
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CHLLE 

The Bank has made 105 loans totaling $4,018.1 
mill ion to Chile. Sector emphasis has been on 
energy, agriculture and fisheries, transportation 
and communications, industry and mining, and 
urban development. Cumulative disbursements 
total $3,083.6 million. In 1990, the Bank approved 
one loan for one project. 

LOAN 

Highway Improvement Program 

Financing: $246 million from the OC; and 
cofinancing of $224 million from the 
International Bank for Reconstruction 
and Development 

Executing 
Agency: Ministry of Public Works 

This loan will expand, rehabilitate, and maintain 
Chile's highway system, relieving the serious traffic 
congestion that hampers efficient transportation. The 
program includes the following components: 

• Inves tment . Expansion works will be done 
on 156 kilometers of the North-South Highway and 
connecting east-west roads, including bridges. In 
addition, 13 major bridges will be repaired or re
placed. The loan will fund a full range of road 
construction, including reconstruction or reinforce
ment of worn out pavement, upgrading of dirt roads 
to graveled roads, paving of graveled roads, upgrad
ing or construction of drainage works, bypasses, 
underpasses, guard rails, signals, and capacity ex
pansion at key sections of the trunk network. 

• M a i n t e n a n c e . Periodic maintenance fi
nanced by the loan will include sealing and recapping 
treated roadways and shoulders, regraveling unpaved 
roads, and repairs to drainage works, culverts, and 
bridges. Resources will be used to maintain Chile's 
basic network of about 23,000 kilometers of roads 
and 32,000 kilometers of communal roads. Routine 
maintenance of paved and unpaved roads, including 
cleaning drains, ditches, and sewers, and preserving 

YEARL Y LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 
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conditions of tunnels, toll booths, weigh stations, 
road markings, and highway signs will also be project 
components. 

• Training. Courses, seminars, and studies 
will upgrade the skills of people involved in main
tenance. The training component will benefit about 
3,400 professionals, technicians, and administrators; 
train highway instructors; and finance study abroad 
for about 45 managers and professionals from the 
executing agency. 

Because Chile is geographically long and nar
row, its transportation system has developed along a 
central trunk axis with east-west routes branching off 
to mountains and ports. Transport, especially by 
road, is a key factor in developing the economy. 
Almost 70 percent of freight and passenger transport 
is by highway. As a result of Chile's economic crisis 
in the early 1970s, spending on highway maintenance 
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and improvements fell short of the needs. A survey of 
76,000 kilometers of Chile's road network classified 
30 percent of the roads in very poor condition; 28 
percent as poor; 32 percent as average; and 10 
percent, good. This, together with earthquake and 
flooding damage, led to rapid deterioration of the 
roads, especially in the central part of the country 
where most of the GDP is generated. 

allotted one. Families erect the rest of their shelters 
around the caseta. When the loan was conceived, the 
program aimed to provide new communities for 
30,000 families and to upgrade neighborhoods for 
14,000 families. In fact, 33,281 families are now settled 
in new neighborhoods and 14,503 now live in up
graded communities. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Multisector Global Credit Program: In 1989 the 
Bank approved a $360 million loan from the OC to 
support a program aimed at offsetting a serious lack 
of medium- and long-term investment capital for the 
private sector. The loan has channeled $72 million 
into Chile's financial system to be lent to private 
companies for investment in all productive sectors of 
the economy. The program's resources are helping to 
finance fixed assets in all eligible sectors and working 
capital in the agricultural sector. Development of 
capital markets is also being promoted, not only 
because the program is making long-term resources 
available, but because it is supporting the issuance of 
debt instruments by banks and leasing companies. 

Urban I m p r o v e m e n t Program: In 1986 the Bank 
approved a $40.5 million loan to support a program 
to improve conditions for families living in extreme 
poverty. Estimated in 1986 to number 300,000, these 
families live in marginal or improvised housing, some 
lacking very basic services. The program is the 
second stage of Chile's successful neighborhood 
improvement and sites-and-services program, also 
supported by a Bank loan. It targets low-income 
families in squatter settlements with more than 3,000 
inhabitants. Disbursement of the loan supporting the 
second stage was significantly ahead of schedule as 
it neared the middle of its fourth year. Work was 96.5 
percent complete and disbursements stood at 97 
percent. Because of unanticipated savings more fami
lies have been served by the program than was 
originally expected. 

There are two types of projects in the program. 
The first builds new communities with the necessary 
services; the second upgrades existing neighbor
hoods. At the heart of both types is the construction 
of casetas sanitarias, small brick buildings that con
tain a bathroom and cooking area. Each family is 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-90 
(In 'Ihoitsands of U.S. Dollars) 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 
the Projects 

Energy $1,027,320 $2.838,121 
Transportation and Communications 723,994 1,745,575 
Agriculture and Fisheries 722.514 1,399,132 
Industry and Mining 667,980 1,263,845 
Urban Development 579,554 981,203 
Environmental and Public Health 223,996 429,4"74 
Tourism 36,862 3^,158 
Education, Science and Technology 28.999 75,767 
Export Financing 3,85"" 5.510 
Preinvestment 3.000 6,514 

Total S4.018.076 «8,782,299 
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COLOMBIA 

The Bank has made 140 loans totaling $4,474.2 
mill ion to Colombia. Sector emphasis has been 
o n energy, environmental and public health, 
agriculture and fisheries, and urban develop
ment. Cumulative disbursements total $3,192.5 
million. In 1990, the Bank approved five loans 
for four projects, and one Small Project financ
ing. 

LOANS 

Program for Public Sector Reform 

Financing: 

Executing 
Agency: 

$300 million from the OC and reimburs
able technical cooperation funding of 
$5 million from the OC; and cofinancing 
of $304 million from the International 
Bank for Reconstruction and Develop
ment 

Ministry of Finance and Public Credit 

This loan will support policy reforms to make the 
public sector more efficient and productive, while 
developing the private sector. The reforms supported 
by this quick-disbursing loan are important to the 
success of Colombia's new economic strategy, which 
is based on expanding exports, opening the economy 
to competition, increasing the efficiency of the public 
sector, and increasing investment and productivity. 

The loan will be disbursed in three portions as 
policies are put in place to build a competitive 
environment and increase efficiency. The major ac
tion areas are: 

• Moderniz ing the Public Sector. Improve
ments will be made in budget planning and execution 
within the public sector. At the same time perfor
mance plans between the Government and decen
tralized institutions, including municipal agencies 
requiring government guarantees for their external 
borrowings, will be signed and reviewed periodically 
against performance. These plans will cover all major 

YEARL Y LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 
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public institutions and more than 90 percent of the 
decentralized sector's aggregate spending. 

• Fostering Competition and Efficiency. 
Competitive elements will be introduced into sectors 
traditionally regarded as public monopolies or in 
which the public sector has dominated. These include 
the operation of ports, railroads, maritime transport, 
low-income housing, agricultural marketing, and 
telecommunications. Public investment programs will 
seek to facilitate private sector participation and rely 
on the market to allocate goods and services. In 
addition, a more dynamic capitalization of the bank
ing and industrial sectors will be sought through 
privatization of nationalized banks and established 
industries. Shipping services will be liberalized, and 
the mechanisms governing financing and construc
tion of low-income housing will be restructured. The 
Government will also adjust the prices of goods and 
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PALMIRA, COLOMBIA. Haci
enda Brasil received credits to
taling $73,000 in 1989 and 1990 
from a government farm credit 
program financed by an IDB 
loan. The credits were used to 
purchase a German tractor, 
plant 38 hectares of lime and 
avocado trees, and install a drip 
irrigation system. The farm ex
ports part of its avocado pro
duction to the United States. 

services produced by the public sector for an ad
equate rate of return, and rationalize subsidies, elimi
nating those that are not consistent with the objectives 
of the country's economic strategy. 

The technical cooperation will strengthen the 
institutions involved and fund studies needed to carry 
out policies and actions under the reform program. 

Rural Development Investment Program 

Financing: $75 million from the OC; and cofinancing 
of $75 million from the International 
Bank for Reconstmction and Develop
ment 

Executing 
Agency: Ministry of Agriculture, through its Inte

grated Rural Development Fund (DRI) 

The program supported by this loan will help boost 
production and improve the quality of life for small 
farmers. It will fund an investment program that will 
boost farm earnings and raise the standard of rural life 
in participating municipalities. The program will also 
help finance infrastructure to provide basic public 

services for rural communities of under 2,500 and 
strengthen the executing agency. There are three 
components: 

• The investment program will cofinance small 
projects to help improve agricultural output of small 
farms by increasing production of basic and commer
cial food crops. The program will finance a variety of 
activities, including training about 1,200 farming 
specialists and 1,900 extension workers and others in 
order to provide extension services and technology 
packages to small farmers; watershed management to 
increase the availability of water for rural communi
ties; and marketing activities to help small farmers 
reduce post-harvest losses. Aquaculture and small-
scale fishery centers also will be eligible for program 
resources. Support could take the form of supplying 
fingerlings and productive technology, updating fishery 
station infrastructure, and helping the neediest fish
ermen organize into productive associations. A spe
cial women in development component will support 
organization, training, and technical assistance for 
rural women. 

• The infrastructure component focuses on 
roads and providing sanitation services and potable 
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water. Resources will be used to build new roads and 
upgrade existing ones in municipalities where other 
program activities are taking place, providing a nec
essary link between farms and centers of consump
tion, distribution, and marketing. Additionally, water 
supply systems, including household connections 
equipped with meters, will be constructed, existing 
water services will be upgraded or rehabilitated, and 
sewage disposal systems will be constructed. 

• DRI will be strengthened through training 
and consulting services, and assignment of staff to 
regional offices closer to the projects. This component 
will also strengthen municipalities participating in the 
program by training civil servants in how to contract 
with DRI and carry out cofinanced investments. Most 
of the financing to support municipalities would go to 
studies for preparing and formulating projects to be 
financed by DRI. 

The small-scale farming subsector accounts for 
a third of Colombia's agricultural output in terms of 
gross value, with 70 percent of its contribution 
corresponding to agricultural production and 30 
percent to livestock production. 

Upper Bogotá River Basin Environmental 
Rehabilitation Program 

Financing: 

Executing 
Agency: 

$30 million from the OC; $20 million 
from the FSO 

Regional Corporation for the Bogotá, 
Ubaté and Suárez Rivers (CAR) 

These loans will improve the environmental and 
productive conditions of the upper portion of the 
Bogotá River by improving water quality. The Bogotá 
River is the most heavily used river in Colombia, 
feeding hydroelectric plants and irrigation systems 
and providing the city of Bogotá with its drinking 
water. At the same time, the upper course of the river 
receives wastewater, solid waste and industrial waste 
from 18 municipalities and over 200 industries. Con
sequently, the river is seriously polluted, adversely 
affecting populations and ecologically significant 
areas. The program, the first of a series, will clean up 
the organic pollution of 175 kilometers of the upper 
Bogotá River and includes the following components: 

• Sanitation. Construction of 23 plants to treat 
wastewater and emissions in municipalities along the 
upper course of the Bogotá River; construction of 

nine systems to treat waste from slaughterhouses; and 
construction of 25 sanitary landfills for solid waste 
disposal in municipalities. 

• I r r igat ion a n d Management of Swamps 
a n d Lagoons. Expansion of the La Ramada irrigation 
system and the creation of a new irrigation district in 
Bojaca/La Herrera will be carried out. The physical 
design of these irrigation works will permit the 
biological recovery of important wetlands in the area, 
particularly the Herrera Lagoon, a body of water rich 
with biological diversity and the last remnant of the 
prehistoric Humboldt Lake. 

• Land Reclamat ion a n d Forestat ion. Trees 
will be planted on approximately 4,450 hectares and 
erosion control and sediment retention works per
formed on an additional 6,800 hectares. 

• Env i ronmenta l Management . This com
ponent includes detailed monitoring of the physical, 
chemical, biological, and socioeconomic characteris
tics that the project is intended to improve; CAR staff 
and local communities will be trained in soil conser
vation, rural extension, and watershed management; 
and natural resource management studies will be 
conducted to help improve CAR's environmental 
management capability. 

Global Microenterprise Credit Program 

Financing: $14 million from the FSO; $1 million 
technical cooperation grant from the 
same resources 

Coordinating 
Agency: National Planning Department through 

the Evaluation Council of the National 
Microenterprise Development Plan 

Colombia and the Bank have been pioneers in 
providing support to the microenterprise sector and 
this loan represents another step in an effort to reach 
a much larger universe of microentrepreneurs than 
has been previously possible. The program will 
provide credit, technical assistance, and technology 
development to approximately 10,000 sub-borrowers, 
many of whom, particularly women, have not had 
access to traditional Bank credit programs. The pro
gram builds on the considerable experience that the 
Bank has gained through the Small Projects Program 
and an earlier $7 million global credit loan for 
microproducers in Colombia approved in 1986. 

The program is designed to be less restrictive 
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BOGOTA, COLOMBIA. A $115 
million 1984 IDB loan is fi
nancing basic services and in
frastructure for 7,700 new low-
cost homes on the city's south
ern fringe. The loan is also 
financing the construction of a 
hospital, six health centers, 19 
schools, three community cen
ters, water and sewage services, 
and the paving of 100 kilome
ters of streets serving 1 million 
mostly low-income people in the 
same area. 

than the previous global program in order to open up 
the credit program to the poorest segments of mi
croentrepreneurs and women. Previously, credit was 
loaned to entrepreneurs mainly for financing fixed 
assets. Accordingly, most of the credit was used for 
the upper segments of the microenterprise universe. 
The new program broadens the eligibility criteria, and 
credits will now be made available for working 
capital needs in the commercial sector. 

The credit portion of the program will also be 
administered differently. Traditionally, financial in
termediaries have made the loan's resources available 
to sub-borrowers, and non-governmental organiza
tions have provided technical assistance. While this 
method will continue to be used, non-governmental 
organizations will now be able to borrow resources 
from the financial intermediaries and make packages 
of credit and technical assistance available to mi
croentrepreneurs. This nontraditional approach will 
help strengthen the non-governmental organization 

movement that is becoming such an integral part of 
the development process in Latin America. 

The technical cooperation will enhance the 
development of microenterprise technology with the 
goal of increasing productivity and competitiveness 
in the market. Permanent mechanisms will be created 
to supply microproducers with information on the 
supply of machinery, equipment, raw materials, and 
production processes; training in the use of machinery 
and equipment; and methods to improve the design 
and quality of their products. 

FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Support for Microentrepreneurs in Medellin 

A $500,000 financing from the FSO will be used by the 
Promotora de Comercio Social (PROCOMERCIAL) to 
carry out a pilot project for producing and marketing 
the products of microentrepreneurs in Medellin and 
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surrounding areas. The first subprogram of the two-
part project will provide resources to purchase raw 
materials. The second subprogram is a marketing 
services fund designed to enhance the operational 
capacity of PROCOMERCIAL s Marketing Services 
Center. The project will be implemented through two 
types of activities—the identification, selection, up
grading, and organization of the microproducers' 
output, and the identification, sale, and distribution 
of the merchandise to purchasers. The estimated 
1,400 beneficiaries of the project produce garments, 
footwear and leather goods, and perishable and 
nonperishable food. Almost three-quarters of the 
beneficiaries are expected to be women. Technical 
cooperation funds totaling $91,000 will be used to 
strengthen basic marketing instruments, including 
market research, sales promotion, and advertising. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

financial intermediaries such as commercial banks 
and finance corporations. Program resources are in 
turn lent by these institutions to support a wide range 
of urban improvement works. Virtually all of the loan 
resources have been committed for 101 subloans with 
a combined value of $125.6 million. Work on 47 
subloan projects is finished. The rest are in progress 
or in the advanced stages of procurement of goods 
and services. Subloans are financing activities such as 
water and sewage systems, urban sanitation, slaugh
terhouses, green areas and parks, markets, telephone 
service, urban thoroughfares, housing sites with ser
vices, and bus terminals. Loan resources are almost 
evenly divided between works in the medium-size 
cities (38.6 percent) and the smaller cities (36.2 
percent). Activities improving the marginal areas of 
large cities are being supported by about 25 percent 
of the loan. The program is now being carried out by 
Financiera de Desarrollo Territorial (FINDETER). 

Agricultural Credit P rogram: In 1987 the Bank 
approved a $100 million loan from the OC to develop 
and modernize farming. The program is providing 
credit through the agricultural lending arm of the 
Banco de la República to finance capital investments 
in a number of areas. A total of 19,336 subloans 
valued at $161.2 million have been made. The loan 
was completely disbursed by the end of 1990. Areas 
of investment included machinery and equipment, 
fence construction, irrigation and drainage works, 
storage facilities, breeding stock, soil preparation, 
and planting. Subloans have also been made to 
finance the purchase of improved seed, pesticides, 
fertilizers, vaccines, and equipment necessary for 
processing and marketing farm products. Farms of all 
sizes, as well as cooperatives and growers' associa
tions were eligible for the program. 

Urban Credit II: In 1986, authorities from Colombia 
and the Bank signed a loan contract for $50 million 
from the OC to support the second stage of a program 
to improve the living conditions of urban residents. 
The first stage, completed earlier in 1986, was par
tially financed by an earlier Bank loan of $24 million. 
Both stages targeted population centers of fewer than 
150,000 people, the fringe areas of large cities, and 
medium-size cities (150,000-500,000 people). The 
second loan was extended to the Banco Central 
Hipotecario through the Fondo Financiero de 
Desarrollo Urbano, which is providing resources to 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-90 
(In noitsancls of I '.S, Dollars) 

Sector Amount 
Energy $2.028.615 
Environmental and Public Health 504.354 
Agriculture and Fisheries 461.942 
I'rban Development 339.034 
Industry and Mining 320,872 
Transportation and Communications 311,153 
Education, Science and Technology 154,606 
Preinvestment 34.60"" 
Tourism 14,000 
Other 305.000 

Total S4.474.183 

'total Cost of 
the Projects 

4.89~.494 
1.406ri2 
1.229,481 

692,585 
1,188,9.38 

780,055 
324.906 
8-.890 
22.000 

609.000 

1,239.061 
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COSTA RICA 

The Bank has made 80 loans totaling $1,435.6 
million to Costa Rica. Sector emphasis has been 
o n energy; agriculture and fisheries; transpor

tation and communications; industry and min

ing; and education, science, and technology. 
Cumulative disbursements total $885.9 million. 
In 1990, the Bank approved two loans for one 
project, three Small Project financings, two major 
technical cooperations, and extended the use of 
a line of credit for export financing. 

LOAN 

Global Agricultural Credit Program 

Financing: 

Executing 
Agencies: 

Two loans—$28 million and $17.5 mil

lion—from the OC; the interest rate on 
the $28 million loan will be defrayed by 
the IFF. 

The Central Bank of Costa Rica's De

partment of Funds for Development 
( D e p a r t a m e n t o de Fondos de 
Desarrollo), and the National Bank of 
Costa Rica 

These loans will finance a credit program to increase 
agricultural production in order to increase exports, 
provide for efficient substitution of basic commodity 
imports, spur the efficient allocation of resources, and 
strengthen the financial sector. The eighth in a series 
of similar loans, this loan will finance fixed assets, 
working capital, and technical assistance for viable 
projects proposed by individuals or organizations in 
Costa Rica's private sector. As in the previous global 
credit programs supported by the Bank, fixed asset 
subloans are expected to support mainly coffee, 
macadamia nuts, ornamental plants, and animal hus

bandry. Working capital will finance operations pri

marily in rice, sugarcane, tobacco, and produce. The 
number of subloans will probably be smaller than the 
previous program's, but the average financing will be 
greater. Unlike previous programs, loan funds will be 
channeled through the greatest possible number of 
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qualified financial intermediaries in the nation's 
banking system in order to improve allocation of 
resources. 

Agriculture has played a key role in Costa Rica's 
economic growth. Although the financial sector has 
been a driving force in that growth, there continues 
to be a strong unmet demand for credit to finance 
investment projects in agriculture. The program fi

nanced by the Bank will increase the availability of 
medium and longterm resources for agricultural 
investments in a country where such resources are 
costly and in short supply. 

FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Microentrepreneur Credit Programs 

Two financings totaling $1 million from the FSO will 
provide credits to some 700 microproducers to increase 
production. Approximately half of the beneficiaries 

68 



INTER-AMERICAN DLAEI.OI'MENT HANK 

ALAfUELA, COSTARICA. Several 
IDB agricultural loans are 
helping coffee growers in Costa 
Rica to replace low-yielding 
coffee plants with the high-
yielding "catuaí rojo" variety. 
The increase in production will 
pay off the investment in four 
to six years. 

are women. The intermediary institutions that will 
make the credit available to the beneficiaries— 
Asociación de Ayuda al Pequeño Trabajador y 
Empresario (ADAPTE) and Asociación Costarricense 
de Desarrollo (FUCODES)—are private, non-profit 
organizations. The 500 ADAPTE beneficiaries live in 
the metropolitan area of San José, primarily in the 
Pavas neighborhood; and the 200 FUCODES benefi
ciaries live in the Puerto Limón area of the Atlantic 
Zone. The urban microproducers are engaged in the 
industrial, services, crafts, and business sectors; and 
the rural microentrepreneurs are involved in the 
industrial, services, and agricultural sectors. Techni
cal cooperation funds totaling $ 190,000 will strengthen 
ADAPTE and FUCODES, and provide training to the 
beneficiaries. 

Support for Urban Microentrepreneurs 

A $500,000 financing from the FSO will be used to 
provide credit and training to low-income microen
trepreneurs in the urban areas of five provinces— 
Limón, Alajuela, Cartago, Heredia, and San José. The 
in termediary inst i tut ion, Asociación Avance 
Microempresarial, is a private non-profit organization 
founded by the Costa Rican Development Initiatives 
Coalition and ACCIÓN Internacional/AITEC, a U.S. 
non-governmental organization. The project's ben
eficiaries include some 1,200 microentrepreneurs 
engaged in productive activities in industry, such as 
the manufacturing of shoes, garments, leather goods, 
and food products; and in services such as automo
bile and electric household appliance repair shops 
and upholstery. An estimated 44 percent of project 
beneficiaries will be women. Technical cooperation 
funds totaling $87,000 will be used for institutional 
strengthening and training. 
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TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Support for Environmental Management 

A $1,693,000 nonreimbursable financing from the 
FSO will enable the Ministry of Natural Resources, 
Energy, and Mines to establish an institutional mecha
nism for environmental coordination in the country. 
The program includes establishment of an Executive 
Secretariat and an Environmental Advisory Council to 
act as inter-institutional coordinators for environmen
tal policies and activities. The program will also 
finance studies on solid waste management, monitor
ing of air and water quality, and land use. The 
program also includes environmental management 
and planning training, consolidation of a data bank, 
establishment of environmental quality standards, 
and a review of environmental legislation. 

Road Rehabilitation Studies 

A $552,000 contingent recovery financing from the 
FSO will be used by the Ministry of Public Works and 
Transport (MOPT) for technical, economic, and en
vironmental impact studies needed to program re
habilitation and maintenance of the country's com
munity roads network. The studies would follow a 
Bank-financed Cantonal Road Program to rehabilitate 
and maintain approximately 3,500 kilometers, lo
cated in some 15 to 20 cantons. 

The objective of the Bank's financing is to 
provide the MOPT with appropriate, complete and 
up-to-date information oriented toward the design of 
a fifth phase of the cantonal roads program at a 
national level. The studies will help determine the 
most pressing needs of the roads network and how 
to meet those needs most economically, thus provid
ing the information necessary best to program road 
rehabilitation and maintenance. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Agricultural Productivi ty Project: A $26.6 million 
loan from the Bank's FSO has helped about 29,000 
small- and medium-scale farmers increase their pro
ductivity. The loan has helped triple output in beans 
and double output in corn, since its approval in 1982. 
The program also targeted eight other crops for 
increased production. They were coffee, cacao, 
sugarcane, rice, sorghum, soybeans, potatoes, fruits, 

and vegetables. In addition, important advances were 
made in building technical capacity in the Ministry of 
Agriculture and in putting in place infrastructure for 
effective technology transfer and seed production. 
Besides technology transfer and production and 
distribution of improved seeds, subprograms also 
improved research and provided basic agricultural 
inputs such as fertilizers and pesticides. This project 
is supporting the Government's long-term policy of 
efficiently achieving self-sufficiency in basic food 
grains. 

P re inves tment Studies: Studies financed during the 
third phase of the preinvestment program are fin
ished. During this phase, the Bank disbursed loan 
resources totaling $4.5 million. In addition to support
ing 50 preinvestment studies, all now completed, the 
loan also helped promote regional and sector studies, 
contributed to improving the overall quality of de
velopment projects, and provided investment incen
tives through three lines of credit for private enterprise. 
Of the studies financed, 94.4 percent corresponded to 
projects in the public sector. Of these, 75 percent 
concentrated in the agriculture, health, industry, 
natural resources, and energy sectors; the remainder 
concentrated in the transport, education, housing, 
culture, and communications sectors. This third phase 
of the preinvestment program enabled the Govern
ment of Costa Rica to provide the country with a large 
number of properly prepared projects to achieve 
national development goals. The Bank supported the 
two previous phases of the program with loans in 
1972 and 1976 totaling $6.3 million. The three stages 
combined are estimated to have generated public 
investments totaling $800 million. 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-90 
(In Tljoitsancls of U.S. Dollars) 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 
the Projects 

Energy $ 635,088 $1,097011 
Agriculture and Fisheries 290,105 443,400 
Transportation and Communications 150.510 269,014 
Industry and Mining 91,115 133,953 
Export Financing 78,000 89,000 
Education, Science and Technology ~4,~9I 123,719 
Environmental and Public Health 71,183 115,637 
Urban Development 28,051 49,205 
Preinvestment 16750 27039 

Total Sl.435,593 S2.3479 78 
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DOMINICAN REPUBLLC 

The Bank has made 56 loans totaling $1,081.9 
million to the Dominican Republic. Sector em

phasis has been o n agriculture and fisheries, 
energy, transportation and communications, 
industry and mining, and social infrastructure. 
Cumulative disbursements total $808.3 million. 
In 1990, the Bank extended the use of a l ine of 
credit for export financing. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHT 

Rural Roads: A project in the Dominican Republic 
supported by two Bank loans is substantially improv

ing the condition of more than 1,000 kilometers of 
dirtsurfaced rural roads nationwide. Improved roads 
are increasingly important as the country diversifies 
its agriculture. By end1990, 516 kilometers had been 
upgraded. The project originally called for rehabilita

tion of 600 kilometers, for which the Bank in 1983 
approved loans of $17 million from the OC and $3 
million from the FSO. However, currency fluctuations 
produced more local currency than had been pro

jected, and the Government submitted a proposal for 
expansion of the original goals, which the Bank 
agreed to. 

The new roads will help solve a serious problem 
in the transportation system. At the project's incep

tion, it was estimated that 76 percent or about 5,000 
kilometers of the country's local roads had deterio

rated to the point that they were difficult to travel even 
in the dry season. Improvement of local roads is 
bringing previously isolated areas into the mainstream, 
enabling farmers to transport produce to market more 
quickly and in better condition—a development that 
will become increasingly significant as thousands of 
hectares planted in citrus, mango, pineapple, and 
avocado begin to bear fruit. The project has encoun

tered some problems, such as scarcity of materials, 
notably cement for use in the culverts. This has 
resulted in some delays, and the Bank is processing 
a oneyear extension for final disbursement. 

YEARL Y LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 
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Yearly Lending 

Yearly Disbursements 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961
(In Thousands of U.S. Dolíais) 

■90 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 
the Projects 

Agriculture and Fisheries ï 369,513 S 613,115 
Energy 2^5.2""5 371,654 
Transportation and Communications 136,607 224.095 
Industry and Mining 86,668 120.198 
Environmental and Public Health 54,991 80,449 
Tourism 50,624 71,430 
Education, Science and Technology 40,363 53,764 
Export Financing 9.656 9.656 
Preinvestment 4706 6,89^ 
Urban Development 3,479 6375 
Other 50,000 50.000 

Total S 1.081.882 S 1.607633 
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ECUADOR 

The Bank has made 111 loans totaling $2,467 
million to Ecuador. Sector emphasis has been o n 
agriculture and fisheries, energy, industry and 
mining, transportation and communications, 
and environmental and public health. Cumula

tive disbursements total $1,630.2 million. In 1990, 
the Bank approved six loans for three projects, 
two Small Project financings, and one major 
technical cooperation. 

LOANS 

Global Credit Program for Municipal 
Development 

Financing: 

Executing 
Agency: 

$6 million from the OC, $60 million 
from the OC, and $38 million from the 
FSO. The interest on the $6 million loan 
will be partially defrayed by the IFF. 
Cofinancing of $104 million from the 
International Bank for Reconstruction 
and Development and $4 million from 
German technical cooperation funds 
through The German Technical Assis

tance Agency as agent. 

Banco de Desarrollo del Ecuador (BEDE) 

These loans will help strengthen local governments 
by decentralizing the allocation of resources and 
decisionmaking, and by alleviating shortages in 
urban services and infrastructure deficiencies. The 
program consists of three components: 

• Legal, administrative, financial, and institu

tional reforms carried out during the program's pre

paratory stage will help create a new municipal 
development framework. Their aim is to reduce the 
dependency of municipalities upon the central gov

ernment, foster greater fiscal discipline, place more of 
the responsibility for local administration and plan

ning in the hands of local authorities, and introduce 
a greater degree of equity and efficiency into process

ing municipal projects. 
• A credit line at the BEDE will be established 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 
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I Yearly Lending 

■■ Yearly Disbursements 

to finance municipal investment projects that address 
the shortage of urban infrastructure services in urban 
centers throughout the country. BEDE will lend to 
municipalities to rehabilitate, expand, and construct 
water supply systems, sewerage and storm drainage 
projects; transportation terminals, as well as markets, 
slaughterhouses, cemeteries, parks, recreation areas, 
and services; to upgrade neighborhoods; and update 
land registries to ensure maximum use of the tax base. 

• Training and institutional strengthening of 
the municipalities is an essential component of the 
project. Besides the BEDE, which will channel credits 
to municipalities, organizations that will play a mu

nicipalsupport role in the program are the Fondo 
Nacional de Preinversión, which will assist municipal 
authorities in preparing investment projects; the 
Secretaría Nacional de Desarrollo Administrativo, 
which will be the central training coordinator; and the 
Asociación de Municipalidades Ecuatorianas, which 
will conduct the training. The program will train 
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about 1,000 staff members in the four municipal-
support organizations. Municipal strengthening con
sists of designing and implementing activities aimed 
at improving management systems, procedures, and 
mechanisms which relate to providing urban ser
vices. About 7,000 municipal employees will be 
trained to dispatch such duties. 

Ecuador is divided into 20 provinces and 163 
municipalities. Municipalities are the basic adminis
trative and political units of government. The prob
lems that the program will address stem from the fact 
that municipalities have been highly dependent on 
transfers from the central government, leaving them 
with little or no incentive to raise their own funds. The 
result has been institutional and administrative 
weaknesses and a growing inadequacy of urban 
services. The deficits in urban services and infra
structure in Ecuadoran cities impose growing restraints 
on urban economic activities, and tend to erode their 
potential for generating medium- and long-term 
employment. 

Water Supply and Sanitation Improvements 

Financing: 

Executing 
Agency: 

$12 million from the OC and $38 million 
from the FSO 

Empresa Municipal de Teléfonos, Agua 
Potable y Alcantarillado de Cuenca 

These loans will help finance a project to improve 
living and health conditions in Cuenca, the third 
largest city in Ecuador, by increasing the availability 
of potable water, upgrading the sanitary sewer sys
tem, and reducing pollution in the four rivers that 
flow through the city. The project will accomplish the 
following specific objectives: 

• Improve and expand the water system, in
creasing the percentage of houses with water connec
tions from 85 to 95 percent. 

• Optimize and regulate water system opera
tions, including control and metering of all points of 
production, distribution, and consumption; and re
duce losses, waste, and quantity of water not accounted 
for from the present 35 percent to a maximum of 25 
percent. To this end, subscriber lists will be updated 
and meters installed at all production and consump
tion points. 

• Undertake ecological studies and engineer
ing designs to regulate the flow of the Tomebamba 

River, which, at a daily supply capacity of 1,200 liters 
per second in years of normal rainfall, is the city's 
largest supplier of water. This component will boost 
the Tomebamba's capacity in dry periods from 590 
liters to 1,000 liters per second. A system of water and 
weather surveillance stations will be installed in order 
to compile statistical records about the water basins 
that feed the city. 

• Improve and expand sanitary and storm 
sewer systems in the city to cover demand anticipated 
by the year 2000, including measures to support 
future expansion of the system. The portion of 
Cuenca's population served by the expansion would 
rise from 75 to 85 percent by the end of the project, 
topping off at 90 percent by the year 2000. 

• Intercept numerous discharges of wastewa
ter into Cuenca's rivers, and divert the wastewater 
through a 1,260-liter-per-second treatment plant to be 
built by the project and expanded in later years to 
1,844 liters per second. A permanent control system 
for industrial discharge into the sewer system will be 
implemented. The rivers—the Machangara, Tome
bamba, Yanuncay, and Tarqui—are all tributaries of 
the Paute River, which flows toward the Amazon 
River watershed. 

The water and sewerage systems of Cuenca 
have not kept up with the population growth of the 
city, which is projected to reach 300,000 residents by 
the year 2000 and 460,000 by 2015. 

Global Microenterprise Credit Program 

Financing: $16.2 million from the FSO; $3.3 million 
technical cooperation grant from the 
same resources. 

Coordinating 
Agency: National Corporation of Support for 

Small Economic Units 

This program to make credit and technical assistance 
available to microproducers will expand the support 
that the Bank has been providing to Ecuadoran 
microproducers through the Small Projects Financing 
Program. The new program is designed to maximize 
access of microenterprises to credit by making credit 
available to a larger universe of the country's eco
nomic sectors and geographic areas. Accordingly, the 
program is not limited to urban manufacturing but 
will also reach out to include all productive, trade, 
and service activities in both urban and rural settings. 
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The program also seeks to develop self-sustaining 
mechanisms that can continue providing financial 
and technical services long after the program is 
completed. 

The program's resources will be made available 
for financing the fixed assets and working capital 
needs of microproducers. Financing working capital 
requirements without restrictions—a new feature in 
microenterprise programs—is crucial for bringing the 
very low-income groups into the program. Financing 
productive activities in rural areas helps to stem 
migration to the cities and encourages settlement in 
rural areas. Financing trade activities will have a 
particularly important impact on the participation of 
women microproducers in the commercial sector. 

The technical cooperation component seeks to 
strengthen the management and accounting capabili
ties of microentrepreneurs and the ability of non
governmental organizations to deliver business ad
visory services and technical training to the 
beneficiaries. 

The microenterprise sector in Ecuador employs 
42 percent of the economically active population and 
accounts for about 20 percent of total value added. In 
1989, there were approximately 400,000 urban micro-
enterprises in the country, employing around 1.5 
million people. Women accounted for 35 percent of 
those employed in this sector. 

FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Support for Campesino Agroindustries 

A $500,000 financing from the FSO will be used by the 
F u n d a c i ó n de la Union de O r g a n i z a c i o n e s 
Campesinas de Salinas (FUNORSAL), a private non
profit institution, to promote the social and economic 
development of the campesino communities in the 
Parish of Salinas in the Province of Bolivar. The 
beneficiaries of the project will be approximately 
1,400 low-income campesino households grouped 
together into 22 organizations affiliated with 
FUNORSAL. The project consists of a productive 
investment component and a credit program compo
nent. FUNORSAL will make direct investments in 
projects that will benefit the affiliated groups. Invest
ments include cheese factories, sausage and meat 
processing plants, wool yarn mills and forestation 
projects. The investments in these projects will make 
possible the warehousing, processing and marketing 

of output of the campesinos. The credit component 
will make resources available for farming, livestock, 
agroindustry, forestry, and marketing activities. Tech
nical cooperation funds totaling $ 152,000 will be used 
for institutional strengthening and training. Special 
emphasis will be placed on the management and 
protection of forests and other renewable natural 
resources in the program area. 

Support for Young Microentrepreneurs 

A $500,000 financing from the SWF will enable the 
Fundación Nuestros Jóvenes (FNJ), a private non
profit organization located in Quito, to expand its 
activities. FNJ is a community-based institution that 
offers economic, educational, and social programs to 
adolescents and young adults with previous drug 
abuse problems. The Bank's financing will be used to 
create jobs and offer apprenticeships in trades at FNfs 
production workshops and establish a revolving fund 
to make loans to young people to start or expand 
microenterprises. The resources will be used to set up 
and operate three production workshops for bed
ding, leather goods, and handicrafts. Proceeds from 
the sale of goods produced in the workshops will 
make FNJ financially autonomous. The revolving 
fund will permit young people to buy tools, equip
ment, and working capital for investment in their 
microenterprises. Approximately 300 young people 
between the ages of 15 and 25 will directly benefit 
from the program. Technical cooperation funds total
ing $143,000 will be used for institutional strengthen
ing. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Support for State Controller's Office 

A $1.8 million nonreimbursable financing from the 
FSO will strengthen the control functions of the Office 
of the Controller General of the State (CGE). The CGE 
performs external audits of most of the entities that 
execute Bank-financed projects. The financing will 
be used to update the policies, regulations, account
ing, and government auditing manuals; to train pro
fessional auditing personnel; to improve CGE's ad
ministrative and audit control systems; and to improve 
procedures for the participation of CGE in the bidding 
process. 
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PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Expans ion of the Quito Water System: In an at
tempt to keep public services in step with the 
burgeoning population growth of Quito, the Govern
ment is expanding and improving the city's water 
system. In 1984, the Bank approved a $28 million loan 
from the FSO to help finance the improvements. As 
reformulated in 1989, the project will now benefit 
greater numbers of low-income people. Originally 
the loan was to finance final designs for the first stage 
of the Mica-Tambo Project. Instead, it is financing a 
water system to complement the Papallacta Project, 
already completed. Reformulating the project has 
added $6 million to the cost, which will be borne by 
the Ecuadoran Government. 

The physical works of the project are 38 
percent complete. Some components, such as the 
expansion of the water treatment plant at Puengasi, 
are finished, while other parts are at various stages of 
the contracting process. Water meters have been 
installed in 27,000 homes, and 73,000 additional 
meters have been ordered. Contracts have been let for 
installation of 21.9 kilometers of water lines—about 
half of the 42.1 kilometers that ultimately will be 
installed. Contractors also have been chosen to build 
eight of the project's 17 storage tanks, and one of the 
two pumping stations. The loan also will fund the 
actualization of the master water plan for Quito and 
a study analyzing the costs and benefits of expanding 
the city's water system. 

About 1,300 subloans have been made under the 
livestock credit component, accounting for nearly 50 
percent of the goal. Of the 57.5 kilometers of local 
roads slated for improvement, 83 percent is com
pleted, and two newly built roads are in use. In the 
social sectors, work is finished on the 32 primary 
schools, three-quarters of which are equipped. The 
program's seven health posts and one health sub-
center are finished and awaiting installation of electrical 
generators. Installation of 1,000 latrines and 42 wells 
also will help improve public health. The sanitation 
component is 80 percent finished. 

Integrated Rural Development : A program to im
prove social and economic conditions for about 7,000 
small farmers in Loja Province is nearing completion. 
The Secretaria de Desarrollo Rural Integral is using 
two Bank loans approved in 1983, totaling $8.7 
million, to carry out a broad-based program with 11 
components. These are livestock credit, technical 
assistance, cattle farming, marketing, forest develop
ment, local roads, sanitation, health, elementary 
education, organization and training, and landhold-
ing normalization. The loans are from the OC ($7.1 
million) and from the FSO ($1.6 million). The pro
gram is also supported by cofinancing in the amount 
of $5.2 million, which the Bank is administering for 
the International Fund for Agricultural Development. 

Progress to date includes reforestation of 98 
percent of the 1,800 hectares targeted for tree planta
tions in both fast-growing exotic and native species. 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-90 
(In Thousands of US. Dollars) 
Sector Amount 

Total Cost of 
the Projects 

Agriculture and Fisheries î 819,526 il,172,412 
Energy 518.046 1,623,193 
Industry and Mining 310,002 525,045 
Transportation and Communications 251,529 566,4~'6 
Environmental and Public Health 199,408 328,98^ 
Education, Science and Technology 175,635 213,628 
Urban Development 148.100 293,310 
Preinvestment 26,331 34,083 
Tourism 18.428 25,278 

Total S2.467005 S4.782.412 
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EL SALVADOR 

The Bank has made 62 loans totaling $1,093.8 
mill ion to El Salvador. Sector emphasis has been 
o n environmental and public health, energy, 
agriculture and fisheries, industry and mining, 
and transportation and communications. Cu
mulative disbursements total $871.3 million. In 
1990, the Bank approved four loans for three 
projects, o n e major technical cooperation and 
extended the use of a line of credit for export 
financing. 

LOANS 

Multisector Global Lending Program 

Financing: $40 million from the OC; $20 million 
from the FSO and a $110,000 technical 
cooperation grant from the FSO 

Executing 
Agency: Central Reserve Bank of El Salvador 

(BCR) 

YEARL Y LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 
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The aim of the program is to reactivate production by 
providing financing for the installation, expansion, 
modernization, and diversification of private compa
nies in El Salvador. The program's resources will be 
channeled through financial intermediaries by the 
Central Reserve Bank (BCR) in the form of medium-
and long-term credits to private companies for invest
ing in all sectors of the economy. The credits can be 
used to finance capital investments and working 
capital needs of firms and are intended for projects 
that demonstrate economic and financial viability. 

The program is also intended to support the 
BCR's efforts to reorganize the banking system by 
improving its governing legislation and rules and 
create an effective, autonomous superintendency to 
ensure the functioning of the financial system. 

The Government of El Salvador has launched an 
economic program to deal with the serious macro-
economic problems confronting the country. The 
ingredients for recovery are to create conditions 
conducive to strong and sustained growth by decen

tralizing decision-making, fostering economic free
dom, and liberalizing prices and markets. In order to 
reach these goals, the economy requires a substantial 
injection of capital to spark production. 

The Bank's program fits into the Government's 
strategy in that it will support private sector initiatives 
to generate exports and the production of goods for 
domestic consumption, as well as stimulate the cre
ation of jobs. To achieve the program's objectives it 
will be necessary to have an appropriate interest rate 
structure. Interest rates on the subloans will be 
variable, adjusted semiannually and positive in real 
terms. The rates will be set so as to provide adequate 
coverage of the costs to BCR and minimize the 
possibility of incurring exchange and operating losses. 
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Rural Road Rehabilitation and 
Improvement i n 

Financing: $44 million from the FSO 
Executing 
Agency: Ministry of Public Works through the 

Bureau of Roads 

This loan will rehabilitate and improve roads in the 
southern and coastal regions of El Salvador. The loan, 
the third from the Bank supporting El Salvador's Rural 
Roads Program, will expand and improve the feeder 
roads that connect to the Pacific Coast Highway, one 
of the principal access roads to the country's distribu
tion and consumption centers. The project consists of 
two components that will: 

• Rehabilitate and improve about 35 rural roads 
for a total of 400 kilometers. They will be graded, 
compacted-soil roads adequate for two-way traffic 
and useable year-round. 

• Protect against possible direct and indirect 
environmental damage. Measures to mitigate envi
ronmental impacts will be incorporated in the road 
construction designs and specifications. The project 
includes an environmental plan to protect the na
tional parks, forest reserves, mangrove swamps, and 
archaeological sites, and the Ministry of Public Works 
will report quarterly on its execution. 

Agriculture is El Salvador's main productive 
sector, and the southern and coastal areas are consid
ered to be the most productive for cotton and 
sugarcane. In addition, the area has significant un
tapped potential for intensified irrigated farming and 
for the production of tomatoes, watermelons, and 
vegetables for export. Better roads will help integrate 
the southern and coastal regions into the national 
economy and raise incomes; improve farm-to-market 
conditions for the year-round transport of agricultural 
products, reducing loss and cutting transport costs; 
and improve the overall well being of the inhabitants 
by increasing the availability of services such as 
agricultural extension, credit, marketing, health and 
education. 

Post-Secondary School Technical Education 

Financing: $14.4 million from the FSO 
Executing 
Agency: Fundación Empresarial para el Desa

rrollo Educativo 

This loan will improve the capacity of the Central 
American Institute of Technology (ITCA) to train mid-
level technicians to meet the demand for technical 
manpower of the nation's productive sectors. The 
project has been divided into four components: 

• Curr icu lum and Inst i tut ional Develop
men t . The curriculum will be revised and updated to 
bring it in line with the labor market's needs in 
mechanical, industrial, agricultural, and electrical 
engineering, food services, civil engineering and 
construction. Part of the industrial engineering cur
riculum will be geared to industrial garment-making 
and computers. It is estimated that women will 
represent more than 30 percent of the enrollment in 
this new area of study at ITCA. In addition, informal 
six-week training courses will be added to ITCA's 
program to help skilled workers expand their abili
ties. 

• Equ ipment a n d Teaching Materials. The 
project will recondition or replace basic shop and 
laboratory equipment and provide furnishings and 
equipment to support the new areas of study. The 
library's services also will be expanded, including the 
purchase of 10,000 reference books, textbooks, and 
technical journals. 

• Physical Plant. ITCA's buildings, damaged 
by the 1986 earthquake, will be repaired and remod
eled. Shops for electrical and agricultural engineering 
as well as automotive studies will be expanded, and 
an auditorium and multipurpose room added. 

• Student Loans. Students in technical courses 
and informal training who can demonstrate a need for 
financial assistance and meet the institution's admis
sion and academic performance requirements will be 
eligible for student loans. 

ITCA is the only post-secondary technical edu
cation institute facility in El Salvador especially de
signed and equipped to train intermediate-level tech
nicians for productive sector activities. This project 
will produce an additional 500 graduates every year, 
an important contribution to sectors currently af
fected by a shortage of technicians. 
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TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Strengthening of the Integrated Tax System 

A $1,718,000 nonreimbursable financing from the 
FSO will help the Government take steps to improve 
the efficiency of tax administration, foster greater tax 
collections, and reduce tax evasion. To achieve the 
objectives, the program will include other taxes of 
fiscal importance into the master file/current account 
system already established for the income and property 
tax; design and implement a statistical information 
system; expand the tax information system in support 
of the supervisory function; and train human resources 
in the use and application of new systems and tax 
regulations. The project will be carried out by the 
Ministry of Finance through the Inter-American Center 
of Tax Administrators. 

which extended credits and grants to Government 
agencies to contract consultants to do prefeasibility 
and feasibility studies, engineering designs, and gen
eral studies. About $4 million of the loan partially 
financed 15 studies related to irrigation, agribusiness, 
or rural development. Approximately $3 million of 
the loan helped support advance studies for 18 rural 
and access roads, and 4 urban streets. At $1 million, 
the largest single portion of the loan helped fund a 
preinvestment study for expanding the sewage sys
tem of San Salvador, a precursor to the second stage 
of a large-scale effort to upgrade the sewage and 
water systems of the capital. Other studies focused on 
housing, the University of El Salvador, and technical 
education. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

San Salvador Water a n d Sewage Service: A project 
to improve water and sewage services for hundreds 
of thousands of people living in the capital is pro
ceeding on schedule with support from a $ 166 million 
loan approved by the Bank in 1987 from the FSO. By 
the end of 1990, 75 percent of the program had been 
committed for contracts, and expectations were for 
the loan to be disbursed by February 1993, the 
original date. The project, which comprises five 
potable water subprojects and one sewage project, 
had a relatively slow start but has gained momentum 
in 1990. Two water projects—Tres Pozos and Río 
Lempa I—will augment annual water supplies by 55.3 
million cubic meters. Two other subprojects—one a 
distribution network and the other an eastern zone 
pipeline—will bring water to every part of the city. A 
fifth subproject is improving the operation, mainte
nance, and administration of the water system. The 
sewage subproject will increase the capacity of the 
present system by adding 26 kilometers and by 
repairing sections where necessary. 

P re inves tment Studies: The second stage of Bank 
support for preinvestment studies drew to a close in 
1990 with the completion of 64 studies. About three-
quarters of the studies were preparatory to projects in 
the pipeline. A $7.5 million loan and a $1.5 million 
technical cooperation approved in 1983 from the 
Bank's FSO have helped finance the second stage, 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-90 
(In Thousands of U.S. Dollars) 
Sector Amount 

Total Cost of 
the Projects 

Environmental and Public Health $ 272,273 $ 382,236 
Energy 210,138 411,184 
Agriculture and Fisheries 174,325 278,751 
Industry and Mining 133,247 144,593 
Transportation and Communications 101,521 151,757 
Export Financing 74,823 79,377 
Urban Development 31,208 59,255 
Education, Science and Technology 25,149 31,344 
Preinvestment 11,084 16,080 
Other 60,000 -5,000 

Total S 1.093768 11,629,577 
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GUATEMALA 

The Bank has made 65 loans totaling $1,157.6 
million to Guatemala. Sector emphasis has been 
o n energy, environmental and public health, 
industry and mining, transportation and com

munications, and agriculture and fisheries. Cu

mulative disbursements total $911 million. In 
1990, the Bank approved one loan for one project 
and extended the use of a line of credit for export 
financing. 

LOAN 

Rural Water Supply Program 

Financing: 
Executing 
Agency: 

$32.8 million from the FSO 

Ministry of Public Health and Welfare, 
through its Rural Water Supply Program 
(UNEPAR) 

This loan will expand coverage of potable water and 
basic sanitation services in communities of up to 
2,500 people in rural areas of Guatemala. The pro

gram supports efforts to consolidate the institutional 
capacity of UNEPAR with the potable water committees 
in participating communities in order to improve 
operation and maintenance of the water systems. 
Since 1966, the Bank has contributed to the financing 
of four previous phases of the Rural Water Supply 
Program in Guatemala. This fifth phase aims to 
accomplish the following: 

• Construct about 100 new water supply sys

tems using distribution networks with inhouse con

nections. Similar to systems installed in the previous 
four stages of the National Rural Water Supply and 
Basic Sanitation Program, these systems consist of 
catchment works, supply and conveyance lines, 
treatment units, and reserve tanks. Public faucets 
would be installed only to supply isolated groups of 
houses. The new systems will have the capacity to 
serve 180,000 people. 

• Expand and improve about 20 existing water 
supply systems and rehabilitate another 80, benefit

ing 84,000 people. Eligible communities will be those 
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whose water supply systems were built with the 
participation of Bank financing in an earlier phase of 
the program. 

• Build 14,400 latrines to improve sanitary 
conditions for about 75,000 people in communities 
benefiting from the rural water supply system. 

• Strengthen the institutional capacity of 
UNEPAR, particularly in administration and account

ing, to enable it to supervise and provide technical 
assistance to the local water supply committees. 
Operation and maintenance of the water supply 
systems are the responsibilities of the beneficiary 
communities. Training will be provided for these 
committees and the staff of UNEPAR. 

Clean drinking water will improve health condi

tions in the country, particularly for children who are 
especially susceptible to diarrheal disease. Until 1987, 
37 percent of the rural population was served by 
water systems and 43 percent had latrines. Because of 
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this, the Government of Guatemala has intensified its 
efforts to increase coverage of basic water supply and 
sanitation services to the rural areas. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Reconst ruc t ion of Highway CA-9 Nor th be tween 
Rio H o n d o a n d Santo Tomás de Castilla: Financed 
in part with a $64 million loan by the Bank, this project 
involves the reconstruction of approximately l6 l 
kilometers of Highway CA-9 North, the principal 
transportation corridor for Guatemalan imports and 
exports. The reconstruction extends from Kilometer 
135 in Rio Hondo in the Department of Zacapa to 
Kilometer 296 in Santo Tomás de Castilla in the 
Department of Izabel. 

Work on the project advanced significantly in 
1990 and is expected to be completed by the first 
quarter of 1991- In November 1990, the Bank ap
proved an expansion of the goals of the project that 
allowed for reprogramming $9 million of the $28 
million available in project funds. The reprogrammed 
resources will finance studies and designs to expand 
another section of Highway CA-9 North, between 
Guatemala City and El Rancho, as well as a section of 
Route CA-9 South, between Palin and Escuintla. Also 
part of the project expansion is construction of a four-
lane traffic divider in Puerto Santo Tomás de Castilla, 
repairs of Highway CA-9 South between Guatemala 
City and Palin, and the construction and equipping of 
control posts and accesses to monitor the weight and 
dimensions of vehicles. 

Agricultural Credit: Subloans totaling $20 million 
have been committed under an agricultural credit 
program supported by a Bank loan of $40 million 
from the OC approved in 1986. The program is 
financing medium- and long-term fixed assets. It is 
helping construct farm infrastmcture; financing the 
acquisition of breeding stock, machinery, and equip
ment; providing working capital to purchase agricul
tural inputs such as fertilizers and seeds; and making 
available technical support for farmers. A portion of 
the loan is strengthening the Banco de Guatemala, 
which is channeling the credit to borrowers via the 
country's banks. Of the $20 million committed to 
date, $19-3 million has been disbursed and is financing 
115 subloans. 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-90 
(In Thousands of U.S. Dollars) 
Sector 

Total 
Amount th 

Cost of 
Projects 

Energy î 299,073 $ 9~'8,427 
Environmental and Public Health 223.11" 325.506 
Industry and Mining 199,092 194,683 
Transportation and Communications 167009 271,780 
Agriculture and Fisheries 150.959 23". 1 
I'rban Development 81,273 127,439 
Education, Science and Technologv 30.104 (>2.4~2 
Toursim 5,109 6,971 
Export Financing 1,908 2,129 

Total S 1.157,644 $2,2071' 'S 
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GUYANA 

The Bank has made 17 loans totaling $338.4 
mill ion to Guyana. Sector emphasis has been o n 
agriculture and fisheries; education, science, and 
technology; environmental and public health; 
and industry and mining. Cumulative disburse
ments total $212.1 million. In 1990, the Bank 
approved one loan for one project. 

LOAN 

Agricultural Rehabilitation Program 

Financing: $27 million from the FSO 
Executing 
Agency: The Ministry of Agriculture 

This loan will help the Government reverse the 
decline in rice and sugar production by providing 
foreign exchange for farmers to purchase essential 
inputs to boost production. Loan resources will be 
used to replace agricultural machinery and equip
ment, and to purchase imported spare parts and other 
necessary inputs such as fertilizer, to help the two 
subsectors recover their productive capacities. 

The loan will finance the purchase of about 420 
tractors, 200 combines, and various farm implements 
used in rice cultivation. In addition, there is a need to 
replace about 25 percent of the stock of other items 
such as harrows, ploughs, and rotary mowers. The 
purchase of spare parts will return to service tractors 
and combines in need of repair. The program will also 
finance fertilizers, tires, batteries, and miscellaneous 
equipment such as forklifts, water pumps, and spray
ers. 

The country's sugar producer, the Guyana Sugar 
Corporation (GUYSUCO), estimates input needs 
valued at $90 million over the next three years. The 
Bank loan will finance new machinery and equip
ment used in field operations whose replacement has 
been postponed for several years. The shortage of 
spare parts for sugar equipment has been estimated 
at about $2,500 per machine. Fertilizer needs alone 
for the sugar industry over the next two years are 
projected to be $6.3 million a year. 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 
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The Guyanese economy has performed poorly 
in recent years. Between 1984 and 1987, the cumula
tive growth rate was less than four percent. The 
economy's performance as well as the public sector's 
financial position is closely tied to the sugar and rice 
subsectors. Together, rice and sugar account for 
nearly 16 percent of the GDP and contribute almost 
half of the country's foreign exchange earnings. Over 
40 percent of the labor force is employed in activities 
related to sugar and rice. In recent years, the productive 
capacities of both subsectors have been sharply 
undercut by a severe lack of foreign exchange. 

The loan complements specific policy measures 
of the Government's Economic Recovery Program 
aimed at improving the policy environment under 
which the agricultural sector can grow and operate 
efficiently. 
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MIBIKURI, GUYANA. Doctor and head nurse at the 
Black Bush Polder District Hospital An $8.8 million 
Bank loan, approved in 1978 to improve Guyana's health 
care delivery system, included building and equipping 
four district hospitals, one health center, and 18 infir
maries. 

program's resources to 104 projects, and the enter
prises involved are well along in the procurement of 
equipment and parts. Sixty-eight companies have 
completed procurement. Delivery of parts for 31 rice 
millers was expected by the end of 1990. Seventy-
eight of the subloans are in rice milling, followed by 
25 in manufacturing, and one in sugar. The single 
credit for sugar is also the largest, at $12.3 million, 
which was granted to GUYSUCO (the Guyana Sugar 
Corporation) to recondition seven of its 10 sugar mills 
and provide spare parts and other imported inputs for 
all 10 mills. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHT 

Industr ia l Recovery: A $28 million loan approved in 
1985 from the OC is helping reactivate economically 
important enterprises once paralyzed by a critical 
shortage of foreign exchange. The Industrial Reha
bilitation Program is providing financing to GAIBANK 
(The Guyana Cooperative Development Bank), which 
in turn lends the resources to firms in three major 
subsectors of industrial activity—manufacturing, sugar, 
and rice. The credit enables the borrowing firms to 
purchase spare parts and accessories and expand 
their operations. GAIBANK has committed all of the 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1976-90 
(In Thousands of U.S. Dollars) 
Sector Amount 

Total Cost of 
the Projects 

Agriculture and Fisheries Ï187.298 $258,850 
Education, Science and Technology 60,800 67,600 
Environmental and Public Health ' 36,382 42,900 
Industry- and Mining 34,836 42,300 
Energy' 17,118 33,100 
Export Financing 2,000 2.85^ 

Total $338,434 $447,607 
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HAITI 

The Bank has made 33 loans totaling $344.1 
mill ion to Haiti. Sector emphasis has been o n 
transportation and communications; environ
mental and public health; agriculture and fish
eries; and education, science, and technology. 
Cumulative disbursements total $212.8 million. 
In 1990, the Bank approved two loans for two 
projects and one Small Project financing. 

LOANS 

Pont Sondé-Mirebalais Highway and Rural 
Roads 

Financing: $44.5 million from the FSO; and cofi
nancing of $4 million from the Organi
zation of Petroleum Exporting Coun
tries 

Ministère des Travaux Publics, Trans
ports et Communications 

Executing 
Agency: 

This loan will help finance a road-improvement 
program linking two critically important north-south 
highways and will improve and expand other rural 
roads. This project is especially important in a country 
where roads are used for more than 80 percent of the 
transportation. The centerpiece of the program is the 
improvement of 74 kilometers of Departmental Road 
109, which parallels the Artibonite River between 
Pont Sondé to Mirebalais. Over 70 percent of this road 
has a gravel or earth surface, which was severely 
damaged by torrential rains during the summer of 
1989- Entire sections were closed to traffic. The 
project will also rehabilitate and improve six rural 
roads totaling 66.4 kilometers, and support a mainte
nance program for 80 kilometers of paved roads and 
270 kilometers of gravel roads. Two bridges will also 
be constructed. The project will keep priority roads in 
the valley in good condition until a more wide-
reaching permanent natural maintenance program, 
now in preparation, goes into effect. 

YEARL Y LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 
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The poor existing conditions of the roads are a 
major obstacle to the Government's efforts to improve 
agricultural production in the valley, including the 
Artibonite irrigation project, supported by the Bank 
since 1976 with $34 million in loans. Among the 
results will be a reliable network of all-weather access 
roads radiating across the Artibonite Valley and 
connecting farm communities to major roads. The 
relative inaccessibility of farms in the valley has 
discouraged farmers from boosting their productivity. 
Improved roads will facilitate increased agricultural 
production and open farm communities to social 
services. 
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OSTRY, HAITI. Laborers clean 
an irrigation canal as part of a 
Bank-financed project to reha
bilitate and expand an irriga
tion system in the Artibonite 
River Valley. A $17.6 million Bank 
loan is currently financing the 
second stage of the project, 
which benefits about 40,000 
families who plant rice in the 
valley. In irrigating 5,400 hect
ares under cultivation, the 
project provides technical ser
vices to low-income farmers and 
includes a monitoring system to 
measure and control environ
mental impact. 

Agricultural and Irrigation Development 

Financing: 

Executing 
Agency: 

$11.5 million from the FSO; and co-
financing from the Organization of Pe
troleum Exporting Countries and the 
French Development Agency 

Organisme de Développement de la 
Vallée dArtibonite (ODVA) 

This loan will complete the second stage of a program 
that is rehabilitating and expanding Haiti's main 
irrigation system located in the Artibonite Valley. The 
loan has five components: 

• Construction of secondary irrigation works, 
the core of which will be 63 kilometers of secondary 
canals with related infrastructure. This consists of 
gates and weirs for regulating and directing water 

flow, culverts, intakes, foot bridges, and 50.5 kilome
ters of service and maintenance roads. A series of 
irrigation and drainage canals running into the farms 
with distribution and crossing structures and associ
ated access roads also will be installed in this com
ponent. Works at the farm level will also be carried 
out. 

• Improvement of the entire irrigation system. 
Activities will focus on removing sediment and aquatic 
plants along the canals and improving system operation 
and maintenance. Support will be provided to ODVA 
for the creation of an environmental monitoring and 
control system. 

• Support for ODVA to ensure adequate main
tenance and efficient operation of the irrigation 
system. Machinery standing idle for lack of spare parts 
will be repaired and other equipment needed to 
operate and maintain the system will be purchased. 

84 



INTER-AMERICAN DEA ELOPMENT BANK 

Machine operators and mechanics will be trained. 
• Agricultural credit will be available through 

non-governmental organizations and cooperatives. 
This component will enable small farms to purchase 
goods for technological improvements to increase 
productivity. Technical assistance from the executing 
agencies will strengthen the rural financial institu
tions. 

• Cadastral survey measuring a total of 6,100 
hectares. 

The irrigation system in the Artibonite Valley is 
Haiti's most extensive system, because it covers one 
third of the country's irrigated area, for a total of 
32,000 hectares. Sixty-five to 75 percent of the country's 
rice is produced on irrigated land in the valley. The 
project will increase the valley's rice output, contrib
ute to better nutrition for the rural population, and 
alleviate the country's soaring food import bill, which 
is led by cereals. 

the irrigation system, watering 5,400 hectares under 
cultivation in the Artibonite River Valley. The basic 
infrastructure at Canneau, including the barrage and 
outflow mechanism, has been rehabilitated and is in 
full working order. About 40,000 families who are rice 
growers in the valley are benefiting from a plentiful 
supply of water for their crops. The project will help 
increase agricultural productivity in the valley by 
rehabilitating the irrigation system. The loan is also 
providing technical services to low-income farmers; 
producing improved seeds; and executing a cadastral 
survey. It is the second stage of a program undertaken 
in 1976 with help from a $5 million Bank loan. This 
operation includes the establishment and operation 
of an environmental monitoring and control system to 
identify and take steps to prevent, correct, or mitigate 
possible negative environmental impacts. 

FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Support for Farmers and Rural Entrepreneurs 

A $500,000 financing from the FSO will be used by the 
Association Haïtienne des Agences Benevolesto make 
credits available through intermediary organizations 
to rural low-income individuals or groups to finance 
their productive activities. The project's beneficiaries 
would be approximately 1,500 workers and entre
preneurs who depend on agriculture as their primary 
source of revenue. The beneficiaries use traditional 
agricultural techniques on small degraded landholdings 
averaging 1.3 hectares. Subloans to beneficiaries will 
finance the fixed assets or working capital needs of 
agricultural production, commercialization, animal 
husbandry, fishery, processing of agricultural pro
duction and small craft industries. Special efforts will 
be made to integrate women into the program as 
beneficiaries. Technical cooperation funds totaling 
$164,000 will be used to strengthen the intermediary 
institutions. Consultants that work with beneficiaries 
will be required to address natural resource man
agement issues. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHT 

Artibonite Valley Development : A $17.6 million 
Bank loan from the FSO is helping rehabilitate and 
expand the primary, secondary, and tertiary levels of 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-90 
i In Thousands of I S. Dollars) 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 
the Projects 

Transportation and Communications $119~1 _ $167694 
Environmental and Public Health 115.474 145,015 
Agriculture and Fisheries 65,300 106,447 
Education, Science and Technology 17,311 28,700 
Industry and Mining 15.328 24,950 
Export Financing 3.11" 4,453 
Other 7,868 8700 

Total $344.115 $485.959 
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HONDURAS 

The Bank has made 75 loans totaling $1,100.9 
mill ion to Honduras. Sector emphasis has been 
o n agriculture and fisheries, energy, environ
mental and public health, transportation and 
communications, and industry and mining. Cu
mulative disbursements total $885.9 million. In 
1990, the Bank approved three loans for two 
projects, and one major technical cooperation. 

LOANS 

Agricultural Sector Loan 

Financing: $14 million from the OC and $46 million 
from the FSO; and cofinancing of $90 
million from the International Bank for 
Reconstruction and Development 

The Central Bank of Honduras 
Executing 
Agency: 

These loans support policy changes that will promote 
the development of Honduras' comparative advan
tage in agriculture and increase income generation, 
employment, and foreign exchange. Agriculture is 
the single most important contributor to GDP, em
ployment, and exports in Honduras. In recent years, 
however, productivity has been low. Price distortions 
and market access problems are among the major 
obstacles to the sector's full output. 

Agricultural sector reforms address these im
pediments and complement the Government's overall 
efforts to reform the economy. The larger program 
emphasizes greater reliance on international trade, an 
increased role for the private sector in the economy, 
and prudent management of fiscal and monetary 
policy. Reforms in the agricultural sector will increase 
incentives by eliminating intersectoral distortions, 
increase international competitiveness, and improve 
the effectiveness of public sector agencies. 

These quick-disbursing loans will be appor
tioned against imports, which will free other foreign 
exchange to carry out the investment plan or restructure 
the country's external debt. It will be disbursed in 
three tranches based on progress in a specified 

YEARL Y LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
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agenda of reforms. Action will concentrate on four 
areas: 

• Trade Liberalization. Maintenance of a 
flexible exchange rate is a condition for disbursement 
of each tranche. An increasingly overvalued ex
change rate had resulted in negative protection for 
many crops, which hampered agricultural produc
tion, reduced farmers' real incomes, and posed a 
disincentive to investment. Regarding trade barriers, 
all tariff exemptions will be eliminated; import re
strictions, such as fees and licensing requirements, 
must be removed; and import surcharges for agri
cultural products eliminated. Import tariffs gradually 
will be reduced over three years. 

• Price a n d Marketing Distort ions. The price 
guarantee system will be dismantled. A "price band" 
for corn, the principal basic grain produced and 
traded in Honduras, will be established as an alter
native. A band scheme uses variable tariffs to keep 
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COROZAL, HONDURAS. 138-ki
lometer paved highway along 
Honduras'north coast links the 
agriculturally rich Aguan River 
Valley with the port of La Ceiba 
and with San Pedro Sula, the 
country's economic center. The 
highway, partly financed by a 
$31 million IDB loan, was com
pleted in 1989 and cut travel 
time in half. 

local prices within a specified band that follows the 
tendency of long-term international prices. The ex
change rate and trade reforms will also have a positive 
impact on agricultural prices. 

• Credit a n d Interes t Rate Policy. The Gov
ernment will lift the ceiling on interest rates, allowing 
rates to fluctuate. Variable interest rates will permit 
commercial banks to cover the higher costs associ
ated with small loans. BANADESA (The National 
Bank of Agricultural Development), the main source 
of formal credit for small- and medium-size farms, will 
be substantially restructured to improve administra
tion and recovery of loans and to reduce delinquent 
portfolios. Subsidized credit lines for agriculture will 
eventually be eliminated. 

• Cush ion ing Vulnerable Groups . To cush
ion the poor against the short-run impact of food 
price increases that may follow the adjustment pro
gram, the Government has taken a number of steps, 
including establishing a food coupon program for 
mothers and infants. In addition, 98 million lempiras 
have been set aside in the federal budget to support 
emergency food and employment programs. 

Urban Roads and Sanitation Project 

Financing: $49.5 million from the FSO 
Executing 
Agency: The Municipality of San Pedro Sula 

This loan will expand and improve the sanitary and 
storm sewerage systems and the roads of San Pedro 

Sula, improving the population's health, and divert
ing traffic around the city, alleviating congestion in 
the center. Besides engineering and administration, 
the project consists of six components: 

• Sanitary Sewers. An intercepting sanitary 
sewer about 4.6 kilometers long will be constructed 
in the eastern part of the city to link up existing lines 
and raw sewage discharges, which now are emptied 
without treatment into open channels and water
courses crossing the northeast and southeast sectors 
of the city. The loan will help build the 7.3-kilometer 
Santa Ana sewer mains and rehabilitate the secondary 
systems in the neighborhood of Cabanas and in the 
districts of Sunceri, Ideal and Las Vegas. All works will 
include the structures necessary to protect the slopes 
and the bed of the Chotepe River, which is the 
receiving water course. 

• S torm Sewers. The loan will finance con
struction of nine sections of sewer mains, totaling 8.9 
kilometers, which will complete the works proposed 
in the existing storm sewerage plan. These sewer 
mains will reduce the impact of flooding, disruption 
in traffic flows and urban transport, as well as the 
premature deterioration of roads. 

• Urban Roads. The loan will help construct 
the first stage of the Second Beltway (12.2 kilometers) 
and La Lima Boulevard (5.6 kilometers). Considered 
vital to interurban transport, they will lessen conges
tion and divert heavy vehicles, which now cross the 
city. Other improvements include construction of 10 
reinforced concrete bridges and, in the southeastern 
section of the city, the constmction or upgrading of 
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14.1 kilometers of roads. About 720 families have 
agreed to move from the land needed for the new 
beltway. The loan will finance the necessary prepa
ratory studies and socioeconomic profiles, location of 
the area for new homes, as well as development of the 
sites, and moving expenses. 

• Ins t i tu t ional S t rengthening. To help the 
city mobilize and use its resources more efficiently, a 
plan will be prepared to strengthen tax administra
tion, property assessment, budget control and perfor
mance, and self-help construction. 

• Equipment . The loan also will finance up
grading of DIMA's (the city waterworks division) 
laboratory and the purchase of equipment and tools. 
Both are necessary to maintain the sewer systems 
properly. 

• Next Stage Prepara t ion . Studies and de
signs will be financed to prepare the way for the next 
investment stage. They will update the master plans 
for urban development and the sewerage systems; 
prepare final designs for the next stage of works in the 
sanitary sewage project, including the treatment plant; 
study alternatives and designs for solid waste collec
tion, treatment, and disposal; and prepare a mainte
nance plan for urban roads. 

San Pedro Sula, the country's second largest city, 
has also been its fastest growing since 1950, with 
annual growth rates fluctuating between 9-9 percent 
and the current 4.7 percent. The city's sewers and 
road systems need expansion and improvement to 
meet the needs of the growing population and to deal 
with increasing traffic congestion. The latter problem 
is exacerbated by the fact that the city's existing 
beltway produces the unintended effect of channel
ing vehicles through the city's center. 

tory and legal framework for the housing sector, 
strengthening the housing information system, develop 
appropriate technologies for constructing low-income 
housing and ensuring an adequate supply of con
struction materials. The participating institutions in
clude the Planning, Coordinating and Budgeting 
Secretariat through the Department of Human 
Settlements, the Honduran Federation of Housing 
Cooperatives, Ltd., the Chamber of the Construction 
Industry and the Housing Institute. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHT 

Secondary a n d Access Roads: The Bank in 1986 
approved a $26.4 million loan from the OC and a $2.6 
million loan from the FSO to help expand and 
improve parts of the country's 18,500-kilometer road 
network. The program is expected to be completed 
at the end of 1991 at a savings of $8 million. The loans 
are building, expanding, and improving 383 kilome
ters of secondary and access roads, which will bring 
new areas into the country's economic mainstream. 
The roads also open previously isolated areas with 
great agricultural potential to domestic and interna
tional markets. One hundred thirty new kilometers of 
secondary roads and five major bridges have been put 
into service. In addition, 173 kilometers of new access 
roads—70 percent of the original goal—are also 
finished. About 80 percent of the work on the access 
roads has been labor-intensive, bringing jobs to areas 
with high rates of unemployment. If the $8 million 
savings is reprogrammed to expand the scope of the 
project, disbursements would continue through the 
first semester of 1992. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Support for National Housing Policy 

A $313,000 nonreimbursable financing from the FSO 
will strengthen institutions involved in implementing 
the National Policy on Territorial Development and 
Housing. Honduras has a serious housing shortage, 
particularly low-income units, and the financing will 
address through technical advice and studies many of 
the institutional bottlenecks that must be overcome to 
solve the housing shortage. The program will focus 
on the following problems: consolidation of the 
housing financing system, establishment of a regula-

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-90 
(In Wousands of U.S. Dollars) 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 
the Projects 

Agriculture and Fisheries î 282,649 $ 535790 
Energy 238.219 872,545 
Transportation and Communications 204,699 319,944 
Environmental and Public Health 172,883 275,173 
Urban Development 75.092 97,731 
Industry and Mining 69.190 191,842 
Education, Science and Technology 42,065 66,151 
Preinvestment 8,776 10.533 
Export Financing 7,373 10,393 

Total $1,100,946 $2,380,102 
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JAMAICA 

The Bank has made 52 loans totaling $873.8 
mill ion to Jamaica. Sector emphasis has been o n 
industry and mining, agriculture and fisheries, 
energy, export financing, and environmental 
and public health. Cumulative disbursements 
total $623.2 million. In 1990, the Bank approved 
two loans for two projects and extended the use 
of a line of credit for export financing. 

LOANS 

Electricity System Improvement 

Financing: $82 million from the OC 
Executing 
Agency: Jamaica Public Service Company, Ltd. 

(JPSCo) 

This loan will expand electrical energy in Jamaica, 
making production, transmission, and distribution 
more efficient and will help meet increased demand 
spurred in part by higher rates of economic growth. 
JPSCo's oil-fired baseload generating units are unre
liable and the system is heavily dependent on ineffi
cient gas turbines. Maintenance of the system has not 
kept up with needs, and operating costs are higher 
than necessary. 

The program includes the following compo
nents: 

• Rehabili tation. Damaged or temporary parts 
that do not meet manufacturers' specifications will be 
replaced at thermal stations in Hunts Bay, Old Har
bor, and Rockfort. The engine cylinder of the slow-
speed diesel station at Rockfort also requires major 
servicing. Five hydroelectric stations (Maggoty, Up
per and Lower White River, Roaring River, and Rio 
Bueno), most of which were built 25 years ago, will 
be overhauled to restore their capacities. 

• Transmiss ion a n d Distr ibut ion. Ten kilo
meters of 138-kilovolt lines and 110 kilometers of 69-
kilovolt lines will be added, and 10 kilometers of 69-
kilovolt lines will be upgraded. Three 69-kilovolt 
substations will be constructed, seven existing sub-

YEARL Y LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 
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stations will be extended and modified, and the 
transformation capacity of three others will be up
graded. About 800 kilometers of lines will be up
graded and voltage normalized to 24 kilovolts, ben
efiting about 14,000 consumers. Installation of about 
1,300 kilometers of primary and secondary lines will 
bring electrical service to 20,000 people for the first 
time. 

• Organizat ional Improvemen t . This com
ponent will help JPSCo acquire improved technical 
expertise, planning capability, and management skills 
needed to implement the project and maintain the 
system. A training program will prepare mid-level 
managers to cope with the growing number of 
increasingly complex tasks. 

• Conservat ion Demons t ra t ion . JPSCo will 
select from volunteers a sample of commercial, 
industrial, and institutional buildings to retrofit with 
fuel-efficient construction and devices. Buildings 
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similar to the demonstration models would be tar
geted for retrofit in a second phase project. 

Agriculture Sector Program 

Financing: 

Executing 
Agency: 

$50 million from the OC; and cofinancing 
of $25 million from the International 
Bank for Reconstruction and Develop
ment, $25 million from Japan's Overseas 
Economic Cooperation Fund, $5 million 
from Kreditanstalt fuer Wiederaufbau 
under German financial cooperation, 
and $5 million from the Netherlands 

Bank of Jamaica 

This loan supports policy changes that will provide a 
sound framework for agricultural development while 
providing needed support to Jamaica's ongoing 
economic adjustment program. Some key policy and 
institutional frameworks have handicapped the sec
tor, seriously undermining its ability to compete in 
foreign and domestic markets. In recent years, the 
country has posted a balance of trade deficit in 
agricultural products averaging $68 million. This new 
status as a net importer of agricultural products has 
reversed the sector's historical role as a generator of 
foreign exchange. 

Quick-disbursing loans, such as this one, help 
reduce the external financial gap associated with the 
sector adjustment programs. Made in the context of 
Jamaica's larger economic adjustment program that 
emphasizes a smaller public sector and increased 
production of tradeable goods and services over 
nontradeables, this loan will be disbursed in two 
tranches against specific agricultural policy reforms 
that the Government is adopting to generate renewed 
growth. The reforms primarily concentrate on four 
policy areas: 

• Rural Credit. These reforms will focus on 
interest rate policy and operations of the Agricultural 
Credit Bank System (ACB), which channels credit to 
commercial banks and People's Community Banks 
(PCBs) to be lent to farmers. The prevailing system of 
fixed interest rates set by the Government is being 
replaced by a new market-driven system in which 
interest rates will be tied to the Bank of Jamaica 
Treasury Bill yield. Additional reforms will allow 
credit unions and cooperatives to set their savings and 

lending interest rates based on market competition. 
Procedures for managing PCB arrearage will further 
strengthen the agricultural credit system. These pro
cedures provide for suspension of disbursements to 
any PCB whose arrears of 120 days or more to the 
ACB represent more than 20 percent of outstanding 
loans due at the end of any quarter. 

• Agricultural Pricing. Trade policy is a major 
tool to modify relative prices of tradeable products, 
including agricultural goods. Agriculture has been 
subject to very high levels of nominal protection in 
Jamaica, which has resulted in higher than necessary 
consumer prices, inefficient resource allocation, and 
reduced incentive for farmers to compete. To stimulate 
competitive production, tariffs are being gradually 
lowered concurrent with the elimination of quantita
tive trade restrictions. 

• Deregulat ion of Citrus a n d Cocoa. Pro
duction and exports of cocoa have stagnated in recent 
years, owing in part to the restrictive marketing 
power of the Cocoa Industry Board (CoIB), which has 
hampered output growth. Producers have been re
ceiving only about 50 percent of the export price for 
their crops in cash, with the balance covering CoIB's 
marketing expenses and the cost of processing and 
providing limited production support services to 
farmers. The Government will issue guidelines lifting 
the minimum production requirement for direct ex
ports and allowing any legally constituted entity to 
export cocoa, effectively ending CoIB's monopoly. 
With regard to citrus production, new policies will 
sharply limit the role of the Citrus Growers Associa
tion (CGA), a private association of growers, in 
processing and exporting citrus products. New poli
cies will allow any private entrepreneur to apply for 
a license as a direct exporter, encourage the entry of 
more growers in the export market by eliminating 
minimum acreage requirements, and specify circum
stances under which a license to export can be denied 
or revoked and corresponding recourses to such 
actions. 

• Divesti ture of Gove rnmen t Lands a n d 
Enterpr ises . The Government has taken major steps 
to reverse its direct participation in agricultural pro
duction and marketing activities, as well as to sell 
some of its 800,000 acres in landholdings. In addition 
to selling about 77,000 acres to 14,000 small-scale 
farmers, the Government is expanding its land titling 
effort, which should enable landholders to obtain 
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credit more easily. Plans are also being implemented 
to privatize six additional agricultural enterprises that 
the Government owns. 

• Env i ronmenta l Protect ion. Steps are be
ing taken to establish an institutional framework to 
regulate the use of insecticides and pesticides. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Township Development Program: In 1987 the Bank 
approved two loans totaling $27.3 million from the 
OC to help carry out the second phase of Jamaica's 
Township Development Program in 12 areas of the 
country. The program is designed to improve basic 
infrastructure in communities that have farm potential 
and a solid economic base. Carried out by the Urban 
Development Corporation (UDC), the multiple works 
program has five components: roads, drainage, sec
ondary schools, health centers, and the strengthening 
of UDC. A year after the loan was approved, Hurri
cane Gilbert changed the scope of the work agenda 
considerably. Accordingly, the Bank's Board ap
proved reformulation of the program to allow un
committed funds, which totaled $26.4 million, to be 
programmed for restoration and repair of hurricane-
related damage. Repairs have been completed in 46 
institutions, are in progress in 105 facilities, and are 
slated to begin in 24. The roads component, which is 
complete, rehabilitated 175 miles of access roads and 
25 miles of rural roads. 

erbated when Hurricane Gilbert struck the island in 
1988, laying waste entire sections of farmland and 
further weakening agricultural output. Since then, 
program resources also have financed investments in 
working capital to help restore the agricultural sector's 
productive capacity by replanting domestic and ex
port food crops, as well as rebuilding shelter for the 
poultry industry. A technical cooperation component 
is strengthening ACB's capacity for financial and 
management reporting, project evaluation, loan ad
ministration, and monitoring. 

Global Agricultural Credit: In 1986, the Bank ap
proved a $16.2 million loan from the OC to support 
a program designed to spur farm production of 
traditional and new crops, create new jobs, as well as 
save and generate foreign exchange. The loan is 
three-quarters disbursed. It is being used by the 
Agricultural Credit Bank, Ltd. (ACB) to channel cred
its through commercial banks to private firms, pro
ducer associations, and individuals to finance fixed 
investments and technical inputs for agricultural and 
agroindustrial activities. At present, 169 operations 
are supported by credit from the program, mainly in 
poultry, aquaculture, perennial crops, livestock, 
flowers, as well as coffee and bananas for export. 

A decline in the agriculture sector prompted the 
program. Poor performance of the main export crops 
together with a high food-import bill combined to 
place a drain on foreign exchange, a situation exac-

DISTRIBITION OF LOANS 1969-90 
(In Thousands of U.S. Dollars) 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 

the Projects 
Industry and Mining $194.096 $ 254.995 
Agriculture and Fisheries 132,150 321.635 
Expon Financing 128.999 141,428 
Energy 123,384 173,900 
Environmental and Public Health 92.209 137,126 
Urban Development 68.984 95,000 
Education. Science and Technology 59,276 74,500 
Transportation and Communications 55.333 8". 150 
Tourism 11.810 26,410 
Preinvestment 7,519 11,900 

Total $873760 $1,327,044 
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MEXICO 

The Bank has made 134 loans totaling $6,440.9 
million to Mexico. Sector emphasis has been o n 
agriculture and fisheries, environmental and 
public health, industry and mining, transporta
tion and communications, and tourism. Cumu
lative disbursements total $5,423 million. In 1990, 
the Bank approved three loans for three projects, 
one Small Project financing, one major techni
cal cooperation and extended the use of a line of 
credit for export financing. 

LOANS 

Electric Sector Investment Program 

Financing: 

Executing 
Agency: 

$330 million from the OC; and 
cofinancing of $450 million from the 
International Bank for Reconstruction 
and Development 

Comisión Federal de Electricidad (CEE) 

This loan would finance part of the 1991-92 invest
ment program for Mexico's Electric Sector Works and 
Investment Plan covering 1989-98. The resources of 
the loan will be used to finance acquisition of 
equipment and material for the system's transmission 
and distribution works and for rehabilitation of ther
mal plants. 

The two-year investment program that the loan 
supports includes the following components: 

• Genera t ion . Work on new plants with a 
capacity of 2,300 megawatts (MW) will be completed 
and they will be put into service. Construction of 
others will be begun, which will add 4,500 MW more. 

• Transmiss ion . About 5,600 kilometers of 
high-voltage lines ranging from 138 kilovolts (kv) to 
400 kv will be put into service along with associated 
substations, bringing about 5,700 megavolt-amperes 
(MVA) of transforming capacity. 

• Distr ibut ion. About 500 kilometers of 138 
kv, 115 kv, and 69 kv lines will be installed. Other 
parts of this component are substations with a trans-

YEARIY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 
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forming capacity of 1,800 MVA; about 300 kilometers 
of primary distribution feeders; 1,600 kilometers of 
distribution lines; and the purchase of 1.7 million 
electric meters. 

• The rma l Unit Rehabil i tat ion Program. 
About 400 MW of generation capacity will be recov
ered by rehabilitating 38 units. In addition to upgrading 
the units to their nominal capacity of 6,700 MW, 
rehabilitation will add about 14 years of useful life to 
their operation. 

• Inst i tut ional S t rengthening . Studies will 
be carried out on forecasting demand and economic 
evaluations of transmission and distribution projects. 

• E n v i r o n m e n t a l Aspects . Environmental 
factors that could result from the installation of 
transmission lines and substations will be examined, 
as will the nature and scope of the prevailing air, land, 
and water pollution level caused by thermal plants. 
The latter study will include a technical and economic 

92 



INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

analysis of alternative ways to reduce pollution and 
effluents from thermal plants to permissible levels. 

Financial restrictions during most of the 1980s 
did not allow CFEto carry out a least-cost investment 
program. As a result, hydroelectric projects had to be 
postponed and spending on maintenance had to be 
held to a bare minimum. This program will expand 
the electric system's generation capacity to meet the 
average growth rate of demand over the next decade, 
estimated to be 7.4 percent a year. 

Monterrey Water Supply and Sewerage Project 

Financing: $325 million from the OC 
Executing 
Agency: Servicio de Agua y Drenaje de Monterrey 

(SADM) and Comisión Nacional de Agua 
(CNA) 

This loan will increase water supplies for the metro
politan area of Monterrey and improve its sewage 
system, addressing soil and water pollution that 
increasingly is becoming a problem in the area. The 
Bank has supported the three previous stages of the 
project since 1970. The fourth stage consists of three 
basic components: 

• The water supply component comprises seven 
subprojects. The El Cuchillo dam will be built to 
regulate the flow of the San Juan River, ensuring a 
maximum capacity of 10 cubic meters per second, 
and the Cuchillo-Monterrey water supply system 
consisting of 102 kilometers of piping and five 
pumping stations will be constructed. This compo
nent will also finance upgrading the San Roque water 
treatment plant to a capacity of 12 cubic meters per 
second; install secondary systems in low-income 
neighborhoods and private urban developments; and 
institute measures to help ensure more efficient use 
of water in the area. 

• The sanitation component includes expan
sion of secondary and main intercepting sewers 
measuring 130 kilometers in length, together with 
wastewater outfalls. Three wastewater treatment plants 
with a combined estimated capacity of eight cubic 
meters per second will be added to the area's system. 
Low-income neighborhoods and private urban devel
opments also will be served by secondary networks 
and household connections. 

• SADM and CNA technical staff will be trained, 
primarily in operating the three wastewater treatment 

plants to be built under the project. 
The sewerage system will ensure the proper 

treatment of wastewater, which has been being 
discharged into the streams, ravines, rivers, and 
irrigation areas of the metropolitan area. 

Transport and Telecommunications Sector 
Program 

Financing: 

Executing 
Agency: 

$300 million from the OC; and 
cofinancing of $380 million from the 
International Bank for Reconstruction 
and Development 

Secretaría de Comunicaciones y 
Transportes (SCT) 

The Bank's first sector loan supports policy measures 
that will make the transportation and telecommunica
tions sectors more efficient and increase their capac
ity to provide better services. The reforms will pro
vide opportunit ies for greater private sector 
involvement, encourage competition, and redefine 
the role of Government in the two sectors. 

This is one of a number of fast-disbursing loans 
that the Bank plans to provide to Mexico to support 
the Government's program to modernize the economy. 
Such financing is granted under a special facility, but 
on a parallel track with traditional investment loans 
that are helping consolidate a series of reforms 
already in progress. After seven years of economic 
adjustment, the condition of the Mexican economy 
has greatly improved. Private sector investment has 
replaced Government spending as the principal en
gine for economic growth. Major reforms have liber
alized trade policy and the financial system and 
transferred a considerable number of public compa
nies to the private sector. 

The transportation and telecommunications 
sectors play an important role in Mexico's efforts to 
liberalize trade and industry and encourage private 
enterprise, among other actions. The reform program 
that the Bank loan supports acts on five fronts: 

• Regulatory Frame-work. The program seeks 
to foster competition. To this end, the program will 
change the regulatory framework of both sectors to 
allow the government to intervene where needed. 
The program will also remove unnecessary regula
tions that stifle or impede competition and render 
services inefficient. 
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• Price a n d Rate Policies. New policies gov
erning rate and prices in both sectors should provide 
for better allocation of resources. The program sup
ported by the Bank's loan has allowed for the 
determination of flexible pricing structures and, as 
necessary, such as in highway transport, has de
regulated rates, which will be determined through 
negotiations between carriers and their customers. 

• Inst i tut ional Regulatory Capacities. The 
new and increased regulatory responsibility vested in 
SCThas created a need to strengthen and develop its 
capacity to enforce regulations and allocate invest
ment resources efficiently. SCTs structure and re
sponsibilities are currently being reorganized and an 
action plan is being developed to strengthen its 
institutional capacity. 

• D e v e l o p m e n t of t h e Te lecommunica 
t ions Sector. Teléfonos de México (TELMEX), the 
principal telecommunications company, has oper
ated under certain limitations. These have contributed 
to the company's inability to meet growing demand 
and offer modern, reliable services. One of the goals 
of the loan is to assist in the privatization of TELMEX, 
and to establish a new regulatory framework to 
promote and administer these services. This move, 
together with increased competition, is expected to 
bring about improved managerial efficiency of the 
companies in the sector as well as attract increased 
investment funds, experience, and technology, and 
satisfy demand. 

• Rules a n d Procedures . The program is 
streamlining rules and procedural guidelines that 
govern activities in both sectors to eliminate the 
bureaucratic steps that have caused inefficiency and 
blocked new companies from entering the market. 

The first disbursement of $150 million was made 
some days after the loan was signed on August 21, 
1990, and the second will be made in 1991. 

FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Support for Urban Microbusinesses 

The Bank approved a $500,000 loan using resources 
from the FSO for the Asesoría Dinámica a Micro-
Empresas (ADMIC) and associate organizations to 
provide credits to approximately 1,500 microbusinesses 
in Monterrey, Saltillo, Torreón, and Matamoros. For 
the most part, the resources will be used to support 
existing revolving funds and finance working capital, 

tools, and equipment for the expansion or consolida
tion of microbusinesses. The program is expected to 
create 2,800 new jobs. ADMIC, which received similar 
financing from the Bank in 1981, has had measurable 
impact on the microenterprise sector. It is estimated 
that 30 to 40 percent of the microbusinesses assisted 
by ADMIC now have sufficient means to turn to the 
formal financial market. Also under consideration 
through the program is the provision of technical 
cooperation funds totaling $85,000 that will be used 
for institutional strengthening to intermediary institu
tions. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Environmental Impact Study of the Guerrero-
Oaxaca Forestry Development Project 

A $450,000 nonreimbursable financing from the Ja
pan Special Fund will finance a study of the possible 
environmental impact that execution of a forestry 
development project would have in the states of 
Guerrero and Oaxaca. The forestry development 
project would eventually be financed by the Bank. 
The study will also establish efficient guidelines for 
achieving effective use and management of forest 
resources. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Tour i sm Credit Program: A Bank-supported pro
gram that is expanding Mexico's hotel capacity, 
creating jobs, and increasing foreign exchange earn
ings has committed credit to support 206 tourism-
related operations. The third stage of the country's 
Global Tourist Credit Program will help meet the 
increasing demand for hotel rooms generated by a 
growing tourism sector. As of late 1990, loans totaling 
$185.5 million had been committed for 206 opera
tions. Operations financed by the credits are bringing 
7,458 new rooms to the tourism sector and remodel
ing 3,052 rooms in existing facilities. A $40 million 
portion of the loan was reprogrammed to repair 
infrastructure comprising 3,659 rooms and 20 service 
installations damaged by Hurricane Gilbert. Besides 
increased short-term employment, the program is 
expected to generate 13,500 jobs in hotel operation 
and stimulate creation of about 27,000 new jobs in the 
service sector. The Bank's loan was extended to 
Nacional Financiera, S.N.C, which is channeling the 
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loan resources through the Fondo Nacional de Fomento 
al Turismo. 

Agricultural Credit Program: A $140 million loan 
from the Bank's OC approved in 1989 to stimulate 
agriculture and fishery production is completely 
disbursed. The loan financed the seventh stage of an 
agricultural program that extended credits to indi
vidual producers, producer groups, and associations 
to finance investments in a wide variety of projects in 
the agriculture and fisheries sectors. Known as FIRA, 
for the specialized agency (Fideicomisos Instituidos 
con Relación a la Agricultura) in the Banco de 
Mexico through which the credits are funneled, the 
program funded projects such as livestock raising, 
agroindustry, repair and equipping of tuna and shrimp 
fleets, construction of processing plants and breeding 
ponds for fish farming, and the organization of 
transportation and marketing networks and related 
activities in the fisheries sector. 

Heal th Services Improvemen t : Work is 55 percent 
complete on a Bank-supported program to improve 
the quality and expand the reach of health services, 
bringing primary health care to people with no 
previous access to those services. Loans that the Bank 
approved in 1986—$30 million from the OC and 
$11.3 million in local currency from the FSO—are 
helping the Ministry of Health in its efforts to raise the 
country's overall level of health, particularly in rural 
and marginal urban areas. The program is decentral
izing health services through the construction and 
equipping of 330 health centers mostly in rural areas, 
training more health-care professionals, improving 
the administrative capacity of the Ministry of Health 
and the states, and building hospitals where there are 
shortages of hospital beds. 

Nearly a third of the 220 health centers planned 
for rural areas of 1,000 to 2,500 inhabitants were 
completed by 1990, and work began on 16 others. 
Meanwhile, of the 60 centers planned for rural areas 
with more dense populations (2,500 to 15,000 resi
dents), more than a quarter were completed or under 
construction. Almost half of the 60 health centers 
planned for urban areas are complete, and work on 
four others is in progress. Construction has also 
begun on seven 60-bed hospitals to serve population 
centers of 20,000 to 50,000 residents and on two 120-
bed hospitals in communities of 50,000 to 100,000 
people. 

JACONA, MEXICO. The Empacadora del Celio packing 
plant in Michoacdn state exports about 600 tons of 
frozen vegetables and strawberries a month to the 
UnitedStates. The plant purchasedfourtransporttrucks 
with loans from the seventh stage of Mexico's national 
agricultural credit program. 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-90 
(In Thousands of US. Dollars) 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 
the Projects 

Agriculture and Fisheries $2,9^1,322 i 6.998,139 
Industry and Mining 829.193 2,848,217 
Environmental and Public Health 811,635 1,529,370 
Transportation and Communications 723,834 1,424,047 
Tourism 355,378 928,167 
Energy 3.30,000 5,880,000 
Education, Science and Technology 151,028 264.377 
Urban Development 96.465 196,305 
Export Financing 91.442 121,458 
Preinvestment 80.59" 148740 
Total «6,440,894 $20,338,820 
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NICARAGUA 

The Bank has made 45 loans totaling $468.9 
million to Nicaragua. Sector emphasis has been 
o n agriculture and fisheries, transportation, 
energy, health, and industry. Cumulative dis

bursements total $468.8 million. In 1990, the 
Bank approved a technical cooperation. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Support for Emergency Social Investment 
Fund (FISE) 

A $4 million technical cooperation grant from the 
SPTF will help establish the Emergency Social In

vestment Fund (FISE) to channel international and 
national resources to smallscale projects benefiting 
lowincome people. It is expected that once FISE is 
organized, the U.S. Agency for International Develop

ment and other donors would contribute to the fund. 
FISE will in turn mobilize the private sector, govern

mental and nongovernmental organizations, and 
community groups to prepare and carry out projects 
in areas such as health, nutrition, education, rehabili

tation of economic and social infrastructure, and 
vocational training. The Bank's financing will be used 
to recruit and train technical staff and consultants, and 
to purchase equipment and other inputs necessary to 
establish FISE as an executing agency. It will also 
finance the implementation of the smallscale projects 
in order to provide FISE with the necessary experi

ence in project management to prepare a second and 
larger Bank operation in 1991 Concurrently, the 
United Nations Development Programme is helping 
to formulate a social development and antipoverty 
plan and will help in establishing FISE. 

The Nicaraguan economy experienced serious 
economic and financial imbalances during the 1980s. 
The Government has launched a structural stabiliza

tion and adjustment program for the 199093 period 
to address the imbalances in the fiscal and financial 
sectors and external trade. The economic policy 
measures are expected to be beneficial in the me

dium and long term but in the short term, they are 
exacerbating undesirable conditions for the most 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 

60 

81 82 83 84 85 86 87 88 89 90 

| Yearly Lending 

■■ Yearly Disbursements 

vulnerable segments of the society. FISE's initial 
activities, in which 97 projects will be financed, will 
help cushion this undesirable nearterm impact, pav

ing the way for a much broader effort in the future. 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 196190 
(In Thousands of U.S. Dollars) 

Sector Amount 
'total Cost of 
the Projects 

Agriculture and Fisheries Î194,535 $444,843 
Transportation and Communications 65,259 117» I i 
Energy 57,636 132,340 
Environmental and Public Health 53,619 89,050 
Industry and Mining 42,983 76,453 
Urban Development 22,514 39,496 
Education, Science and Technology 10,333 12,297 
Export Financing 1,826 2,609 
Preinvestment 148 398 
Other 20.000 20,000 

Total S468.853 S934.900 
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PANAMA 

The Bank has made 76 loans totaling $872.3 
million to Panama. Sector emphasis has been o n 
energy, transportation and communications, 
agriculture and fisheries, education, and urban 
development. Cumulative disbursements total 
$7233 million. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHT 

Suppor t for Rural Youths a n d Women: A small 
project loan of $500,000 from the FSO and a $80,000 
nonreimbursable technical cooperation approved in 
1985 have provided credit and technical training for 
4H Club members and women's groups in Panama. 
From 1987 to the present, the program made 379 
loans to support activities related to agriculture (76 
percent), fisheries (22 percent), and artisanry (2 
percent). About 45 percent of the beneficiaries were 
women. Carried out by the nonprofit organization 
Patronato Nacional de la Juventud Rural Panameña 
(PANAJURU), the small project financing established 
a revolving credit fund to provide subcredits to young 
men and women 4H Club members between the 
ages of 14 and 25 years, and to women organized in 
housewives clubs. The technical cooperation was 
used both to train beneficiaries and strengthen 
PANAJURU. Almost 3,000 people benefited from 
seminars. 

The loan and TC have helped build the ben

eficiaries' productive capacities so that they remain in 
rural areas. At the time the operations were approved, 
about 40 percent of Panama's 1.8 million people lived 
in rural areas. Of these, an estimated 42 percent were 
between the ages of 10 and 19 years. The farm 
economy was unable to absorb the young people 
with the result that they migrated to urban centers. 

YEARL Y LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 
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DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 196190 
(In Thousands of U.S. Dollars) 
Sector Amount 

Total Cost of 
the Projects 

Energy 
Transportation and Communications 
Agriculture and Fisheries 
Education, Science and Technology 
Urban Development 
Environmental and Public Health 
Industry and Mining 
Preinvestment 
Tourism 
Export Financing 
Other 

Total 

$290,415 
181,411 
147168 
"0.135 
52,562 
45,907 
33.623 
20.904 
20,8"76 

1,000 
8.340 

S872.341 

$ 597,272 
395,304 
236,662 
108.500 
82,420 
72,157 
61,694 
41,460 
41,822 

1.429 

S 1,638,720 
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PARAGUAY 

The Bank has made 60 loans totaling $654.3 
million to Paraguay. Sector emphasis has been 
o n energy; agriculture and fisheries; environ
mental and public health; transportation and 
communications; and education, science, and 
technology. Cumulative disbursements total 
$514.3 million. In 1990, the Bank approved one 
loan for one project and one major technical 
cooperation. 

LOAN 

Global Industrial Credit Program 

YEARL Y LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 

Financing: 

Executing 
Agency: 

$30 million from the FSO and a $1 
million technical cooperation grant from 
the FSO 

Banco Nacional de Fomento (BNF) 

This program supports the Paraguayan Government's 
comprehensive ongoing effort to reform economic 
policy. In order for the private industrial sector to 
respond effectively to the more competitive and 
market-oriented environment created by the ongoing 
policy reforms, it needs immediate financing, since 
there is currently little long-term financing—domestic 
or external—available to Paraguay's industrial sector. 
The program is expected to help reverse the invest
ment decline, giving the manufacturing sector a 
needed boost by providing long-term financing for 
industrial investment, while preparing the way for 
future financial sector reforms. The program has two 
components: 

• The credit component, which will be chan
neled through the BNF, will make subloans available 
to private domestic corporations and individuals 
involved in the country's three main industrial 
subsectors. These are cotton ginning, cotton spin
ning, and edible oils. Cotton and soybeans together 
account for more than 80 percent of Paraguay's 
exports. The credit will also help address two 
bottlenecks in agricultural exports: agricultural stor
age and transportation. The program will make 
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subloans available to build more silos and larger river 
barges to facilitate more efficient transportation of 
commodities on the Paraguay and Paraná Rivers. 

• The technical cooperation component will 
focus primarily on financial sector reform, and at the 
same time lay the foundation for a future financial 
sector reform loan. The component will help strengthen 
the supervisory capacity of the Superintendencia de 
Bancos to carry out its regulatory functions so that 
commercial banks can participate in a future sector 
loan. Background studies needed for the proposed 
sector loan also would be performed as part of this 
component. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Strengthening Public Sector Priority Areas 

A $3,540,000 nonreimbursable financing from the 
FSO will permit the Finance Ministry to consolidate 
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and expand efforts to strengthen Paraguay's public 
sector in the areas of taxation, public finance, invest
ment programming, and economic policy. It comple
ments an earlier Bank financing approved in 1984. 
The current financing consists of three subprograms: 
1) support for tax reform resulting in the implemen
tation of a value-added tax, among other measures; 2) 
strengthening of public finance management including 
the administrative restructuring of the Finance Min
istry and financial programming and management of 
public debt; and 3) improvement of procedures, 
institutional framework and training of technical staff 
involved in project evaluation and programming of 
public investment. The Government of Paraguay is 
committed to implementing a program aimed at 
rationalizing its financial system, permitting an increase 
in revenue while at the same time establishing a 
system of more effective control over budgetary 
expenditures. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Universi ty Improvemen t : A $28 million program 
launched in 1982 to expand the capacity of the 
Universidad Nacional de Asunción (UNA)to meet the 
growing higher education needs of Paraguay is nearly 
finished. During the 1970s, enrollment at UNA more 
than tripled, greatly exceeding the university's aca
demic and physical capacity. Supported by a $22.4 
million loan from the Bank's FSO, the project is 
making possible the transfer of faculties from a 
number of buildings downtown to a new, expanded 
campus in the outskirts of Asunción, while updating 
curriculums, programs, and teaching methods, as 
well as improving teaching skills. Seven of the 
campus's 12 buildings slated for construction have 
been completed, and work on the remainder of the 
campus is more than 85 percent done. Besides new 
buildings for the faculties of engineering, architec
ture, veterinary medicine, agronomy, and basic and 
health sciences, the loan is financing a technical 
research center, computer center, library, and a 
building for university services. The centralized com
puter equipment has been installed, and $1 million 
worth of books are being purchased for the shelves 
of the new library. The project's $2.8 million technical 
cooperation component is funding the institutional 
strengthening aspects of the program. Eighteen of the 
19 consultants retained to study various aspects of the 
university's administrative structure have completed 

their work and made recommendations on building 
and maintaining an efficiently operating system. 
Work is also in progress to improve instruction and 
develop research capabilities at UNA. All but one of 
the consultants performing curriculum studies have 
finished reports. A fellowship program has sent 13 
participants abroad for master's level studies. In 
addition, faculty members are being recruited from 
abroad for temporary assignment at UNA. 

Rural Health Services: The second stage of a na
tional rural health program to provide services to all 
Paraguayans is 91 percent finished. The Bank sup
ported both stages, the first with a loan of $4.9 million, 
and with a loan in 1982 for $12.2 million from the FSO. 
Through the program, health services are extended to 
about 430,000 mostly low-income people—70,000 of 
whom were without previous access to such care. At 
the heart of the program is the construction, staffing, 
and equipping of a pyramidal system of health 
facilities, 60 of which are in service. Seventy-five 
health posts providing minimum primary health 
services for 2,000 to 4,000 people form the foundation 
of the system, followed by a higher level of care— 
both in-patient and out-patient—offered by 16 health 
centers covering areas of up to 20,000 inhabitants. 
Fifty-nine health posts and six health centers are 
finished. Two regional health centers, each with a 30-
bed capacity, are also completed. Each provides care 
for populations ranging from 20,000 to 100,000. A 
national training center to prepare staff for the new 
health facilities also has been completed. Ministry of 
Health staff designated for training abroad have 
completed their studies and returned to their jobs. All 
project facilities are expected to be in full operation 
early in 1991. 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-90 
(In Thousands of I '.S. Dolíais) 
Sector Amount 

total 
the 

Cost of 
Projects 

Energy $180,241 
Agriculture and Fisheries 139,747 
Environmental and Public Health 102.672 
Transportation and Communications 95,609 
Education. Science and Technology 59736 
Industry and Mining 55,08~ 
Urban Development 10769 
Tourism 4.486 
Preinvestment 436 
Other 5.503 

Total S654.286 

287,012 
234.211 
171,017 
114,431 
84,280 
"9.513 
16.2-3 
6,608 
582 

«1,023,927 
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PERU 

The Bank has made 110 loans totaling $1,643.4 
mill ion to Peru. Sector emphasis has been o n 
agriculture and fisheries, industry and mining, 
energy, export financing, and transportation 
and communications. Cumulative disbursements 
total $ 1,5 58.8 million. In 1990, the Bank approved 
a major technical cooperation grant. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Earthquake Relief 

This $200,000 nonreimbursable financing from the 
FSO financed the purchase of galvanized corrugated 
roofing materials to help meet the urgent need for 
building supplies following an earthquake in the 
northeast, May 29, 1990. The earthquake, which 
measured 5.8 on the Richter Scale, killed 80 persons, 
injured 100, and damaged 48,000 homes. The roofing 
materials purchased with the technical cooperation 
will cover houses and health clinics during recon
struction. 

YEARL Y LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 
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^m Yearly Disbursements 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Geophysical Explora t ion in La Selva: In 1983, the 
Bank approved a $20 million loan from the OC to 
PETROPERU supporting a project to conduct geo
physical surveys and studies in three specific sections 
of La Selva to identify new hydrocarbon deposits. 
Development of the hydrocarbons sector is funda
mental for increasing Peru's capacity to generate 
foreign exchange. Petroleum exports amounted to 
about $800 million in 1981, representing 21 percent 
of all exports. The project includes compilation, 
processing, and interpreting of geophysical data, 
which are prerequisites to exploration. Regional 
detailed seismic line surveys have been completed in 
one of the sections covered in the project and are 
expected to be finished in the other two sections by 
early 1991 • Seismic surveys are key to defining subsoil 
structure, an important step in locating underlying 
hydrocarbons. Surveys conducted to date point to 17 

potential finds in Lot 8, yielding an estimated 479 
million barrels of oil, and another 17 finds on the 
other two lots, with potential for producing 304 
million barrels. One of the project's major studies 
incorporating all the geological and geophysical data 
gathered has been completed. Submitted to 
PETROPERU in April, the report will serve as the basis 
for programming exploratory drilling. 

Artisan Fisheries Program: Work on a program to 
improve the quality and availability of fish in Peru is 
almost completed, despite the country's financial 
difficulties. The program, which is 98 percent com
plete, was funded by two Bank loans totaling $14.5 
million—a $12.5 million loan from the OC and a $2 
million FSO loan. Both were approved in 1982. As a 
consequence of Peru's debt-servicing difficulties, it 
became necessary for the Bank to suspend disburse-
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ICA, PERU. Farmers in the lea 
Valley produce 2.5 million kilos 
of asparagus annually for ex
port, primarily to the United 
States. With loans from a $102 
million government agricultural 
credit program financed by the 
Bank, farmers switched to the 
new cash crop in this area long 
dominated by cotton. The credit 
program started in 1983 and 
has helped about 6,000farmers 
expand production and buy 
supplies and equipment. 

ments on both loans in April 1988, and subsequently 
to cancel the loan balances totaling $5.2 million. 

The Ministry of Fisheries used the loans to build 
small-port and fish-handling facilities for small-scale 
fishermen at 23 locations along the coast. These 
facilities are 97 percent finished. A marketing com
ponent to train fish sellers to minimize spoilage and 
loss, and to educate low-income consumers to the 
benefits of incorporating fish into their diets was 
curtailed. The project's study of how to strengthen the 
Instituto del Mar del Peru, the agency responsible for 
fishery research, also was concluded. 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-
(ln Thousands of I '.S. Dollars) 

90 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 
the Projects 

Agriculture and Fisheries $ 466,315 $1,165,252 
Industry and Mining 455,742 1.1_0,542 
Energy' 213.825 689,634 
Export Financing 158,756 233,937 
Transportation and Communications 152,864 302,871 
Environmental and Public Health 91,039 225,980 
Urban Development 53,685 101.105 
Tourism 31,446 71,400 
Preinvestment 10,438 28,396 
Education, Science and Technology 9,308 22,330 
Total S 1,643,418 S4.011.44" 
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SURINAME 

The Bank has made five loans totaling $22.1 
million to Suriname. Sector emphasis has been 
o n education, health, and industry and mining. 
Cumulative disbursements total $8.7 million. In 
1990, the Bank approved one major technical 
cooperation. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Strengthening of Tax Administration System 

A $3,120,000 nonreimbursable financing from the 
FSO will help Suriname strengthen the tax administra
tion system, particularly in the area of direct tax 
organization and management, administrative poli
cies and procedures, and information systems. The 
project will be carried out by the Ministry of Finance 
through the Office of Tax Administration (OTA). The 
resources will be used to make changes or adjustments 
to the organization, structure, and management of 
OTA, including its computer center; redesign policies, 
methods, forms, and procedures used in each of the 
operational areas related to taxpayer files, including 
the implementation of a new computerized system 
for the taxpayer master file-, formulate recommenda
tions for tax law changes to simplify and enhance 
taxpayer compliance; and provide training for the 
efficient operation of the new system. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHT 

to teacher training are finished, and the purchase of 
books destined for the 54 schools is in progress. A 
study examining educational planning is finished, 
and the report submitted. The project is advancing the 
Government's plan to improve educational research; 
develop curriculums; train teachers; develop support 
mechanisms and services; and improve literacy rates. 

P r imary Education Improvemen t : A project to 
improve the quality of primary education in Suriname 
is 35 percent complete. The $10 million project is 
supported by two Bank loans totaling $8 million— 
$6.5 million from the OC and $1.5 million from the 
FSO—approved in 1985. The four components of the 
project are construction and operation of a learning 
resource center, now under construction; printing 
and distribution of nearly one million textbooks and 
teachers' guides; training of primary school teachers 
as well as professors to train future teachers; and 
installation of libraries at 54 schools. Activities related 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1980-90 
(In Thousands of I IS. Dollars) 
Sector 

Education. Science and Technology 
Environmental and Public Health 
Industry and Mining 

Total 

Amount 
$ 8,141 

7,793 
6,148 

S22.082 

Total Cost of 
the Projects 

Í10.000 
9700 

10,000 

«29,700 
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TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO 

The Bank has made 19 loans totaling $180.3 
mill ion to Trinidad and Tobago. Sector empha
sis has been on urban development, education, 
agriculture and fisheries, transportation and 
public health. Cumulative disbursements total 
$54 million. In 1990, the Bank approved one 
Small Project financing, one major technical 
cooperation and extended the use of a line of 
credit for export financing. 

FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Support for Urban Microproducers 

A $500,000 financing from the FSO will be used by the 
Trinidad and Tobago Development Foundation Ltd. 
(FUND AID), a private non-profit organization, to 
make credits and training available to low-income 
individuals and groups involved in establishing or 
expanding microenterprises located primarily in ur
ban areas of the country. The credits will be extended 
for small production and service activities such as the 
manufacturing of furniture and clothing, repair shops 
for electrical appliances and automobiles, and service 
industries such as hairdressers, printers, and bakeries. 
The program will assist approximately 300 beneficiaries 
directly, of whom at least half will be young people 
between the ages of 16-19. It is also estimated that 60 
percent of the beneficiaries will be female. Technical 
cooperation funds totaling $115,000 will provide 
training to loan recipients in small business man
agement. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Strengthening of Planning and Project Cycle 
Management 

YEARL Y LENDING" AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 

80 

81 82 83 84 85 86 87 88 89 90 

I Yearly Lending 

warn Yearly Disbursements 

'Trinidad and Tobago, which joined the Bank in 1967, did not 
apply for Bank loans between 1975 and 1984. 

nents: 1) assistance to the MPM in the development 
of systems and procedures for the preparation, imple
mentation, and monitoring of the Public Sector De
velopment Program; 2) training in the identification, 
analysis and preparation of investment projects for 
personnel with project development and appraisal 
responsibility; and 3) the design and implementation 
of a project management information system that will 
permit the MPM to prioritize its project inventory by 
taking account of the net economic worth of each 
investment, relative to financial constraints on local 
counterpart funds and foreign exchange. 

A $1,677,000 nonreimbursable financing from the 
FSO will be used by the Ministry of Planning and 
Mobilization (MPM) and other ministries to formulate, 
implement and manage development projects effi
ciently. The program consists of three main compo-

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHT 

East-West Cor r idor Highway: With the recent 
completion of this project, the many people traveling 
the 25-kilometer East-West Corridor in Trinidad are 

103 



INTER-AMERICAN DIA 'ELOPMENTBANK 

POINT LISAS, TRINIDAD AND 
TOBAGO. Credit extended from 
a $1 million 1985 IDB loan 
channeled through Trinidad 
and Tobago's Export Develop
ment Bank provided working 
capital that enabled the 
CENTRIN merchant bar plant to 
increase production of rebars 
and other steel construction 
products for export to other 
Caribbean countries and the 
United States. The loan was 
madefrom the Venezuelan Trust 
Fund administered by the IDB 

finding their journey much less time-consuming and 
harrowing. Completed eight months ahead of the 
deadline for disbursement and at a 60 percent sav
ings, the project has expanded two major traffic 
arteries and relieved congestion between Port of 
Spain and the Piarco Airport turnoff. The project has 
reconstructed and widened to four lanes a 4.6-
kilometer stretch of the two-lane Churchill-Roosevelt 
Highway, and completed the new 23-kilometer prior
ity bus route between Port of Spain and Arima by 
adding 7.3 kilometers. At the request of the borrower, 
$7.8 million was canceled from a $24.6 million loan 
approved by the Bank in 1985 from the OC to help 
fund the project. The Government obtained Bank 
approval to reprogram the other part of the savings, 
which will pay for lengthening the four-lane highway 
by yet another 6.1 kilometers towards Arima. The 
engineering designs for the additional stretch of 
highway have been completed and work is under 
way. 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1967-90 
(In 'thousands of U.S. Dollars) 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 
the Projects 

Urban Development $ 70,313 $ 97,240 
Education, Science and Technology 40,873 55,219 
Agriculture and Fisheries 29,182 42,898 
Transportation and Communications 18,138 59,398 
Environmental and Public Health 8,427 20,090 
Export Financing 7,320 7320 
Preinvestment 6,012 9.239 

Total 8180,265 S291.4Û4 
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URUGUAY 

The Bank has made 61 loans totaling $798.1 
mill ion to Uruguay. Sector emphasis has been 
o n transportation and communications, agri
culture and fisheries, environmental and public 
health, urban development, and energy. Cumu
lative disbursements total $ 525.9 million. In 1990, 
the Bank approved two loans for two projects, 
two Small Project financings, and two major 
technical cooperations. 

LOANS 

Municipal Development Program n 

Financing: $28 million from the OC; the interest 
rate on the loan will be partially defrayed 
by the IFF 

Executing 
Agency: Ministry of Transportation and Public 

Works (MTOP) and other agencies 

The program will finance a variety of municipal 
infrastructure works such as street paving and sanita
tion facilities and strengthen the capability of munici
pal governments to deliver services. The program is 
part of a national strategy to improve the quality of life 
for urban populations in 18 departments. The program 
consists of two subprograms: 

• Works . A sizeable proportion of the loan's 
resources will be used to finance street repairs, 
sanitation and storm drainage works. In street repairs, 
works include street paving, curbs and gutters, and 
preparatory work for future sidewalks. In sanitation, 
works include water intake, well drilling, pumping, 
treatment, storage, distribution, and house connec
tions to drinking water supply systems, sewage 
collection systems, outfalls, pumping stations, puri
fication plants, and house and in-house connections 
to sanitary sewerage systems. Storm drainage works 
include the installation of pipes, culverts and chan
nels to handle rainwater. 

In addition, the program will finance a bus 
terminal in San José, a student residence in Melo, and 
community centers in Mercedes and Baltasar Brum. 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 

160 

120 

81 82 83 84 85 86 87 88 89 90 

I Yearly Lending 

^m Yearly Disbursements 

• Inst i tut ional S t rengthening . This subpro
gram will strengthen municipalities in the areas of 
financial and project management and land registry 
systems. In financial management, advisory services 
will be provided to strengthen revenue administra
tion, reduction of arrears, cost recovery, and rational
ization and programming of expenditures. Municipal 
officials will be trained in project identification, 
preparation, evaluation, execution, and supervision, 
enabling municipalities to become borrowers in fu
ture municipal development programs. The land 
registry component will update the urban and subur
ban land registers of the principal cities and towns in 
the 18 departments of the country. The updated 
registry can be used in conjunction with improve
ments in tax administration to increase revenue 
collection. The Municipal Development Directorate 
(DDM) of the MTOP, the coordinating unit of the 
program, will also be strengthened and provided 
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MONTEVIDEO, URUGUAY. A 2.2 kilometer underwater 
pipeline to discharge treated wastewater offshore was 
completed in 1990 and has cut pollution of the city's 
beaches by 95%. The outfall line is part of a $120 million 
urban sanitation project for the city financed by a 1981 
IDB loan. A German firm built the pipeline. American 
firms provided pumps and motors for the sewage 
pumping station. 

equipment in order to carry out the project. The 
program is a continuation of a previous project, and 
at the same time, paves the way for a future global 
credit program to benefit the same municipal districts. 

Global Credit Program for Small Business and 
Microenterprises 

Financing: 

Executing 
agency: 

$7 million from the OC and a $2.2 
million technical cooperation grant from 
the FSO; the interest rate on the OC loan 
will be partially defrayed by the IFF 

National Corporation for Development 
(CND) 

The loan and technical cooperation will expand 
access to and coverage of the credit and technical 
assistance needs of small businesses and microentre
preneurs in Uruguay to improve working conditions, 
income, and productivity. The program will develop 
and strengthen the institutions engaged in providing 
training, technical assistance, and credit for small 
business and microenterprises. The program also 
strives to achieve greater participation of intermedi
ary financing institutions from the formal sector by 
implementing mechanisms consistent with financial 
market conditions to transfer resources. 

The credit component will finance the acquisi
tion of fixed assets, working capital, and advisory 
services by small businesses and microentrepreneurs 
working in production, services, and merchandising. 

The technical assistance and training compo
nent will be used to strengthen the CND; the inter
mediary institutions, and technical assistance institu
tions that extend loans and provide strengthening 
and business counseling to small businesses and 
microentrepreneurs. 

This program departs from the conventional 
approach to microenterprise credit programs in that 
it extends coverage to a segment of the production 
sector not ordinarily covered—the small business. 
Small businesses, like microenterprises, face similar 
obstacles in accessing conventional sources of credit. 
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They are also constrained by technological and 
organizational problems. 

The program is expected to reach a sizeable 
number of women entrepreneurs. 

FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Support for Small-Scale Rural Producers 

A $500,000 financing from the FSO will be used by the 
Asociación de Colonos del Uruguay (ACU) to make 
credit available to small farmers living in the Dr. 
Tomás Berreta settlement along the banks of the 
Uruguay River in the Department of Rio Negro. ACU 
is a non-profit organization helping farmers that live 
in settlements and have benefited from land distribu
tions carried out by the National Land Settlement 
Institute. An earlier Bank financing in 1985 enabled 
ACU to assist farmers in the Department of San José. 
The current program will benefit 150 rural producers, 
including dairy, sheep, and produce farmers, and 
beekeepers. Credits from a revolving fund will be 
used for investment in fixed assets and working 
capital. One of the primary objectives of the project 
is to intensify production techniques, particularly in 
irrigation and mechanization, in order to increase the 
yield per acre. A special agricultural and management 
training program will be designed and carried out for 
the women of the settlement. Technical assistance 
funds totaling $110,000 will strengthen ACUand hire 
experts to help renovate irrigation systems and carry 
out a pilot project in fish and frog farming. 

Support for Women Microentrepreneurs 

The goal of this $300,000 financing from the FSO is to 
improve the socioeconomic status of women en
gaged in microenterprises and increase real family 
income in Montevideo and other regions by creating 
new jobs and raising productivity levels. The program 
will be carried out by the Fundación Uruguaya de 
Ayuda y Asistencia a la Mujer (FUAAM) and will 
consist of a comprehensive training and credit pro
gram. Training will include courses in management, 
accounting, marketing and investment project prepa
ration. The credit program is expected to expand the 
operations of approximately 300 women microentre
preneurs engaged primarily in small-scale operations 
such as textiles, clothing, leather, shoes, and furni
ture. Technical cooperation funds totaling $126,000 

will be used to strengthen the technical and manage
ment capacity of FUAAM, particularly in the areas of 
credit and training. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Support for Tax Information System 

A $1,722,000 nonreimbursable financing from the 
FSO will help strengthen the tax information system 
of Uruguay's General Tax Directorate by expanding 
the taxpayer master file and current account systems 
in order to increase fiscal receipts and reduce tax 
evasion. Middle-income residents of the country's 
interior and large potential taxpayers from Montevideo 
will be added to the computerized information sys
tem. Additional activities include establishing a de
centralized real-time collection system in the Re
gional Administrations; improving current procedures 
and strengthening managerial, auditing, and inspec
tion data systems; and providing training for staff of 
all offices of the General Tax Directorate. 

Aid to Low-Income Families in Montevideo 

A $775,000 nonreimbursable financing from the SPTF 
will be used for the construction of basic infrastruc
ture and housing units to meet the immediate shelter 
needs of about 140 low-income families currently 
living on vacant land or in slums in the central area 
of Montevideo. The families will be relocated to 
government land in two groups, near to where they 
work. To conduct the program, a system of initial 
loans to the beneficiaries will be set up during the 
construction period to provide financing for the basic 
units. Part of the construction work will be done by 
the beneficiaries who, under the program design, can 
own their units. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Urban Sanitat ion in Montevideo: The first stage of 
a three-part program to clean up Montevideo's shore
line and bay is finished and expected to be fully 
operational in early 1991- Financed by a Bank loan of 
$48 million from the OC, the first stage of the 
integrated urban sanitation program has cleaned the 
eastern section of the shoreline between Punta Carreta 
and the Carrasco stream. The loan was approved in 
1981. The program is updating Montevideo's sanita-
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tion system, which was built more than a century ago, 
when the capital's population was a fraction of what 
it is today. Untreated wastewater was discharged at 
more than 20 points along the city's 30-kilometer 
coastal strip, fouling areas used for recreation, including 
water sports, fishing, and swimming. Stage one of the 
program installed 20.5 kilometers of intercepting 
sewers, six pumping stations, a preliminary treatment 
plant, and an underwater outfall to the Rio de la Plata 
estuary. An especially important part of the program 
is the outfall, which at 2.2 kilometers in length and 1.8 
meters in diameter, is where final treatment of the 
wastewater takes place. The outfall was inaugurated 
in December 1990. The outfall is also key to the 
program's second stage, which is financed by a $26 
million Bank loan from the OC approved in 1989-
Under the second stage, wastewater from the western 
part of the city will be intercepted and processed 
through the part of the system installed during the first 
stage and channeled into the Rio de la Plata. Studies 
preliminary to Stage II were financed by the Bank's 
first loan. Stage I of the program has cleaned more 
than 50 percent of the coastal area that is open to the 
public and over 95 percent of the city's beaches. Once 
the first and second stages are completed, shoreline 
water quality will comply with international standards. 

Agroindustr ia l Cooperat ives: To help finance an 
agroindustrial development program for farm coop
eratives in the northwestern part of the country, the 
Bank in 1984 approved two loans totaling $22.8 
million—$12.5 million from the OC and $10.3 million 
from the FSO. Significant progress in carrying out the 
three-part program has been achieved. A water-use 
study and the rehabilitation of the irrigation system 
used by the Calpica sugar cooperative to cultivate 
1,800 hectares of sugarcane are completed. The 
second component, now 85 percent complete, in
volves the Calvinor cooperative, which increased 
grape production, installed infrastructure for wine 
production, and constructed a packing and cold 
storage plant for table grapes. Eighty-four additional 
hectares have been planted in table grapes and a wine 
storage warehouse is under construction. Work has 
been slower in the third project at the Calagua 
cooperative, where activities to improve the irrigation 
system for vegetable farming have been hampered by 
heavier than usual rainfall. Nevertheless, work has 
advanced to the 75 percent mark. Nearly all the 

necessary agricultural equipment has been purchased, 
and construction of a facility to freeze vegetables 
began this year. The program is diversifying and 
industrializing agricultural production, is generating 
new jobs, and will help strengthen the country's 
balance of payments position by increasing the 
production of nontraditional crops. 

Fishery Research: The principal component of a 
project aimed at helping Uruguay fully develop the 
potential of its fishing resources is now in place and 
in use. It is a fishery research vessel, Aldebaran, which 
was delivered in 1990 from a boat yard in Argentina. 
The ship's purchase was partially financed by a $10 
million loan from the Bank's OC approved in 1982. 
Another important part of the project is establishment 
offish biology and industrial technology laboratories. 
All these components will help strengthen the man
agement of fishery resources and improve their 
sustainable catch. Owing to unexpected delays in 
equipping both facilities, the project, which is 92 
percent complete, has been extended six months. It 
is expected to finish at 22 percent under budget. The 
importance of the Uruguayan fishery sector is growing. 
During the 1970s, it achieved new prominence as a 
foreign exchange earner and employer. The value of 
fish exports increased from $600,000 in 1973 to S60.5 
million in 1981 and $82.8 million in 1987, falling to 
$59.6 million in 1989. 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-90 
(In Thousands of U.S. Dollars) 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 
the Projects 

Transportation and Communications $268,828 $ 454,759 
Agriculture and Fisheries 172,734 265,245 
Environmental and Public Health 139,298 203,112 
Urban Development 77,365 100,301 
Energy 62,042 162,009 
Industry and Mining 34,900 138,536 
Expon Financing 8,940 12,771 
Tourism 8,725 17,091 
Preinvestment 7,761 13,204 
Education, Science and Technology 4,524 54,186 
Other 13,000 13,001 

Total «798,117 «1,434,215 
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VENEZUELA 

The Bank has made 47 loans totaling $2,195.2 
million to Venezuela. Sector emphasis has been 
o n energy, industry and mining, financial and 
public sector reform, environmental and public 
health, and agriculture and fisheries. Cumulative 
disbursements total $950.2 million. In 1990, the 
Bank approved five loans for five projects, and 
one Small Project financing. 

LOANS 

Financial Sector Reform Loan 

Financing: 

Executing 
Agency: 

$300 million from the OC; and 
cofinancing of $300 million from the 
International Bank for Reconstruction 
and Development 

Central Bank of Venezuela 

This loan supports changes in financial sector poli

cies, which will help to improve the efficiency in the 
financial sector and in the resource allocation process 
for the economy as a whole. The reforms also aim to 
strengthen domestic savings. Reforming the financial 
sector is a key element of the prevailing economic 
program tailored to reduce government's role in 
economic activity, promote greater competition, and 
allow market forces to be the main allocator of 
resources. 

This loan is one of two quickdisbursing loans 
to Venezuela supporting the Government's efforts to 
restore high economic growth rates in a climate of 
price stability and balanced external accounts. It will 
be disbursed in three parts, or tranches, against the 
progress of a specified agenda of reforms. Financial 
sector reforms supported by this loan will complement 
the Government's efforts to restructure public enter

prises (an effort that the Bank is also supporting) by 
channeling resources to productive sectors and re

ducing obstacles to investment such as weak financial 
institutions and excessive government intervention. 

Reforms in the financial sector will be imple
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mented in stages, with this loan supporting a first 
stage with six specific objectives: 

• The streamlining and relaxation of controls 
on credit and interest rates to allow the market to 
determine them. The goal is to establish an interest

rate policy that allows rates to reflect the opportunity 
cost of funds. 

• Reducing government involvement in the 
banking system and development banking. Plans call 
for privatizing three commercial banks currently 
being managed by the Central Bank of Venezuela. 
These will be put up for sale before disbursement of 
the second tranche, and sold before the third is 
disbursed. Disbursements also will be conditioned 
upon the Government's restructuring its interest in six 
other commercial banks. Under the restructuring, one 
bank will be liquidated and the others reorganized. 
Two development funds, one for agriculture and one 
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for industry and other non-agricultural activities, will 
be set up as second-tier financiers. 

• Streamlining lending operations of the Cen
tral Bank of Venezuela to make them more transpar
ent, thus minimizing distortions in financial interme
diation. Specifically, the central bank's lending rates 
will be based on the market, and its role in financial 
intermediation reduced so that financial institutions 
are compelled to turn to other sources of liquidity. 
Furthermore, public agencies portfolio management 
by the Central Bank will be eliminated, thus enabling 
these agencies to manage their funds directly. 

• Reforming the regulatory structure and 
strengthening bank supervision. The roles of the 
system's four regulatory agencies will be clarified to 
eliminate overlap, and standards for auditing and 
reporting will be strengthened. 

• Improvement of the financial condition of the 
commercial banking system. The superintendency of 
Banks shall implement specific and more stringent 
regulations aimed at improving loan classifications, 
provisioning and write-off procedures. In addition, 
intervention mechanisms for bank crisis management 
will be strengthened. At present, the functions and 
powers of the regulatory agency for crisis management 
are ill-defined. 

• Liberalization of banking operations to in
crease competition. Full-service banking will be cre
ated and restrictions on the entry of foreign banks and 
foreign ownership of commercial banks will gradu
ally be lifted or considerably eased. 

Public Enterprise Reform Loan 

Financing: $300 million from the OC and a $5 
million parallel reimbursable technical 
c o o p e r a t i o n from the OC; and 
cofinancing of $350 million from the 
International Bank for Reconstruction 
and Development 

Executing 
Agency: The Central Coordinating and Planning 

Unit, Office of the President of the 
Republic 

This loan bolsters a program that will change the role 
of the public sector in the economy by restructuring 
or privatizing certain state enterprises and reducing 
their financial support by the Government. At the 

same time, the program will eliminate market barriers 
and improve the environment for private sector 
competition. 

This loan is one of two quick-disbursing loans 
to Venezuela supporting the current economic pro
gram aimed at reducing the Government's overall 
role in the economy, promoting greater competition, 
and allowing market forces to allocate resources. This 
loan will be disbursed in three parts, or tranches, in 
accord with progress in carrying out specific reforms. 

Reforms will concentrate on the following six 
areas: 

• Adjustment of prices to competitive levels for 
goods and services produced by public enterprises. 
Although under a structural adjustment program the 
Government has already eliminated price controls for 
most goods and services produced by public enter
prises, the prices of some still need adjustment. 
Examples include fertilizer, petroleum, bauxite, and 
alumina. 

• Changing laws and regulations to increase 
competition, achieve market discipline, and encour
age private investment in sectors where public enter
prises dominate. The purpose of legislation that 
prohibited private ownership of petroleum and iron 
ore, as well as foreign participation in the insurance 
and financial sectors, was to promote self-sufficiency 
in basic commodities and preserve control of the 
economy's main productive base. An undesirable 
side effect of such laws, however, was to dampen 
competition, encouraging economic inefficiency and 
hampering growth. 

• Defining responsibilities in the relationship 
between the Government and public enterprises. The 
Government will commission a study of its legal, 
financial, and supervisory relationships with public 
enterprises to clarify accountability and reporting 
relationships, and to recommend legal and institutional 
changes. 

• Eliminating most Government transfers to 
public enterprises not restructured so that they can 
become self sufficient. Only public enterprises that 
are part of an approved restructuring program or that 
provide key public services will continue to be 
eligible for new loan guarantees from the Govern
ment. 

• Restructuring priority public enterprises so 
that they are efficient and responsive. The Inter-
Ministerial Restructuring Commission has been estab-
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EASTERN VENEZUELA. A 1984 
IDB loan to CONARE, an agency 
of Venezuela's Ministry of Agri
culture, isfinancing the planting 
of250 millionfast-growing Car
ibbean pine trees on 180,000 
hectares of flat Orinoco Delta 
savannah land. At the end of 
1990, 80% of the trees had been 
planted. The project also in
cluded four fire-watch towers, 
which are staffed 24 hours a 
day to protect the huge planta
tion. 

lished to oversee the process. Restructuring will start 
with enterprises receiving large transfers from the 
Government or restricting production. Objectives will 
be to establish market discipline in sectors in which 
the public enterprises operate by eliminating barriers 
to private competition; to increase efficiency and 
provide economic pricing policy for public services; 
and to provide opportunities for private sector devel
opment and expansion. 

• Selling off public enterprises and holdings 
that do not fulfill public policy objectives. 

The public sector accounts for roughly one-
third of Venezuela's GDP and one-fifth of its employ
ment. It includes 315 entities with majority Govern
ment ownership and 66 more with minority 
Government participation. Venezuela's efforts to re
structure public enterprises eventually will affect 150 
enterprises. Fourteen of these are in basic industry 
and infrastructure and are grouped under the 
Corporación Venezolana de Guayana; 20 provide 
electricity, water, telecommunications, and transpor
tation; and 115 operate commercially in a variety of 
activities. This program has been targeted initially to 
16 enterprises already identified. 

Over the next five years, the measures will result 
in a smaller, more efficient public sector. Most of the 

$1 billion annual financial support that the Govern
ment transfers to public enterprises will be elimi
nated. Public sector assets remaining will have im
proved productivity and increased financial rates of 
return. 

The technical cooperation component will pre
pare the restructuring and privatization programs and 
provide technical support for the executing agency. 

Global Credit for Tourism Development 

Financing: $75 million from the OC 
Executing 
Agency: Fondo de Inversiones de Venezuela (FIV) 

This loan will provide resources for investment in the 
tourism sector. The program consists of a global line 
of credit to support building, expansion, remodeling, 
and equipping of hotels, as well as the addition of 
related services. The loan and counterpart funds will 
be deposited into a trust fund, which FIV will ad
minister. Acting as a second-tier bank, FIVwiW lend 
the funds to eligible financial intermediaries through 
a rediscount mechanism. The intermediaries assume 
all of the lending risk. 

Economic policy reforms, particularly those in 
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the financial sector supported by a separate Bank 
loan, are creating the necessary policy environment 
for this program's success. Important changes include 
the freeing of interest rates, curtailment of the state's 
role in the sector, and stronger mechanisms for 
supervising financial intermediaries. 

International tourism has been on the rise in 
Venezuela since 1984. This has coincided with a 
sharp increase in national tourism, as fewer Venezu
elans travel abroad. As a result, the deficit in the 
balance of payments for tourism, which in 1982 was 
$2.5 billion, reversed in 1987 with the sector gener
ating a balance of payments surplus of $83 million 
and showing great growth potential. This program 
will increase the hotel industry's accommodations to 
balance supply and growing demand, as well as 
maintain the quality of the current facilities. 

Most of the investment in tourism is focused in 
three areas. After stagnating during the 1970s, hotel 
supply and activity in Caracas increased sharply. 
Offshore, the duty free zone and beaches of Isla 
Margarita in Nueva Esparta consistently draw great 
numbers of national and international tourists. The 
third area is Puerto La Cruz-Barcelona in Anzoategui, 
a major urban-resort center. In keeping with Venezu
elan law, projects funded by the program that involve 
possession of land and use of renewable natural 
resources will be evaluated for their environmental 
impact by the Ministry of the Environment and 
Renewable Natural Resources. 

Science and Technology Program 

Financing: $47 million from the OC 
Executing 
Agency: Consejo Nacional de Investigaciones 

Científicas y Tecnológicas (CONICIT) 

This loan will update and strengthen Venezuela's 
scientific and technological base. An important part of 
the country's new development strategy is to liberal
ize trade and encourage foreign investment, policies 
that will require productive sectors to become stronger 
and more competitive. The program is rooted in the 
Government's recognition of the important role that 
new and efficient technologies play in productive 
growth and their necessity if Venezuela is to make full 
and responsible use of its vast natural resource base. 
The program consists of four components: 

• About 100 research projects and scientific 

and technological services projects will be conducted 
in five priority areas. The projects will be conducted 
mainly by Venezuelan universities and research insti
tutions and by businesses producing both goods and 
services. 

• Two investment projects will reinforce scien
tific and technological infrastructure to provide what 
is lacking in facilities and equipment so that the 
country's cadre of trained researchers can be more 
productive. One project will construct and equip a 
new physical plant for the Biomedical Research 
Center at the Universidad de Carabobo, which has 
considerable potential to develop biotechnological 
applications for agriculture and health. The second 
project will establish an information network en
abling universities and research centers to exchange 
information and conduct joint research and devel
opment projects. Communication links would be 
established among 14 institutions. 

• Human resource training is also an important 
part of the program. Studies will be funded for about 
775 people nominated by Venezuelan research centers 
and scientific-technological services. Most of these 
studies will be outside the country in highly special
ized areas at the post graduate level. Nearly half of 
them will study in biotechnology. Training will in
clude fellowships, short courses in the country, and 
seminars and workshops to upgrade skills of staff 
from CONICIT. 

• The Office of Technology Dissemination and 
Transfer will be established within CONICIT. Its role 
will be to inform the scientific community and entre
preneurs about the program and encourage their 
participation, popularize science and technology by 
disseminating news about technologies, their poten
tial and applications, and link up researchers with 
potential users of their findings. The Government has 
designated the five priority areas for the program's 
context. They are biotechnology applied in agricul
ture, industry, and biomedicine; pharmaceutical 
chemistry applied in medicine, the food industry, 
special products in other industries and biotechnol
ogy; new materials, such as polymers, alloys and 
extractive metallurgy, microelectronics, and process
ing of materials; electronics as applied in microelec
tronics, telecommunications, automation and con
trol, and biomedical electronics; and informatics, 
specifically applied informatics, computer sciences, 
and information sciences. 
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Preinvestment Program 

Financing: 

Executing 
Agency: 

$ 19 million from the OC; and cofinancing 
of $13 million from the International 
Bank for Reconstmction and Develop
ment 

The Central Coordinating and Planning 
Unit, Office of the President of the 
Republic 

The loan will finance activities to strengthen key 
agencies in the public sector, preparing them to 
formulate appropriate sector policies and assume 
their necessary roles in future development projects. 
Activities funded by the loan will complement Gov
ernment efforts to control expenditures and invest
ments in its own agencies as it implements the Eighth 
Development Plan and continues the economic ad
justment program. The preinvestment program con
sists of two subprograms: 

• The first will strengthen the central agencies 
involved in the public investment process. This 
inc ludes about 15 inst i tut ions involved in 
macroeconomic planning, sector policy formulation, 
public investment evaluation at the project level, 
budget preparation and control of public invest
ments, as well as key sector ministries in sector 
planning, and project identification, selection, and 
monitoring. The focus will be primarily on training. 

• The preinvestment studies subprogram in
cludes three components. The first two components 
focus on project preparation. The first entails either 
general studies or feasibility and engineering designs, 
for which 15 studies have already been identified, 
nine of which already have terms of reference. The 
second is to hire consultants to prepare terms of 
reference for additional studies. Both these compo
nents are linked to projects and programs in the 
Bank's pipeline with Venezuela for 1991-94. The third 
component will fund studies on the reorganization of 
companies in the public sector also supported by a 
Bank loan. They are aimed at parastatals selected by 
Venezuela's Restructuring Commission to pioneer the 
public sector reform program. Third component 
studies will establish the legal, financial, and institu
tional scope of the regulations governing relations 
between public enterprises and the central govern
ment and redefine the relationship between the 
companies and government ministries to which they 

GUARENAS, VENEZUELA. The modern NOFITEX thread 
factory produces nearly 500 tons of cotton and synthetic 
fiber thread a year for Venezuela's textile industry. 
Funds from a $100 million 1985 IDB loan channeled 
through FONCREI, Venezuela's Industrial Credit Fund, 
helped to finance construction of the factory and pur
chase of automated machinery from Italy. 
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are responsible. Seven institutions have been selected 
for these studies, with plans to add more. 

FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Support for Rural Small-Scale Producers 

A $500,000 financing from the FSO will be used by the 
Fundación Colegio Experimental de Agricultura del 
Mundo Unido "Simón Bolívar" (FUNDACEA) to pro
vide credit and training to small-scale rural producers 
in 10 communities near Ciudad Bolivia, in the State of 
Barinas, some 500 kilometers southwest of Caracas. 
The estimated 300 beneficiaries of the project are 
engaged in agriculture, agro-industry and crafts and 
will receive credits for working capital, tools and 
equipment to expand production. In agriculture, the 
resources will be used for horticulture and the pro
duction of honey, eggs, chickens, rabbits, and pigs. 
Agro-industrial producers would receive financing 
for activities such as canned vegetables, jams and fruit 
preserves and the craft activities would include car
pentry, dressmaking, and ceramics. Technical coop
eration funds totaling $90,000 will provide institu
tional strengthening for FUNDACEA and training for 
the beneficiaries in the use of appropriate technolo
gies, the administration of credits, and marketing. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Forest ry Development : A program to help meet the 
country's domestic demand for wood and wood 
products and enhance the environment is expected to 
be completed by September 1991. The Forestry 
Development Program of the Oriente, supported by 
a $34.3 million loan from the OC approved by the 
Bank in 1984, will begin to benefit the country in the 
year 2000. More than 80 percent of the 180,000 
hectares designated for reforestation have been planted 
in Caribbean pine. In addition, nearly 90 percent of 
the goal to protect the newly planted land plus 68,000 
hectares against fire, disease, and pests has been 
attained. Rehabilitation of existing tree nurseries and 
establishment of two new ones is 86 percent com
plete. The program also includes a research compo
nent, which is three-quarters developed. It will pro
duce a forest inventory and focus on reforestation 
methods and genetic improvement. The program 
includes a demonstration sawmill, which is finished. 
The mill represents the state of the art in wood sawing 

methods, which are necessary for the reforestation 
and forest management program to yield the full 
range of wood products envisaged. Over 45 percent 
of the technical cooperation program has been com
pleted. The $710,000 earmarked for technical coop
eration are mainly for strengthening the capacity of 
the program's executing agency, Compañía Nacional 
de Reforestación, and supporting technical aspects of 
the sawmill and the applied research. 

Agricultural Technology Development : A pro
gram to help Venezuela achieve food self-sufficiency 
by optimizing its resource base and infrastructure is 
in the final phase. Ninety-five percent complete, the 
Agricultural Technology Development Program is 
supported by a $30 million Bank loan approved in 
1983 from the OC. The program is putting improved 
technology into the hands of farmers and expanding 
the country's research base and technical capacity. 
The Fondo Nacional de Investigaciones Agropecuarias 
is using the loan to carry out four subprograms. These 
are research on farm crops, livestock, aquaculture, 
and fish processing; the transfer of technology to 
21,000 farmers and 5,000 ranchers through technical 
assistance; distribution of improved seed to more 
than 69,000 farmers; and a subprogram to combat 
hoof-and-mouth disease and improve herds. The 
program is expanding the research base by constructing 
and equipping 20 laboratories. All labs are in operation 
except one, which is expected to be functioning by 
April 1991. 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-90 
(In Tljousands of U.S. Dollars) 

Sector Amount 
'Total Cost of 
the Projects 

Energy $ 400,250 $1,901,500 
Industry and Mining 320,872 1,176,594 
Environmental and Public Health 259,570 651,596 
Agriculture and Fisheries 206.268 595,5"75 
Transportation and Communications 191791 638,600 
Education, Science and Technology 81,608 197,626 
Tourism 75,000 150,000 
Urban Development 31,871 94,450 
Preinvestment 21,885 44,694 
Export Financing 1,404 2,006 
Other 604.631 1.255,000 

Total «2,195,150 «6,707,641 
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REGIONAL 

The Bank has made 40 loans totaling $1,453-9 
mill ion for regional projects. Sector emphasis 
has been o n energy, transportation and com
m u n i c a t i o n s , i n d u s t r y a n d m i n i n g , a n d 
preinvestment. Cumulative disbursements total 
$1,249 million. In 1990, the Bank approved one 
loan for one project and seven major technical 
cooperations. 

LOAN 

Multisector Credit Program 

Financing: $80 million from the OC 
Executing 
Agency: The Andean Development Corporation 

(ADC) 

This loan will provide financing to generate economic 
growth, to countries that are members of the Andean 
Group, for private and public investment projects as 
well as for operations in foreign trade, and for capital 
goods. The Andean Development Corporation (ADC) 
is the principal financial agency of the Andean Group, 
whose members are Bolivia, Colombia, Ecuador, and 
Peru. The loan will be channeled through the ADC in 
direct credits to: 

• The members' private sectors, primarily for 
projects aimed at the external market and/or import 
substitution, or for members' public sector projects 
that are income-generating. Resources used for project 
execution will finance procurement of fixed assets 
and/or working capital. 

• Enterprises in which member countries share 
an interest. To be considered as such, an enterprise 
must receive capital from two or more countries in the 
group, be managed by investors from two or more 
member countries, and be given preferential treatment 
in the subregión with regard to trade, taxation, and 
financing. Beneficiary enterprises enjoying such tax 
and trade privileges also are likely to attract additional 
third-part resources for the Andean subregión. 

• The Andean Trade Financing System and the 
Letter of Credit Confirmation and Financing Facility, 
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supporting the production and trade of capital goods. 
In this context, resources could be used, for example, 
to finance the pre and postshipment of goods pro
duced in the subregión. Credit for preshipment in
cludes working capital during production of raw 
materials or manufactured goods for export. 
Postshipment operations consist of financing com
modities from the subregión for sale on credit. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Regional Network for Research 
o n Economic Policy 

A $4.7 million nonreimbursable financing from the 
FSO, a Bank initiative, will support and make use of 
the analytical capabilities of regional research centers 
to address the economic and social problems con
fronting Latin America and the Caribbean and the 
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LIMA, PERU. Agricultural scientists from Colombia, 
Guatemala, and Venezuela learn new technology for 
growing potatoes from botanical seed at the Interna
tional Potato Center. The IDB provides a yearly grant to 
the Center for its research program and forfellowships 
to train scientists from national research centers. 

economic reforms that have been or need to be 
introduced. The object is to identify specific policy 
recommendations that would serve the Bank in its 
planning and in discussions with countries in the 
formulation and implementation of economic and 
social policies. There is a consensus in the region that 
structural reforms are necessary in virtually all the 
countries, but there is also uncertainty about how 
reforms should be put into effect and their impact on 
the economy of each country. 

In a number of countries, research centers are 
studying options for use in the reform process and the 
Bank supports these efforts through this technical 
cooperation operation. In addition, the Economic 
Commission for Latin America and the Caribbean and 
the United Nations Development Programme will 
lend technical and logistical support to the program. 
Six research themes will be undertaken during the 
first phase of the program by six regional research 
centers. They are the timetable for liberalizing the 
economy and macroeconomic conditions; liberaliza
tion, productivity, and technological development; 
savings and investment; privatization; external shocks 
and stabilization policies; and the public sector and 
income distribution. 

Training for Studying Mineral Deposits 
in the Andes 

A $2,068,000 nonreimbursable financing from the 
FSO will be used to provide practical training for a 
group of qualified officials from the national geologi-
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cal institutes of Bolivia, Chile, and Peru in using 
modern techniques for studying mineral deposits of 
precious metals in volcanic areas in the Central 
Andes. Deposits of gold and silver occur in the 
volcanic belt of the Upper Tertiary-Quaternary pe
riod. To determine the potential of these deposits, the 
geologists of the national geographic institutes of the 
three countries must be trained in modern precious 
metal investigative techniques in volcanic areas. The 
project will be carried out by the following national 
geological institutes: 1) Servicio Geológico de Bolivia, 
by delegation of the Ministerio de Minería y Metalurgia-, 
2) Servicio Nacional de Geología y Minería de Chile, 
and 3) Instituto Geológico Minero y Metalúrgico del 
Peru. The U.S. Geological Survey will help execute 
the project. 

Capacity Building for Energy Development 

A nonreimbursable technical cooperation of $1.9 
million drawn from the FSO will support the regional 
energy development program of the Latin American 
Energy Organization (OLADE). The financing will 
strengthen the capacity of the Bank's borrowing 
countries to produce and use more energy. It will be 
applied to four subprograms, which will better enable 
borrowers to program adequate development of their 
energy sectors. The subprograms will focus on en
ergy and the environment, improvement of electricity 
planning, control and reduction of energy losses, and 
geothermal energy development. 

Under the energy and environmental subpro
gram, guides on environmental impact assessments 
will be prepared that incorporate regional experi
ences, and energy enterprise staff will be trained on 
how to use environmental impact assessment meth
ods. The subprogram aimed at improving planning 
for electricity will concentrate on consolidating analysis 
from countries with the most experience in electric 
energy so that it can be shared throughout the region. 
It will focus on advancing the analysis of planning 
aspects such as risk and uncertainty in demand 
growth and financial constraints. A third subprogram 
will promote the development of energy and power 
loss reduction programs in electricity systems, espe
cially their non-technical losses, by testing and mak
ing wider use of methods that OLADE developed. The 
geothermal subprogram will advance the use of 
geothermal energy resources by preparing guides to 
assist countries in their efforts to prepare geothermal 

projects, and will spread advanced technology 
throughout the region from countries that have already 
executed projects. This component will help the 
region develop its potential, which is projected to be 
substantial, owing to the geodynamic and volcano-
logical aspects of the Andes mountain chain. 

Applied Macroeconomics Program 

A $1,610,000 nonreimbursable financing from the 
FSO will be used by the Institute of Economics of the 
Pontifical Catholic University of Chile to design and 
implement a three-year training program of applied 
macroeconomics for senior civil servants, bankers, 
and academicians from Bolivia, Chile, Paraguay, and 
Uruguay. The objective of the program is the devel
opment of highly skilled professionals capable of 
devising or analyzing macroeconomic policies at 
Central Banks, at other government institutions in
volved in economics, and at academic centers. The 
applied macroeconomic seminars will place substan
tial emphasis on the role played by fiscal, monetary, 
and foreign-trade policies within the broader context 
of analyzing the determinants of development. The 
goal is to combine advanced theoretical analysis of 
the issues with a methodology enabling the most 
abstract material to be brought to bear on policy
making and conditions in the region. 

Support for Development of Trading 
Companies 

A $1,583,000 nonreimbursable financing from the 
Japan Special Fund will help promote the develop
ment of trading companies in Latin America. It will 
assess the situation of trading companies in four 
countries and implement a series of activities in two 
selected countries. The program has the following 
objectives: 1) clarify and improve government pro
motional policies for trading companies and assist 
companies with their business planning activities; 2) 
modernize the legal and financial framework of 
trading companies, enabling them to function more 
effectively; 3) modernize trade and commercial infor
mation systems used by trading companies; 4) im
prove the quality of management of trading compa
nies; 5) improve product development and adaptation 
capabilities of trading companies; 6) identify the 
availability, at competitive costs, of services provided 
by trading companies to manufacturers and exporters 
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and prepare recommendations to improve their avail
ability; and 7) demonstrate to the public and private 
sectors how trading companies can help small- and 
medium-size enterprises compete more effectively in 
international markets. 

Expansion of Latin America's trade is a funda
mental objective for the region. Trading companies 
can be an effective instrument toward that goal. 

This program, the first of its kind for the IDB, is 
the product of the Bank's own initiative, supported by 
its member countries. It will be carried out through a 
series of activities, including studies, the formulation 
of recommendations, technical advice, workshops, 
seminars, and training. 

throughout the region in order to achieve more 
effective control of accounting and public finance. 
The beneficiaries include senior management and 
technical officers of supreme audit institutions. The 
Institute for Development Initiative, a specialized 
agency within the International Organization of Su
preme Audit Institutions, will carry out the program. 

Support for the Caribbean Project Develop
ment Facility 

A $1,400,000 nonreimbursable financing from the 
FSO will be used to support the costs of operating the 
Caribbean Project Development Facility (CPDF) for a 
third period (1988-92). The support will enable the 
facility to continue its role in building a pipeline of 
viable investment projects in the Caribbean countries 
for possible financing by lenders and investors. The 
financing will also make it possible to broaden the 
scope of CPDF's activities by including the Central 
American countries and Panama. CPDF was established 
in 1981 by several bilateral and multilateral agencies 
and organizations. It has made a significant contribution 
toward private sector development in the region. It 
has provided extensive technical assistance and fi
nancial advice to many businesses and it has succeeded 
in helping a wide range of small- and medium-size 
businesses develop viable projects and raise loan and 
equity financing. In fact, by the end of 1989, CPDF 
had mobilized funding of $76.5 million for projects 
worth $ 116.1 million. The success of CPDF prompted 
the creation of similar facilities for Africa and the 
South Pacific. The Bank's contribution will be used to 
cover part of the salaries of professional and support 
staff at CPDF and other administrative costs. 

Training Improvement Program for Supreme 
Audit Institutions 

A $1,099,000 nonreimbursable financing from the 
FSO will be used by the Latin American Institute of 
Auditing Sciences to provide technical and adminis
trative training for government auditors from 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-90 
(In Tfjousands of US. Dollars) 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 
the Projects 

Energy $1,085,262 $7,230,055 
Transportation and Communications 138,291 219,315 
Industry and Mining 54,047 196,783 
Preinvestment 39,034 58,752 
Agriculture and Fisheries 14,831 62,619 
Education, Science and Technology 9,902 25,410 
Urban Development 5,988 12,970 
Environmental and Public Health 742 2.948 
Tourism 552 2,416 
Other 105,297 551,570 

Total «1,453,946 «8,362.838 

118 



INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF APPROVED LOANS, 1990 
Ordinary Capital 

Country 
Borrower 
SECTOR (Project) 

Amount 
(Expressed in Interest 

Date Millions of Rate Term 
Approved U.S. Dollars) (%) (Years) 

BOLIVIA Republic of Bolivia 
ENERGY (Electrical Generation, Transmission 
and Distribution Program) 

Republic of Bolivia 
URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
(Credit for Urban Development and Sanitation) 

10/17/90 80.0 

11/21/90 40.0 

20 

25 

BRAZIL 

CHILE 

COLOMBIA 

Companhia Paranaense de Energia Elétrica (COPEL) 
ENERGY (Segredo Hydroelectric Project) 

Banco Nacional de Desenvolvimento Económico 
e Social (BNDES) 
OTHER (Multisector Lending Program) 

Republic of Chile 
TRANSPORTATION AND COMMUNICATIONS 
(Highway Improvement Program) 

Republic of Colombia 
AGRICULTURE AND FISHERIES 
(Rural Development Investment Program) 

Republic of Colombia 
INDUSTRY AND TOURISM 
(Program for Public Sector Reform) 

Corporación Autónoma Regional de las Cuencas 
de los Ríos Bogotá, Ubaté y Suárez (CAR) 
AGRICULTURE AND FISHERIES (Upper Bogotá 
River Basin Environmental Rehabilitation Program) 

COSTA RICA Banco Central de Costa Rica 
AGRICULTURE AND FISHERIES 
(Global Agricultural Credit Program) 

07/05/90 135-0 

11/28/90 250.0 

12/19/90 246.0 

12/12/90 75.0 

12/19/90 300.0 

12/19/90 30.0 

03/28/90 17.5 

20 

20 

20 

25 

20 

25 

20 

Banco Central de Costa Rica 
AGRICULTURE AND FISHERIES 
(Global Agricultural Credit Program) 

03/28/90 28.0 20 

11 Variable interest rate on outstanding balance, established semiannually. 
b Interest rate partially defrayed by Intermediate Financing Facility. 
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INTER-AMERICAN DE\ ELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF APPROVED LOANS, 1990 
Ordinary Capital (continued) 

Country 
Borrower 
SECTOR (Project) 

Amount 
(Expressed in Interest 

Date Millions of Rate Term 
Approved U.S. Dollars) (%) (Years) 

ECUADOR Republic of Ecuador 06/27/90 12.0 
ENVIRONMENTAL AND PUBLIC HEALTH 
(Water Supply and Sanitation Project for the City of Cuenca) 

Republic of Ecuador 10/17/90 60.0 
URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
(Global Credit Program for Municipal Development) 

25 

25 

Republic of Ecuador 
URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
(Global Credit Program for Municipal Development) 

10/17/90 6.0 25 

EL SALVADOR Banco Central de Reserva de El Salvador 12/19/90 40.0 
OTHER (Multisector Global Lending Program) 

HONDURAS Republic of Honduras 12/06/90 14.0 
AGRICULTURE AND FISHERIES 
(Agricultural Sector Loan) 

JAMAICA Jamaica Public Service Company Ltd. 12/05/90 82.0 
ENERGY (Electricity System Improvement) 

Government of Jamaica 12/12/90 50.0 
AGRICULTURE AND FISHERIES 
(Agriculture Sector Program) 

MEXICO Nacional Financiera S.N.C. (NAFIN) 06/27/90 330.0 
ENERGY (Electric Sector Investment Program) 

Banco Nacional de Obras y Servicios 08/10/90 300.0 
Públicos S.N.C. (BANOBRAS) 
TRANSPORTATION AND COMMUNICATIONS 
(Transport and Telecommunications Sector Program) 

Banco Nacional de Obras y Servicios 11/28/90 325-0 
Públicos S.N.C. (BANOBRAS) 
ENVIRONMENTAL AND PUBLIC HEALTH 
(Monterrey Water Supply and Sewerage Project) 

URUGUAY Republic of Uruguay 12/12/90 28.0 
URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
(Municipal Development Program II) 

Republic of Uruguay 12/19/90 7.0 
OTHER (Global Credit Program for Small Business 
and Microenterprises) 

20 

20 

20 

20 

20 

20 

20 

25 

2S 

a Variable interest rate on outstanding balance, established semiannually. 
b Interest rate partially defrayed by Intermediate Financing Facility. 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEA ELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF APPROVED LOANS, 1990 
Ordinary Capital (continued) 

Country 
Borrower 
SECTOR (Project) 

Amount 
(Expressed in Interest 

Date Millions of Rate Term 
Approved U.S. Dollars) (%) (Years) 

VENEZUELA Republ ic o f Venezue la 
OTHER (Financial Sector Reform Program) 

Republic o f Venezuela 
OTHER (Public Enterprise Reform Loan) 

Republ ic o f Venezue la 
EDUCATION, SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY 
(Science and Technology Program) 

Republic o f Venezue la 
PREINVESTMENT (Preinvestment Program) 

Republic o f Venezue la 
TOURISM (Global Credit for Tourism Development) 

REGIONAL Andean D e v e l o p m e n t Corporat ion 
OTHER (Multisector Credit Program) 

10/10/90 300.0 

11/14/90 

12/05/90 

300.0 

47.0 

12/05/90 19.0 

12/12/90 75.0 

10/31/90 80.0 

20 

20 

20 

20 

20 

15 

a Variable interest rate on outstanding balance, established semiannually. 
b Interest rate partially defrayed by Intermediate Financing Facility. 

STATEMENT OF APPROVED LOANS, 1990 
Fund for Special Operations 

Country 
Borrower 
SECTOR (Project) 

Amount 
(Expressed in Interest 

Date Millions of Rate Term 
Approved U.S. Dollars) (%) (Years) 

BOLIVIA Republic o f Bolivia 
TRANSPORTATION AND COMMUNICATIONS 
(Highway to the Pacific) 

Republic o f Bolivia 
URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
(Credit for Urban Development and Sanitation) 

COLOMBIA Corporac ión A u t ó n o m a Regional de las Cuencas 
de l o s Ríos Bogotá, Ubaté y Suárez (CAR) 
AGRICULTURE AND FISHERIES (Upper Bogotá 
River Basin Environmental Rehabilitation Program) 

Banco d e la Re pública d e Colombia 
OTHER (Global Microenterprise Credit Program) 

03/28/28 50.9 

11/21/90 20.0 

12/19/90 20.0 

12/12/90 14.0 

1, 2 

1, 2 

40 

10 

30 

2 " 30 

a The first interest rate shown is applicable during the grace period; the second is applicable subsequently. 
b Loan extended in the currency of the borrower country. 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF APPROVED LOANS, 1990 
Fund for Special Operations (continued) 

Country 
Borrower 
SECTOR (Project) 

Date 
Approved 

Amount 
(Expressed in Interest 

Millions of Rate Term 
U.S. Dollars) (%) (Years) 

ECUADOR Republic of Ecuador 06/27/90 
ENVIRONMENTAL AND PUBLIC HEALTH 
(Water Supply and Sanitation Project for the City of Cuenca) 

Republic of Ecuador 10/17/90 
URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
(Global Credit Program for Municipal Development) 

Republic of Ecuador 12/19/90 
OTHER (Global Microenterprise Credit Program) 

EL SALVADOR Republic of El Salvador 02/28/90 
EDUCATION, SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY 
(Non-University Higher Technical Education Project) 

Republic of El Salvador 10/24/90 
TRANSPORTATION AND COMMUNICATIONS 
(Rural Roads Rehabilitation and Improvement Program) 

Banco Central de Reserva de El Salvador 12/19/90 
OTHER (Multisector Global Lending Program) 

GUATEMALA Republic of Guatemala 01/17/90 
ENVIRONMENTAL AND PUBLIC HEALTH 
(Rural Water Supply Program) 

GUYANA Cooperative Republic of Guyana 03/28/90 
AGRICULTURE AND FISHERIES 
(Agricultural Rehabilitation Program) 

HAITI République d'Haïti 03/28/90 
TRANSPORTATION AND COMMUNICATIONS 
(Pont Sondé-Mirebalais Highway and Rural Roads) 

Banque de la République d'Haïti (BRH) 11/07/90 
AGRICULTURE AND FISHERIES 
(Agricultural and Irrigation Development) 

HONDURAS Republic of Honduras 12/06/90 
AGRICULTURE AND FISHERIES (Agricultural Sector Loan) 

Republic of Honduras 12/12/90 
URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
(San Pedro Sula City Streets and Sanitation Project) 

PARAGUAY Republic of Paraguay 05/23/90 
INDUSTRY AND MINING 
(Global Industrial Credit Program) 

38.0 

38.0 

16.2 

14.4 

44.0 

20.0 

32.8 

27.0 

44.5 

11.5 

46.0 

44.0 
5.5 

49.5 

30.0 

1,2 a 40 

1,2 a 40 

1,2 a 40 

1,2 a 40 

1,2 a 40 

1,2 a 40 

1,2 a 40 

1,2 a 40 

1, 2 a 40 

1,2 a 40 

1, 2 

1, 2 a 

1, 2 b 

1, 2 

40 

40 

40 

a The first interest rate shown is applicable during the grace period; the second is applicable subsequently. 
b Loan extended in the currency of the borrower country. 
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INTER-AMERICAN DE\ 'ELOPMENTBANK 

POPULATION AND GROWTH RATES, 1960-89 

Country 

1960 19T0 1980 1985 1986 198~ 1988 

(In thousands) 

1989 

TABLE 1 

Average Annual 
Growth Rates 

1961-"0 1971-80 1981-89 

(In percent) 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

20,616 
113 
231 

3,428 
72,594 

23,962 
171 
239 

4,325 
95,847 

28,237 
210 
249 

5,570 
121,286 

30,331 
225 
253 

6,371 
135,564 

3073" 
228 
254 

6,548 
138,493 

31,137 
231 
254 

6,730 
141,452 

31,534 
234 
254 

6,918 
144,428 

31,929 
238 
254 

7,113 
147,404 

1.5 
4.2 
0.3 
2.4 
2.8 

1.7 
1.9 
0.4 
2.6 
2.4 

1.4 
1.5 
0.2 
2.8 
2 2 

Chile 7,690 9,599 11,145 12,122 12,327 12,536 12,748 12,961 2.2 1.5 1.7 
Colombia 15,538 20,803 25,794 28,714 29,323 29,942 30,568 31,195 2.9 2.2 2.1 
Costa Rica 1,236 1731 2,284 2,642 2,716 2791 2,866 2,941 3.4 2.8 2.8 
Dominican Republic 3,231 4,423 5,69"7 6,416 6,565 6,716 6,867 7,019 .3.2 2.5 2.3 
Ecuador 4,413 6,051 8,123 9,317 9,565 9,816 10,070 10,327 3.2 3.0 2.7 

El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 

2,570 
3,964 

569 
3,675 
1,935 

3,588 
5,246 

730 
4,500 
2,627 

4.525 
6,917 

"58 
5,(13 
3,662 

4,768 
7,963 

"5" 
5,922 
4,383 

4,846 
8,195 

"56 
6,033 
4,531 

4,934 
8,434 

"56 
6,147 
4,679 

5,032 
8,681 

755 
6,263 
4,829 

5,138 
8,935 

"55 
6,382 
4,982 

3.4 
2.8 
2.5 
2.1 
3.1 

2.3 
2.8 
0.3 
1.8 
3.4 

1.4 
2.9 

-0.1 
1.9 
3.5 

Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama1 

Paraguay 

1,629 
38,020 

1,493 
1,105 
1,773 

1,869 
52,771 
2,053 
1,487 
2,351 

2,170 
"0,416 

2,"71 
1,956 
3,147 

2,323 
79,376 
3,2"2 
2,180 
3,693 

2,357 
81,201 
3,384 
2,227 
3,807 

2,391 
83,039 
3,501 
2,274 
3,922 

2,427 
84,886 
3,622 
2,322 
4,039 

2,463 
86740 
3,745 
2,370 
4,158 

1.4 
3.3 
3.2 
3.0 
2.9 

15 
2.9 
3.0 
2.8 
3.0 

1.4 
2.3 
34 
2.2 
3.1 

Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad and 

Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 

9,931 13,193 
598 3"2 
843 1,02" 

2,538 2,808 
",502 10,604 

7,295 
352 

1,068 

2,914 
15,024 

19,698 
353 

1,118 

3,008 
17,317 

20,208 
355 

1,130 

3,025 
17,792 

20,727 
35" 

1,144 

3,042 
18,2"2 

21,256 
359 

1,15" 

3,060 
18,757 

21,791 
362 

1,171 

3,0"" 
19,246 

2.9 
-5.4 

1.8 

1.0 
3.5 

2.7 
-0.6 
0.3 

0.4 
3.5 

2.6 
0.4 
1.1 

0.6 
2.8 

Latin America 207,235 272,377 346,983 388,086 396,603 405,224 413,932 422,696 2.8 2.4 

Sources: Latin American Demograpliic Center. Santiago, Chile; and IDB estimates. 
1 Panama includes the former Canal Zone, from 1980. 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

GROSS DOMESTIC PRODUCT PER CAPITA1 

(In 1988 U.S. dollars) 

Country 

TABLE 2 

(As a percent of OECD2) 

1960 1970 1980 1987 1988 1989 1970 1980 1987 1988 1989 

Argentina 2,491.9 3,342" 3,618.8 3,035.2 2.890.3 2,689.4 29.4 25.5 18.6 17.1 15.5 
Bahamas 6,430.6 8,172.3 8,"55.0 9,969.8 10,068.4 10,097.1 71.9 61.8 61.1 595 58.1 
Barbados 3,277.6 5,995.1 5,819.8 5,860.6 6,067.4 6,279.3 52" 41.1 35.9 35-9 36.2 
Bolivia 809.3 1,019.3 1,169.2 90"0 907.3 903.8 9.0 83 5.6 5.4 5.2 
Brazil 980.9 1,257.8 2,291.4 2,320.8 2,257.7 2,2"9.9 111 16.2 14.2 13-3 13.1 

Chile 1780.0 2,140.2 2,386.0 2,286.6 2,414.2 2,615.0 18.8 16.8 14.0 14.3 15.1 
Colombia "50.2 926.4 1,278.5 1.396.3 1,427.0 1,443" 8.2 9.0 8.6 8.4 8.3 
Costa Rica 1,052.0 1,342.5 1,729.4 1,577.7 1.584.9 1,630.2 11.8 12.2 9 " 9.4 9.4 
Dominican Republic 376.6 452.3 686.9 701.7 689.4 703.0 4.0 4.8 4.3 4.1 4.0 
Ecuador 637.4 773.0 1,369.5 1.214." 1,29.3.9 1,262.8 6.8 9." 7.4 7.6 7.3 

El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 

897.1 
638.4 
587.6 
368.8 
652.6 

1,126.4 
824.2 
614.1 
326.3 
808.0 

1,152.6 
1,083.4 

663.3 
431.2 

1,013.8 

950.3 
870.6 
549.4 
365.1 
906.2 

946.1 
878.8 
530.2 
352.8 
925.3 

941.5 
887.6 
493.5 
341.1 
917.9 

9.9 
7.3 
5.4 
2.9 
7.1 

8.1 
7.6 
4." 
3.0 

5.8 
5.3 
3.4 
2.2 
5.1. 

5.6 
5.2 
3.1 
2.1 
5.5 

5.4 
5.1 
2.8 
2.0 
5.3 

Jamaica 1,275.2 1,83.3.5 1,340.9 1,312.8 1,312.4 1,395.9 16.1 9.5 8.0 ".8 8.0 
Mexico 1,043.9 1,492.1 2,139.2 1,932.3 1,919.7 1,945.0 13.1 15.1 11.8 11.3 11.2 
Nicaragua 1.059.3 1,503.4 1,098.4 850." 734.1 694.4 13.2 7.8 5.2 4.3 4.0 
Panama 1.130.2 1,824.4 2,288.9 2374.5 1.960.1 1,908.0 16.1 16.2 14.5 11.6 11.0 
Paraguay 741.2 873.6 1,496.8 1,401.4 1,449.9 1,491.2 7.7 10.6 8.6 8.6 8.6 

Peru 1.289.6 1,497.5 1,623.1 1,583-1 1,416.5 1,194.3 13.2 11.5 97 8.4 6.9 
Suriname 1.866.4 2,506.0 4,084.3 3,349.1 3,440.9 3,460.2 22.0 28.8 20.5 20.3 199 
Trinidad and Tobago 3,080.6 3,839.1 6,358.6 4,644.1 4,415.6 4,343.9 338 44.9 28.4 26.1 25.0 
Uruguay 2,223.7 2,35".5 3.057." 2,886.0 2,884.6 2,907.6 20." 21.6 1"" 17.1 16" 
Venezuela 2,755.2 3.5835 3,874.7 3,286.4 3.399.1 3.038.5 .31.5 2^.5 20.1 20.1 17.5 

Latin America 1.226.3 1,572.8 2,181.4 2,045.2 2,009.5 1,985.4 138 15.4 12.5 11.9 11.4 

Sources: For countries in Latin America. IDB estimates based on official statistics and for OECD countries. OECD Main Economic Indicators. October 1990. 
1 See Economic anci Social Progress in Latin America, 1990 report, Statistical Appendix. Methodological Notes for Tables B 1 to B-l~ 
2 Due to differences in the methodology used by the IDB and OECD for conversion of national accounts to a common currency, the data are not strictly comparable 
to those published in previous issues of the Annual Report. The per capita GDP of OECD countries in constant 1988 U.S. dollars was estimated at $11.366 for 1970, 
fl4.ro for 1980. $16.324 for 198". $16.916 for 1988. and $17,367 for 1989. 
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INTERAMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

GROWTH OF GROSS DOMESTIC PRODUCT BY SECTOR OF ORIGIN, 1 9 8 6  8 9 
(Average annual growth rates in percent) 

Agriculture1 Industry2 

Country 1986 198" I98S 1989 1986 198" 1988 1989 1986 

TABLE 3 

Services3 

198" 1988 1989 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

-3.2 

4.5 
4.7 
8.1 

3.6 

11.2 
0 .4 
15.0 

- 1.2 

5.9 
1.0 

0.4 

-2.0 

9.0 
.3.5 
> ■> 

10.3 

6.0 
5 .5 
11.9 

1 I 
2 > 
1.0 

6.1 

6.9 
9.3 

2.6 

10.2 

5.5 
8.5 
Í.0 

5.3 

2.6 
3.3 

5.3 
3 1 
( 1 5 

1.9 

2.8 
13 
0.4 

-3.2 

3.4 
I I 
2.3 

Chile 8.8 3.2 5.5 4.7 5.4 4.5 7.3 95 5.3 6.8 7.6 11.0 
Colombia 3.3 6.5 2.5 4.9 11.5 5.8 3.6 3.7 4.1 4.5 4.8 2.3 
Costa Rica 4.8 4.2 4.6 5.5 6.7 5.1 2.2 5.4 5.0 4.5 3.3 5.5 
Dominican Republic 0 .5 2.9 1 .3 ^2 6.1 18.5 0 .3 5.3 2.8 2.6 2.8 4.3 
Ecuador 10.3 4.1 9.0 1 .0 0.1 14.9 5.6  1 5 2.7 1.9 2.4 2.6 

El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 

3 .1 
0 .8 

3.7 
2.4 
2 t 

2.1 
3.9 

5.8 
0.3 
t 1 

1.0 
4.3 

 8 " 
1.3 

1.8 

0.2 
35 

5.5 
1.1 
1.4 

2.5 
2.3 

-3.1 
3 .6 

6.1 

4.0 
3.7 
0.9 
0.3 
1.1 

33 
3.9 

 5 . 8 
 1.0 

6.9 

1.1 
4.5 

12.6 
0 .4 

4.0 

0.9 
0.2 
0.3 
1.4 
4.3 

1.9 
3.3 
5.4 
1.0 
6.6 

1.5 
3.4 
1.3 
1.9 
5.9 

0.4 
4.0 

-4.0 
-2.3 
2.3 

Jamaica 2 .2 5.3 5 .5 4.2 4.3 7.6 31 16.8 3.0 7.4 0." 1.8 
Mexico 2 .0 1.1 } .2 .3.1 5 .8 3.4 23 5.1 3 .5 0.9 1.7 3.0 
Nicaragua 8 .8 3.2 10.5 2.7 2.6 0 .4 24.2 6 .2 0.2 0.1 2 .8 3 .2 
Panama 2 .2 7.4  " 5 2.4 4.7 2.7 28.4 2 .8 4.2 1.3 14.2 0 .9 
Paraguay 6 .1 7.0 12.1 7.7 0.4 .36 5.5 5 " 3.2 3.3 3.8 5.1 

Peru 6.2 5.1 7.9 3 .0 16.4 10.5 9 .5 16.5 9.4 9.0 9 .3 12.3 
Suriname 1 .5 4.7 1.2 2 .0 3.8 17.3 0.1 1 .4 2 .9 10.8 7.5 3.0 
Trinidad and Tobago 23.6 6.4 9 .0 69.4 5 .9 8 .7 4 .3 2 .6 4.6  " . 1 5 .0 6 .2 
Uruguay 4.3 2.6 0.5 1.4 10.7 125 2 .0 2 .0 6.6 .3.6 1.8 3.0 
Venezuela 8.1 4.0 4.6 5.1 ".4 36 6.6 10.2 4.9 5.2 6.0 7 .6 

Latin America 2.4 6.7 0.4 0.5 6.9 2.5 0.6 L.O 0.8 

Source: IDB, based on official statistics of member countries. 
1 Agriculture includes agriculture and livestock production, hunting and fishing, and forestry. 
2 Industry includes mining and quarrying, manufacturing, electricity, gxs and water, and construction. 
1 Senices includes commerce, transport and communications, financial services, government, and other senices. 
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INTER-AMERICAN DE I 'El. ( ) I'M ENT BANK 

GROWTH OF GROSS DOMESTIC PRODUCT BY TYPE OF EXPENDITURE, 1 9 8 6 - 8 9
1 

(Average annual growth rates in percent) 

Countrv 

Consumption Investment Exports2 

1986 198" 1988 1989 1986 198" 1988 1989 1986 198" 1988 1989 

TABLE 4 

Imports2 

1986 198" 1988 1989 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

4.9 
1.6 
5.4 

0.8 

1.8 
3.1 
0.7 

-6.0 

3.7 
3.9 

-1.3 

8.0 
3.2 
3.4 

17.5 

7.4 
12.9 
22.3 

17.0 

2.5 
10.9 

-1.2 

-10.8 

2.1 
- 24.6 
- 4 . 7 

■31.0 

12.9 
■ 10.5 

2.0 

- " . 0 

-8.2 
11.2 
10.6 

-1 .0 

0.5 
- 6 . 1 
19.2 

21.6 

2.2 
6.5 

1.3.1 

4.6 

-8 .8 
12.1 
5.0 

17.5 

-7 .6 
19.7 
28.7 

6.1 

-1.0 
7.9 

-2.9 

11.4 

2.0 
15.0 

-1 .3 

■17.5 

2.2 
4.7 
7.0 

Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican 

Republic-
Ecuador 

3.8 
4.2 
3.8 

5.9 
0.7 

3.8 
3.8 
i t 

4.8 
2.7 

4.5 
2.9 

-5.9 
2.1 

8.2 
3." 
5.9 

3.8 
0.8 

11.8 
4.4 

30.8 

4.0 
2 7 

9.2 
3.2 

41.5 
-2 .9 

9.2 
8.0 

-6.4 

8.2 
0.4 

28.9 
-8.8 

4.8 

8.4 
2.5 

9.8 8.8 
2 0 " ".8 
3.6 21.0 

1.3 
8.3 

13.0 
15.9 

6.1 
-0 .6 

8.8 

8.7 
31.9 

13.7 
12.5 
13.8 

19.3 
-1 .3 

9.6 
4.0 

17.6 

7.9 
-0 .3 

17.1 
5.4 

17.6 

16.8 
15.5 

12.1 
5.6 
1.0 

- 2 . 3 
10.4 

253 
-3 .2 
13.6 

19.0 
4.7 

El Salvador 0.6 0 " 1.4 2.1 21.5 -4 .2 18.5 34.5 
Guatemala -0 .0 7.4 4.3 2.9 0.2 32.5 -1 .0 2.8 
Guyana 5.6 -8 .8 - " 3 -6 .6 130 1.4 3.5 -5 .0 
Haiti 1.6 0.9 -1 .6 -0 .3 -9 .6 3.9 -6 .9 -4 .2 
Honduras 4.9 5.5 6.4 2.3 - 1 5 3 7.5 -4 .9 -5.1 

-12.6 12.4 -9.4 -17.5 
-14.0 6.0 5.6 1 3 " 
- 6 " 1.5 0.0 2.9 
17.3 -0 .6 - " .2 -3.4 

4.4 0.2 3.6 4.6 

-2 .8 0.4 -0 .5 6.1 
-14.7 47.8 3.8 6.3 

3." - 9 . " -2 .4 3.3 
11.8 3.3 -8 .0 1.4 

- 1 . " 2.6 1.5 0.5 

Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 

2.9 
-2.1 
-4.2 
0.2 
3.2 

3 " 10.2 
-0.3 3.5 

0.9 - 12.4 
1.0 - 18.5 
1.8 8.1 

3.8 
6.3 

-9 .7 
10.1 

2.5 

15.9 
21.2 

-1 .2 
8.6 
3 " 

26.9 
4.5 

-1 .5 
2.4 
6.6 

16.8 
12.2 
0.3 

-63.6 
3.9 

18.9 
5.3 

-8 .5 
■58.9 
10.2 

6.7 
5.3 

-17.6 
4.8 

- 4 . 2 

9.2 
10.7 

— 22 
-1 .9 
36." 

-3 .8 
5.0 

12.2 
- 2 . 8 

6.0 

6.7 
3.0 

35.8 
-3 .6 
25.2 

-3.1 
-12.4 
-14.3 
-1 .7 
16." 

12.4 
5.0 
3.5 

— 4.4 
19.4 

16.2 
37.6 

- 5 . " 
-34.1 

6.3 
19.0 

- 15 .2 
13.6 
14.0 

Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad 

and 
Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 

13.0 
-0 .6 

6.5 
9.1 
3.9 

8.4 
-11.3 

-11.5 
8.6 
2.4 

-8 .6 
2.3 

-7 .1 
-0 .9 

6.1 

-15.9 

-1 .6 
2.3 

-2 .9 

32.8 
-20.4 

28.1 
-6.6 

11.4 
25.1 

12.1 -19.4 
4.3 23.8 
4.6 14.2 

■23.6 
-5 .0 

18.1 2.1 
2.5 -10.4 

15.1 -53.0 

-10.2 -7 .3 
-2 .9 -6 .6 

-1 .3 -4 .4 
14." -8 .4 
12.4 -1 .7 

-6.0 
2.6 

19.1 
1.4 

10.3 -3 .3 
3.6 5.8 
".9 6.1 

20.4 
- 5 .5 

8.4 
27.0 
0.8 

14.9 
-6 .6 

26.3 
8.8 

14.3 
2.8 

-8.1 
-2 .5 
19.0 

-17.6 
- 8 . 4 

-5 .3 
4.6 

-34.6 

Latin America 3-8 1.3 0.0 2.0 7.2 5.6 0.3 -6.2 - 0 . 1 H. 1 8.3 6.1 6 1 ".6 1.9 

Source: IDB. based on official statistics of member countries. 
1 Gross domestic product is equal to consumption plus investment plus exports minus imports. 
2 Goods and non-factor services. 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEA ELOPMENT BANK 

A N N U A L AVERAGE GROWTH OF CONSUMER PRICES 
(In percent) 

Country 19"l-80 1981-89 1981-85 1986-89 1980 1982 1985 1986 198" 

TABLE 5 

1988 1989 
Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

.5 
14.3 
18.6 

355.0 
5.6 
6.0 

261.4 
252.3 

322.6 
5.9 
1 1 

610.6 
148.9 

398.9 
5.1 
.3.9 

55.2 
444.0 

100.8 
1.36 
15.0 
47.2 
82.8 

164.8 
6.0 

10.1 
137.6 
100.0 

6"2.1 
5.3 
4.2 

11,747.8 
222.6 

90.1 
5.0 
1.0 

276.4 
145.0 

131.3 
5." 
3.0 

14.6 
229.8 

343.0 
4.5 
4.8 

16.0 
682.8 

3,0"9.2 
5.2 
6.4 

15.9 
1,286.9 

Chile ... 19.9 21.3 17.3 3 5 " 11.1 31.6 19.0 20.2 14." 17.1 
Colombia 21.1 231 22.3 24.0 28.6 239 25.0 18.0 2 3 " 28.1 26.2 
Costa Rica 10.9 26.3 34.8 16.5 15.8 93.3 16.3 11.0 17.1 20.8 1".2 
Dominican Republic 10.4 21.2 16.2 27.9 17.5 8.0 38.9 9.0 16.5 44.1 45.4 
Ecuador 12.5 35.1 27.6 45.1 115 1".6 28.2 23.0 29.3 58.5 75.4 

El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 

10.7 
9.5 

10.2 
10." 
8.1 

19.5 
11.9 
26.9 

6.7 
6.2 

14.7 
7.5 

19.5 
9.1 
6.9 

25.8 
17.4 
36.8 
3.8 
5.5 

16.3 
11.3 
14.3 
16.4 
18.3 

12.3 
0.4 

22.4 
8.5 
9.0 

23.5 
19.0 
16.3 
1 1.1 
4.2 

31.0 
36.0 

".() 
3.0 
4.0 

25.2 
12.5 
29.0 

■11 " 
1.9 

20.1 
11.1 
40.6 
4.4 
4." 

17.8 
11.2 
80.0 
11.7 
9.9 

Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 

18.1 
16.6 

7.0 
13.1 

Peru 311 
Suriname 98 
Trinidad and Tobago 130 
Uruguay 65.8 
Venezuela 8.4 

14.1 
"0.0 

453.3 
1.9 

20.3 

214.3 
13.6 
11.0 
56.3 
21.5 

16.6 
6 0 " 
54.4 
3.2 

15.8 

102.1 
" 0 

12.2 
44.8 
11.1 

11.1 
82.5 

2,628.6 
0.7 

26.1 

445.8 
22.4 
9.4 

"2.0 
35.9 

2".8 
28.6 
3"5 
13.3 
23.1 

200.0 
14.9 
1".0 
66." 
22.9 

5.8 
ni 7 
21.4 
AA 
1A 

60.0 
".3 

12.7 
19.0 
10.3 

26.6 
58" 

222.6 
1.0 

26.6 

163.2 
10.3 
8 " 

"2.4 
12.4 

15.0 
86.0 

681.0 
-1 .0 
31.0 

"".0 
18.7 
" 0 

"6.0 
11.0 

6.1 
131.7 
912.4 

1.0 
22.1 

86.4 
53.9 
11.2 
63.6 
27.9 

8.2 
114.4 

14,295.3 
1.0 

23.1 

668.5 
7.2 
".6 

62.2 
30.3 

14.4 
20.0 

4,770.1 
- 0 . 1 
25.9 

3,398.9 
15.0 
1 1 " 
80.7 
83.8 

Sources: Official statistics; IDB estimates: and tlie International Monetary Fund, International Financial Statistics (tape), November 1990. 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

DISBURSED TOTAL EXTERNAL DEBT OUTSTANDING, 1980-89 ' TABLE 6 
(In millions of U.S. dollars) 
Country 1980 1981 1982 1983 1984 1985 1986 198" 1988 1989 

Argentina 27,157.0 35,656.7 43,634.2 45,919.5 48,856.6 50,944.5 52,450.0 58,424.5 58705.6 64,745.2 
Bahamas 150.8 226.7 303.3 263.7 226.6 216.0 252.2 236.2 195.2 194.0 
Barbados 165.8 234.6 336.7 580.9 396.6 463.3 619.0 627.1 746.0 785.0 
Bolivia 2,699.8 3,218.7 3,328.6 4,069.4 4,317.1 4,804.7 5,574.5 5,840.3 5,431.0 5,358.6 
Brazil 70,837.9 80,643.5 92,812.1 98,094.9 105,014.7 105,525.7 113,042.7 123,559.8 115,645.6 111,290.5 

Chile 12,081.3 15,663.7 17,314.6 17,928.3 19737.0 20,3839 21,144.2 21,501.7 19,577.9 18,240.6 
Colombia 6,940.4 8,716.3 10,306.4 11,412.4 12,038.8 14,240.4 15,362.4 17,006.1 16,9933 16,886.6 
Costa Rica 2,735.3 3,286.1 3,627.3 4,163.7 3,972.7 4,370.1 4,528.8 4,690.9 4,531.8 4,468.4 
Dominican Republic 2,002.3 2,294.0 2,518.8 2,926.9 3,112.5 3,503.3 3,645.3 3,863.8 3,947.0 4,065.5 
Ecuador 5,996.8 7,822.6 7,704.7 7,594.8 8,305.2 8,705.4 9,336.5 10,482.0 10,749.4 11,3114 

El Salvador 911.1 1,127.0 1,419.0 1,6"3.0 1,730.0 1,757.0 1,713.1 1,751.9 1,760.4 1,850.4 
Guatemala 1,165.8 1,264.2 1,537.3 1,799.3 2,352.5 2,622.7 2,752.6 2,770.3 2,576.5 2,601.2 
Guyana 767.3 847.3 951.3 1,200.9 1,264.7 1,482.1 1,615.3 1,712.6 1,678.1 1,7130 
Haiti 302.5 423.0 535.9 569.4 664.1 717.2 710.0 843.8 817.9 802.2 
Honduras 1,475.1 1,707.0 1,842.0 2,125.6 2,284.3 2,731.4 2,973.6 3,302.0 3,303.8 3,349.6 

Jamaica 1,903.4 2,299.3 2,842.4 3,313.6 3,470.5 3,879.2 4,024.9 4,537.0 4,305.0 4,322.2 
Mexico 57,377.7 78,215.2 86,019.0 92,964.3 94,821.9 96,865.4 100,872.1 109,447.3 100,752.2 95,641.5 
Nicaragua 2,170.8 2,572.3 3,330.5 4,174.4 5,105.7 5,690.7 6,181.5 7,3217 8,052.5 9,205.4 
Panama 2,9"3.9 3,366.2 3,923.2 4,388.9 4,368.9 4,759.1 4,932.5 5,301" 5,683.2 5,800.2 
Paraguay 958.0 1,150.0 1,295.9 1,413.6 1,469.7 1,815.9 2,086.1 2,521.2 2,496.9 2,489.7 

Peru 10,03".9 10,319.1 12,305.1 12,061.3 13,098.9 14,278.7 16,1536 18,644.4 18,998.4 19,875.6 
Suriname 27.4 25.7 25.2 25.8 38.2 52.4 70.4 84.6 951 100.1 
Trinidad and Tobago 828.5 1,049.8 1,202.8 1,438.0 1,222.0 1,448.2 1,85"." 1,804.9 2,039-9 2,012.0 
Uruguay 1,659.7 2,174.4 2,646.8 3,291.9 3,271.4 3,919.4 3,906.2 4,270.8 3,825.5 3,750.4 
Venezuela 29,309" 32,092.7 32,152.6 38,297.3 36,881.2 35,332.2 34,637.4 35,275.2 34,472.5 33,144.4 

Latin America 242,636.2 296,396.1 333.9157 361,691.8 378,021.8 390,508.9 410.442.6 445,821.8 42",380." 424,003.7 

Sources: World Bank. World Debt Tables. 1989-90 and 1990-91; and IDB estimates. 
1 Total external debt is the sum of long-term and short-term external debt and use of IMF credit. Long-term external debt is made up of public and publicly guaranteed 
debt and private non-guaranteed debt. Short-term external debt is debt with an original maturity of one year or less and could be either public or private. The use 
of IMF credit denotes repurchase obligations to the IMF with respect to all uses of IMF resources, excluding those resulting from drawings in the reseñe tranche 
and the IMF Trust Fund. 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

BALANCE OF PAYMENTS SUMMARY, 1985-891 

(In millions of U.S. dollars) 
1985 

Country 

Balance on 

Merchandise 
Trade 

Current 
Account 

Reserves 
and 

Capital Related 
Account Items2 

1986 

Balance on 

Merchandise 
Trade 

Current 
Account 

Capital 
Account 

Reserves 
and 

Related 
Items2 

1987 

Balance on 

Merchandise 
Trade 

Current 
Account 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

4,878 
- 8 0 0 
- 2 5 8 

160 
12,466 

-952 
-148 

40 
-281 
-273 

2,513 
- 1 3 
- 5 
57 

292 

1,029 
- 1 9 
- 2 2 

34 
511 

2,446 
-719 
- 2 7 8 

- 5 1 
8,304 

-2,859 
- 2 6 
- 1 5 

-384 
- 5,304 

1,666 
22 
18 

362 
2,006 

891 
- 4 7 
- 2 0 

-114 
3,232 

968 
- 8 8 1 
-327 
-127 

11,158 

-4,239 
-166 

- 5 3 
-422 

-1,450 

Chile 850 -1,328 1,229 102 1,100 -1,137 797 252 1,230 - 8 0 8 
Colombia - 2 3 -1,809 2,236 -154 1,922 383 1,160 -1,292 1,868 336 
Costa Rica - 6 1 -126 43 - 5 9 39 - 8 0 77 - 9 4 - 1 3 8 -256 
Dominican Republic - 5 4 7 -107 - 5 - 4 2 -629 - 1 8 5 91 - 2 1 -880 -363 
Ecuador 1,294 114 -204 - 2 2 555 -541 575 171 - 3 3 -1,090 

El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 

-216 
- 1 7 

4 
-121 
- 8 9 

- 2 8 
-246 
- 9 6 
- 9 4 

-204 

32 
313 
105 
55 

224 

- 2 7 
111 
- 4 
- 5 
3 t 

-124 
168 
- 2 
112 
17 

116 
- 1 7 
-112 
- 4 4 
-147 

68 
63 
"8 
51 

173 

- 4 3 
-112 

62 
- 2 4 
- 5 9 

-349 
-355 

5 
-101 
- 4 9 

135 
-442 
-109 
- 3 1 
-224 

Jamaica -435 -301 313 - 2 9 -247 - 3 8 61 -102 -356 -136 
Mexico 8,451 1,130 -2,096 2,731 4,599 -1,673 1,127 88 8,433 3,968 
Nicaragua -489 - 7 2 5 929 - 1 6 -419 -687 660 211 -439 - 6 7 8 
Panama - 9 2 5 286 -150 118 - 7 6 8 354 78 - 5 9 - 7 9 8 205 
Paraguay -191 - 2 2 5 67 109 -162 - 3 5 8 209 128 - 9 7 -133 

Peru 1,172 137 347 -186 - 6 5 -1,077 736 295 -521 -1,481 
Suriname 26 - 1 1 14 8 33 - 2 2 1 40 64 74 
Trinidad and Tobago 756 - 9 0 20 301 153 -441 -196 721 339 -247 
Uruguay 178 -120 - 7 4 - 6 6 273 44 18 -287 102 - 1 5 " 
Venezuela 6,782 3,327 -1,056 -1,110 669 -2,245 -1,149 3,930 1,567 -1,390 

Latin America 32,845 •2,130 5,186 1,047 16,702 16,495 8,752 7,747 20,283 -9,157 

Sources: International Monetary Fund, Balance of Payments (tape), November 1990; and IDB estimates. 
1 Merchandise trade is equal to exports of goods minus imports of goods valued at f o.b. prices. Current account is equal to trade plus sen-ices plus unrequited transfers. 
Capital account is the net result of capital inflows and outflows of the monetary and nonmonetary sectors. Reseñes and related items include the changes in monetary gold, 
special drawing rights, resenhe position in the IMF, foreign exchange and use of IMF credit. This table excludes errors and omissions. 2 According to conventional usage, a minus sign ( - ) means an increase. 
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INTERAMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

TABLE 7 

1987 1988 1989 

Reserves 
and 

Capital Related 
Account Items2 

Balance on 

Merchandise 
Trade 

Current 
Account 

Capital 
Account 

Reserves 
and 

Related 
Items2 

Balance on 

Merchandise 
Trade 

Current 
Account 

Capital 
Account 

Reseñes 
and 

Related 
Items2 Country 

2,539 
 1 8 
101 
199 

4,417 

1,917 
59 

 6 
48 

2,165 

4,234 
 7 8 5 
373 
 4 8 

19,168 

1,615 
 1 2 8 

2 
255 
4,159 

3,613 
64 
41 

165 
1,601 

1,858 
 0 

 3 8 
43 

1,711 

5709 
892 
452 

 6 
16,142 

1,292 
179 

 2 
 2 6 3 
1,586 

25 
76 

 0 
191 
190 

1,348 
 4 6 

42 
104 

 5 9 8 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

1,021 135 2,219 167 1,102 826 1,578 905 1,526 570 Chile 
 1 402 827 200 945  1 9 3 1,481 42 396 394 Colombia 
162  3 7  9 7  1 7 8 196 242 254 381 305 145 Costa Rica 
201 133 718  2 1 132 122 1,039 127 230  2 Dominican Republic 

2,053 98 588 404 834  1 2 661 532 734 192 Ecuador 

 6 0 
462 

59 
57 

262 

81 
53 
"5 

 5 
64 

355 
 3 3 9 

21 
- 1 0 3 

- 2 3 

25 
414 

 9 4 
 4 0 

229 

61 
275 
60 
88 

221 

19 
141 
21 

 2 5 
 1 4 

-498 
357 

— 4 
100 

129 
338 

131 
 6 2 

116 
397 
597 
59 

249 

 5 3 
I l i 

464 
 1 2 

i s 

El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 

215 
1,003 

763 
279 
161 

161 
• 5,570 

 6 
37 

 3 7 

 3 9 5 
1,668 
482 
432 

68 

2,443 
 " 1 5 

752 
125 

158 
1,355 

707 
460 

 5 4 

134 
6,638 
 4 3 

5 
168 

 5 5 1 
 6 4 5 
 3 4 l 
612 

 7 4 

 2 1 3 
 5,447 
316 

406 
294 

218 
1.3"" 

30" 
 5 8 
 3 6 

 3 9 
180 

60 
 5 0 

112 

Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 

867 
 5 0 

78 
333 
538 

668 
9 

255 
 8 2 
982 

 9 9 
118 
389 
292 

1,998 

1.096 
62 

 1 1 " 
8 

 5,809 

1,215 
 6 5 

41 
241 

■1,039 

 10 
5 

I Í2 
 1 8 

4,079 

1,102 
217 
489 
462 

5,858 

508 
162 

 6 6 
153 

2,496 - 3 . 

488 
160 

— 
23 

749 

 594 Peru 
0 Suriname 

 ~ 1 Trinidad and Tobago 
116 Uruguay 
 49 Venezuela 

13,635 4,417 23,345 8,157 6,505 6,015 28,176  5,598 3,430 1,991 Ijtin America 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

SELECTED SOCIAL I N D I C A T O R S ' 

Country 

Vital Statistics 

Crude Birth Crude Death 
Rate Rate 

(Per 1000 populat ion) 

Infant 
Mortality 
(Per 1000 

live births) 

1970 LAE2 1970 LAE 1970 LAE 

Life 
Expectancy 

at Birth 
(Years) 

1970 LAE 

Health 

Population 
per 

Physician 
(Persons) 

1970 LAE 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

23.1 
25.3 
20.6 
45.5 
34.8 

21.2 
24.9 
16.6 
42.6 
28.4 

9.0 
6.2 
8.7 

19.5 
10.2 

S.9 
5 1 
7.9 

13.9 
7,9 

51.8 
35.0 
29.4 

153.4 
94.6 

32.0 
26.4 
12.4 

110.0 
63.0 

66.8 
65.0 
687 
46.1 
59.0 

70.6 
70.0 
74.9 
53.1 
64.9 

529 
1,320 
1,910 
2,020 
2,030 

374 
1,060 
1,123 
1,538 
1,080 

Chile 29.2 23.7 95 6.4 80.0 20.0 62.4 71.5 2,160 1,231 
Colombia 36.9 26.3 10.5 6.9 79.2 46.0 59.1 65.7 2,250 1,186 
Costa Rica 33-4 28.0 6." 4.2 61.5 18.0 67.1 73.7 1,620 958 
Dominican Republic 41.2 31.4 10.8 6,7 98.4 65.0 58.7 66.0 2,300 1,763 
Ecuador 42.5 32.9 11.8 7.2 99.8 63.0 58.1 65.5 2,910 826 

El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 

43.9 
45.0 
33.9 
40.7 
49.3 

36.4 
40.7 
27.1 
34.4 
39.8 

11.6 
14.4 
6.9 

17.9 
14.7 

8.4 
8,5 
7,0 

12,7 
7.9 

1030 
100.2 
56.0 

161.8 
115.2 

59.0 
59.0 
43.9 

117.0 
69.0 

57.6 
52.5 
64.7 
47.6 
52.7 

62.2 
62.0 
66.1 
54.7 
64.0 

4,100 
3,660 
4,010 

12,500 
3,770 

2,829 
2,184 
6,220 
7,179 
1,511 

Jamaica 34.4 25.7 
Mexico 43.4 28.7 
Nicaragua 47.4 41.4 
Panama 37.1 26.6 
Paraguay 37.7 34.9 

Peru 40.8 31.1 
Suriname 357 32.0 
Trinidad and Tobago 28.1 25.9 
Uruguay 20.9 18.9 
Venezuela 37.9 30.7 

7.6 
9.4 

13.5 
7.7 

13.9 
7.6 
7.3 
9.8 
7.0 

5.5 
5.8 
7.6 
5.1 
6.4 

8.9 
7.3 
6.7 

10.6 
5.2 

39.6 
73.0 

106.0 
46.6 
58.6 

116.4 

34.4 
47.4 
53.4 

18.0 
47.0 
62.0 
23.0 
42.0 

88.0 
42.0 
20.0 
27.0 
36.0 

67.2 
61.7 
53.5 
65.5 
65.3 

53.9 
63.8 
66.2 
68.8 
65.2 

73.9 
68.6 
63.3 
72.1 
66.9 

61.4 
66.7 
69.8 
71.1 
70.1 

2,630 
1,550 
2,140 
1,660 
2,300 

1,920 
2,150 
2,210 

915 
1,120 

2,065 
1,242 
1,498 
1,000 
1,459 

1,042 
1,264 

962 
502 
701 

Sources: The statistical yearbooks of the United Nations (TIN.) Economic Commission for Latin America and the Caribbean. U.N. Educational, Scientific and Cultural 
Organization, U.N. Statistical Office (various issues); the Pan American Health Organization, Health Conditions in the Americas, 1990; and the World Bank, Social 
Indicators of Development, 1989. 
1 Social indicators are collected by countries through censuses and suneys taken in many cases infrequently and on other than an annual basis. Therefore, the data 
for 1970 are for years as close to 1970 as possible and in no case earlier than 1970 nor later than 1979. Data for the latest available estimate (LAE) are in no case 
prior to 1980 and for many of the indicators refer to the later half of the decade. Furthermore, users should be aware that the concepts, definitions, and methodologies 
employed in the collection of such indicators van- from country to country and often vary over time within countries. 
2 Latest available estimates. 
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Health 

Population 
per 

Hospital Bed 
(Persons) 

1970 LAE 

Access to 
Safe 

Water 
(In percent) 

1970 LAE 

Illiteracy 
Rate' 

(In percent) 

1970 LAE 

Education 

Enrollment Ratios 

1st and 2nd 
Levels4 

( In percent) 

Third 
Level5 

(In percent) 

1970 LAE 1970 LAE 

TABLE 8 

Country 

179 
196 
98 

442 
271 

206 

640 
293 

56.1 
65.1 
98.0 
33.0 
55.0 

100.0 
53.0 
84.0 

0.7 
36.8 
33.8 

6.1 

25.5 

" 0 

85 
54 
65 

96 

101 
76 
86 

14.2 38.7 

3.9 19.4 
8.7 17.7 
5.3 10.9 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

265 287 56.0 87.0 11.0 8.9 87 93 94 17.8 Chile 
449 660 630 ... 192 14.8 64 83 4.7 139 Colombia 
252 399 74.0 93.0 11.6 7.4 76 75 10.3 24.8 Costa Rica 
379 ... 37.0 50.0 33.0 31.4 65 92 6.5 18.6 Dominican Republic 
432 272 34.0 57.0 25.8 198 66 89 7.6 25.8 Ecuador 

524 
461 
198 

1,270 
578 

244 
843 
424 
342 
614 

,60 
176 
199 
169 

2,900 

600 
300 

1,112 
1,009 

431 
1,376 

738 
330 
717 

590 
177 
201 
301 

2,700 

40.0 
38.0 
75.0 
12.0 
34.0 

62.0 
54.0 
35.0 
69.0 
11.0 

35.0 

96.0 
92.0 
75.0 

54.0 
58.0 
82.0 
38.0 
46.0 

70.0 
48.0 
82.0 
22.0 

53.0 
98.0 
98.0 

80.0 

42.9 
54.0 
8.4 

78.7 
43.1 

3.9 
25.8 
42.5 
21.7 
19.9 

27.5 

6.1 
23.5 

32.7 

65.2 
40.5 

9.7 

11.8 
12.5 

18.1 
10.0 
5.1 
5.0 

15.3 

62 
36 
79 
25 
57 

81 
68 
54 
"5 
67 

72 
90 
73 
82 
"1 

68 
51 
73 
58 
75 

83 
85 
76 
83 

98 
84 
93 
92 
84 

3.3 
3.4 
1.9 
0.4 
2 1 

5.4 
6.1 
5.7 
6.6 
4.3 

10.8 
1.2 
2.9 
9.9 

11.7 

17.7 
8.6 
2 I 
1 2 

s.s 

El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 

4.2 Jamaica 
15.7 Mexico 
8.4 Nicaragua 

28.2 Panama 
9.4 Paraguay 

24.6 Peru 
7.7 Suriname 
4.2 Trinidad and Tobago 

41.6 Uruguay 
26.5 Venezuela 

5 Illiteracy Rale-. Proportion of the population 15 years of age and older who cannot, with understanding read and write a short simple statement on everyday life. 4 Enrollment 1st and 2nd Levels: Gross enrollment of all ages at primary and secondary levels as a percentage of school-age children as defined by the country. 
School-age children at the primary and secondary levels generally range from 6 to 17 years of age. Gross enrollment can be more than 100 percent if some pupils 
are younger or older than the above age range. 
5 Enrollment 3rd Level Calculated as above with an age group of 20 to 24. 
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PARTIU 

FINANCIAI 
STATEMENTS 

SUBSCRIPTIONS TO CAPITAL STOCK AND VOTING POWER 

Under the Agreement Establishing the Bank (Agree
ment), each member country shall have 135 votes plus 
one vote for each share of ordinary capital stock held 
by that country. The Agreement also provides that no 
increase in the subscription of any member to the or
dinary capital stock shall become effective which would 
have the effect of reducing the voting power of the 
regional developing members below 53.5 percent, of 
the United States below 34.5 percent, and of Canada 
below 4 percent of the total voting power. 

In making decisions concerning operations of the 
Fund for Special Operations, the number of votes and 
percent of total voting power for each member country 
are the same as determined by the provisions of the 
Agreement referred to above. 

Subscriptions to shares of ordinary capital stock, 
and the voting power of the member countries, are 
listed on the following page. 

BATAN, MEXICO. Technicians at the International 
Center for Maize and Wheat Improvement 
(CIMMYT) package samples of new lines of a 
fungus-resistent bread wheat that will be crossed 
with other wheat varieties and grown by CIMMYT. 
The IDB has provided yearly grants to CIMMYT 
since 1974 to support its research efforts. The 
fungus-resistent wheat seeds were sent to CIMMYT 
by Brazil's Instituto Agronómico elo Paraná, which 
itself received funds from a 1980 IDB loan to 
provide applied technology support for low-in
come farmers in Paraná State. 
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STATEMENT OF SUBSCRIPTIONS T O CAPITAL STOCK AND V O T I N G POWER 
DECEMBER 31, 1990 

Member countries 

Regional developing members 
Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Suriname  
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Total regional developing members 

United States 

Canada 

Nonregional members 
Austria 
Belgium 
Denmark 
Finland 
France 
Germany . 
Israel 
Italy 
Japan 
Netherlands 
Norway 
Portugal 
Spain 
Sweden 
Switzerland 
United Kingdom . . . . . . . . . 
Yugoslavia 
Total nonregional members 

GRAND TOTAL 

Subscribed 
shares 

394,991 
7,633 
4,724 

31,708 
394,991 
108,457 
108,378 

15,849 
21,160 
21,160 
15,849 
21,160 

5,877 
13,300 
15,849 
21,160 

253,906 
15,849 
15,849 
13,300 
52,929 

3,222 
15,849 
42,349 

211,620 
1,827,119 

1,178,641 

149,191 

2,697 
6,392 
2,873 
2,697 

32,839 
33,634 

2,658 
32,839 
36,633 
4,992 
2,873 

865 
32,839 

5,593 
7,333 

32,839 
2,697 

243,293 
3,398,244 

Number 
of votes 

395,126 
7,768 
4,859 

31,843 
395,126 
108,592 
108,513 

15,984 
21,295 
21,295 
15,984 
21,295 

6,012 
13,435 
15,984 
21,295 

254,041 
15,984 
15,984 
13,435 
53,064 

3,357 
15,984 
42,484 

211,755 
1,830,494 

1,178,776 

149,326 

2,832 
6,527 
3,008 
2,832 

32,974 
33,769 

2,793 
32,974 
36,768 

5,127 
3,008 
1,000 

32,974 
5,728 
7,468 

32,974 
2,832 

245,588 
3,404,184 

Percentage 
of total 

number of 
votes1 

11.61 
0.23 
0.14 
0.94 

11.61 
3.19 
3.19 
0.47 
0.63 
0.63 
0.47 
0.63 
0.18 
0.39 
0.47 
0.63 
7.46 
0.47 
0.47 
0.39 
1.56 
0.10 
0.47 
1.25 
6.22 

53.77 

34.63 

4.39 

0.08 
0.19 
0.09 
0.08 
0.97 
0.99 
0.08 
0.97 
1.08 
0.15 
0.09 
0.03 
0.97 
0.17 
0.22 
0.97 
0.08 
7.21 

100.00 

1 Data are rounded to the nearest one hundredth of one percent; detail may not add to subtotals and grand total because of 
rounding. 
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ORDINARY 
CAPITAI 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 

Board of Governors 
Inter-American Development Bank 

In our opinion, the financial statements appearing on pages 138 through 149 present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Inter-American Development Bank—Ordinary Capital at December 31, 1990 and 
1989, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Bank's management; our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits 
of these statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards which require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis 
for the opinion expressed above. 

As discussed in Note M to the financial statements, the Bank changed its method of accounting for nonpension 
retirement benefits during 1990. 

PRICE WATERHOUSE 

Washington, D.C. 
February 20, 1991 
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ORDINARY CAPITAL 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

BALANCE SHEET 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars—Note A 

December 31, 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments 
Cash (Note C) 
Investments (Note D) 

Loans outstanding (Note E) (Appendix 1-1) 
Total loans approved, less cancellations 
Less undisbursed balance of approved loans . . . . 
Less principal collected and loans sold or agreed 

to be sold 

Allowance for loan losses 

1990 

$ 183,797 
4,404,065 

35,006,269 
(9,224,374) 

(8,053,666) 
17,728,229 

(247,900) 

S 4,587,862 

17,480,329 

1989 

S 173,160 
3,649,635 

30,109,469 
(8,201,792) 

(6,626,782) 
15,280,895 

(140,500) 

S 3,822,795 

15,140,395 

Accrued interest and other charges 
On investments 
On loans 

65,655 
410,626 476,281 

80,717 
329,244 409,961 

Receivable from members (Note J) 
Capital subscriptions 
Non-negotiable, non-interest bearing demand 

obligations 
Amounts required to maintain value of currency 

holdings 

64,226 

486,167 

5,777 556,170 

591 

432,772 

5,777 439,140 

Other Assets 
Property (Note F) 
Unamortized borrowing costs 
Miscellaneous 

246,681 
146,097 
82,296 475,074 

242,438 
134,609 
26,262 403,309 

Special Reserve assets (Note G) 
Total assets 

1,003,377 
824,579,093 

839,793 
821,055,393 
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ORDINARY CAPITAL 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

BALANCE SHEET 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars— Note A 

December 31, 

LIABILITIES A N D CAPITAL 

Liabilities 
Borrowings (Note H) (Appendix 1-2) 

Less unamortized discount 

Accrued interest on borrowings 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

(Note I) 

Capital 
Capital Stock (Note J) (Appendix 1-3) 

Subscribed 3,398,244 shares 
(1989—2,856,128) 

Less callable portion 

General Reserve (Note K) 
Special Reserve (Note G) . 

1990 

$17,273,368 
(23,858) 

17,249,510 
446,800 

335,110 $18,031,420 

40,994,487 
(38,158,241) 

2,836,246 

2,708,050 
1,003,377 

1989 

6,547,673 

S14,630,121 
(33,199) 

14,596,922 
375,985 

144,502 

34,454,707 
(31,812,683) 

2,642,024 

2,456,167 
839,793 

$15,117,409 

5,937,984 

Commitments (Note E) 
Total liabilities and capital . . . 524,579,093 521,055,393 
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ORDINARY CAPITAL 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND GENERAL RESERVE 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars—Note A 

Years ended December 31, 

Income 
Loans (Note E) 

Interest 
Credit commissions 
Special commissions 
Supervision and inspection fees 

Investments 
Other (Note H) 

Total income 

1990 

$1,168,406 
68,157 

159,664 
21,580 

1,417,807 
448,862 

3,390 
1,870,059 

1989 

i 931,726 
80,291 

128,393 
24,300 

1,164,710 
370,128 

(7,451) 
1,527,387 

Expenses 
Borrowing expenses 
Provision for loan losses (Note E) 
Administrative expenses 

Total expenses 
Income before cumulative effect of change 

in accounting method 
Cumulative effect on prior years (to 

December 31, 1989) of changing the 
method of accounting for post 
retirement benefits (Note M) 

1,231,265 
107,400 
115,311 

1,453,976 

416,083 

(74,876) 

1,112,801 
90,500 

103,507 
1,306,808 

220,579 

Net income 
Allocation to Special Reserve (Note G) . . 
Addition to General Reserve for the year 

General Reserve beginning of year 
Translation adjustments (Note K) . 

341,207 
(159,664) 
181,543 

2,456,167 
70,340 

220,579 
(128,393) 

92,186 

2,356,867 
7,114 

General Reserve end of year $2,708,050 $2,456,167 
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ORDINARY CAPITAL 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars— Note A 

Years ended December 31, 

1990 1989 
Cash flows from financing activities 

Borrowings (excluding related costs): 
Gross proceeds from borrowings 
Repayment of borrowings 

Participations: 
Sales of loans to participants 
Repayments to participants 

Capital: 
Collections of receivables from members 

Net cash provided by financing activities . . 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Lending (excluding related income): 

Loan disbursements 
Loan collections 
Net cash used for lending activities 

Purchase of property 
Investments of the Special Reserve . . 
Miscellaneous assets and liabilities . . . 
Net cash used for investing activities . 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Loan income collections 
Interest and other costs of borrowings . . 
Income from investments 
Other income 
Administrative expenses 
Net cash provided by operating activities 

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and 
investments 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and investments 

Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by 
operating activities: 
Net income 
Difference between amounts accrued and amounts 

paid or collected for: 
Loan income 
Investment income 
Interest and other costs of borrowings 
Administrative expenses, including depreciation . . . . 

Provision for loan losses 
Cumulative effect of changing the method of 

accounting for post retirement benefits 
Net cash provided by operating activities 

Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities 
Increase (decrease) resulting from exchange rate 

fluctuations 
Borrowings 
Loans outstanding 

51,830,305 
(609,001) 

16,000 
(65,240) 

77,192 
1,249,256 

(2,129,309) 
1,069,413 

(1,059,896) 
(13,042) 

(151,618) 
29,001 

(1,195,555) 

1,355,151 
(1,190,876) 

465,202 
418 

(94,883) 
535,012 

176,354 
$ 765,067 

$ 341,207 

(62,656) 
16,340 
37,417 
20,428 
107,400 

74,876 
S 535,012 

$1,421,943 
1,349,786 

$1,983,671 
(1,137,418) 

4,000 
(64,092) 

102,331 
888,492 

(2,192,789) 
935,336 

(1,257,453) 
(7,869) 

(129,851) 
(32,852) 

(1,428,025) 

1,187,538 
(1,110,495) 

343,525 
132 

(100,677) 
320,023 

(74,082) 
$ (293,592) 

S 220,579 

22,828 
(26,603) 
9,889 
2,830 

90,500 

$ 320,023 

S (481,727) 
(379,101) 
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ORDINARY CAPITAL 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

NOTES T O FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 1990 and 1989 

N o t e A — S u m m a r y of Significant A c c o u n t i n g Policies 

Translation of Currencies 

The financial statements are expressed in United States dollars; how
ever, the Bank conducts its operations in the currencies of all of its 
members. Such currencies have been derived from capital and bor
rowed sources including earnings from each. Assets and liabilities 
denominated in currencies other than the United States dollar are 
translated generally at approximate market rates of exchange pre
vailing at the dates of the financial statements. Income and expenses 
in such currencies are translated generally at the approximate market 
rates of exchange prevailing during each month. Fluctuations of rates 
of exchange of currencies received from capital subscriptions do not 
have any effect on the United States dollar equivalent of such cur
rencies because of the maintenance of value provisions described in 
Note B. The Bank generally follows the policy of holding, investing 
and lending the proceeds of borrowings in the currencies borrowed. 

The adjustments resulting from the translation into United States 
dollars of assets and liabilities denominated in borrowed currencies 
are shown in the Statement of Income and General Reserve as 
translation adjustments affecting the General Reserve directly. 

Exchange gains or losses realized upon conversion of one bor
rowed currency into another are generally insignificant and are re
corded in other income. 

No representation is made that any currency held in the ordi
nary capital is convertible into any other currency at any rate or 
rates. 

Loans 

The Bank follows the policy of reviewing the collectibility of loans 
on a continuous basis. The Bank ceases to accrue income under all 
loans in a country when service under any loan to or guaranteed by 
a borrower in such country, made from any fund owned or admin
istered by the Bank, is overdue for 180 days; income is recorded 
thereafter only as it is collected, until loan service is current under 
all loans. The Bank considers recording provisions for loan losses 
no later than when loan service is overdue from a borrower for two 
years. Provisions for loan losses are charged against income. 

Property 

Property is recorded at cost. Major improvements are capitalized 
while routine replacements, maintenance and repairs are charged to 
expense. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over 
estimated useful lives (30 to 40 years for buildings and 3 to 7 years 
for equipment). 

Administrative Expenses 

Substantially all administrative expenses of the Bank, including de
preciation, are allocated to the funds pursuant to an allocation method 
approved by the Board of Executive Direcrors. During 1990 such 
expenses were charged 57.7% to the ordinary capital and 42.3% to 
the Fund for Special Operations (1989-57.1% and 42.9%, respec
tively). 

Interest Rate and Currency Swaps 

The difference to be paid or received for interest on interest rate 
and currency swaps is recorded as part of borrowing expense over 
the life of the respective agreements. The net asset or liability re
lating to swap transactions is shown in the Balance Sheer under Other 
assets—Miscellaneous or Accounts payable and accrued expenses. 

N o t e B — M a i n t e n a n c e of Value 

In accordance with the Agreement Establishing the Bank (Agree
ment), each member is required to maintain the value of its currency 
held in the ordinary capital, except for currency derived from bor
rowings. Likewise, the Bank is required to return to a member an 
amount of its currency equal to any significant increase in value of 
such member's currency which is held in the ordinary capital, except 
for currency derived from borrowings. The standard of value for 
these purposes is the United States dollar of the weight and fineness 
in effect on January 1, 1959 (see Note J). 

N o t e C—Restr ic ted Currencies 

Cash includes $174,141,000 (1989-5165,889,000) in the non-con
vertible currencies of regional borrowing members, of which 
$73,657,000 (1989-S71,126,000) has been restricted by one of the 
members, in accordance with the provisions of the Agreement, to 
be used for making payments for goods and services produced in 
its territory. 

N o t e D — I n v e s t m e n t s 

The investments of the Bank—ordinary capital—are stated at am
ortized cost which approximates market and consist of the following: 

December 31, 

1990 1989 

(in thousands) 
Obligations issued or guaranteed by 

governments or issued by United 
States Government corporations 
and agencies $ 876,829 $ 806,425 

Time deposits and other obligations 
of banks 3,527,236 2,843,210 

$4,404,065 S3.649.635 

The average return on investments was 9.15% in 1990 and 8.26% 
in 1989. 

The amortized cost and estimated market values of investments 
in debt securities at December 31, 1990, including those of the 
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ORDINARY CAPITAL 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

N O T E S T O F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S (continued) 

December 31, 1990 and 1989 

Special Reserve (See Note G), are as follows (in thousands) 

Amortized 
cost 

U.S. Treasury securities 
and obligations of 
U.S. Government 
corporations and 
agencies 51,652,953 

Debt securities issued 
by other govern
ments and agencies. . 172,374 

Gross 
unrealized 

gains 

S14.578 

Gross 
unrealized 

losses 

Estimated 
market 
value 

S(143) Sl.667,388 

407 
81,825,327 $14,985 

(811) 

S<954> 

171,970 

Sl.839,358 

The amortized cost and estimated market value of the above 
debt securities at December 31, 1990, by contractual maturity, are 
as follows: 

Amortized Estimated 
cost market value 

Due in one year or less . . . 
Due after one year through 

five years 

S 549,997 

1,275,330 
$1,825,327 

S 550,997 

1,288,361 
$1,839,358 

Proceeds from sales of investments in debt securities during 
1990 were $11,374,675,000. Gross gains of $12,239,000 and gross 
losses of S 1,305,000 were realized in those sales. 

N o t e E—Loans Outs tanding 

The Bank makes loans to its developing members, agencies or po
litical subdivisions of such members or to private enterprises located 
in their territories. For loans to borrowers other than members and 
central banks, the Bank in almost all instances has received either 
the member's guarantee or other security deemed appropriate. The 
Bank has a policy of not rescheduling loan repayments. 

Under the loan contracts with the borrowers, the Bank may sell 
participations in the loans to commercial banks or other public or 
private organizations, but it reserves to itself the administration of 
the loans. 

Approved loans are disbursed to borrowers in accordance with 
the requirements of the project being financed; however, disburse
ments do not begin until the borrower and guarantor, if any, take 
certain actions and furnish certain documents to the Bank. Of the 
undisbursed balances, the Bank has entered into irrevocable com
mitments to disburse approximately S98,782,000 at December 31, 
1990. 

The Intermediate Financing Facility Account (IFF) was estab
lished in 1983 by the Board of Governors of the Bank for the 
purpose of providing ro certain borrowers part of the interest pay
ments for which they are liable on loans from the capital resources 
of the Bank. During 1990 the IFF paid $13,196,000 (1989-
$11,323,000) of such interest on behalf of the borrowers. The IFF 
is funded from the General Reserve of the Bank's Fund for Special 
Operations. 

Pursuant to the policy described in Note A, loans made to or 
guaranteed by the following countries are in a nonaccrual status at 
December 31, 1990: 

Loan principal at 
December 31, 1990 A v e r a S e 

Month placed interest 
Country in nonaccrual Outstanding Overdue rate % 

Nicaragua May 1988 
Panama March 1988 
Peru February 1989 

(in thousands) 
$ 78,109 $ 15,077 

320,437 92,804 
674,414 160,134 

$1,072,960 $268,015 

9.23 
9.02 
8.53 

In addition, loans to or guaranteed by Honduras were in non-
accrual status from November 1989 until June 1990. The impact 
on 1990 loan income of the loans in nonaccrual—as shown in the 
above table—was partially offset by the recovery of prior year's 
income on loans to or guaranteed by Honduras and service payments 
received from countries still in nonaccrual status, aggregating 
$75,544,000. The reduction of 1990 income because of loans still 
in nonaccrual status aggregated $92,588,000. The net result of the 
recovery of prior years' income and current year's nonaccrual was a 
reduction in 1990 loan income of $17,044,000, compared with a 
reduction of $134,677,000 in 1989. 

In consideration of the delays in payments which have required 
the application of the nonaccrual policy as indicated above, the Bank 
commenced in 1988 to provide for the possibility of loan losses. 
Provisions of $107,400,000 and $90,500,000 have been charged to 
income in 1990 and 1989, respectively, and the total allowance for 
loan losses amounts to $247,900,000 at December 31, 1990. 

The average interest rate on loans outstanding, which includes 
the special commission (Note G), was 8.22% in 1990 and 7.43% 
in 1989- In addition to the interest rate, the Bank charges a credit 
commission of .75% (1.25% on loans approved prior to January 1, 
1989) per annum on the undisbursed convertible currency portion 
of loans and a one-time inspection and supervision fee of 1% on 
the principal amount of the loans. The average return on loans 
outstanding was 8.77% in 1990 and 8.16% in 1989. 

The average interest rate on outstanding and accruing loans was 
8.31% in 1990 and 8.34% in 1989; the average return on outstand
ing and accruing loans was 8.89% in 1990 and 9.13% in 1989. 

N o t e F—Property 

The property of the Bank—ordinary capital—consists of the follow
ing: 

December 31, 

1990 1989 

(in thousands) 
Land, buildings, improvements and 

equipment, at cost 
Less accumulated depreciation. . . . 

$287,280 
40,599 

$246,681 

$274,238 
31,800 

S242.438 
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December 31, 1990 and 1989 

N o t e G—Spec ia l Reserve 

The amount of special commissions earned by the Bank on loans 
made out of the ordinary capital resources is segregated as a special 
reserve for meeting the Bank's obligations created by borrowing or 
by guaranteeing loans. On all loans granted to date the rate of com
mission is 1%' per annum. 

The following is a summary of changes in the Special Reserve: 
Years ended December 31, 

1990 1989 

Balance beginning of year 
Allocation of special 

commissions 
Translation adjustments . . 
Balance end of year 

(in thousands) 
839,793 $712,934 

159,664 
3,920 

S 1,003,377 

128,393 
(1,534) 

$839,793 

The Special Reserve assets consist of the following: 
December 31, 

1990 1989 

(in thousands) 
Investments 

United States Government and 
agencies obligations, at amor
tized cost which approximates 
market 

Accrued loan commissions 
$ 948,498 

54,879 
$1,003,377 

$796,880 
42,913 

$839,793 

N o t e H — B o r r o w i n g s 

The borrowings of the Bank consist of loans, notes and bonds issued 
in various regional and nonregional member currencies, at interest 
rates ranging from 4.25% to 14.625%. During 1990 and 1989 the 
average cost of borrowings outstanding was 7.93% and 8.05%, re
spectively. The Bank will from time to time borrow additional amounts 
for its ordinary capital in the course of its operations. 

Sinking fund requirements and maturities subsequent to De
cember 31, 1990 are as indicated in Appendix 1-2. 

Gains of $2,972,000 in 1990 pursuant to sinking fund opera
tions and losses of $7,583,000 in 1989 reflecting purchases of bonds 
pursuant to advance redemption provisions are included under other 
income. 

N o t e I — I n t e r e s t R a t e a n d C u r r e n c y Swaps 

The Bank—ordinary capital—has entered into currency swaps by 
which it received during 1983 through 1986 approximately 
498,800,000 Swiss francs at costs ranging from 5.65% to 6.814% 
to be repaid in the same currency from 1992 through 1996 in ex
change for the delivery and recovery in the same years of 129,559,000 
U.S. dollars and 70,000,000 British pounds sterling at costs ranging 

from 10.485% to 13.509%. The Bank has also entered into an 
interest rate swap to exchange a fixed rate for a floating rate of 
interest on 200,000,000 U.S. dollars for the years 1991 through 
2000. At December 31, 1990, the Bank had no exposure to credit 
loss in the event of nonperformance by its counterparties to currency 
swaps as each swap was in a net liability position; the maximum 
credit loss exposure on its interest rate swap was approximately 
$9,869,000. 

The Bank incurs no risk as a result of the fluctuations of the 
exchange rates applicable to currency swap transacrions because of 
its policy of holding and investing the corresponding proceeds in 
the same currencies. 

The net liability for principal and interest on swap agreements 
at December 31, 1990, amounting to the equivalent of $104,612,000 
(1989-$74,101,000), is shown in the Balance Sheet under Accounts 
payable and accrued expenses. 

N o t e J—Capital Stock 

Composition 

The capital of the Bank consists of "paid-in" and "callable" shares. 
The subscribed "paid-in" capital has been or is to be paid in gold 
and/or United States dollars (see below) and in the currency of the 
respective member, which in some cases must be made freely con
vertible, in accordance with the terms for rhe respective increase in 
capital. Non-negotiable, non-interest bearing demand obligations 
have been or will be accepted in lieu of part of the member's sub
scription to the "paid-in" capital. The subscribed "callable" portion 
of capital may only be called when required to meet obligations of 
the Bank created by borrowings of funds for inclusion in the Bank's 
ordinary capital resources or guarantees chargeable to such resources 
and is payable at the option of the member either in gold, in United 
States dollars, in fully convertible currency of the member country, 
or in the currency required to discharge the obligations of the Bank 
for the purpose for which the call is made. 

Valuation 

The Agreement provides that the ordinary capital be expressed in 
terms of United States dollars of the weight and fineness in effect 
on January 1, 1959. The Second Amendment to the Articles of 
Agreement of the International Monetary Fund eliminated par val
ues of currencies in terms of gold effective April 1, 1978, and con
sequently the General Counsel of the Bank has rendered an opinion 
that the Special Drawing Right (SDR) has become the successor to 
the 1959 U.S. dollar as the standard of value of the Bank's capital 
stock and for the purpose of maintaining the value of the Bank's 
currency holdings. The SDR has a value equal to the sum of the 
values of specific amounts of stated currencies, including the U.S. 
dollar. Pending a decision by the Bank's governing boards, and as 
suggested in the General Counsel's opinion, the Bank is continuing 
its practice of using the 1959 U.S. dollar, which pursuant to the 
devaluations of the United States dollar in 1972 and 1973 is equal 
to approximately 1.2063 current U.S. dollars, as the basis of val
uation. 
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December 31, 1990 and 1989 

In these terms, at December 31, 1990 the subscribed capital 
was $40,994,487,000 (3,398,244 shares of approximately $12,063 
each) consisting of $2,836,246,000 (235,111 shares) of "paid-in" 
capital and $38,158,241,000 (3,163,133 shares) of "callable" capital. 
If the SDR were to have been substituted for the 1959 U.S. dollar 
on December 31, 1990, subscribed capital would have totalled 
$48,345,458,000, consisting of $3,344,830,000 of "paid-in" capital 
and $45,000,628,000 of "callable" capital. Such substitution would 
not have materially affected either the overall financial position or 
rhe results of operations of the Bank—ordinary capital. For a statement 
of subscribed capital at December 31, 1990 see Appendix 1-3. 

Changes for the period 

In January 1990 an increase in the capital stock of the Bank was 
approved in the amount of $26,500,007,000, consisting of 
$662,705,000 of "paid-in" capital and $25,837,302,000 of "callable" 
capital. The first of four equal installments under this increase be
came effective on December 14, 1990. Additional subscriptions will 
become effective in three equal installments on October 31 of each 
of the years 1991 through 1993. 

The following table summarizes the changes in the subscribed 
capital for the years ended December 31, 1989 and 1990: 

Subscribed capital 

Amount (in thousands) 

Shares Paid-in Callable Total 

Balance at January 
1, 1989 2,825,274 S2,600,092 £31,482,410 $34,082,502 

Subscriptions to 
an increase of 
capital approved 
in 1983 30,854 41,932 330,273 372,205 

Balance at 
December 31, 
1989 2,856,128 2,642,024 31,812,683 34,454,707 

Subscriptions to 
the increase of 
capital approved 
in 1983. . . . . . 2,621 31,618 31,618 

Subscriptions to 
the increase of 
capital approved 
in 1990 539,495 162,604 6,345,558 6,508,162 

Balance at 
December 31, 
1990 3,398,244 $2,836,246 $38,158,241 $40,994,487 

N o t e K—Genera l Reserve 

In accordance with resolutions of the Board of Governors the net 
income from the ordinary capital resources of the Bank, after al
location to the Special Reserve (See Note G), has been added to a 
General Reserve to provide for possible future losses on loans or 
any annual excess of expenses over income. 

Beginning in 1981 the adjustments resulting from the transla
tion into United States dollars of assets and liabilities denominated 

in borrowed currencies have been made directly to the General 
Reserve. Such adjustments consist of credits (charges) as follows: 

Years ended December 31, 
1990 1989 

Cumulative adjustments, be
ginning of year 

Translation adjustments for 
the year 

Cumulative adjustments, end 
of year 

(in thousands) 

$ 334 $(6,780) 

70,340 7,114 

$70,674 S 334 

N o t e L—Staff Ret irement Plan 

Description 

The Bank has one Staff Retirement Plan for the benefit of its in
ternational employees and one for the benefit of local employees in 
the field offices. Both plans are defined benefit plans. 

Funding policy 

The Plans are funded by employee and Bank contributions at the 
rates of 10% and 24% of payroll, respectively. In accordance with 
the provisions of the Plans, any and all contributions to the Plans 
by the Bank shall be irrevocable, and shall be held by the Bank in 
the Retirement Funds, to be used in accordance with the provisions 
of the Plans, and neither such conrributions nor any income thereon 
shall be used for or diverted to, purposes other than the exclusive 
benefit of participants and retired participants or their beneficiaries 
or estates under the Plans prior to the satisfaction of all liabilities 
with respect thereto. 

Types of assets 

The assets of the Retirement Funds are invested by several inde
pendent investment managers principally in government, corporate 
and other bonds, common stocks and real estate investment funds. 

Pension costs 

Pension costs of the Bank for 1990 and 1989 were $17,594,000 
and $17,799,000, respectively, and were charged to administrative 
expenses and allocated to the funds as indicated in Note A. 

Components of pension costs 

Pension costs for the year ended December 31, 1990 comprised the 
following (in thousands): 

Service cost $22,571 
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation . . . 40,667 
Amortization of prior service costs 593 
Expected return on Plan assets (46,237) 

$17,594 
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December 31, 1990 and 1989 

Reconciliation of Plan assets based on December 31, 1989 valuation 
of the Plan (in thousands): 

Obligation at December 31, 1990 
Non-vested benefits 

Vested benefits 
Accumulated benefits 

Effect of future salary increases 
Projected benefit obligation at 

December 31, 1990 
Plan assets at December 31, 1990 
Projected benefit obligation in excess of Plan 

assets 
Remaining unrecognized net obligation at Janu

ary 1, 199C 
Unrecognized loss 
Prepaid pension cost recognized in the Balance 

Sheet 

$ 46,354 
352,564 

398,918 
186,419 

585,337 
543,368 

(41,969) 

7,710 
34,259 

Actuarial assumptions 
Weighted average assumed discount rate . . . . 
Weighted average expected long-term rate of 

return 
Weighted average rate of salary increases. . . . 

7.75% 

8.50% 
8.38% 

N o t e M — N o n - P e n s i o n R e t i r e m e n t Benef i ts 

The Bank provides certain health care and other benefits to retirees. 
All current staff who contribute to the Staff Retirement Plan while 
in active service and who meet certain requirements will be eligible 
for post retirement benefits when they retire under the Bank's Staff 
Retirement Plans. 

In prior years, the cost of retiree health care and other benefits, 
net of retiree contributions, was recognized in expense on a cash 
basis. Under recently issued accounting standards, the cost of pro
viding these benefits is required to be recognized in expense over 
the employees' service period, on an actuarially determined basis. 
The Bank has decided to change its method of accounting in 1990 
and to give immediate recognition to the accumulated past service 
liability for its non-pension retirement benefits. 

Non-pension retirement benefit costs of the Bank for 1990 
increased by $10,740,000 as a result of the change in accounting 
method. The cumulative effect on prior years of changing the method 
of accounting for post retirement benefits amounted to $129,767,000 
which was allocated to the ordinary capital and to the Fund for 

Special Operations on the basis of the administrative expense allo
cation method described in Note A. 

The post retirement benefit obligation for medical benefits at 
January 1, 1990 was as follows: 

Retirees $39,786,000 
Fully eligible 29,200,000 
Active participants not yet eligible 30,781,000 

$99,767,000 

The post retirement benefit obligation for other benefits was 
$44,360,000 at December 31, 1990, of which $14,360,000 relates 
to current retirees. 

Non-pension retirement benefit costs for 1990 comprised the 
following: 

Service cost . 
Interest cost. 

$ 6,020,000 
11,183,000 

$17,203,000 

The liability for non-pension benefits to retirees was not funded 
at December 31, 1990. 
Actuarial assumptions: 

Weighted average assumed discount rate 8.00% 
Weighted average rate of salary increases 8.38% 
Assumed health care costs trends 

Increases at between 6'/2% and 7'/2% in real 
terms in 1990, declining to l'/2% over the 
subsequent 30 years. 

Effect of 1% increase in the health care cost 
trend 
The accumulated benefit obligation would 

increase approximately 22.1% and the cost 
for 1990 would increase 24.4%. 
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SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LOANS— NOTE E 
D E C E M B E R 3 1 , 1990 A N D 1989 
Expressed in thousands of U n i t e d States do l lars— N o t e A 

Member in whose 
territory loans have 

been made 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Suriname  
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Regional 

Total 1990 

Loans 
approved, 

less 
cancellations 

S 3,846 
120 
95 
834 

6,075 
3,768 
3,712. 
972 
414. 

1,456. 
334. 
551. 
109. 
335. 
592. 

5,839, 
99. 

554. 
174. 

1,035. 
19. 

145, 
651, 

2,020, 
1,245, 

,318 
,047 
,813 
,249 
,604 
,528 
,951 
703 
,222 
,367 
572 
924 
718 
873 
354 
819 
652 
750 
042 
265 
119 
604 
473 
298 
004 

Principal 
collected 

$1,216,247 
3,882 
10,405 
57,517 

1,969,580 
462,623 
516,272 
83,737 
35,231 
138,840 
99,908 
88,463 
3,783 

40,801 
90,550 

1,580,974 
19,749 
46,405 
28,510 
159,352 

402 
92,237 
162,465 
248,533 

Total 1989 
S35,006,269 S7,156,466 
S.30,109,469 S5729.931 

Loans sold 
or agreed to 

be sold 
SI 18,396 

14,000 
59,740 
121,705 
172,705 

1,520 
200 

103,257 
15,250 
40,725 

18,060 

22,186 
1,794 

58,000 
429 

128,513 

13,952 
5,768 
1,000 

S89~,200 
S896.851 

S 696,306 
91,425 
23,387 

381,295 
1,206,930 
934,531 

1,174,093 
542,412 
200,737 
478,498 
46,555 
119,684 
11,412 
39,375 

237,002 
1.001,822 

129,908 
18,858 
72,986 
10,860 

120,054 
255,743 

1,245,012 
185,489 

S9,224,3'4 
S8,201,792 

1,815,369 
24,740 
62,021 
381,437 

2,839,354 
2,249,669 
1,849,881 
345,034 
178,054 
735,772 
172,859 
303,052 
94,523 

237,637 
264,802 

3,234,837 
78,109 

320,437 
126,245 
674,414 

8,259 
25,148 

289,541 
607,053 
809,982 

Currency in which 
outstanding portion of 

approved loans is 
collectible 

Freely 
convertible 

Undisbursed Outstanding currencies 

1,766,067 
24,740 
61,824 

375,906 
2,746,772 
2,231,458 
1,838,465 

345,034 
178,054 
734,301 
r i , 1 6 2 
301,568 

94,523 
237,637 
262,197 

3,209,191 
78,109 

319,566 
124,670 
664735 

8,259 
25,148 

289,386 
607,053 
809,982 

Other 
currencies 

S 49,302 

W7 

5,531 
92,582 
18,211 
11,416 

1,471 
1,697 
1,484 

2,605 
25,646 

871 
1,575 
9,679 

S17.728.229 S P , 505,80" 

155 

S222.422 

Outstanding 
1989 

S 1,608,522 
851 

46,937 
317,403 

2,632,792 
1,873,189 
1,541,947 

288,665 
153,625 
587,271 
183,912 
277,337 

"5.323 
222,520 
214,802 

2,886,700 
71,908 

294,917 
121,749 
621,395 

3,760 
14,775 

245,312 
375,868 
619,415 

S 15,048,995 Si 3 1,900 515,280,895 

T h e freely convertible currencies in which the outstanding port ion of 
approved loans is collectible are as follows: 

Currencies 

Austrian schillings 
British pounds sterling . . . . 
Canadian dollars 
European currency units . . . 
French francs 
G e r m a n marks 
Italian lire 
Japanese yen 
Ne ther lands guilders 
Spanish pesetas 
Swedish k ronor 
Swiss francs 
Trinidad and Tobago dollars 
United States dollars 
Venezuelan bolivars 
Yugoslav dinars 

1990 
22,115 

415,865 
80,083 
83,276 
2,682 

2,639,159 
420 

4,172,604 
997,015 
49,500 

913 
3,549,141 

1,852 
5,474,152 

16,996 
34 

1989 
24,425 
365,548 
37,407 
67,389 
4,180 

2,341,008 
761 

3,495,872 
909,860 

1,314 
1,411 

2,943,495 
2,137 

4,836,909 
17,245 

34 
SI7,505,807 S 15,048,995 
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STATEMENT OF BORROWINGS—NOTE H 
DECEMBER 31, 1990 A N D 1989 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars—Note A 

December 3 1 , 1990 

Payable in 

Austrian schillings 
British pounds sterling 
European currency units . . . 
German marks 
Japanese yen 
Nether lands guilders 
Swiss francs 
Trinidad and Tobago dollars 
United States dollars 

Total 

Principal 
outstanding 

$ 23,415 
764,893 
136,333 

3,016,064 
4,684,597 
1,235,017 
3,010,344 

2,197 
4,400,508 

$17,273,368 

Weighted 
average 
cost (%) 

8.80 
11.03 
10.12 

7.94 
6.67 
8.28 
6.01 
8.34 
9.90 
7.94 

Due 
dates 

1991 
1991/15 

1993 
1991/01 
1991/17 
1991/99 
1991/05 

2002 
1991/11 

December 3 1 , 
1989 

Principal 
outstanding 

S 21,027 
636,940 
119,703 

2,477,324 
3,897,504 
1,057,648 
2,609,250 

2,347 
3,808,378 

514,630,121 

Sinking fund requirements and maturities subsequent to December 31, 1990 are approximately equivalent to the following: 

Year Amount 

1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996/00 
2001/05 
2006/10 
2011/15 
2016/17 

S 1,150,547 
1,821,213 
1,566,347 
1,220,486 
2,092,087 
6,235,146 
1,913,866 

281,079 
843,787 
148,810 

$17,273,368 
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STATEMENT OF SUBSCRIPTIONS TO CAPITAL STOCK— NOTE J 
DECEMBER 31, 1990 AND 1989 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars- Note A 

Paid-in portion of 
subscribed capital 

Members 

Argentina 
Austria 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belgium 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Canada 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Denmark 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Finland 
France 
Germany 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Israel 
Italy 
Jamaica 
Japan 
Mexico 
Netherlands 
Nicaragua 
Norway 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Portugal 
Spain 
Suriname  
Sweden 
Switzerland 
Trinidad and Tobago 
United Kingdom . . . 
United States 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Yugoslavia 

Shares 

394,991 
2,697 
7,633 
4,724 
6,392 

31,708 
394,991 
149,191 
108,457 
108,378 

15,849 
2,873 

21,160 
21,160 
15,849 
2,697 

32,839 
33,634 
21,160 

5,877 
13,300 
15,849 
2,658 

32,839 
21,160 
36,633 

253,906 
4,992 

15,849 
2,873 

15,849 
13,300 
52,929 

865 
32,839 

3,222 
5,593 
7,333 

15,849 
32,839 

1,178,641 
42,349 

211,620 
2,697 

Freely 
convertible 
currencies 

S222,522 
2,220 
6,357 
3,191 
5,416 
17,854 

222,522 
127,655 
61,041 
61,029 
8,939 
2,388 
11,906 
11,906 
8,939 
2,220 

27,239 
27,866 
11,906 
4,355 
8,167 
8,939 
2,208 

27,239 
11,906 
30,340 
143,060 
4,102 
8,939 
2,388 
8,939 
8,167 

29,845 
688 

27,239 
3,016 
4,729 
6,044 
8,939 

27,239 
976,318 
23,885 
149,056 
2,220 

Other 
currencies 
5104,059 

4,054 
1,755 

8,360 
104,059 

28,566 
28,554 
4,162 

5,574 
5,574 
4,162 

5,574 
2,569 
4,162 
4,162 

5,574 

66,904 

4,162 

4,162 
4,162 

13,957 

2,232 

4,162 
11,171 
33,331 

Callable 
portion of 
subscribed 
capital 

54,438,366 
30,315 
81,669 
52,042 
71,693 

356,294 
4,438,366 
1,672,101 
1,218,757 
1,217,828 
178,092 
32,270 

237,782 
237,782 
178,092 
30,316 

368,912 
377,875 
237,782 
63,973 
148,115 
178,092 
29,857 

368,912 
237,782 
411,580 

2,853,014 
56,119 
178,092 
32,270 
178,092 
148,115 
594,703 
9,747 

368,912 
33,621 
62,742 
82,417 
178,092 
368,912 

13,242,138 
475,818 

2,370,477 
30,315 

Total 1990 
54,764,947 

32,535 
92,080 
56,988 
77,109 

382,508 
4,764,947 
1,799,756 
1,308,364 
1,307,411 
191,193 
34,658 

255,262 
255,262 
191,193 
32,536 

396,151 
405,741 
255,262 
70,897 
160,444 
191,193 
32,065 

396,151 
255,262 
441,920 

3,062,978 
60,221 
191,193 
34,658 
191,193 
160,444 
638,505 
10,435 

396,151 
38,869 
67,471 
88,461 
191,193 
396,151 

14,218,456 
510,874 

2,552,864 
32,535 

Total 1990 3,398,244 52,371,083 5465,163 538,158,241 540,994,487 
Total 1989 2,856,128 52,176,861 5465,163 531,812,683 

Total 1989 
S 3,998,762 

27,300 
77,266 
47,819 
64,708 
321,008 

3,998,762 
1,510,366 
1,097,989 
1,097,181 
160,444 
29,085 

214,223 
214,223 
160,444 
27,300 

332,456 
340,502 
214,223 
59,496 
160,444 
160,444 
26,901 

332,456 
214,223 
370,866 

2,570,464 
50,533 
160,444 
29,085 
160,444 
160,444 
535,834 
8,758 

332,456 
32,620 
56,625 
74,238 
160,444 
332,456 

11,932,568 
428,734 

2,142,369 
27,300 

534,454,707 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

FUND FOR 
SPECIAI OPERATIONS 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 

Board of Governors 
Inter-American Development Bank 

In our opinion, the financial statements appearing on pages 152 through 160 present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Inter-American Development Bank—Fund for Special Operations at December 31, 
1990 and 1989, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Bank's manage
ment; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted 
our audits of these statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards which require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclo
sures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above. 

As discussed in Note I to the financial statements, the Bank changed its method of accounting for nonpension 
retirement benefits during 1990. 

PRICE WATERHOUSE 

Washington, D.C. 
February 20, 1991 
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BALANCE SHEET 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars— Note A 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments 
Cash (Note C) 
Investments (Note D) 

December 31, 

1990 

1,003,696 
899,617 $1,903,313 

1989 

948,921 
895,278 $1,844,199 

Loans outstanding (Note E) (Appendix II-1) 
Total loans approved, less cancellations 
Less undisbursed balance of approved loans 
Less principal collected and loans sold or agreed 

to be sold 

Allowance for loan losses 

10,458,061 
(1,760,931) 

(2,950,385) 
5,746,745 
(115,100) 5,631,645 

10,026,389 
(1,653,462) 

(2,741,862) 
5,631,065 
(100,300) 5,530,765 

Accrued interest and other charges 
On investments 
On loans 

10,850 
38,815 49,665 

8,133 
31,709 39,842 

Receivable from members 
Contribution quotas (Note F) (Appendix II-2) . . 
Non-negotiable, non-interest bearing demand 

obligations (Note F) 
Amounts required to maintain value of currency 

holdings (Note B) 
Property, improvements and equipment, at cost 

less accumulated depreciation $700; (1989-
$614) 

Other assets 
Total assets 

170,709 

1,557,463 

114,990 1,843,162 

1,295 
27 

$9,429,107 

72,187 

1,535,858 

114,990 1,723,035 

1,381 
35 

59,139,257 

LIABILITIES AND F U N D BALANCE 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Undisbursed technical cooperation projects and 

other financings 

67,170 $ 16,262 

121,526 $ 188,696 118,519 S 134,781 

Fund balance 
Contribution quotas authorized and subscribed 

(Notes B and F) (Appendix II-2) 
General Reserve (Note G) 

8,701,828 
538,583 9,240,411 

,458,206 
546,270 9,004,476 

Commitments (Notes E and G) 
Total liabilities and fund balance $9,429,107 59,139,257 
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STATEMENT OF INCOME AND GENERAL RESERVE 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars— Note A 

Years ended December 31, 

Income 
Loans (Note E) 
Interest 
Credit commissions 
Service charges 
Supervision and inspection fees 

Investments 
Other 

Total income 

1990 

SI 16,126 
4,297 
2,881 
2,972 

126,276 

73,960 
496 

200,732 

1989 

$ 91,271 
4,788 
2,618 
3,870 

102,547 

72,938 
778 

176,263 

Expenses 
Provision for loan losses (Note E) 
Administrative expenses 

Total expenses 

Income before technical cooperation expense 

Technical cooperation expense (Note J) 

Income before cumulative effect of change 
in accounting method 

Cumulative effect on prior years 
(to December 31, 1989) of changing 
the method of accounting for post 
retirement benefits (Note I) 

Net income 

General Reserve beginning of year 
Translation adjustments (Note G) 
Allocation to Intermediate Financing Facility Account 

(Note G) 
General Reserve end of year 

14,800 
84,285 
99,085 

101,647 

41,018 

60,629 

(54,891) 

5,738 

546,270 
2,075 

(15,500) 
$538,583 

50,300 
77,663 

127,963 

48,300 

46,230 

2,070 

2,070 

559,274 
426 

(15,500) 
5546,270 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars— Note A 

Years ended December 31, 

1990 1989 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Capital: 

Collections of receivables from members 
Participations: 

Sales of loans to participant 
Repayments to participant 

Net cash provided by financing activities . . 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Lending (excluding related income): 

Loan disbursements 
Loan collections 

Net cash used for lending activities . 
Miscellaneous assets and liabilities . . 
Net cash used for investing activities 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Loan income collections 
Income from investments 
Other income 
Administrative expenses 
Technical cooperation and other financings 
Net cash provided by operating activities . 

Transfer to the Intermediate Financing 
Facility Account 

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash 
and investments 

Net increase in cash and investments 

Reconciliation of net income to net cash 
provided by operating activities: 
Net income 
Difference between amounts accrued and 

amounts paid or collected for: 
Loan income 
Investment income 
Administrative expenses 
Technical cooperation and other financings 

Provision for loan losses 
Cumulative effect of changing the method of 

accounting for post retirement benefits . . . 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities 
Increases (decreases) resulting from 

exchange rate fluctuations: 
Due from members 
Contribution quotas 

$114,470 

6,838 
(24,638) 
96,670 

(329,241) 
228,838 

(100,403) 
(10,877) 

(111,280) 

119,497 
71,392 

496 
(75,063) 
(38,011) 
78,311 

(15,500) 

10,913 

$ 59,114 

$ 5,738 

(6,779) 
(2,568) 
9,222 
3,007 

14,800 

54,891 

$ 78,311 

$ 32,361 
41,386 

$ 96,553 

8,004 
(15,703) 
88,854 

(311,517) 
219,490 
(92,027) 
35,000 

(57,027) 

106,080 
70,368 

778 
(77,589) 
(30,291) 
69,346 

(15,500) 

1,366 

S 87,039 

$ 2,070 

3,533 
(2,570) 

74 
15,939 
50,300 

S 69,346 

$ (2,793) 
(1,802) 

154 



INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

FUND FOR SPECIAL OPERATIONS 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 1990 and 1989 

N o t e A — S u m m a r y of Signif icant A c c o u n t i n g Policies 

Translation of Currencies 

The financial statements are expressed in United States dollars; how
ever, the Bank conducts its operations in the currencies of all of its 
members. Assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than 
the United States dollar are translated generally at approximate mar
ket rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the financial state
ments. Income and expenses in such currencies are translated gen
erally at approximate marker rates of exchange prevailing during 
each month. Except as indicated in the following sentence, fluctua
tions of rates of exchange do not have any effect on the United 
States dollar equivalents of such currencies because of the mainte
nance of value provisions described in Note B. The net adjustments 
resulting from the translation into United States dollars of assets, 
liabilities and contribution quotas which do not have maintenance 
of value protection, being derived from the 1983 and 1990 increases 
in contribution quotas (see Note F), are shown in the Statement of 
Income and General Reserve as translation adjustments affecting 
the General Reserve directly. 

No representation is made that any currency held in the Fund 
for Special Operations is convertible into any other currency at any 
rate or rates. 

Loans 

The Bank follows rhe policy of reviewing the collectibility of loans 
on a continuous basis. The Bank ceases to accrue income under all 
loans in a country when service under any loan to or guaranreed by 
a borrower in such country, made from any fund owned or admin
istered by the Bank, is overdue for 180 days; income is recorded 
thereafter only as it is collected, until loan service is current under 
all loans. The Bank considers recording provisions for loan losses 
no later than when loan service is overdue from a borrower for two 
years. Provisions for loan losses are charged against income. 

Administrative Expenses 

Substantially all administrative expenses of the Bank, including de
preciation of property capitalized in the Bank's ordinary capital, are 
allocated to the funds pursuant to an allocation method approved 
by the Board of Executive Directors. During 1990, such expenses 
were charged 42.3% to the Fund for Special Operations and 57.7% 
to the ordinary capital (1989-42.9% and 57.1%, respectively). 

Technical cooperation 

All non-reimbursable technical cooperation projects as well as cer
tain reimbursable financings which may not be fully recovered are 
charged to income at the time of approval. 

N o t e B — M a i n t e n a n c e of Value 

In accordance with the Agreement Establishing the Bank (Agree
ment), each member is required to maintain the value of its currency 
held in the Fund for Special Operations to the extent established 

by the terms for the respective increases in contribution quotas. 
Likewise, and subject to the same terms of contribution quota in
creases, the Bank is required to return to a member an amount of 
irs currency equal to any significant increase in value of such mem
ber's currency which is held in the Fund for Special Operations. The 
standard of value for these purposes ranges from the United States 
dollar at its 1959 value to the United States dollar at its value in 
effect at any given time. Holdings derived from the 1983 and 1990 
increases in contribution quotas (see Note F) do not have mainte
nance of value protection. 

The General Counsel of the Bank has rendered an opinion that 
since the effectiveness on April 1, 1978 of the Second Amendment 
to the Articles of Agreement of the International Monetary Fund, 
which eliminated par values of currencies in terms of gold, the Spe
cial Drawing Right (SDR) has become the successor to the 1959 
U.S. dollar as the standard of value. The Bank's governing boards 
have not made a decision on this matter. If the SDR were to have 
been substituted for the 1959 United States dollar on December 
31, 1990, the financial position and the results of operations of the 
Bank—Fund for Special Operations would not have been materially 
affected. 

"Amounts required to maintain value of currency holdings" 
represent amounts due from member countries for maintenance of 
value adjustments resulting from the changes in the values of cur
rencies in 1972 and 1973. Such amounts include $12,602,000 for 
which payment responsibility has not been assigned as they relate 
to outstanding loans repayable at borrowers' options either in the 
currencies disbursed or in the borrowers' currencies. The obligation 
for payment of this amount is being allocated to individual members 
on the basis of the currencies received in loan repayments. 

N o t e C—Restr ic ted Currencies 

Cash includes $987,025,000 (1989-$942,977,000) in rhe non-con
vertible currencies of regional borrowing members, of which 
$111,061,000 (1989-$100,825,000) has been restricted by one of 
the members to be used for making payments for goods and services 
produced in its territory, in accordance with provisions of the Agree
ment. 

N o t e D — I n v e s t m e n t s 

The investments of the Bank—Fund for Special Operations—are 
stated at amortized cost which approximates market and consist of 
the following: 

December 31, 

1990 1989 

(in thousands) 
Obligations issued or guaranteed 

by governments or issued by 
United States Government 
corporations and agencies. . . . 

Time deposits and other obliga
tions of banks 

$243,874 

655,743 
$899,617 

S186.726 

708,552 
$895,278 
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N O T E S T O F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S (continued) 

December 31, 1990 and 1989 

The amortized cost and estimated market values of investments 
in debt securities at December 31, 1990 are as follows (in thousands): 

Gross . Gross Estimated 
Amortized unrealized unrealized market 

cost gains losses value 

U.S. Treasury securities 
and obligations of 
U.S. Government 
corporations and 
agencies $167,299 

Debt securities issued 
by other govern
ments and agencies. . 76,575 

S 1,300 

$243,874 $1,304 

$ (62) $168,537 

(579) '(,,()()[] 

$(641) $244,537 

The amortized cost and estimated market value of the above 
debt securities at December 31, 1990, by contractual maturiry, are 
as follows: 

Amortized Estimated 
cost market value 

Due in one year or less . . . 
Due after one year through 

five years 

$ 97,414 

146,460 
$243,874 

$ 97,437 

147,100 
S244.537 

Proceeds from sales of investments in debt securities during 
1990 were $65,422,000. Gross gains of $129,000 were realized in 
those sales. 

Pursuant to the policy described in Note A, loans made to or 
guaranteed by the following countries are in a nonaccrual status at 
December 31, 1990: 

Country 

Nicaragua 
Panama 
Peru 

Month placed 
in nonaccrual 

May 1988 
March 1988 
February 1989 

Loan principal at 
December 31, 1990 

Outstanding Overdue 

(in thousands) 
$253,013 $17,445 

198,302 22,574 
266,611 38,280 

$717,926 $78,299 

In addition, loans to or guaranteed by Honduras were in non-
accrual status from November 1989 until June 1990. The impact 
on 1990 loan income of the loans in nonaccrual—as shown in the 
above table—was offset by the recovery of prior year's income on 
loans to or guaranteed by Honduras and service payments received 
from countries still in nonaccrual status, aggregating $15,320,000. 
The reduction of 1990 income because of loans still in nonaccrual 
status aggregared $15,153,000. The net result of the recovery of 
prior years' income and current year's nonaccrual was an increase in 
1990 loan income of $167,000 compared with a reduction of 
$22,554,000 in 1989. 

In consideration of the delays in payments which have required 
the application of the nonaccrual policy as indicated above, the Bank 
commenced in 1988 to provide for the possibility of loan losses. 
Provisions of $14,800,000 and $50,300,000 have been charged to 
income in 1990 and 1989, respectively, and the total allowance for 
loan losses amounts to $115,100,000 at December 31, 1990. 

N o t e E—Loans Outs tanding 

The Bank makes loans to its developing members, agencies or po
litical subdivisions of such members or to private enrerprises located 
in their territories. For loans to borrowers other than members or 
central banks, the Bank in almost all instances has received either 
the member's guarantee or other security deemed appropriate. The 
Bank has a policy of not rescheduling loan repayments. 

The Board of Executive Direcrors has authorized participations 
by the Social Progress Trust Fund in the United States dollar or 
local currency portions of loans made from the Fund for Special 
Operations provided that, with respect to such loans, the provisions 
of the Social Progress Trust Fund Agreement have in substance been 
complied with as fully as though the loans had been made initially 
from the Trust Fund. 

Approved loans are disbursed to borrowers in accordance with 
the requirements of the project being financed; however, disburse
ments do not begin until the borrower and guarantor, if any, take 
certain actions and furnish certain documents to the Bank. Of the 
undisbursed balances, the Bank has entered into irrevocable com
mitments to disburse approximately $29,170,000 at December 31, 
1990. . 

N o t e F—Contr ibut ion Quotas Authorized and 
Subscribed 

Non-negotiable, non-interest bearing demand obligations have been 
or will be accepted in lieu of part of the payment of the members' 
contribution quotas. The Canadian contribution quora is being in
creased by collections of principal, interest and service charges after 
May 3, 1972 on loans extended from the Canadian Trust Fund 
administered by the Bank, which was originally established in the 
amount of CAN$74,000,000. 

In January 1990 the Board of Governors authorized an increase 
of contribution quotas in the equivalent of $200,000,000 payable 
during the years 1990 to 1993 in freely convertible currencies to 
be designated by each member country at the rates of exchange in 
effect on March 20, 1989. Currencies held by the Bank which are 
derived from authorized contributions in 1983 and 1990 are not 
subject to the maintenance of value provisions of the Agreement. 
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N O T E S T O F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S (continued) 

December 31, 1990 and 1989 

The following table summarizes the changes in contribution 
quotas subscribed for the years ended December 31, 1989, and 
1990: 

Contribution quotas 
subscribed 

Years ended 
December 31, 

1989 

Balance atjanuary 1, 1989 
Contribution by Canada—Trust Fund 

collections 
Decrease in the U.S. dollar equivalence of 

contributions approved in 1983 due to 
exchange rate fluctuations 

Balance at December 31, 1989 
Contribution by Canada—Trust Fund 

collections 
Contributions by members approved in 

1990 
Increase in the U.S. dollar equivalence of 

contributions approved in 1983 and 
1990 due to exchange rate fluctuations . 

Balance at December 31, 1990 

$8,457,907,000 

2,101,000 

(1,802,000) 

8,458,206,000 

2,236,000 

200,000,000 

41,386,000 
$8,701,828,000 

At December 31, 1990 the cumulative increase in the U.S. 
dollar equivalence of contribution quotas because of exchange 
rate fluctuations was $96,380,000 (1989-$54,994,000). 

N o t e G—Genera l Reserve 

In accordance with resolutions of the Board of Governors, the net 
income of the Fund for Special Operations is to be added to a 
General Reserve to provide for possible future losses on loans or 
any annual excess of expenses over income. 

In both 1990 and 1989 the Board of Governors allocated the 
equivalent of $15,500,000 in convertible currencies from the Gen
eral Reserve to the Intermediate Financing Facility Account (IFF) 
for the purpose of providing to certain borrowers part of the interest 
for which they are liable on loans from the capital resources of the 
Bank. In addition, the equivalent of $15,500,000 in convertible 
currencies is to be allocated annually from the General Reserve to 
the IFF during each of the years 1991 through 1996, $23,500,000 
from 1997 through 2001 and $30,000,000 from 2002 through 2010, 
subject to adjustment by the Board of Governors. 

As indicated in Note A, the adjustments resulting from the 
translation of assets, liabilities and contribution quotas which do not 
have maintenance of value protection, is shown as an adjustment to 
the General Reserve. Such adjustments consist of credits as follows: 

Cumulative adjustments, beginning of year 
Translation adjustments for the year 
Cumulative adjustments, end of year 

1990 

(in thousands) 
$ 821 $395 

2,075 426 
$2,896 $821 

N o t e H — S t a f f Ret irement Plans 

Description 

The Bank has one Staff Retirement Plan for the benefit of its in
ternational employees and one for the benefit of local employees in 
the field offices. Both plans are defined benefit plans. 

Funding policy 

The Plans are funded by employee and Bank contributions at the 
rates of 10% and 24% of payroll, respectively. In accordance with 
the provisions of the Plans, any and all contributions to the Plans 
by the Bank shall be irrevocable, and shall be held by the Bank in 
the Retirement Funds, to be used in accordance with the provisions 
of the Plans, and neither such contributions nor any income thereon 
shall be used for, or diverted to, purposes other than the exclusive 
benefit of participants and retired participants or their beneficiaries 
or estates under the Plans prior to the satisfaction of all liabilities 
with respect thereto. 

Types of assets 

The assets of the Retirement Funds are invested by several inde
pendent investment managers principally in government, corporate 
and other bonds, common stocks and real estate investment funds. 

Pension costs 

Pension costs of the Bank for the years ended December 31, 1990 
and 1989 were $ 17,594,000 and $ 17,799,000, respectively and were 
charged to administrative expenses and allocated to the funds as 
indicated in Note A. 

Components of costs 

Pension costs for the year ended December 31, 1990 comprised the 
following (in thousands): 

Service cost $ 22,571 
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation . . . 40,667 
Amortization of prior service costs 593 
Expected return on Plan assets (46,237) 

$ 17,594 
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N O T E S T O F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S (continued) 

December 31, 1990 and 1989 

Reconcilation of Plan assets based on December 31, 1989 valuation 
of the Plan (in thousands): 

Obligation at December 31, 1990 
Non-vested benefits 

Vested benefits 
Accumulated benefits 

Effect of future salary increases 
Projected benefit obligation at December 31, 

1990 
Plan assets at December 31, 1990 
Projected benefit obligation in excess of Plan as

sets 
Remaining unrecognized net obligation at Janu

ary 1, 1990 

Unrecognized net loss 
Prepaid pension cost recognized in the Balance 

Sheet 

$ 46,354 
352,564 
398,918 
186,419 

585,337 
543,368 

(41,969) 

7,710 
34,259 

Actuarial assumptions 
Weighted average assumed discount rate . . . . 
Weighted average expected long-term rate of 

return 
Weighted average rate of salary increases. . . . 

7.75% 

8.50% 
8.38% 

N o t e I — N o n - P e n s i o n Ret irement Benefits 

The Bank provides certain health care and other benefits to retirees. 
All current staff who contribute to the Staff Retirement Plan while 
in active service and who meet certain requirements will be eligible 
for post retirement benefits when they retire under the Bank's Staff 
Retirement Plans. 

In prior years, the cost of retiree health care and other benefits, 
net of retiree contributions, was recognized in expense on a cash 
basis. Under recenrly issued accounting standards, the cost of pro
viding these benefits is required to be recognized in expense over 
the employees' service period, on an actuarially determined basis. 
The Bank has decided to change its method of accounting in 1990 
and to give immediate recognition to the accumulated past service 
liability for its non-pension retirement benefits. 

Non-pension retirement benefit costs of the Bank for 1990 
increased by $10,740,000 as a result of the change in accounting 
method. The cumulative effect on prior years of changing the method 
of accounting for post retirement benefits amounted to $129,767,000 
which was allocated to the ordinary capital and to the Fund for 
Special Operations on the basis of the administrative expense allo
cation method described in Note A. 

The post retirement benefit obligation for medical benefits at 
January 1, 1990 was as follows: 

Retirees $39,786,000 
Fully eligible 29,200,000 
Active participants not yet eligible 30,781,000 

$99,767,000 

The post retirement benefit obligation for other benefits was 
$44,360,000 at December 31, 1990, of which $14,360,000 relates 
to current retirees. 

Non-pension retirement benefit costs for 1990 comprised the 
following: 

Service cost $ 6,020,000 
Interest cost 11,183,000 

$17,203,000 

The liability for non-pension benefits to retirees was not funded 
at December 31, 1990. 
Actuarial assumptions: 

Weighted average assumed discount rate 8.00% 
Weighted average rate of salary increases 8.38% 
Assumed health care costs trends 

Increases at between 6Vf% and 7'/2% in real 
terms in 1990, declining to VA% over the 
subsequent 30 years. 

Effect of 1% increase in the health care cost 
trend 
The accumulated benefit obligation would 

increase approximately 22.1% and the cost 
for 1990 would increase 24.4%. 

N o t e J — T e c h n i c a l Cooperation Expense 

Technical cooperation expense comprises the following: 
Years ended 

December 31, 

1990 1989 

Projects approved 
Cancellation of balances for overages 

or projects not executed 
Recuperations and adjustments . . . . 

(in thousands) 
$53,363 $47,880 

(12,031) 
(314) 

$41,018 

(1,986) 
336 

$46,230 
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APPENDIX I I I 

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LOANS— NOTE E 
DECEMBER 31, 1990 AND 1989 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars- - Note A 

Loans 
Member in whose approved, 

territory loans have less 
been made cancellations 

Argentina S 511,069 
Barbados 41,245 
Bolivia 844,495 
Brazil 1,228,442 
Chile 203,447 
Colombia 696,616 
Costa Rica 350,068 
Dominican Republic . . . 592,374 
Ecuador 921,392 
El Salvador 625,515 
Guatemala 536,115 
Guyana 218,742 
Haiti 337,690 
Honduras 709,650 
Jamaica 173,677 
Mexico 563,254 
Nicaragua 312,508 
Panama 285,323 
Paraguay 467,578 
Peru 405,322 
Suriname 2,955 
Trinidad and Tobago . . 27,314 
Uruguay 104,502 
Venezuela 101,393 
Regional 197,375 
Unallocated — 

Currency in which 
outstanding portion of 

approved loans is 
collectible 

Principal 
collected 

! 208,953 
6,879 

104,977 
621,729 
148,958 
252,322 

81,122 
74,737 
88,016 
43,071 
66,187 

4,621 
25,139 
81,008 
35,023 

350,561 
35,918 
57,233 

106,893 
119,573 

10,549 
37,954 
67,942 
62,776 

Loans sold 
or agreed to 

be sold Undisbursed 

S 28,949 S 

3,652 
45,639 

7,298 
7,698 
2,842 

17,918 
17,664 
12,939 
11,742 

400 
2,328 

18,696 

2,518 
23,577 
11,612 

1,115 
17,178 

2,533 
21,782 

164 

Freely 
convertible 

Outstanding currencies 

33,983 
831 

202,255 
88,278 

62,913 
7,325 

70,458 
358,252 
175,967 
125,954 
112,972 
131,337 
175,009 

13,540 
16,015 

18,176 
121,075 

1,960 
2,543 
6,229 

16,439 

19,584 
(164) 

S 239 
33 

533 
472 

47 
373 
258 
429. 
457 
393 
332 
100 
178 
434. 
125 
194. 
253. 
198. 
238. 
266. 

10. 
47. 
11. 

115. 

184 
,535 
611 
796 
191 
,683 
,779 
,261 
460 
538 
232 
749 
886 
937 
114 
160 
013 
302 
495 
611 
412 
536 
576 
669 
015 

Other Outstanding 
currencies 1989 

17,854 S 
33,159 

450,503 
19,566 
14,156 

204,825 
229,056 
383,815 
405,547 
351,322 
289,927 
98,003 
153,141 
389,329 
106,614 
60,334 

237,238 
155,805 
162,491 
146,160 

893 
21,330 
11,669 
88,874 

221,330 
376 

83,108 
453,230 
33,035 
168,858 
29,723 
45,446 
51,913 
42,216 
42,305 
2,746 

25,745 
45,608 
18,500 

133,826 
15,775 
42,497 
76,004 
120,451 

412 
9,643 

26,246 

26,141 

242,270 
33,119 

472,777 
489,932 
52,797 

391,181 
254,530 
418,908 
442,714 
371,204 
314,814 
97,023 
167,264 
396,016 
125,908 
216,673 
253,096 
197,480 
240,305 
266,365 

356 
10,266 
41,488 
14,372 

120,207 

Total 1990 $10,458,061 $2,692,141 $258,244 $1,760,931 $5,746,745 $4,031,611 $1,715,134 
Total 1989 $10,026,389 $2,469,473 $272,389 $1,653,462 $3,869,251 $1,761,814 $5,631,065 

The freely convertible currencies in which the outstanding portion of approved loans is collectible are as follows: 

Currencies 

Austrian schillings . . . 
Belgian francs 
British pounds sterling 
Canadian dollars 
Danish kroner 
Finnish markkas 
French francs 
German marks 
Israeli shekels 
Italian lire 

1990 
$ 8,257 

27,332 
119,820 
240,133 
12,059 
8,018 

112,617 
128,921 

42 
34,693 

1989 
î 8,277 
27,472 
121,965 
245,726 
12,096 
8,181 

113,954 
129,812 

49 
35,732 

Currencies 

Japanese yen 
Netherlands guilders 
Norwegian kroner . . 
Portuguese escudos . 
Spanish pesetas . . . . 
Swedish kronor . . . . 
Swiss franc 
United States dollars 
Venezuelan bolivars . 
Yugoslav dinars . . . . 

1990 
i 144,201 

18,713 
14,319 
3,092 

126,915 
23,750 
30,223 

2,922,390 
55,090 
1,026 

1989 
i 144,840 

18,771 
14,241 
3,089 

128,242 
23,641 
30,377 

2,739,076 
54,251 
9,459 

$4,031,611 $3,869,251 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

FUND FOR SPECIAL OPERATIONS 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF CONTRIBUTION QUOTAS—NOTES B AND F 
DECEMBER 31, 1990 AND 1989 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars- Note A 

APPENDIX II-2 

Contribution quotas authorized and subscribed 

Subject to maintenance of 
value 

Members 

Argentina 
Austria 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belgium 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Canada 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Denmark 
Dominican Republic . . . 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Finland 
France 
Germany 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Israel 
Italy 
Jamaica 
Japan 
Mexico 
Netherlands 
Nicaragua 
Norway 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Portugal 
Spain 
Suriname  
Sweden 
Switzerland 
Trinidad and Tobago . . . 
United Kingdom 
United States 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Yugoslavia 
Total before unallocated 

amount 
Unallocated (Note B) 
Total 1990 
Total 1989 

Before 
adjustments 

S 402,819 
10,955 
8,800 
1,403 

27,098 
32,535 

402,819 
196,776 
111,440 
111,385 

16,215 
11,692 
21,721 
21,721 
16,215 
10,955 

133,396 
136,692 
21,721 

6,980 
16,215 
16,215 
10,794 

133,396 
21,721 

148,825 
259,249 

20,261 
16,215 
11,692 
16,215 
16,215 
54,492 
4,994 

133,396 
5,280 

23,729 
29,752 
16,215 

133,396 
4,100,000 

43,502 
250,060 

10,955 

7,196,122 

Adjustments 

S 28,935 

42 

9,057 
60,071 
12,577 
21,706 
19,327 
3,704 

6,557 
3,952 
1,757 

5,726 

2,299 
5,964 

2,569 

15,041 

4,420 

5,842 
8,504 

13,232 

1,403 

243,553 
3,674 

12,109 

492,021 
12,602 

Not subject 
to 

maintenance 
of value 

S 60,700 
3,869 
1,166 
159 

8,978 
4,190 
51,352 
52,636 
14,430 
14,430 
2,069 
3,922 
2,809 
2,809 
2,069 
2,645 

41,028 
47,314 
2,809 
899 

2,069 
2,069 
3,260 

38,399 
2,809 

54,965 
35,947 
7,161 
2,061 
2,822 
2,069 
2,069 
7,107 
852 

40,993 
688 

6,796 
10,446 
2,069 
38,539 

372,304 
5,623 

35,947 
3,736 

1,001,083 

Total 1990 Total 1989 
\ 492,454 

14,824 
9,966 
1,604 

36,076 
45,782 
514,242 
261,989 
147,576 
145,142 
21,988 
15,614 
31,087 
28,482 
20,041 
13,600 

174,424 
184,006 
30,256 
7,879 

20,583 
24,248 
14,054 

171,795 
27,099 

203,790 
310,237 
27,422 
22,696 
14,514 
24,126 
26,788 
74,831 
5,846 

174,389 
5,968 

30,525 
40,198 
19,687 

171,935 
4,715,857 

52,799 
298,116 
14,691 

8,689,226 
12,602 

57.196,122 5504,623 51.001,083 58,701,828 
$7.193,886 $504,623 5759,697 

S 475,650 
13,802 
9,708 
1,569 

33,402 
44,856 
502,890 
248,478 
144,386 
141,952 
21,531 
14,452 
30,466 
27,861 
19,584 
12,938 

162,184 
172,108 
29,635 
7,680 

20,126 
23,791 
13,125 

160,078 
26,478 
193,239 
302,290 
25,420 
22,239 
13,818 
23,669 
26,331 
73,260 
5,636 

162,259 
5,816 

28,670 
36,893 
19,230 

159,024 
4,633,553 

51,556 
290,169 
13,802 

8,445,604 
12,602 

58,458,206 

Contribution 
quotas 

receivable from 
members 1990 

S 11,352 
699 
258 

35 
1,277 

695 
11,352 
8,541 
2,393 
2,392 

343 
765 
621 
621 
457 
497 

6,406 
5,336 

621 
199 
457 
457 
472 

6,302 
621 

7,561 
5,960 
1,314 

457 
522 
343 
457 

1,571 
210 

8,314 
208 

1,334 
1,441 

457 
5,822 

62,124 
932 

7,947 
566 

170,709 

5170,709 
$72,187 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

INTERMEDIATE FINANCING 
FACILITY ACCOUNT 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 

Board of Governors 
Inter-American Development Bank 

In our opinion, the financial statements appearing on pages 162 through 164 present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Inter-American Development Bank—Intermediate Financing Facility Account at 
December 31, 1990 and 1989, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Bank's management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 
We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards which 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made 
by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation, we believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above. 

PRICE WATERHOUSE 

Washington, D.C. 
February 20, 1991 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

INTERMEDIATE FINANCING FACILITY ACCOUNT 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

BALANCE SHEET 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars— Note B 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments 
Cash 

Investments, at amortized cost 
which approximates market 
Obligations issued or guaranteed 

by governments or issued by 
United States agencies 

Time deposits and other 
obligations of banks 

Total cash and investments 

Accrued income on investments 
Total assets 

December 31, 

1990 

$ 500 

i 8,489 

243,513 252,002 
252,502 

5,552 
$258,054 

1989 

$ 1,358 

S 13,088 

196,091 209,179 
210,537 

5,525 
5216,062 

LIABILITIES A N D FUND BALANCE 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued 

expenses 

Fund balance 

Commitments (Note D) 
Total liabilities and fund 

balance 

$ — 

258,054 

$258,054 

S 536 

215,526 

5216,062 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

INTERMEDIATE FINANCING FACILITY ACCOUNT 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES I N FUND BALANCE 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars— Note B 

Years ended December 31, 

Additions 

Allocation from Fund for Special 
Operations (Note A) 

Income from investments 
Total additions 

Deductions 
Interest paid on behalf of ordinary 

capital borrowers (Note D) . . . . 
Increase for the year 

Fund balance beginning of the year 

Translation adjustments (Note C) 

Fund balance end of year 

1990 

$ 15,500 
21,255 
36,755 

13,196 
23,559 

215,526 

18,969 

$258,054 

1989 

S 15,500 
16,991 
32,491 

11,323 
21,168 

199,948 

(5,590) 

5215,526 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

INTERMEDIATE FINANCING FACILITY ACCOUNT 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 1990 and 1989 

N o t e A — N a t u r e of the Account 

In 1983 the Board of Governors of the Inter-American Develop
ment Bank (Bank) established the Intermediate Financing Facility 
Account (IFF) for the purpose of providing to certain borrowers 
part of the interest payments for which they are liable on loans from 
the capital resources of the Bank. For initial funding purposes, the 
equivalent of $61,000,000 in convertible currencies of the General 
Reserve of the Fund for Special Operations (FSO) was transferred 
to the IFF on December 15, 1983. In addition, the equivalent of 
$15,500,000 in convertible currencies of the General Reserve of 
the FSO has been transferred annually beginning in 1984; a similar 
amount is to be allocated annually by the Board of Governors during 
each of the years 1991 through 1996, $23,500,000 from 1997 through 
2001 and $30,000,000 from 2002 through 2010. These amounts 
are subject to adjustment for appropriate reasons related to the 
availability of funding for the IFF. The IFF is also authorized to 
receive additional contributions from any member country. 

N o t e B — S u m m a r y of Significant A c c o u n t i n g Policies 

Translation of currencies 

The financial statements are expressed in United States dollars; how
ever, the IFF conducts its operations in various convertible curren
cies, including rhe United States dollar. Assets and liabilities de
nominated in currencies other than the United States dollar are 
translated at approximate market rates of exchange prevailing at the 
dates of the financial statements. Income and expenses in such cur
rencies are translated at the approximate market rates of exchange 
prevailing during each month. The adjustments resulting from the 
translation of assets and liabilities are shown in the Statement of 
Changes in Fund Balance as translation adjustments. 

No representation is made that any currency held in the IFF is 
convertible into any other currency at any rate or rates. 

Administrative Expenses 

Administrative expenses of the IFF are paid and absorbed by rhe 
Inter-American Development Bank—ordinary capital and Fund for 
Special Operations. 

N o t e C—Trans lat ion Adjustments 

As indicated in Note B, the adjustments of assets and liabilities 
denominated in currencies other than the United States dollar are 
shown as translation adjustments in the Statement of Changes in 
Fund Balance. Such adjustments consist of credits (charges) as fol
lows: 

Years ended December 31, 

1990 1989 

Cumulative adjustments, 
beginning of year. . . . 

Translation adjustments 
for the year 

Cumulative adjustments, 
end of year 

(in thousands) 

$27,037 $32,627 

18,969 (5,590) 

$46,006 $27,037 

N o t e D — C o m m i t m e n t s 

The payment by the IFF of part of the interest due from borrowers 
is contingent on the availability of resources. At December 31, 1990 
the amounts disbursed and outstanding and undisbursed by the Bank 
under loans on which the IFF would pay part of the interest, were 
classified by country, as follows: 

Disbursed 
and 

Country outstanding Undisbursed 

Barbados 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic. 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Suriname  
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 

(in thousands) 
16,461 $ 
31,091 
15,268 
46,993 
24,275 
10,365 
47,663 
18,182 
79,387 1 

1,087 
39,328 

2,971 
12,502 
6,119 

$351,692 

$ 17,613 
87,424 

7,973 
11,258 

8,129 

3,980 
123,115 
46,111 
18,858 
10,007 
90,162 
67,467 

$492,097 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

SOCIAL PROGRESS 
TRUST FUND 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 

Inter-American Development Bank 
Administrator of the Social Progress Trust Fund 

In our opinion, the financial statements appearing on pages 166 through 170 present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Social Progress Trust Fund, which is administered by the Inter-American Development 
Bank, at December 31, 1990 and 1989, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then 
ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. These financial statements are the responsibility 
of the Bank's management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards 
which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our 
audits provide a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above. 

PRICE WATERHOUSE 

Washington, D.C. 
February 20, 1991 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

SOCIAL PROGRESS TRUST FUND 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

BALANCE SHEET 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars—Note B 

December 31, 

1990 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments 
Cash 

Investments, at amortized cost 
which approximates market 
United States Government and 

Agencies obligations 
Time deposits and other obligations of banks 

Total cash and investments 

7,429 
8,650 

Participations in loans made from Fund 
for Special Operations (Note C) 

Loans outstanding (Note D) (Appendix IV-I) 
Total loans approved, less cancellations 
Less principal collections 
Less undisbursed balance 

537,886 
(479,628) 

$ 4,786 

16,079 
20,865 

130,285 

58,258 

1989 

12,154 
3,050 

537,886 
(471,404) 

(14) 

S 3,571 

15,204 
18,775 

148,085 

66,468 

Allowance for losses on loans and 
participations 

Accrued interest and other charges 
On investments 
On participations 
On loans 

Other assets 
Total assets 

15 
389 
334 

(7,300) 

738 
2 

$202,848 

4 
446 
367 

(7,300) 

817 
200 

5227,045 

LIABILITIES A N D F U N D BALANCE 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Undisbursed technical cooperation projects 

and other financings 
Fund balance 

Fund established by the United States 
Government (Note A) 

Accumulated excess of expenses over income 
Amounts returned to the United States 

Government (Note E) 

595 

23,650 

525,000 
(190,130) 

(156,267) 

$ 24,245 

Total liabilities and fund balance 
178,603 

$202,848 

784 

41,293 

525,000 
(202,749) 

(137,283) 

5 42,077 

184,968 
5227,045 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

SOCIAL PROGRESS TRUST FUND 
ADMINISTERED BY THE INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENSES 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars—Note B 

Years ended December 31, 

Income 
Loans (Note D) 
Participations and other (Note C) 
Investments 

Total income 

Expenses 
Administrative expenses (Note A) 

Direct expenses 
Indirect and overhead expenses 

charged by administrator . . . 
Total administrative expenses . . . 
Provisions for losses on loans and 

participations (Note D) 
Translation adjustments 

1990 

$138 

335 
473 

880 

1,113 
1,995 
1,233 
4,341 

1,353 

S 257 

695 
952 

4,300 
3,561 

1989 

1,555 
1,523 
1,480 
4,558 

8,813 

Income (loss) before technical 
cooperation 

Technical cooperation (Note F) . . 
Excess of income over expenses . . 
Accumulated excess of expenses 

over income beginning of year 

Accumulated excess of expenses 
over income end of year 

2,988 

(9,631) 
12,619 

(202,749) 

$(190,130) 

(4,255) 

3,273 
(7,528) 

(195,221) 

5(202,749) 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

SOCIAL PROGRESS TRUST FUND 
ADMINISTERED BY THE INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars—Note B 

Years ended December 31, 

1990 1989 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Lending (excluding related income): 

Loan disbursements 
Loan collections 

Purchases of participations in loans 
Collections of participations 
Other assets and liabilities 
Net cash provided by investing activities 

$ (14) 
8,224 

(6,838) 
24,638 

157 
26,167 

5(3,824) 
8,664 

(8,004) 
15,703 

16 
12,555 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Loan income collections 
Income on participations 
Income from investments , . . . 
Administrative expenses 
Technical cooperation and other financings 
Net cash used for operating activities 

Refunded to the U.S. Government 

1,146 
2,052 
1,222 
(621) 

(8,012) 

(4,213) 

(18,984) 

1,276 
1,821 
1,479 
(863) 

(7,578) 

(3,865) 

(10,744) 

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on 
cash and investments (880) (3,561) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and investments $ 2,090 5(5,615) 

Reconciliation of excess of income over 
expenses to net cash used for operating 
activities 
Excess of income over expenses 
Difference between amounts accrued and 

amounts paid or collected for: 
Loan income 
Participation income 
Investment income 
Administrative expenses 
Technical cooperation and other financings 

Provision for losses on loans and 
participations 

Translation adjustments 

Net cash used for operating activities 

$12,619 

33 
57 

(11) 
(148) 

(17,643) 

880 

$(4,213) 

5(7,528) 

(279) 
298 

(1) 
89 

(4,305) 

4,300 
3,561 

5(3,865) 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

SOCIAL PROGRESS TRUST FUND 
ADMINISTERED BY THE INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 1990 and 1989 

N o t e A — Nature of the Fund 

In 1961 the United States of America and the Inter-American De
velopment Bank (Bank) entered into an Agreement whereby the 
Bank became Administrator of the Social Progress Trust Fund. Pur
suant to the Agreement the Bank charges the Trust Fund for salary 
costs of certain of its professional staff, other direct expenses and 
the Fund's share of allowable overhead expenses. At December 31, 
1990, the Government of the United States and the Bank had agreed 
to final overhead rates for all years through 1988 and the Bank has 
proposed the use of the rate of $2.86 per $1.00 of salary cost on a 
provisional basis for 1989 and 1990, until such time as further over
head rate studies are completed. 

N o t e B — S u m m a r y of Significant A c c o u n t i n g Policies 

Translation of Currencies 

The financial statements are expressed in United States dollars, the 
currency in which the Trust Fund was established and which con
tinues to be its predominant currency. Assets and liabilities in cur
rencies other than United States dollars are translated generally at 
approximate market rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the 
financial statements. Income and expenses in such currencies are 
translated generally at the approximate market rates of exchange 
prevailing during each month. The adjustments resulting from the 
translation of the Latin American currencies held by the Trust Fund 
into United States dollars are shown in the Statement of Income 
and Expenses as translation adjustments. No representation is made 
that any currency held by the Fund is convertible into any other 
currency at any rate or rates. 

Loans 

The Bank as Administrator follows the policy of reviewing the col
lectibility of loans on a continuous basis. The Bank as Administrator 
ceases to accrue income under all loans in a country when service 
under any loan to or guaranteed by a borrower in such country, 
made from any fund owned or administered by the Bank, is overdue 
for 180 days; income is recorded thereafter only as it is collected, 
until loan service is current under all loans. The Bank as Adminis
trator considers recording provisions for loan losses no later than 
when loan service is overdue from a borrower for two years. Pro
visions for loan losses are charged against income. 

Technical cooperation 

All non-reimbursable technical cooperation projects as well as cer
tain reimbursable financings which may not be fully recovered are 
charged to income at the time of approval. 

N o t e C—Part ic ipat ions in Loans Made from Fund for 
Special Operations 

The Board of Executive Directors has authorized the use of the 
resources of the Social Progress Trust Fund to purchase participa
tions in loans made from the Fund for Special Operations provided 

that, with respect to such loans, the provisions of the Social Progress 
Trust Fund Agreement have in substance been complied with as 
fully as though the loans had been made initially from the Trust 
Fund. Through the purchase of participations in the local currency 
components of loans made from the Fund for Special Operations, 
the value of which must be maintained by the respective borrowers, 
it has been possible to substantially maintain the value of the Trust 
Fund resources so invested. 

N o t e D—Loans Outs tanding 

Loans from the resources of the Trust Fund are made to developing 
members of the Inter-American Development Bank, agencies or 
political subdivisions of such members or to private enterprises lo
cated in their territories. For loans to borrowers other than members 
and central banks, the Bank as Administrator has received in all 
instances the member's guarantee. The Bank as Administrator has 
a policy of not rescheduling loan repayments. 

Approved loans are disbursed to borrowers in accordance with 
the requirements of the project being financed; however, disburse
ments do not begin until the borrower and guarantor, if any, take 
certain actions and furnish certain documents to the Bank. 

Loan disbursements have been made principally in United States 
dollars although, in the case of certain loans, disbursements have 
been made in the national currencies of the borrowers or in the 
currencies of other members. In accordance with the provisions of 
practically all loan agreements, loans disbursed in United States 
dollars may be repaid in the national currency of the borrower at 
the market rate of exchange existing at the date of repayment or in 
United States dollars at the election of the borrower. 

Pursuant to the policy described in Note B, loans made to or 
guaranteed by the following countries are in a nonaccrual status at 
December 31, 1990: 

Loan principal and 
participations 

at December 31, 1990 

Country 

Nicaragua 
Panama 
Peru 

Month placed in 
nonaccrual 

May 1988 
March 1988 
February 1989 

Outstanding Overdue 

(in thousands) 
$17,249 $1,067 

9,257 2,670 
16,366 3,424 

$42,872 $7,161 

In addition, loans to or guaranteed by Honduras were in non-
accrual status from November 1989 until June 1990. The impact 
on 1990 income of the loans in nonaccrual—as shown in the above 
table—was partially offset by the recovery of prior year's income 
on loans to or guaranteed by Honduras and service payments re
ceived from countries still in nonaccrual status, aggregating $494,000. 
The reduction of 1990 income because of loans still in nonaccrual 
sratus aggregated $728,000. The net result of the recovery of prior 
years' income and current year's nonaccrual was a reduction in 1990 
loan and participations income of $234,000, compared with a re
duction of $1,058,000 in 1989. 
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SOCIAL PROGRESS TRUST FUND 
ADMINISTERED BY THE INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

N O T E S T O F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S (continued) 

December 31, 1990 and 1989 

In consideration of the delays in payments which have required 
the application of the nonaccrual policy as indicated above, the Bank 
provided for the possibility of losses on loans and participations in 
1988 and 1989. A provision of $4,300,000 was charged to income 
in 1989 and the total allowance for loan losses amounts to $7,300,000 
at December 31, 1990. 

N o t e E — A m o u n t s r e t u r n e d to t h e U n i t e d States 
G o v e r n m e n t 

The Bank as Administrator has returned to the Government of the 
United States the equivalent of $156,267,000 of the assets of the 
Trust Fund during the years 1980-1990 (1990-$18,984,000; 1989-
$10,744,000) for use in financing social development projects of 
the Inter-American Foundation, and will return up to the equivalent 
of $14,420,000 during 1991. 

N o t e F — T e c h n i c a l C o o p e r a t i o n 

Technical cooperation comprises the following charges (credits): 
Years ended December 31, 

1990 1989 

(in thousands) 
Projects approved 
Cancellations of balances for 

overages or projects not 
executed 

Recuperations and 
adjustments 

$ 4,775 

(14,473) 

67 

$(9,631) 

$3,775 

(502) 

$3,273 

SOCIAL PROGRESS TRUST F U N D 
ADMINISTERED BY THE INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

APPENDIX IV-1 

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LOANS—NOTE D 
DECEMBER 31, 1990 AND 1989 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars—Note B 

Countries in which 
loans have been made 

Argentina 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic . 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Honduras 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Regional 
Total 1990 

Total 1989 

Loans approved, 
less cancellations 

S 45 ,900 
20 ,648 
61 ,510 
34,352 
49 ,008 
11,700 

8,407 
27,449 
37,688 
28,313 

7,602 
34,927 
13,035 
12,862 

7,799 
45 ,108 
10,350 
72,861 

8,367 
5537,886 

5537,886 

Principal 
collected 

$ 42,568 
14,269 
57,056 
34,352 
47,930 
11,568 
8,342 

25,186 
21,458 
15,111 
7,602 

32,518 
12,466 
12,074 
6,905 

42,842 
10,121 
72,861 
4,399 

5479,628 
5471,404 

Undisbursed Outstanding 

S 3,332 
6,379 
4,454 

1,078 
132 

65 
2,263 

16,230 
13,202 

2,409 
569 
788 
894 

2,266 
229 

3,968 

514 

$58,258 

Outstanding 
1989 

S 3,608 
6,730 
6,640 

1,589 
391 
224 

3,173 
17,726 
13,526 

68 
3,220 
569 
787 
970 

2,266 
681 

4,300 

566,468 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

VENEZUELAN 
TRUST FUND 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 

Inter-American Development Bank 
Administrator of the Venezuelan Trust Fund 

In our opinion, the financial statements appearing on pages 172 through 177 present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Venezuelan Trust Fund, which is administered by the Inter-American Development 
Bank, at December 31, 1990 and 1989, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then 
ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. These financial statements are the responsibility 
of the Bank's management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards 
which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our 
audits provide a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above. 

PRICE WATERHOUSE 

Washington, D.C. 
February 20, 1991 

777 



INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

VENEZUELAN TRUST FUND 
ADMINISTERED BY THE INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

BALANCE SHEET 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars—Note B 

December 31, 

1990 

ASSETS 

Cash and temporary investments 
Cash 
Tempotary investments, at amortized cost 

which approximates market 
Time deposits and other obligations 

of banks 
Total cash and temporary investments . . 

Loans outstanding (Note C) (Appendix V-l) 
Total loans approved, less cancellations . . . 
Less undisbursed balance 
Less principal collected 

Allowance for loan losses 

$847,959 
(10,736) 

(597,136) 
240,087 
(11,000) 

$ 55 

103,700 
103,755 

1989 

229,087 

5800,185 
(10,601) 

(534,087) 
255,497 
<11,000) 

S 31 

96,552 
96,583 

244,497 

Investment in equities, at cost 

Accrued interest and other charges 
On temporary investments 
On loans 

Total assets 

884 
5,956 

1,535 

6,840 
$341,217 

1,544 
5,156 

1,535 

6,700 
S 349,315 

LIABILITIES A N D FUND BALANCE 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 

Fund balance 
Fund established by the Venezuelan 

Investment Fund (Note A) 
Accumulated earnings 
Translation adjustments (Note B) 
Less amounts returned to the Venezuelan 

Investment Fund (Note A) 
Total liabilities and fund balance . . . 

$408,508 
529,910 

(8,443) 

(588,840) 

82 

341,135 
$341,217 

5410,000 
501,769 

(8,955) 

(553,590) 

91 

349,224 
5349,315 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

VENEZUELAN TRUST FUND 
ADMINISTERED BY THE INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND ACCUMULATED EARNINGS 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars—Note B 

Years ended December 31, 

1990 1989 

Income 
Loans (Note C) $ 21,968 5 13,434 
Temporary investments 7,613 8,364 

Total income 29,581 21,798 
Expenses 

Ptovision for loan losses (Note C) — 6,000 
Direct and indirect expenses (Note A) 1,397 1,429 
Commission on temporary investments (Note A) 43 44 

Total expenses 1,440 7,473 
Net income 28,141 14,325 
Accumulated earnings, beginning of year 501,769 487,444 
Accumulated earnings, end of year $529,910 5501,769 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

VENEZUELAN TRUST FUND 
ADMINISTERED BY THE INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars— Note B 

Years ended December 31, 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Lending (excluding related income); 

Loan disbursements 
Loan collections 
Net cash provided by lending activities 

Other assets and liabilities 
Net cash provided by investing activities 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Loan income collections 
Income from temporary investments 
Administrative expenses 
Net cash provided by operating activities 

Refunded to the Venezuelan Investment Fund 

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and investments 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and temporary investments . . 

Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided 
by operating activities: 
Net income 
Difference between amounts accrued and 

amounts paid or collected for: 
Loan income 
Investment income 
Administrative expenses 

Provision for loan losses 
Net cash provided by operating activities 

Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities 
Decrease in loans outstanding resulting from 

exchange rate fluctuations 

1990 

$(49,110) 
63,575 
14,465 

14,465 

21,148 
8,268 

(1,449) 

27,967 

(35,743) 

483 
f 7,172 

$ 28,141 

(820) 
655 

(9) 

$ 27,967 

$ 1,997 

1989 

5(40,280) 
54,609 
14,329 

(314) 
14,015 

14,948 
8,340 

(1,518) 
21,770 

(40,534) 

(697) 
5 (5,446) 

5 14,325 

1,514 
(24) 
(45) 

6,000 
S 21,770 

S 13,521 
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INIER-AMER1CAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

VENEZUELAN TRUST FUND 
ADMINISTERED BY THE INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 1990 and 1989 

N o t e A — N a t u r e of the Fund 

In 1975 the Venezuelan Investment Fund and the Inter-American 
Development Bank (Bank) entered into aTrust Agreement whereby 
the Bank became the Administrator of the Venezuelan Trust Fund. 
The initial resources of the Trust Fund were $400,000,000 and 
430,000,000 Venezuelan Bolivars (Bs.), equivalent to $ 100,000,000 
at the rate of exchange in effect at that time. 

The purpose of the Fund is to contribute to the financing of 
projects and programs having a significant effect on the development 
of member countries of the Bank which are relatively less developed 
or of limited market, or of intermediate size, through better utili
zation of their natural resources and the promotion of their indusrry 
and agroindustry and to expand the Bank's export financing program, 
with emphasis on the strengthening of the integration plans of Latin 
America, and to cooperate in the solution of problems which may 
arise affecting national and regional economic and social develop
ment plans. 

In accordance with the Trust Agreement, the Bank charges the 
Trust Fund for direct and indirect expenses and a commission on 
temporary investments. The direct and indirect expense charge is 
determined as a percentage of the Fund's assets at the end of the 
year, excluding certain assets not committed under loans. The Ven
ezuelan Investment Fund may require the return of all sums received 
in payment of loans made from the Trust Fund as well as all collec
tions of income derived from Trust Fund resources. Amounts re
turned to the Venezuelan Investment Fund in 1990 were $35,743,000, 
comprised of $34,334,000 and Bs.34,426,000 (1989-$40,534,000, 
comprised of $36,765,000 and Bs.54,647,000). 

N o t e B—Trans la t ion of Currencies 

The accounting records are maintained and the financial statements 
are expressed in United States dollars. Assets, liabilities and fund 
balance denominated in Venezuelan Bolivars, which is the only other 
currency of the Fund, are translated into United States dollars at 
the rates of exchange in effect at the dates of the financial statements. 
From January 1 ro March 13, 1989 the Venezuelan Government 
had designated the rate of Bs. 14.50 to $1.00 for transactions of the 
Fund. Since March 14, 1989 transactions in Venezuelan Bolivars 
are made at a floating rate of exchange. Income and expenses in 
Venezuelan Bolivars were translated at the approximate market rates 
of exchange prevailing during each month. 

The application of the above mentioned rates of exchange had 
the effect of reducing the United States dollar equivalent of the 
initial resources of the Fund by $1,492,000 in 1990 and $19,655,000 
in 1989- The portion of amounts returned to the Venezuelan In
vestment Fund representing refunds of principal collected was also 
reduced by $493,000 in 1990 and $5,685,000 in 1989. The resulting 
net adjustment is shown in the Balance Sheet as translation adjust
ments under Fund Balance, and consists of charges (credits) as fol
lows: 

Years ended December 31, 

1990 1989 

Cumulative adjustments, 
beginning of year 

Translation adjustments for 
the year 

Cumulative adjustments, 
end of year 

(in thousands) 

$8,955 $8,330 

(512) 625 

$8,443 $8,955 

N o t e C—Loans Outstanding 

Loans approved are disbursed to borrowers in accordance with the 
requirements of the project being financed; however, disbursements 
do not begin until the borrower and guarantor take certain actions 
and furnish certain documents to the Bank. For borrowers other 
than members or central banks, the Bank as Administrator has re
ceived either the member's guarantee or other security deemed 
appropriate. 

The Bank follows the policy of reviewing the collectibility of 
loans on a continuous basis. The Bank ceases to accrue income under 
all loans in a country when service under any loan to or guaranteed 
by a borrower in such country, made from any fund owned or ad
ministered by the Bank, is overdue for 180 days; income is recorded 
thereafter only as it is collected, until loan service is current under 
all loans. The Bank as Administrator considers recording provisions 
for loan losses no later than when loan service is overdue from a 
borrower for two years. Provisions for loan losses are charged against 
income. The Bank as Administrator has a policy of not rescheduling 
loan repayments. 

Pursuant to the policy described above, loans made to or guar
anteed by the following countries are in a nonaccrual status at De
cember 31, 1990: 

Country 

Nicaragua 
Panama 
Peru 

Month placed in 
nonaccrual 

May 1988 
March 1988 
February 1989 

Loan principal at 
December 31, 1990 

Outstanding Overdue 

(in thousands) 
$30,897 $ 7,000 

16,799 3,256 
12,166 2,117 

$59,862 $12,373 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

VENEZUELAN TRUST FUND 
ADMINISTERED BY THE INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

N O T E S T O F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S (continued) 

December 31, 1990 and 1989 

In addition, loans to or guaranteed by Honduras were in non- loan income of $2,382,000, compared with a reduction of $7,186,000 
accrual status from November 1989 until June 1990. The impact in 1989. 
on 1990 loan income of the loans in nonaccrual—as shown in the In consideration of the delays in payments which have required 
above table—was offset by the recovery of prior year's income on the application of the nonaccrual policy as indicated above, the Bank 
loans to or guaranteed by Honduras and service payments received as Administrator provided for the possibility of loan losses in 1988 
from countries still in nonaccrual status, aggregating $6,908,000. and 1989. A provision of $6,000,000 was charged to income in 
The reduction of 1990 income because of loans still in nonaccrual 1989, and the total allowance for loan losses amounts to $11,000,000 
status aggregated $4,526,000. The net result of the recovery of prior at December 31, 1990. 
years'income and current year's nonaccrual was an increase in 1990 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

VENEZUELAN TRUST FUND 
ADMINISTERED BY THE INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

APPENDIX V-l 

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LOANS—NOTE C 
DECEMBER 31, 1990 AND 1989 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars— Note B 

Countries in which 
loans have been made 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Peru 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Regional 
Total 1990 
Total 1989 

Loans approved, 
less cancellations 

5 2,577 
2,025 
18,779 
42,866 
51,721 
1,791 

97,313 
59,656 
52,279 
89,027 
32,333 
8,000 
6,785 

42,700 
106,054 
35,148 
21,592 
157,569 
7,320 
8,940 
3,484 

5847,959 
5800,185 

Principal 
collected 

S 2,577 
903 

15,588 
23,105 
51,721 
1,791 

77,348 
21,759 
26,417 
71,659 
13,719 
2,357 
4,313 
15,760 
98,454 
4,251 
3,793 

145,403 
6,320 
8,940 
958 

S597,136 
5534,087 

Undisbursed 

1,969 
2,152 

2,000 

957 
2,000 

658 

1,000 

S10.736 
510,601 

Outstanding 

S — 
1,122 
1,222 

17,609 

19,965 
35,897 
25,862 
17,368 
17,657 
3,643 
2,472 

26,282 
7,600 

30,897 
16,799 
12,166 

1,000 

2,526 
S240,087 

Outstanding 
1989 

S — 
1,241 
1,332 

18,845 

21,245 
39,864 
29,579 
18,830 
18,534 
4,071 
2,690 

27,519 
8,004 

31,058 
16,924 
12,182 

832 

2,747 

5255,497 

Loans approved, less cancellations, include short and 
medium term lines of credit for export financing to the 
following countries at December 31, 1990: 

S 2 
17 
22 
51 

1 
78 

9 
69 

1 
2 
3 
7 

Jamaica 101 

Argentina 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 

Nicaragua 
Panama 
Peru 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 

Total 

1 
1 

146 
7 

,577 
077 
,464 
,721 
,791 
,000 
656 
,440 
908 
,000 
,117 
,373 
,565 
,000 
,000 
000 
320 
,940 

5532,949 
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GOVERNORS AND ALTERNATE GOVERNORS 

Country 

ARGENTINA 
AUSTRIA 
BAHAMAS 
BARBADOS 
BELGIUM 

BOLIVIA 
BRAZIL 
CANADA 
CHILE 
COLOMBIA 

COSTA RICA 
DENMARK 
DOMINICAN REPUBLIC 
ECUADOR 
EL SALVADOR 

FINLAND 
FRANCE 
GERMANY 
GUATEMALA 
GUYANA 

HAITI 
HONDURAS 
ISRAEL 
ITALY 
JAMAICA 

JAPAN 
MEXICO 
NETHERLANDS 
NICARAGUA 
NORWAY 

PANAMA 
PARAGUAY 
PERU 
PORTUGAL 
SPAIN 

SURINAME 
SWEDEN 
SWITZERLAND 
TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO 
UNITED KINGDOM 

UNITED STATES 
URUGUAY 
VENEZUELA 
YUGOSLAVIA 

Governor 

Antonio Erman González 
Ferdinand Lacina 
Paul L. Adderley 
L. Erskine Sandiford 
Ph. Maystadt 

L. Enrique Garcia 
Zélia Cardoso de Mello 
Joe Clark 
Alejandro Foxley Rioseco 
Rudolf Hommes 

Thelmo Vargas Madrigal 
Ole Loensmann Poulsen 
Luis F. Toral 
Jorge Gallardo Zavala 
Mima Liévano de Marques 

Ilkka Ristimãki 
Pierre Bérégovoy 
Hans-Peter Repnik 
Marciano Castillo González 
Carl B. Greenidge, M.P. 

Ludovic Pierre 
Ramón Medina Luna 
Michael Bruno 
Guido Carli 
P.J. Patterson, Q.C. 

Ryutaro Hashimoto 
Pedro Aspe Armell 
W. Kok 
Silvio De Franco M. 
Einar Risa 

Guillermo Ford B. 
Enzo Debernardi 
Juan Carlos Hurtado Miller 
Luis Miguel Couceiro Pizarro Beleza 
Carlos Solchaga 

Subhas Ch. Mungra 
Bengt Saeve-Soederbergh 
Pierre-Louis Girard 
Winston Dookeran, M.P. 
Lynda Chalker, M.P. 

Nicholas F. Brady 
Enrique Braga 
Miguel Rodriguez Fandeo 
Branimir Zekan 

Alternate 

Javier González Fraga 
Othmar Haushofer 
Warren Rolle 
Winston Cox 
Jean-Pierre Arnoldi 

Raúl Boada 
Ibrahim Eris 
Frederick W. Gorbet 
Pablo Pinera Echenique 
Francisco J. Ortega 

Helio Fallas 
Sten Lilholt 
Manuel E. Gómez Pieterz 
Hugo Mantilla Tanzi 
J. Roberto Orellana M. 

Osmo Sarmavuori 
Jean-Claude Trichet 
Gert Haller 
Oscar Humberto Pineda Robles 
Haslyn Parris 

Onill Millet 
Ricardo Maduro Joest 
Gad Arbel 
Lamberto Dini 
Omar Davies 

Yasushi Mieno 
José Angel Gurría Treviño 
J. P. Pronk 
Emilio Pereira A. 
Torild Skard 

Luis H. Moreno 
Juan José Díaz Pérez 
Alfredo Jalilie Awapara 
Manuel França e Silva 
Apolonio Ruiz Ligero 

Rudie W. Braam 
Carl Johan G roth 
Pietro Veglio 
Carson Charles 
John Anthony Leonard Faint 

Richard T. McCormack 
Conrado Hughes 
Carlos Stark Rausseo 
Boris Skapin 

As of January 16, 1991 
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND ALTERNATE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 

Luis F. Alarcón 
COLOMBIA 
Ricardo Palma-Valderrama (Alternate) 
PERU 
Edgar Ayales 
COSTA RICA 
Arturo J. Cruz (Alternate) 
NICARAGUA 
Horace Barber 
JAMAICA 
Jagdeesh Siewrattan (Alternate) 
TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO 
Claude Cambray 
FRANCE 
Hugo Bruggmann (Alternate) 
SWITZERLAND 

Juan L. Cariaga 
BOLIVIA 
Eduardo Balcárcel (Alternate) 
URUGUAY 
José Luis Flores Hernández 
MEXICO 
Mario Read Vittini (Alternate) 
DOMINICAN REPUBLIC 
Pedro S. Malan 
BRAZIL 
Gustavo Darquea Espinosa (Alternate) 
ECUADOR 
William M. McWhinney 
CANADA 
Kenneth J. Harley (Alternate) 
CANADA 
Larry K. Mellinger 
UNITED STATES 
Sonia Pérez R. 
VENEZUELA 
Juan Manuel Castulovich (Alternate) 
PANAMA 
A. Humberto Petrei 
ARGENTINA 
Juan Guillermo Espinosa Carmona (Alternate) 
CHILE 
Richard C. Samuel 
UNITED KINGDOM 
Annette Deckers (Alternate) 
NETHERLANDS 

Elected by: 
Colombia 
Pern 

Elected by: 
Costa Rica 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Elected by: 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Guyana 
Elected by: 
Austria 
France 
Israel 
Japan 

Elected by: 
Bolivia 
Paraguay 
Uruguay 
Elected by: 
Dominican Republic 
Mexico 

Elected by: 
Brazil 
Ecuador 
Suriname 
Elected by: 
Canada 

Appointed by: 
United States 
Elected by: 
Panama 
Venezuela 

Elected by: 
Argentina 
Chile 

Haiti 
Honduras 
Nicaragua 

Jamaica 
Trinidad and Tobago 

Portugal 
Spain 
Switzerland 
Yugoslavia 

Number of 
Votes 

161,577 

98,666 

55,918 

Percentage of 
Voting Power 

4.75 

2.90 

1.65 

Elected by: 
Belgium 
Denmark 
Finland 
Germany 
Italy 

Netherlands 
Norway 
Sweden 
United Kingdom 

119,641 

87,762 

275,336 

419,778 

149,326 

1,178,776 

227,739 

503,718 

125,947 

3.51 

2.58 

1.09 

12.34 

4.39 

34.63 

6.69 

14.80 

3.70 

External Review and Evaluation Office 
José Manuel Casanova, Director 

As of January 16, 1991 
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PRINCIPAL OFFICERS OF THE BANK 

President 
Executive Vice President 

Controller 
Deputy Controller 
Deputy Controller 

Auditor General 

External Relations Advisor a.i. 

Chief, Office of the President 

Operations Department 
Manager 

Senior Deputy Manager 
Deputy Manager—Region I 
Deputy Manager—Region II 
Deputy Manager—Region III 
Deputy Manager—Special Programs 

Finance Department 
Manager 

Senior Deputy Manager—Treasurer 
Deputy Financial Manager—Policy, Planning and Capital Markets 
Deputy Manager—Cashiers and Accounting 

Economic and Social Development Department 
Manager 

Deputy Manager—Development Studies 
Deputy Manager—Regional Cooperation 

Project Analysis Department 
Manager 

Deputy Manager—Infrastructure 
Deputy Manager—Productive Sectors and Environment 
Deputy Manager—Social Development 

Legal Department 
General Counsel a.i. 

Deputy General Counsel 

Plans and Programs Department 
Manager 

Deputy Manager—Programs 
Deputy Manager—Policies 

Administrative Department 
Manager 

Deputy Manager—Budget and Services 
Deputy Manager—Human Resources Administration 

Secretariat Department 
Secretary 

Deputy Secretary 

Special Representative in Europe 

Enrique V. Iglesias 
James W. Conrow 

Alberto Pico 
Carlos Eduardo Guedes 
Ronald P. Brousseau 

William L. Taylor 

Juan J. Santa Cruz 

Andrés Bajuk 

Elcio Costa Couto 
Frederick W. Schieck 
Carlos Ferdinand 
Joel A. Riley 
Euric Allan Bobb 

Charles O. Sethness 
Carlos Santistevan 
Kiyoto Ido 
Stanley J. Perch 

Nohra Rey de Marulanda 
Willy van Ryckeghem 
Juan Pablo Pérez-Castillo 

Lucio Graciano Reca 
Miguel A. Rivera 
Waldemar F. W. Wirsig 
Maritza Izaguirre 

Sara Ordonez Noriega 

Ciro De Falco 
Richard Fletcher 
Sebastião Marcos Vital 

Richard J. Herring 
Emil Weinberg 
Rosa Olivia V. Lawson 

Pedro Luis Echeverría 
Oscar Rodriguez-Rozic 

Jorge C. Elena 

As of February 14, 1991 
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CHANNELS OF COMMUNICATION AND DEPOSITORIES 

Member Country Channel of Communications Depository 

ARGENTINA 
AUSTRIA 
BAHAMAS 
BARBADOS 
BELGIUM 
BOLIVIA 
BRAZIL 
CANADA 
CHILE 

COLOMBIA 
COSTA RICA 
DENMARK 
DOMINICAN REPUBLIC 
ECUADOR 
EL SALVADOR 
FINLAND 
FRANCE 
GERMANY 
GUATEMALA 
GUYANA 
HAITI 
HONDURAS 
ISRAEL 
ITALY 
JAMAICA 
JAPAN 
MEXICO 
NETHERLANDS 
NICARAGUA 
NORWAY 

PANAMA 
PARAGUAY 
PERU 
PORTUGAL 
SPAIN 
SURINAME 
SWEDEN 

SWITZERLAND 

TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO 
UNITED KINGDOM 
UNITED STATES 
URUGUAY 
VENEZUELA 

YUGOSLAVIA 

As of January 16, 1991 

Banco Central de la República Argentina 
Federal Ministry of Finance 
Ministry of Finance 
Ministry of Finance and Planning 
Ministère des Finances 
Banco Central de Bolivia 
Banco Central do Brasil 
Canadian International Development Agency 
Ministerio de Hacienda, Departamento 

de Presupuestos 
Banco de la República 
Ministerio de Hacienda 
Danish International Development Agency 
Banco Central de la República Dominicana 
Ministerio de Finanzas 
Banco Central de Reserva de El Salvador 
Ministry for Foreign Affairs 
Ministère de l'Economie 
Federal Ministry for Economic Cooperation 
Banco de Guatemala 
Ministry of Finance 
Banque de la République d'Haïti 
Banco Central de Honduras 
Bank of Israel 
Ministero del Tesoro 
Ministry of Finance 
Ministry of Finance 
Secretaría de Hacienda y Crédito Público 
Ministry of Finance 
Ministerio de Economía y Desarrollo 
Royal Norwegian Ministry of Foreign Affairs 

Department of Multilateral Development 
Cooperation 

Ministerio de Planificación y Política Económica 
Ministerio de Hacienda 
Banco Central de Reserva del Perú 
Ministério das Finanças 
Ministerio de Economía y Hacienda 
Centrale Bank van Suriname 
Ministry for Foreign Affairs, Department 

for International Development Cooperation 
Office Fédéral des Affaires Economiques 

Extérieures 
Central Bank of Trinidad and Tobago 
Overseas Development Administration 
Treasury Department 
Ministerio de Economía y Finanzas 
Oficina de Coordinación y Planificación de la 

Presidencia de la República 
Federal Secretariat for Finance 

Banco Central de la República Argentina 
Oesterreichische Nationalbank 
Central Bank of The Bahamas 
Central Bank of Barbados 
Banque Nationale de Belgique 
Banco Central de Bolivia 
Banco Central do Brasil 
Bank of Canada 

Banco Central de Chile 
Banco de la República 
Banco Central de Costa Rica 
Danmarks Nationalbank 
Banco Central de la República Dominicana 
Banco Central del Ecuador 
Banco Central de Reserva de El Salvador 
Bank of Finland 
Banque de France 
Deutsche Bundesbank 
Banco de Guatemala 
Bank of Guyana 
Banque de la République d'Haïti 
Banco Central de Honduras 
Bank of Israel 
Banca d'Italia 
Bank of Jamaica 
Bank of Japan 
Banco de México, S.A. 
De Nederlandsche Bank, N.V. 
Banco Central de Nicaragua 

Bank of Norway 
Banco Nacional de Panamá 
Banco Central del Paraguay 
Banco Central de Reserva del Perú 
Banco de Portugal 
Banco de España 
Centrale Bank van Suriname 
Sveriges Riksbank 

Banque nationale suisse 

Central Bank of Trinidad and Tobago 
Bank of England 
Federal Reserve Bank of New York 
Banco Central del Uruguay 
Banco Central de Venezuela 

National Bank of Yugoslavia 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

COUNTRY OFFICES AND REPRESENTATIVES 

ARGENTINA, José Maria Puppo 
Calle Esmeralda 130, Piso 19 
(Casilla de Correo 181, Sucursal 1) 
Buenos Aires Tel: 334-1756 

BAHAMAS, Garnet R. Woodham 
IDB House 
East Bay Street 
(P.O. Box N-3743) 
Nassau Tel: 393-7159 

BARBADOS, Leonardo A. da Silva 
Maple Manor, Hastings 
(P.O. Box 402) 
Christchurch Tel: 427-3612 

BOLIVIA, Johann Schmãlzle 
Avenida 16 de Julio 1628, Piso 5 
(Casilla de Correo 5872) 
La Paz Tel: 37-0293 

BRAZIL, David B. Atkinson 
Setor Comercial Sul (SCS) 
Quadra 3 - No. 40 
Edifício Planalto - 2o andar 
70300 Brasília DF Tel: 321-7848 

CHILE, Paul Ernst Kohling 
Avda. Pedro de Valdivia 0193, Piso 11 
(Casilla 16611, Correo 9, Providencia) 
Santiago Tel: 231-7986 

COLOMBIA, Alejandro Scopelii R. 
Avenida 40 A, 13-09, Piso 8 
(Apartado Aéreo 12037) 
Bogotá Tel: 288-0366 

COSTA RICA, Carlos Miguel González 
Edificio Centro Colón, Piso 12 
Paseo Colón, entre calles 38 y 40 
San José Tel: 33-3244 

DOMINICAN REPUBLIC, 
Nelson R. Ocampo 
Avenida Winston Churchill, 
Esquina calle Luis F. Thomen, 
Torre BHD 
(Apartado Postal 1386) 
Santo Domingo Tel: 562-6400 

ECUADOR Manuel R. Aristy 
Avenida Amazonas 477 y Roca 
Edificio Banco de los Andes, Piso 9 
(Apartado Postal 9041, Sucursal 7) 
Quito Tel: 56-2141 

EL SALVADOR, Carlo Binetti 
Condominio Torres del Bosque 
Piso 10, Colonia La Mascota 
(Apartado Postal (01) 199) 
San Salvador Tel: 23-8300 

GUATEMALA, Francisco R. Albergucci 
Edificio Géminis 10 
12 Calle 1-25, Zona 10, Piso 19 
(Apartado Postal 935) 
Guatemala Tel: 35-2650 

GUYANA, Jacinto Vélez 
47 High Street, Kingston 
(P.O. Box 10867) 
Georgetown Tel: 5-7950 

HAITI, Georges D. Landau 
Bourdon 389 
(Boîte postale 1321) 
Port-au-Prince Tel: 45-5711 

HONDURAS, Charles T. Greenwood 
Boulevard Morazan 
Edifício Los Castaños, Pisos 5 y 6 
(Apartado Postal N° 3180) 
Tegucigalpa Tel: 32-8954 

JAMAICA, Jacques Cook 
40-46 Knutsford Blvd. 6th floor 
(P.O. Box 429) 
Kingston 10 Tel: 926-2342 

1MEXICO, Rodolfo Silva 
Avenida Horacio No. 1855 
6o Piso (Esquina Periférico) 
Los Morales — Polanco 
11510 México D.F. Tel: 580-2122 

NICARAGUA, Christian Will 
Edificio BID 
Km. 4-1/2 Carretera a Masaya 
(Apartado Postal 2512) 
Managua Tel: 67-0831 

PANAMA, Luis A. Sánchez Masi 
Avenida Samuel Lewis 
Edificio Banco Unión, Piso 14 
(Apartado Postal 7297) 
Panamá 5 Tel: 63-6944 

PARAGUAY, Roberto Spltale 
Edificio Aurora I 
Calle Caballero esq. Eligió Ayala 
Pisos 2 y 3 
(Casilla de Correo 1209) 
Asunción Tel: 49-2061 

PERU, Luis Buitrago 
Paseo de la República 3245, Piso 14 
San Isidro, Lima 27 
(Apartado Postal 3778, 
Lima 100) Tel: 42-3400 

SURINAME, José Airton Teixeira 
6th Floor Hakrinbank NV 
Dr. Sophie Redmondstraat 11-13 
Paramaribo Tel: 74-317 

TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO, 
Robert H. Bellefeuille 
11 Maraval Rd., Tatil Building 
(P.O. Box 68) 
Port of Spain Tel: 622-8367 

URUGUAY, Vladimir Radovic 
Andes 1365, Piso 13 
(Casilla de Correo 5029, Sucursal 1) 
Montevideo Tel: 92-0444 

VENEZUELA, Fernando A. Cossio 
Edificio Cremerca, Piso 3 
Avenida Venezuela, El Rosal 
Caracas 1060 Tel: 951-5533 

INSTITUTE FOR THE INTEGRATION 
OF LATIN AMERICA 

Eduardo Zalduendo, Director 
Calle Esmeralda 130 — Pisos 16, 17, 18 
(Casilla de Correo No. 39, Sucursal 1) 
Buenos Aires Tel: 394-2265 

SPECIAL REPRESENTATION 
IN EUROPE 

FRANCE, Jorge C. Elena 
66, avenue d'Iéna 
75116 Paris Tel: 40-69-31-00 

UNITED KINGDOM, 
Jerome I. Levlnson 
Morgan House, 1 Angel Court 
London EC2R 7HJ Tel: 726-4380 

As of January 10, 1991 
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